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Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility 
for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly 
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the 
contents of this announcement and the listing document referred to herein.

This announcement is for information purposes only and does not constitute an invitation or offer to acquire, purchase 
or subscribe for securities.

This announcement is not for distribution to (i) any person or address in the United States or (ii) to any U.S. person (as 
defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1993, as amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”)).

The securities have not been, and will not be, registered under the U.S. Securities Act, or the securities laws of any 
state of the United States or other jurisdiction and the securities may not be offered or sold within the United States, or 
to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject 
to, the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state or local securities law.

This announcement and the listing document referred to herein have been published for information purposes only as 
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and do not 
constitute an offer to sell nor a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities. Neither this announcement nor anything 
referred to herein (including the listing document) forms the basis for any contract or commitment whatsoever. For 
the avoidance of doubt, the publication of this announcement and the listing document referred to herein shall not be 
deemed to be an offer of securities made pursuant to a prospectus issued by or on behalf of the issuer for the purposes 
of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong nor shall it 
constitute an advertisement, invitation or document containing an invitation to the public to enter into or offer to enter 
into an agreement to acquire, dispose of, subscribe for or underwrite securities for the purposes of the Securities and 
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong.

Notice to Hong Kong investors:  The Issuer and Guarantor confirm that the securities are intended for purchase 
by professional investors (as defined in Chapter 37 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock 
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) only and have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on that 
basis. Accordingly, the Issuer and Guarantor confirm that the securities are not appropriate as an investment for retail 
investors in Hong Kong. Investors should carefully consider the risks involved.

NOTICE OF LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

U.S.$500,000,000 1.250% Guaranteed Notes due 2024 (the “2024 Notes”)
(Stock Code: 40539)

U.S.$300,000,000 1.875% Guaranteed Notes due 2026 (the “2026 Notes”)
(Stock Code: 40540)

U.S.$400,000,000 2.500% Guaranteed Notes due 2028 (the “2028 Notes”)
(Stock Code: 40541)

U.S.$800,000,000 3.000% Guaranteed Notes due 2031 (the “2031 Notes”, 
together with the 2024 Notes, the 2026 Notes and the 2028 Notes, the “Notes”)

(Stock Code: 40542)

issued under the US$2,000,000,000 Medium Term Note Programme  
(the “Programme”) 

by
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China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited
(a BVI business company incorporated with limited liability in the British Virgin Islands)

(as “Issuer”)

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited
中國信達（香港）控股有限公司

(incorporated with limited liability in Hong Kong)
(as “Guarantor”)

Joint Global Coordinators, Joint Bookrunners and Joint Lead Managers

Agricultural Bank 
of China Limited 

Hong Kong Branch

ANZ Bank of China Bank of 
Communications

BNP PARIBAS BofA Securities

CCB 
International

China 
CITIC Bank 
International

China 
Construction 
Bank (Asia)

China 
Minsheng 
Banking 

Corp., Ltd., 
Hong Kong 

Branch

Cinda 
International

CMB 
International

DBS Bank 
Ltd.

Haitong 
International

Mizuho Securities Nanyang Commercial Bank Standard Chartered Bank

Joint Bookrunners and Joint Lead Managers

China Galaxy 
International 

Securities (Hong 
Kong) Co. Ltd.

China 
International 

Capital 
Corporation

China 
Merchants 

Securities (HK)

China 
Securities 

International

CLSA CMB Wing 
Lung Bank 

Limited

Credit Suisse

Deutsche Bank Dongxing 
Securities (Hong 

Kong)

Huarong 
International 

Securities

ICBC (Asia) Morgan Stanley Shanghai Pudong 
Development Bank 
Hong Kong Branch

This announcement is issued pursuant to Rule 37.39A of the Rules Governing the Listing of 
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong 
Stock Exchange”).



3

Please refer to the offering circular dated 7 January 2021 (the “Offering Circular”), the pricing 
supplement relating to the issue of the 2024 Notes dated 12 January 2021 (the “2024 Notes 
Pricing Supplement”), the pricing supplement relating to the issue of the 2026 Notes dated 12 
January 2021 (the “2026 Notes Pricing Supplement”), the pricing supplement relating to the 
issue of the 2028 Notes dated 12 January 2021 (the “2028 Notes Pricing Supplement”) and the 
pricing supplement relating to the issue of the 2031 Notes dated 12 January 2021 (the “2031 Notes 
Pricing Supplement”, together with the 2024 Notes Pricing Supplement, the 2026 Notes Pricing 
Supplement and the 2028 Notes Pricing Supplement, the “Pricing Supplements”) appended 
herein in relation to the issue of the Notes. As disclosed in the Offering Circular and the Pricing 
Supplements, the Notes are intended for professional investors (as defined in Chapter 37 of the 
Listing Rules on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) only and have been listed on the Hong Kong 
Stock Exchange on that basis.

The Offering Circular and the Pricing Supplements do not constitute a prospectus, notice, circular, 
brochure or advertisement offering to sell any securities to the public in any jurisdiction, nor is 
it an invitation to the public to make offers to subscribe for or purchase any securities, nor is it 
circulated to invite offers by the public to subscribe for or purchase any securities.

The Offering Circular and the Pricing Supplements must not be regarded as an inducement to 
subscribe for or purchase any securities of the Issuer or Guarantor, and no such inducement is 
intended. No investment decision should be made based on the information contained in the 
Offering Circular and the Pricing Supplements.

Hong Kong, 21 January 2021

As at the date of this announcement, the directors of the Issuer are Mr. HUANG Qiang and Ms. 
CAO Ya Bing.

As at the date of this announcement, the directors of the Guarantor are Mr. LIANG Sen Lin, Mr. 
SHEN Jia Mu, Mr. SHEN Hong Pu, Mr. FENG Xing, Mr. YU Fan and Mr. HUANG Qiang.
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APPENDIX 1 – OFFERING CIRCULAR



IMPORTANT NOTICE

THIS OFFERING IS AVAILABLE ONLY TO INVESTORS WHO ARE NON-U.S. PERSONS OUTSIDE OF THE UNITED
STATES

IMPORTANT: You must read the following disclaimer before continuing. The following disclaimer applies to the attached
Offering Circular (the “Offering Circular”). You are therefore advised to read this disclaimer carefully before reading, accessing
or making any other use of the attached. In accessing the attached, you agree to be bound by the following terms and conditions,
including any modifications to them from time to time, each time you receive any information as a result of such access.

Confirmation of your Representation: You have accessed the attached document on the basis that you have confirmed your
representation to the Dealers (as defined in the attached Offering Circular) that:

(1) you are a non-U.S. person outside the United States and, to the extent you purchase the securities described in the attached
Offering Circular you will be doing so outside the United States in an offshore transaction pursuant to Regulation S under
the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”); and

(2) you consent to delivery of the attached Offering Circular and any amendments or supplements thereto by electronic
transmission.

The attached document has been made available to you in electronic form. You are reminded that documents transmitted via this
medium may be altered or changed during the process of transmission and consequently none of the Dealers, the Trustee or the
Agents (each as defined in this Offering Circular) and any person who controls any of them nor any of their respective directors,
employees, representatives, officers, agents, advisers or affiliates accepts any liability or responsibility whatsoever in respect of any
discrepancies between the document distributed to you in electronic format and the hard copy version. A hard copy version will
be provided to you upon request.

Restrictions: The attached Offering Circular is being furnished in connection with offering exempt from registration under the
Securities Act solely for the purpose of enabling a prospective investor to consider the purchase of the securities described in the
Offering Circular.

NOTHING IN THIS ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION CONSTITUTES AN OFFER OF SECURITIES FOR SALE IN THE
UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION WHERE IT IS UNLAWFUL TO DO SO. THE SECURITIES HAVE
NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE, REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY
STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR OTHER JURISDICTION AND THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR
SOLD WITHIN THE UNITED STATES OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, U.S. PERSONS (AS DEFINED IN
REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT). THIS OFFERING IS MADE SOLELY TO NON-U.S. PERSONS IN
OFFSHORE TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO REGULATION S UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.

THE OFFERING CIRCULAR MAY NOT BE FORWARDED OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON AND MAY
NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER, AND IN PARTICULAR, MAY NOT BE FORWARDED TO
ANY ADDRESS IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO ANY U.S. PERSON. ANY FORWARDING, DISTRIBUTION OR
REPRODUCTION OF THIS DOCUMENT IN WHOLE OR IN PART IS UNAUTHORISED. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH
THIS DIRECTIVE MAY RESULT IN A VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE APPLICABLE LAWS OF
OTHER JURISDICTIONS.

Except with respect to eligible investors in jurisdictions where such offer is permitted by law, nothing in this electronic transmission
constitutes an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of either the Issuer or the Guarantor of the securities or the Dealers to subscribe
for or purchase any of the securities described therein, and access has been limited so that it shall not constitute a general
advertisement or general solicitation (as those terms are used in Regulation D under the Securities Act) or directed selling efforts
(within the meaning of Regulation S under the Securities Act) in the United States or elsewhere.

MiFID II product governance/target market – The Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes may include a legend entitled
“MiFID II Product Governance” which will outline the target market assessment in respect of the Notes and which channels for
distribution of the Notes are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a “distributor”)
should take into consideration the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended,
“MiFID II”) is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining
the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the MiFID Product Governance rules under
EU Delegated Directive 2017/593 (the “MiFID Product Governance Rules”), any Dealer subscribing for any Notes is a
manufacturer in respect of such Notes, but otherwise neither the Arrangers, Dealers nor any of their respective affiliates will be a
manufacturer for the purpose of the MiFID Product Governance Rules.

You are reminded that you have accessed the attached Offering Circular on the basis that you are a person into whose possession
this Offering Circular may be lawfully delivered in accordance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which you are located and you
may not nor are you authorised to deliver or forward this document, electronically or otherwise, to any other person. If you have
gained access to this transmission contrary to the foregoing restrictions, you will be unable to purchase any of the securities described
therein.

Actions that You May Not Take: You should not reply by e-mail to this communication, and you may not purchase any securities
by doing so. Any reply e-mail communications, including those you generate by using the “Reply” function on your e-mail software,
will be ignored or rejected.

YOU ARE NOT AUTHORISED TO AND YOU MAY NOT FORWARD OR DELIVER THE ATTACHED OFFERING
CIRCULAR, ELECTRONICALLY OR OTHERWISE, TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR REPRODUCE SUCH OFFERING
CIRCULAR IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER. ANY FORWARDING, DISTRIBUTION OR REPRODUCTION OF THE
ATTACHED OFFERING CIRCULAR IN WHOLE OR IN PART IS UNAUTHORISED. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS
DIRECTIVE MAY RESULT IN A VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE APPLICABLE LAWS OF OTHER
JURISDICTIONS.

You are responsible for protecting against viruses and other destructive items. Your use of this e-mail is at your own risk and it is
your responsibility to take precautions to ensure that it is free from viruses and other items of a destructive nature.



US$2,000,000,000
Medium Term Note Programme

China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited
(a BVI business company incorporated with limited liability in the British Virgin Islands)

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated with limited liability in Hong Kong)

Under the US$2,000,000,000 Medium Term Note Programme described in this Offering Circular (the “Programme”), China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited (the “Issuer”),
subject to compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and directives, may from time to time issue notes (the “Notes”) unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed (the
“Guarantee”) by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (the “Guarantor”). The Guarantor is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“China Cinda”). The Issuer is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Guarantor and China Cinda.

Notes may be issued in bearer or registered form. The aggregate nominal amount of Notes outstanding will not at any time exceed US$2,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other
currencies, subject to any duly authorised increase). The Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to the Dealers specified under “Summary of the Programme” or any additional
dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time by the Issuer and the Guarantor (each a “Dealer” and together the “Dealers”), which appointment may be for a specific
issue or on an ongoing basis. References in this Offering Circular to the “relevant Dealer” shall, in the case of an issue of Notes being (or intended to be) subscribed for by
more than one Dealer, be to all Dealers agreeing to subscribe for such Notes.

Application has been made to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) for the listing of the Programme by way of debt issues to
professional investors only (as defined in Chapter 37 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (“Professional Investors”).
This document is for distribution to Professional Investors only.

Notice to Hong Kong investors: The Issuer and Guarantor confirm that the Notes are intended for purchase by Professional Investors only and will be listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on that basis. Accordingly, the Issuer and Guarantor confirm that the Notes are not appropriate as an investment for retail investors in Hong Kong. Investors
should carefully consider the risks involved.

The Hong Kong Stock Exchange has not reviewed the contents of this document, other than to ensure that the prescribed form disclaimer and responsibility statements,
and a statement limiting distribution of this document to Professional Investors only have been reproduced in this document. Listing of the Programme and the Notes
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is not to be taken as an indication of the commercial merits or credit quality of the Programme, the Notes, or the Issuer or the
Guarantor or quality of disclosure in this document. The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this document, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this Offering Circular.

Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and any other terms and conditions not contained herein
which are applicable to each Series or Tranche (as defined in the “Summary of the Programme”) of Notes will be set out in a pricing supplement (the “Pricing Supplement”)
which, with respect to Notes to be listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, will be delivered to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, on or before the date of issue of the Notes
of such Series or Tranche. This Offering Circular may not be used to consummate sales of Notes, unless accompanied by a Pricing Supplement. The relevant Pricing Supplement
in respect of the issue of any Notes will specify whether or not such Notes will be listed and, if listed whether such listing will be, on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange or any
other stock exchange.

Each Series of Notes in bearer form (“Bearer Notes”) will be represented on issue by a temporary global note (each a “Temporary Global Note”) or a permanent global note
(each a “Permanent Global Note”), and will be sold to non-U.S. persons in an “offshore transaction” within the meaning of Regulation S (“Regulation S”) under the United
States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). Interests in Temporary Global Notes generally will be exchangeable for interests in Permanent Global Notes
(together with the Temporary Global Notes, the “Global Notes”), or if so stated in the relevant Pricing Supplement, definitive Notes (“Definitive Notes”), on or after the
Exchange Date (as defined herein), upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership. Interests in Permanent Global Notes will be exchangeable for Definitive Notes in
whole but not in part as described under “Form of the Note”.

The Notes and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or with any securities regulatory authority of any state or other jurisdiction of
the United States, and the Notes may include Bearer Notes that are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, the Notes and the Guarantee may not
be offered or sold within the United States, or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S) or, in the case of Bearer Notes, offered, sold or
delivered in the United States, or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended). For a description of
certain restrictions on transfer, see “Subscription and Sale.”

The Programme has been assigned a rating of “A-” by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (“S&P”) and a rating of “A” by Fitch Ratings Ltd. (“Fitch”). In addition, the Guarantor
has been assigned a rating of “A3” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”), a rating of “A-” by S&P and a rating of “A” by Fitch. These ratings are only correct as
at the date of this Offering Circular. Tranches or Series of Notes (as defined in “Summary of the Programme”) to be issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. Where
a Tranche or Series of Notes is to be rated, such rating will not necessarily be the same as the ratings assigned to the Programme. A rating does not constitute a recommendation
to buy, sell or hold the Notes and may be subject to suspension, reduction, revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

With respect to each Series or Tranche of the Notes, registration will be completed, or application to registration will be made, by the Issuer and the Guarantor in accordance
with the Notice on the Administrative Reform for the Registration of Offshore Debt Issuances issued by the National Development and Reform Commission (the “NDRC
Notice”), as set forth in the applicable Pricing Supplement. After issuance of each Series or Tranche of the Notes, the Issuer and the Guarantor shall report the issuance
information to the NDRC within 10 working days after the completion of each such issuance.

Investing in Notes issued under the Programme involves certain risks and may not be suitable for all investors. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 15 for a discussion
of factors that you should consider carefully before investing in the Notes.
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The date of this Offering Circular is dated 7 January 2021.



IMPORTANT NOTICE

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
securities other than the securities to which it relates, or an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer
to buy such securities by any person in any circumstances in which such offer or solicitation is
unlawful. In addition, there may be legal restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular
and the offering of the Notes in certain jurisdictions. If you come into possession of this Offering
Circular, the Issuer, the Guarantor and Agricultural Bank of China Limited Hong Kong Branch,
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, Bank of China Limited, Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch, BNP Paribas, BOCI Asia
Limited, Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited, CCB International Capital Limited, China CITIC
Bank International Limited, China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited, China Minsheng
Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, Cinda International Capital Limited, CMB International
Capital Limited, DBS Bank Ltd., Haitong International Securities Company Limited, Mizuho
Securities Asia Limited, Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited and Standard Chartered Bank (the
“Joint Arrangers” and “Dealers”) require that you inform yourself about and observe any such
restrictions. The securities are being offered and sold to non-U.S. persons outside the United States
in reliance on Regulation S. For a description of these and certain further restrictions on offers, sales
and transfers of securities and distribution of this Offering Circular, see “Subscription and Sale” in
this Offering Circular.

This Offering Circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Issuer and the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the
information contained in this Offering Circular and the Pricing Supplement for each Series or Tranche of
Notes issued under the Programme and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of
their knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein
misleading.

This Offering Circular is solely for the purpose of enabling you to consider the purchase of the Notes. If
you have any doubt about this Offering Circular, you should consult your bank manager, legal counsel,
professional accountant or other professional advisor. Each prospective investor will be deemed to
acknowledge that it has not relied on the Arrangers, the Dealers (as defined below), China Construction
Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited as trustee (the “Trustee”), as issuing and paying agent (the “Issuing and
Paying Agent”), as CMU lodging and paying agent (the “CMU Lodging and Paying Agent”, together
with the Issuing and Paying Agent, the “Paying Agents”) and as transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”)
and registrar (the “Registrar”, together with the Issuing and Paying Agent, CMU Lodging and Paying
Agent, Paying Agents and Transfer Agent the “Agents”), any person who controls any of them and any
of their respective directors, employees, representatives, officers, agents, advisers or affiliates in
connection with its investigation of the accuracy of the information contained in this Offering Circular or
its investment decision. In making an investment decision, each prospective investor must rely on its own
examination of the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Group (the Guarantor and its subsidiaries) and the terms
of the Notes, including, without limitation, the merits and risks involved. Each person receiving this
Offering Circular is advised to read and understand the contents of this Offering Circular, including the
financial statements and the related notes thereto, before investing in the Notes. The information contained
in this Offering Circular has been provided and relied on other identified sources. The Arrangers, the
Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents, any person who controls any of them and any of their respective directors,
employees, representatives, officers, agents, advisers or affiliates have not independently verified any of
the information contained in this Offering Circular and they make no representation or warranty, express
or implied, as to the accuracy, sufficiency or completeness of such information, and you should not rely
on anything contained in this Offering Circular as a promise or representation by the Arrangers, the
Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents, any person who controls any of them or any of their respective directors,
employees, representatives, officers, agents, advisers or affiliates. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
none of the Arrangers, the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents, any person who controls any of them or any
of their respective directors, employees, representatives, officers, agents, advisers or affiliates accept any
responsibility or liability in relation to information contained in this Offering Circular, statement made or
purported to be made by any of the Arrangers, the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents, any person who
controls any of them or any of their respective directors, employees, representatives, officers, agents,
advisers or affiliates or on its behalf or any other information in connection with the Issuer, the Guarantor,
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the Group, the Notes and the Guarantee. You should not reproduce or distribute this Offering Circular, in
whole or in part, and should not disclose any contents or use any information in this Offering Circular for
any purpose other than considering an investment in the Notes. None of the Arrangers, the Dealers, the
Trustee, the Agents, any person who controls any of them or any of their respective directors, employees,
representatives, officers, agents, advisers or affiliates undertakes to review the financial condition or
affairs of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Group for so long as the Notes remain outstanding nor to advise
any investor or potential investor of the Notes of any information coming to the attention of any of the
Arrangers, the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents, any person who controls any of them or any of their
respective directors, employees, representatives, officers, agents, advisers or affiliates. By accepting
delivery of this Offering Circular, you agree to these terms.

Each Series (as defined herein) of Notes will be issued on the terms set out herein under “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes” as amended and/or supplemented by the Pricing Supplement specific to such
Series. This Offering Circular must be read and construed together with any amendments or supplements
hereto and with any information incorporated by reference herein and, in relation to any Series of Notes,
must be read and construed together with the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular or any Pricing Supplement nor the offering, sale or delivery
of any Note shall, in any circumstances, create any implication that the information contained in this
Offering Circular is true subsequent to the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has
been most recently amended or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change, or any event
reasonably likely to involve any adverse change, in the prospects or financial or trading position of the
Issuer and the Guarantor since the date thereof or, if later, the date upon which this Offering Circular has
been most recently amended or supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with
the Programme is correct at any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date
indicated in the document containing the same.

Each prospective purchaser of the Notes must comply with all applicable laws and regulations in force in
any jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers or sells the Notes or possesses or distributes this Offering
Circular and must obtain any consents, approvals or permissions required for the purchase, offer or sale
by it of the Notes under the laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction to which it is subject or in
which it makes such purchases, offers or sales, and none of the Guarantor, the Issuer, the Arrangers or the
Dealers shall have any responsibility therefor. If a jurisdiction requires that the offering be made by a
licensed broker or dealer and any of the Dealers or their affiliates is a licensed broker or dealer in that
jurisdiction, the offering shall be deemed to be made by the relevant Dealer or its affiliate on behalf of
the Issuer in such jurisdiction.

The Notes and the Guarantee have not been registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or
sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (i) as part of their
distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise until 40 days after the completion of the distribution of an
identifiable tranche of Notes of which such Notes are a part, except in either case in accordance with
Regulation S under the Securities Act. Any Series of Notes may be subject to additional selling
restrictions. Any additional restrictions on the sale of transfer of any Series of Notes will be specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement for such Notes.

MiFID II product governance/target market — The Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes may
include a legend entitled “MiFID II Product Governance” which will outline the target market assessment
in respect of the Notes and which channels for distribution of the Notes are appropriate. Any person
subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a “distributor”) should take into consideration
the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended,
“MiFID II”) is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by
either adopting or refining the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution
channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the MiFID Product
Governance rules under EU Delegated Directive 2017/593 (the “MiFID Product Governance Rules”),
any Dealer subscribing for any Notes is a manufacturer in respect of such Notes, but otherwise neither the
Arrangers, the Dealers nor any of their respective affiliates will be a manufacturer for the purpose of the
MiFID Product Governance Rules.
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UK MiFIR product governance/target market — The Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes may
include a legend entitled “UK MiFIR Product Governance” which will outline the target market
assessment in respect of the Notes and which channels for distribution of the Notes are appropriate. Any
person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into
consideration the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product
Intervention and Product Governance Sourcebook (the UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules) is
responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting
or refining the target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

A determination will be made in relation to each issue about whether, for the purpose of the UK MiFIR
Product Governance Rules, any Dealer subscribing for any Notes is a manufacturer in respect of such
Notes, but otherwise neither the Arranger nor the Dealers nor any of their respective affiliates will be a
manufacturer for the purpose of the UK MIFIR Product Governance Rules.

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS — The Notes are not intended to be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available
to any retail investor in the European Economic Area (“EEA”). For these purposes, a retail investor means
a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive
2014/65/EU (as amended, “MiFID II”); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the
“Insurance Distribution Directive”), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as
defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation
(EU) 2017/1129 (the “Prospectus Regulation”). Consequently no key information document required by
Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the “PRIIPs Regulation”) for offering or selling the Notes
or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering
or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful
under the PRIIPs Regulation.

IMPORTANT — UK RETAIL INVESTORS — If the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes
includes a legend entitled “Prohibition of Sales to UK Retail Investors”, the Notes are not intended to be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available
to any retail investor in the United Kingdom (UK). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person
who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No
2017/565 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (ii) a customer within the meaning
of the provisions of the FSMA and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive
(EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of
Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or
(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of
domestic law by virtue of the EUWA. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation
(EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the UK PRIIPs Regulation)
for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the UK has been
prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail
investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.

Singapore SFA Product Classification: In connection with Section 309B of the Securities and Futures
Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore (the “SFA”) and the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products)
Regulations 2018 of Singapore (the “CMP Regulations 2018”), unless otherwise specified before an offer
of Notes, the Issuer has determined, and hereby notifies all relevant persons (as defined in Section 309A(1)
of the SFA), that the Notes are ‘prescribed capital markets products’ (as defined in the CMP Regulations
2018) and Excluded Investment Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of
Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products).

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this Offering Circular, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this Offering Circular.
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The maximum aggregate principal amount of Notes outstanding at any one time under the Programme will
not exceed US$2,000,000,000 (and for this purpose, any Notes denominated in another currency shall be
translated into United States dollars at the date of the agreement to issue such Notes calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Dealer Agreement). The maximum aggregate principal amount of
Notes, which may be outstanding at any one time under the Programme, may be increased from time to
time, subject to compliance with the relevant provisions of the Dealer Agreement as defined under
“Subscription and Sale.”

Solely for your convenience, this Offering Circular contains translations of certain Renminbi amounts into
Hong Kong dollars and Hong Kong dollars into U.S. dollars at specified rates. Unless it is indicated
otherwise, the translation of Hong Kong dollars into U.S. dollars has been made at the rate of US$1.00
to HK$7.7894, the noon buying rate in effect on 31 December 2019 as set forth in the H.10 weekly
statistical release of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States (the
“Federal Reserve Board”); and the translation of Renminbi into Hong Kong dollars has been made at the
rate of RMB0.89578 to HK$1.00, the median rate set by the PBOC for foreign exchange transactions
prevailing on 31 December 2019. Further information on exchange rates is set forth in “Exchange Rate”
in this Offering Circular. You should not construe these translations as representations that the Renminbi
amounts have been, could have been or could actually be converted into any U.S. dollar or Hong Kong
dollar amounts, or vice versa, as the case may be, or any Hong Kong dollar amounts have been, could have
been or could be converted into any U.S. dollar amounts, or vice versa, at the rates indicated or at any rates
or at all. Any discrepancies in any table or elsewhere in this Offering Circular between totals and sums
of amounts listed herein are due to rounding.

The financial statements of the Guarantor are prepared and presented in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, or HKFRS, as issued by the Hong Kong institute of Certified Public
Accountants, which differ in certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted in certain
other countries.

The statistics and estimates set forth in this Offering Circular relating to the PRC and the industries in
which the Group operates were taken or derived from various official or third party publications. None of
the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Arrangers, the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents, any person who controls any
of them or any of their respective directors, employees, representatives, officers, agents, advisers or
affiliates makes any representation as to the accuracy and reliability of such statistics and estimates, which
may not be consistent with other information compiled within or outside the PRC. Due to possible
inconsistent data collection and consolidation methods and other associated data collection difficulties, the
statistics and estimates herein may be inaccurate and should not be unduly relied upon.

iv



STABILISATION

IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE OF ANY SERIES OF NOTES, ANY OF THE DEALERS
APPOINTED AND ACTING IN ITS CAPACITY AS A STABILISATION MANAGER (OR
PERSONS ACTING ON BEHALF OF ANY STABILISATION MANAGER(S)) IN THE PRICING
SUPPLEMENT, MAY OVER-ALLOT NOTES OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WITH A VIEW TO
SUPPORTING THE MARKET PRICE OF THE NOTES AS A LEVEL HIGHER THAN THAT
WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL. HOWEVER, STABILISATION MAY NOT
NECESSARILY OCCUR. ANY STABILISATION ACTION MAY BEGIN ON OR AFTER THE
DATE ON WHICH ADEQUATE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF THE TERMS OF THE OFFER OF
THE RELEVANT TRANCHE OF NOTES IS MADE AND, IF BEGUN, MAY CEASE AT ANY TIME,
BUT IT MUST END NO LATER THAN THE EARLIER OF 30 DAYS AFTER THE ISSUE DATE
OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE OF NOTES AND 60 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF THE
ALLOTMENT OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE OF NOTES. ANY STABILISATION ACTION OR
OVER-ALLOTMENT MUST BE CONDUCTED BY RELEVANT STABILISATION MANAGER(S)
(OR PERSONS ACTING ON BEHALF OF ANY STABILISATION MANAGER(S)) IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND RULES.
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INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Offering Circular should be read and construed in conjunction with:

(i) each relevant Pricing Supplement;

(ii) all amendments and supplements from time to time to this Offering Circular; and

(iii) any annual audited financial statements of Cinda HK that are published subsequent to the date of this
Offering Circular as amended and supplemented from time to time,

which shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Offering Circular and which shall
be deemed to modify or supersede the contents of this Offering Circular.

Any statement contained in this Offering Circular or in a document incorporated by reference into this
Offering Circular will be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Offering Circular to
the extent that a statement contained in any such subsequent document modifies or supersedes that
statement. Any statement that is modified or superseded in this manner will no longer be a part of this
Offering Circular, except as modified or superseded.

Copies of all such documents which are so deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Offering
Circular will be available for inspection upon prior written request and proof of holding to the satisfaction
during usual business hours (being 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time)) on any weekday (Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays excepted) at the specified office of the Trustee (as defined under “Summary
of the Programme”) set out at the end of this Offering Circular. In this Offering Circular, unless the
contrary intention appears, a reference to a law or a provision of a law is a reference to that law or
provision as extended, amended or re-enacted.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Offering Circular includes forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of
historical facts contained in this Offering Circular, including, without limitation, those regarding the
Group’s future financial position, its strategies, plans, objectives, goals, targets and future developments
in the markets where the Group participates or is seeking to participate, and any statements preceded by,
followed by or that include the words “believe,” “expect,” “estimate,” “predict,” “aim,” “intend,” “will,”
“may,” “plan,” “consider,” “anticipate,” “seek,” “should,” “could,” “would,” “continue,” or similar
expressions or the negative thereof, are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the Group’s
control, which may cause its actual results, performance or achievements, or industry results, to be
materially different from any future results, performance or achievement expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions
regarding the Group’s present and future business strategies and the environment in which it will operate
in the future. Important factors that could cause the Group’s actual performance or achievements to differ
materially from those in the forward-looking statements include, among other things, the following:

• the Group’s ability to successfully implement its business plans and strategies;

• future developments, trends and conditions in the industries and markets in which the Group
operates;

• the Group’s business prospects;

• the Group’s capital expenditure plans;

• the actions and developments of the Group’s competitors;

• the Group’s financial condition and performance;

• capital market development;

• the Group’s dividend policy;

• any changes in the laws, rules and regulations of the central and local governments in the PRC and
other relevant jurisdictions and the rules, regulations and policies of the relevant, governmental
authorities relating to all aspects of the Group’s business;

• general political and economic conditions, including those related to the PRC;

• changes or volatility in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices,
including those pertaining to the PRC and the industries and markets in which the Group operates;

• various business opportunities that the Group may pursue;

• macroeconomic measures taken by the mainland Chinese and Hong Kong governments to manage
economic growth;

• changes in the global economic conditions and material volatility in the global financial markets;

• volatility of the economies of Hong Kong and mainland China; and

• the impact of COVID-19 on economic conditions.

Additional factors that could cause actual performance or achievements to differ materially include, but
are not limited to, those discussed in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering Circular. The Group
cautions you not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect the Group’s
view only as at the date of this Offering Circular. The Group undertakes no obligation to update or revise
any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. In
light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed in this Offering
Circular might not occur. All forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Circular are qualified
by reference to the cautionary statements set out in this section.
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DEFINITIONS

CCAM China Cinda (HK) Asset Management Co., Limited (中國信達(香
港)資產管理有限公司)

China COSCO China COSCO Shipping Corporation Limited (中國遠洋海運集團
有限公司)

China Cinda China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (中國信達資產管理股份
有限公司)

China Cinda (Macau) China Cinda (Macau) Asset Management Company Limited (中國
信達(澳門)資產管理有限公司)

Cinda (China) Investment Cinda (China) Investments Company Limited (信達(中國)投資有
限公司)

Cinda Financial Holding Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited (信達金融控股有限公司)

Cinda HK or Guarantor China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (中國信達(香港)控
股有限公司)

Cinda Jinkong Cinda Jinkong (Ningbo) Investment Management Company
Limited (信達金控(寧波)投資管理有限公司)

Cinda Leasing (HK) Cinda Leasing (HK) Co., Limited (信達租賃(香港)有限公司)

Cinda Securities Cinda Securities Company Limited (信達證券股份有限公司)

Cinda Trust Cinda Trust Investment Company Limited (原中國信達信託投資公
司)

Hongma Investment Hongma (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Limited (弘馬
(上海)投資管理有限公司)

Well Kent (Macau) Well Kent International Holdings (Macau) Co., Ltd. (華建國際(澳
門)有限公司)

Well Kent (Shenzhen) Well Kent International Enterprises (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (華建國
際實業(深圳)有限公司)

MOF Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (中華人民
共和國財政部)

NCB Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited (南洋商業銀行)

Qianhai Well Kent Shenzhen Qianhai Well Kent Equity Investment Co., Ltd. (深圳市
前海華建股權投資有限公司)

SSF National Council for Social Security Fund of the People’s Republic
of China (全國社會保險基金理事會)

Sino-Rock Investment Sino-Rock Investment Management Company Limited (漢石投資
管理有限公司)
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SUMMARY

This summary does not contain all the information that may be important to you. You should read the entire
Offering Circular, including “Risk Factors” and the financial statements and related notes thereto, before
deciding to invest in the Securities.

OVERVIEW

China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda HK” or the “Guarantor”), is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cinda, a leading asset management company (“AMC”) in China. Cinda HK is the sole
strategic offshore investing and financing platform of Cinda Group (China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. (中國信達資產管理股份有限公司) (“China Cinda” or the “Parent”) and its subsidiaries). With a
successful track record of more than 20 years, Cinda HK has swiftly achieved its strategic mission, linking
Cinda Group with offshore capital markets and paving the way for oversea expansion. Cinda HK is also
dedicated to maintaining and enhancing its position as Cinda Group’s overseas platform through
consolidating and leveraging the distinct expertise and competitive strengths of its subsidiaries and
affiliates, including NCB and CCAM and other financial institutions licensed for multiple lines of
regulated financial activities.

Cinda HK, based on its strong support and indispensable position within Cinda Group, has become one
of the most recognised offshore platform among the state-owned AMCs, proven by its credit rating of
“A3”, “A-” and “A” from Moody’s, S&P and Fitch, respectively, and is the first offshore platform to
receive the same issuer rating as its parent AMC from all three credit rating agencies. The strong support
received from China Cinda includes not only liquidity support and credit enhancement but also
management support as Cinda HK’s board directors and senior management are appointed by China Cinda
which marks strong linkages between Cinda HK and China Cinda. Furthermore, Cinda HK also benefits
from NCB’s robust standalone credit profile including adequate capitalisation, sound asset quality, solid
liquidity profile and stable profitability.

Cinda HK’s main businesses include banking and non-banking business, and its non-banking business is
composed of investment and financing segments. Most of Cinda HK’s revenue comes from its banking
business, which is conducted through NCB. Earnings from investment business (including distressed asset
related investment, liquidity management investment, and other investments) contribute to a large portion
of Cinda HK’s non-banking segment revenue. Distressed assets related investment business is the core of
Cinda HK’s investment business that lays a solid foundation for Cinda HK’s sustainable development.
Under regulatory guidance of “Returning to the Fundamentals of AMC’s Business (回歸主業)”, Cinda HK
actively pursues thematic distressed asset related investment opportunities. Serving as a bridge between
China Cinda and overseas distressed asset markets, Cinda HK proactively delivers cross-border solutions
to China Cinda and provides it with channels to identify potential investment targets and strategic partners.
Through assets acquisition, debt tenor structure adjustment, non-cash repayment, debt-to-equity swap(s)
and other restructuring approaches, Cinda HK revitalises the value of distressed assets and realises the
investment profits.

Cinda HK possesses a diversified client base in terms of geographical distribution of investment portfolio,
industry coverage and investment products. Cinda HK has expanded its global footprint from mainland
China, Hong Kong and other “Belt and Road Initiative” countries. As at 31 December 2019, the
investments in Hong Kong, mainland of China and other areas account for 36 per cent., 32 per cent. and
32 per cent., respectively of the total investments made by Cinda HK in its non-banking segment.

Leveraging on the strong support and unparalleled resources of China Cinda, Cinda HK will continue to
improve the quality of its service to strengthen its market position in Hong Kong and mainland China. It
strives to increase the synergic effect both among its own business units and with China Cinda and
continues to seek new development opportunities.
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COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

The Cinda HK believes that the competitive strengths set out below differentiate it from other industry
participants and have enabled it to complete effectively and seize growth opportunities.

• Cinda HK is a leading overseas platform among the large AMCs.

• Cinda HK has strong support from China Cinda.

• Cinda HK is an indispensable investment and financing strategy platform.

• Cinda HK has continuously expanded its financing channels, secured long-term and stable sources
of financing and actively explored the business model of a balanced investment portfolio.

• Cinda HK has a robust and comprehensive risk management system and has continuously
strengthened its risk management culture.

• Cinda HK has an entrepreneurial and visionary management team.

STRATEGIES

Cinda HK focuses on distressed assets related investment business under the principle of “Returning to the
Fundamentals of AMC’s Business (回歸主業)” which lays a solid foundation for Cinda HK’s other
business. Cinda HK expands and strengthens business development with a focus on distressed asset
management. On the other hand, it further leverages its expertise, highlighting the “Three Platforms”, the
overseas investment platform of China Cinda, overseas financing platform and overseas asset management
platform of Cinda Group.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

The recent developments of the Group since 31 December 2019 are set forth below:

Financial Performance for the six months ended 30 June 2020

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, Cinda HK has experienced a decrease in terms of net profit by
more than 80 per cent. as compared to the same period in 2019, mainly due to reduction of net interest
income and reduction of the fair value of investments and the corresponding impairment made to certain
investments as a result of the volatile economy in Hong Kong and mainland China and the adverse impact
of COVID-19 on the economic conditions, the credit quality of Cinda HK’s investment and Cinda HK’s
business operation. In particular, Cinda HK holds certain investments relating to the hotel industry, the
market value of which has been adversely affected by COVID-19. Cinda HK expects the reduction of the
fair value of investments and the corresponding impairment will continue to have an effect but to a lesser
extent on its financial results for the full year of 2020.

The aforesaid information is only based on a preliminary assessment on the unaudited consolidated
management accounts for the six months ended 30 June 2020, which have not been audited or reviewed
by Cinda HK’s auditor, and may be subject to amendments. None of the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents,
or any person who controls any of them, or any of their respective directors, affiliates, officers, advisers,
employees or agents makes any representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied of, or accepts
any responsibility or liability with respect to, the business, financial condition or results of operation of
Cinda HK.

As at 30 June 2020, NCB’s total consolidated assets, gross advances to customers and deposits from
customers were HK$472,165.53 million, HK$265,497.67 million and HK$342,331.51 million,
respectively. For the six months ended 30 June 2019 and 2020, NCB’s profit after tax was HK$2,102.36
million and HK$2,407.52 million, respectively. As at 30 June 2020, NCB’s total capital adequacy ratio was
approximately 20.00 per cent., and its loan to deposit ratio was approximately 77.56 per cent. For the six
months ended 30 June 2019 and 2020, the average value of NCB’s quarterly liquidity coverage ratio was
154.16 per cent. and 150.00 per cent., respectively; its annualised return on average assets was 0.84 per
cent. and 1.00 per cent., respectively; and its annualised return on average equity was 8.38 per cent. and
9.01 per cent., respectively.
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As at 30 June 2020, NCB offered a broad range of banking and related financial services in Hong Kong
through a network of 43 branches strategically located to provide coverage for the core districts on Hong
Kong Island, Kowloon and the New Territories. In terms of NCB’s operations in mainland China, NCB had
in total 37 branches/sub-branches in the PRC as at 30 June 2020.

Impact of COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 and the resulting impact on financial market have had adverse impact on Cinda
HK’s financial performance. In the first half of 2020, both in China and globally, business activities were
delayed or largely suspended, which created high uncertainties and volatilities in the financial markets.
The market value of assets and trading of the stocks and bonds in the secondary market were adversely
affected. Various restrictions caused by the pandemic and the economic conditions posed challenges to
Cinda HK to sustain financial growth. As the COVID-19 situation has alleviated in mainland China, Cinda
HK has seen a recovery of its regular business activities since the second half of 2020. The secondary
market has also seen a recovery from its first quarter performance. Cinda HK does not expect material
effect on its operating cash flow. It is of the view that its overall financial and business positions remain
sustainable. However, due to the ongoing impact of COVID-19, Cinda HK expects the COVID-19
pandemic to have an adverse impact on its overall financial performance for the full year of 2020.

The aforesaid information is only based on a preliminary assessment on the unaudited consolidated
management accounts for the six months ended 30 June 2020, which have not been audited or reviewed
by Cinda HK’s auditor, and may be subject to amendments. None of the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents,
or any person who controls any of them, or any of their respective directors, affiliates, officers, advisers,
employees or agents makes any representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied of, or accepts
any responsibility or liability with respect to, the business, financial condition or results of operation of
Cinda HK.

In the face of the COVID-19 outbreak and complex macro-political and economic environment both
domestically in the PRC and internationally, Cinda HK will leverage its competitive strengths to actively
expand its rich and diversified financing channels, fully utilises its established close strategic and
cooperative partnerships, and further strengthen its relationships with the onshore and offshore major
financial institutions to keep its competitive position. Cinda HK will also actively facilitate the relief
measures rolled out by the PRC government and the Hong Kong government during the pandemic,
overcome difficulties and contain the pandemic. Cinda HK will continue to manage its business operations
during the pandemic, and closely monitor and reduce the impact of the pandemic on customers and its
investment.

Acquisition of Zhongchang International Holdings Group Limited (“Zhongchang International”)

On 18 October 2019, CCAM acquired a 74.98% interest in Zhongchang International, a Bermuda
incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Zhongchang International is engaged in
property leasing and development, and provision of property management services. The acquisition was
made for the reason of an enforcement action taken by CCAM in connection with a HK$700 million loan
facility made by CCAM to the immediate holding company of Zhongchang International as the borrower.
Due to the continued occurrence of certain events of defaults of the borrower, CCAM, as the lender and
the security agent under the abovementioned facility, took enforcement action on 18 October 2019 in
accordance with the terms of a share mortgage over 843,585,747 shares in Zhongchang International,
representing approximately 74.98% of the total shares of Zhongchang International then issued. Since the
acquisition, HK$6,790,000 of revenue and HK$48,185,000 of loss after tax of the acquiree were included
in the Guarantor’s consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019. For more
information on the financial effects of the acquisition, please refer to note 49 of the consolidated financial
statements of the Guarantor as of and for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at 30 June 2020, CCAM held 86.13% interest in Zhongchang International.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary audited consolidated financial information of the Guarantor as at and for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 as set forth below is extracted from the Guarantor’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, which have been audited by Ernst & Young in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”).

The summary consolidated financial information as set forth below should be read in conjunction with,
and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, the relevant audited or reviewed consolidated financial
statements of the Guarantor and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Offering Circular. The
Guarantor’s historical consolidated financial information should not be taken as an indication of its future
financial performance.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December

2018 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,068,638 12,434,507
Net gains on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,841,836 3,417,946
Investment income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,526,433 3,740,209
Commission and fee income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,025,447 1,795,924
Other income and gains/(losses), net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11,942) 722,765

20,450,412 22,111,351

Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12,775,125) (14,486,356)
Commission and fee expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (320,908) (121,912)
Other operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,857,965) (4,036,376)
Impairment losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,657,606) (1,840,321)

(18,611,604) (20,484,965)

Profit before share of results of associates and joint ventures,
and tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,838,808 1,626,386

Share of results of associates and joint ventures . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,383,291 810,975

Profit before tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,222,099 2,437,361
Income tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (875,235) (703,195)

Profit for the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,346,864 1,734,166

Profit/(loss) attributable to: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Equity holders of the Company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,844,557 1,314,585
Other equity instruments issued by a subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . 470,121 470,319
Non-controlling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,186 (50,738)

2,346,864 1,734,166

Profit for the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,346,864 1,734,166

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment, net of tax. . . . . . . 82,132 108,603
Actuarial losses on remeasurement of defined benefit plan, net

of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6,012) —
Net gains arising from fair value changes of equity instruments

classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,933 (669)

81,053 107,934
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Year ended 31 December

2018 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations . . . . . . . . (1,242,363) (949,308)
Net gains arising from fair value changes of debt instruments

classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 413,296 469,420

Reclassification of investment revaluation reserve arising from
impairment on financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 170,395 11,159

Reclassification of investment revaluation reserve arising from
disposal of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (57,875) (186,219)

Share of associates’ investment revaluation reserve. . . . . . . . . . . (190,320) 100,390

(906,867) (554,558)

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . (825,814) (446,624)

Total comprehensive income for the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,521,050 1,287,542

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,018,743 866,567
Other equity instruments issued by a subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . 470,121 470,319
Non-controlling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,186 (49,344)

1,521,050 1,287,542
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December

2018 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,998,984 21,207,937
Deposits with banks and financial institutions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40,009,394 23,889,236
Placements with banks and financial institutions. . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,080,229 12,449,820
Financial investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 174,475,235 203,440,296
Trade receivables from brokerage activities and disposal of

investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,437,196 1,019,919
Loans and advances to customers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 275,613,751 286,507,505
Loans granted under repurchase agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,842,383 —
Interests in associates and joint ventures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,781,610 11,930,408
Investment properties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 525,650 2,465,584
Property, plant and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,748,396 15,405,620
Inventory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 842,515
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,590,607 4,486,629
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,964,206 25,851,817
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 229,694 479,040
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,540,254 13,930,367

596,837,589 623,906,693

LIABILITIES
Borrowings from central bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 27,687
Bank and other borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54,526,936 58,036,809
Placements from banks and financial institutions . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,848,177 13,593,036
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss . . . . . . . . 5,738,118 5,635,663
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements . . . . . . . . . . . 6,818,093 16,098,446
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,364,688 3,213,568
Tax payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 738,372 1,109,065
Bonds issued . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 98,774,072 104,589,529
Due to customers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 326,969,677 341,885,565
Deposits from banks and financial institutions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27,559,903 17,669,666
Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,660,948 1,735,868
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,874,896 15,363,344

552,873,880 578,958,246

EQUITY
Share capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,975,487 24,975,487
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,464,218 9,513,615
Reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 518,914 322,924

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company . . . . . . . . . 33,958,619 34,812,026
Other equity instruments issued by a subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,314,890 9,314,890
Non-controlling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 690,200 821,531

TOTAL EQUITY . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43,963,709 44,948,447

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 596,837,589 623,906,693
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SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following summary does not purport to be complete and is taken from and is qualified in its entirety
by, the remainder of this Offering Circular and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular
Tranche of Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement. Words and expressions defined in “Forms of the
Notes” and “Terms and Conditions of the Notes” shall have the same meanings in this summary.

Under the Programme, the Issuer may, from time to time, issue Notes denominated in U.S. dollars, Euros
or in any other currency, subject to the terms more fully set forth herein. A summary of the terms and
conditions of the Programme and the Notes appears below. The applicable terms of any Notes will be
agreed upon by and between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) prior to the issue of the Notes and will
be set forth in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes endorsed on, or incorporated by reference into, the
Notes, as modified and supplemented by the applicable Pricing Supplement attached to, or endorsed on,
such Notes, as more fully described under “Forms of Notes” below.

Issuer China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited

Guarantor China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited

Joint Arrangers and Dealers Agricultural Bank of China Limited Hong Kong Branch, Australia
and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, Bank of China Limited,
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch, BNP Paribas, BOCI Asia Limited,
Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited, CCB International Capital
Limited, China CITIC Bank International Limited, China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited, China Minsheng
Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, Cinda International
Capital Limited, CMB International Capital Limited, DBS Bank
Ltd., Haitong International Securities Company Limited, Mizuho
Securities Asia Limited, Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited and
Standard Chartered Bank

Trustee China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Issuing and Paying Agent China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Transfer Agent and Registrar China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

CMU Lodging and Paying Agent China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Programme Size Up to US$2,000,000,000 (or the equivalent in any other currency
at the date of issue (the “Programme Limit”)) aggregate nominal
amount of Notes outstanding at any one time. The Issuer and the
Guarantor may increase the amount of the Programme Limit in
accordance with the terms of the Dealer Agreement.

Certain Restrictions Each issue of Notes denominated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which
comply with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or
reporting requirements from time to time (see “Subscription and
Sale”) including the following restriction applicable at the date of
this Offering Circular.
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Notes having a maturity of less
than one year

Notes having a maturity of less than one year will, if the proceeds
of the issue are accepted in the United Kingdom, constitute
deposits for the purposes of the prohibition on accepting deposits
contained in section 19 of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 (FSMA) unless they are issued to a limited class of
professional investors and have a denomination of at least
£100,000 or its equivalent, see “Subscription and Sale”.

Method of Issue The Notes will be issued on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.
The Notes will be issued in series (each, a “Series”) having one or
more issue dates and on terms otherwise identical (or identical
other than in respect of the first payment of interest and/or the
Issue Price), the Notes of each Series being intended to be fungible
with all other Notes of that Series. Each Series may be issued in
tranches (each, a “Tranche”) on the same or different issue dates.
The specific terms of each Tranche (which will be completed,
where necessary, with the relevant terms and conditions and, save
in respect of the issue date, issue price, first payment of interest
and nominal amount of the Tranche, will be identical to the terms
of other Tranches of the same Series) will be specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement.

Issue Price Notes may be issued at their nominal amount or at a discount or
premium to their nominal amount. Partly Paid Notes may be
issued, the issue price of which will be payable in two or more
instalments.

Form of Notes The Notes will be issued in bearer or registered form as described
in “Form of the Notes”. Bearer Notes will not be exchangeable for
Registered Notes, and Registered Notes will not be exchangeable
for Bearer Notes, and vice versa.

A Tranche of Bearer Notes will initially be in the form of either a
Temporary Global Note or a Permanent Global Note, in each case
as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

A Tranche of Registered Notes will initially be represented by a
Global Certificate.

Where TEFRA D (as defined below) is applicable, Bearer Notes
must initially be issued in the form of a Temporary Global Note,
exchangeable for Permanent Global Notes or Definitive Notes
upon certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership.

Clearing Systems Euroclear, Clearstream, the CMU and, in relation to any Tranche,
such other clearing system as may be agreed between the Issuer,
the Issuing and Paying Agent, the Trustee and the relevant Dealer.
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Initial Delivery of Notes On or before the issue date for a Tranche, the Global Note or
Global Certificate representing the Notes may be deposited with a
common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream or deposited
with a sub-custodian for the CMU. Global Notes or Global
Certificates may also be deposited with any other clearing system
or may be delivered outside any clearing system provided that the
method of such delivery has been agreed in advance by the Issuer,
the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent and the relevant Dealer(s).
Registered Notes that are to be credited to one or more clearing
systems on issue will be registered in the name of, or in the name
of nominees or a common nominee for, such clearing systems.

Currencies Subject to compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and
directives, Notes may be issued in any currency agreed between the
Issuer, the Guarantor, the relevant Dealer(s) and the Principal
Paying Agent.

Maturities Subject to compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and
directives, any maturity as may be agreed between the Issuer, the
Guarantor, the relevant Dealer(s) and the Principal Paying Agent.

Specified Denomination Notes will be in such denominations as may be agreed between the
Issuer, the Guarantor and the relevant Dealer(s) save that the
minimum denomination of each Note will be such as may be
allowed or required from time to time by the central banks (or
equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the
relevant currency (see “Certain Restrictions” above).

Fixed Rate Notes Fixed interest will be payable in arrears on the date or dates in each
year specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Floating Rate Notes Floating Rate Notes will bear interest determined separately for
each Series as set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and
the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Benchmark Event If the Issuer or its designee determines that a Benchmark Event has
occurred in relation to an Original Reference Rate when any Rate
of Interest (or any component part thereof) as specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement remains to be determined by reference
to such Original Reference Rate, then the Issuer shall use its
reasonable endeavours to appoint an Independent Adviser, as soon
as reasonably practicable, to determine a Successor Rate, failing
which an Alternative Rate (in accordance with the Conditions and,
in either case, an Adjustment Spread if any, and any Benchmark
Amendments in accordance with the Conditions).

Zero Coupon Notes Zero Coupon Notes may be issued at their nominal amount or at a
discount to it and will not bear interest.

Dual Currency Notes Payments in respect of Dual Currency Notes will be made in such
currencies, and based on such rates of exchange as may be
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.
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Index Linked Notes Payments of principal in respect of Index Linked Redemption
Notes or of interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes will
be calculated by reference to such index and/or formula as may be
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Interest Periods and Interest
Rates

The length of the interest periods for the Notes and the applicable
interest rate or its method of calculation may differ from time to
time or be constant for any Series. Notes may have a maximum
interest rate, a minimum interest rate, or both. All such information
will be set out in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Redemption The relevant Pricing Supplement will indicate either that the
relevant Notes cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity
(other than in specified instalments, if applicable, or for taxation
reasons or following an Event of Default) or that such Notes will
be redeemable at the option of the Issuer and/or the Noteholders
upon giving notice to the Noteholders or the Issuer, as the case may
be, on a date or dates specified prior to such stated maturity and at
a price or prices and on such other terms as may be agreed between
the Issuer and the relevant Dealer. The applicable Pricing
Supplement may provide that Notes may be redeemable in two or
more instalments of such amounts and on such dates as are
indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Notes having a
maturity of less than one year are subject to restrictions on their
denomination and distribution, see “Certain Restrictions — Notes
having a maturity of less than one year” above.

Redemption by Instalments The Pricing Supplement issued in respect of each issue of Notes
that are redeemable in two or more instalments will set out the
dates on which, and the amounts in which, such Notes may be
redeemed.

Optional Redemption The Pricing Supplement issued in respect of each issue of the
Notes will state whether such Notes may be redeemed prior to their
stated maturity at the option of the Issuer and the Guarantor (either
in whole or in part) and/or the Holders, and if so the terms
applicable to such redemption.

Redemption upon a Change of
Control Triggering Event

Unless previously redeemed under Condition 6 (Redemption,
Purchase and Options) of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes,
upon a Change of Control Triggering Event, the Issuer will be
required to make an offer to redeem all of the Notes at a price in
cash equal to the 101 per cent. of the principal amount of the Notes
repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest (if any) on the
principal amount of Notes being repurchased to but excluding the
date of repurchase.
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Redemption for Taxation Reasons The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole,
but not in part, upon notice as described in the Terms and
Conditions of the Notes, at their Early Redemption Amount
(together with interest accrued (if any) to the date fixed for
redemption and Additional Amounts, in the event the Issuer or, as
the case may be, the Guarantor becomes obligated to pay
Additional Amounts in respect of the Notes of that series or, the
Guarantee as a result of certain changes in tax law. See “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes — Redemption — Redemption for Taxation
Reasons.”

Trust Deed The Issuer, the Guarantor and the Trustee had entered into a trust
teed on 7 January 2021 for each Series of the Notes (as amended
and supplemented from time to time, the “Trust Deed”).

Taxation All payments of principal, premium and interest in respect of the
Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons or under the Guarantee will
be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction
for, or on account of, any Taxes of the British Virgin Islands, Hong
Kong or the PRC or a Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction, unless required
by law to be withheld or deducted.

In the event that withholding of British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
or PRC Taxes is required in respect of payments pursuant to the
Notes or the Guarantee, the Guarantor or Issuer, will, subject to
certain exceptions, pay such Additional Amounts under the Notes
as will result, after deduction or withholding of such taxes, in the
payment of the amounts that would have been payable in respect of
the Notes had no deduction or withholding been required. See
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes — Taxation”

Status of Notes The Notes and the Receipts and the Coupons relating to them will
constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject to
Condition 4(a) of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes)
unsecured obligations of the Issuer, and shall at all times rank pari
passu and without any preference among themselves. The payment
obligations of the Issuer under such Notes and the Receipts and the
Coupons relating to them shall, save for such exceptions as may be
provided by applicable law and subject to Condition 4(a) of the
Terms and Conditions of the Notes, at all times rank at least
equally with all other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer.

Status of the Guarantee The Guarantee will constitute the Guarantor’s direct,
unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject to Condition 4(a) of the
Terms and Conditions of the Notes) unsecured obligations, and
shall at all times rank at least pari passu with all of the Guarantor’s
other present and future unconditional, unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations, save for such obligations as may be
preferred by provisions of law that are both mandatory and of
general application.
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Covenants The Guarantor and the Issuer have covenanted, and upon the
execution of the Trust Deed, the Guarantor will covenant in the
Trust Deed, with certain exceptions, not to incur certain liens or
consolidate, merge, sell or lease its assets substantially as an
entirety unless certain conditions are satisfied. The Notes and the
Trust Deed do not otherwise restrict or limit the Guarantor’s or the
Issuer’s ability to incur additional indebtedness by itself or its
subsidiaries or its ability to enter into transactions with, or to pay
dividends or make other payments to, affiliates. See “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes — Negative Pledge and Other Covenants
— Negative Pledge” and “— Limitation on Consolidation, Merger
and Sale of Assets.”

Events of Default Certain events will permit acceleration of the principal of the
Notes (together with all interest and additional amounts accrued
and unpaid thereon). These events include default with respect to
the payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on, the
Notes. See “Terms and Conditions of the Notes — Events of
Default.”

Ratings Tranches of Notes will be rated or unrated. Where a Tranche of
Notes is to be rated, such rating will be specified in the relevant
Pricing Supplement. A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell
or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

Selling Restrictions For a description of certain restrictions on offers, sales and
deliveries of Notes and on the distribution of offering materials in
the United States, Hong Kong, Japan, PRC, Singapore, the EEA,
the United Kingdom, Macau, Taiwan and British Virgin Islands,
see “Subscription and Sale.”

In connection with the offering and sale of a particular Series of
Notes, additional restrictions may be imposed which will be set out
in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Notes in bearer form will be issued in compliance with the D Rules
unless (i) the applicable Pricing Supplement states that the Notes
are issued in compliance with U.S. Treasury Regulations
§1.163-5(c) (2) (i) (C) or any successor rules in substantially the
same form that are applicable for purposes of Section 4701 of the
Code (the “C Rules”) or (ii) the Notes have a term of one year or
less (taking into account any unilateral right to extend or rollover
the term).

The Notes and the Guarantee have not been and will not be
registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold
within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S.
persons, except in certain transactions exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. Terms used in this paragraph
have the meanings given to them by Regulation S.
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In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering
of any identifiable tranche of Notes, an offer or sale of Notes
within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating
in the offering of such tranche of Notes) may violate the
registration requirements of the Securities Act.

The Issuer will not register the Notes for resale under the
Securities Act or the securities laws of any other jurisdiction or
offer to exchange the Notes for registered Notes under the
Securities Act or the securities laws of any other jurisdiction.

Listing Application has been made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
permission to deal in and quotation of any Notes that may be issued
pursuant to the Programme and which are agreed at or prior to the
time of issue thereof to be so listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange by way of debt issues to Professional Investors only.
There is no assurance that the application to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange for the listing of a particular Series will be approved.
The Notes may also be listed on such other or further stock
exchange(s) as may be agreed between the Issuer, the Guarantor
and the relevant Dealer in relation to each Series. Unlisted Notes
may also be issued under the Programme. The relevant Pricing
Supplement will state whether or not the Notes of a Series will be
listed on any exchange(s) and, if so, on which exchange(s) the
Notes are to be listed.

Governing Law The Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the
Talons, the Agency Agreement and the Guarantee will be governed
by, and construed in accordance with, English law.

Legal Entity Identifier Issuer: 549300ZIBIB6Z9RSNU64
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RISK FACTORS

Any investment in the Notes is subject to a number of risks. Prior to investing in the Notes, prospective
investors should carefully consider risk factors associated with any investment in the Notes, the businesses
of Cinda HK and the industries in which Cinda HK operates together with all other information contained
in this Offering Circular, including, in particular, the risk factors described below. Words and expressions
defined in the “Terms and Conditions of the Notes” or elsewhere in this Offering Circular have the same
meanings in this section.

The following is not an exhaustive list or explanation of all risks which investors may face when making
an investment in the Notes and should be used as guidance only. Additional risks and uncertainties relating
to Cinda HK that are not currently known to the Issuer or the Guarantor or that they currently deem
immaterial, may individually or cumulatively also have a material adverse effect on the businesses,
prospects, results of operations and/or financial position of Cinda HK and, if any such risk should occur,
the price of the Notes may decline and investors could lose all or part of their investment. Investors should
consider carefully whether an investment in the Notes is suitable for them in light of the information in
this Offering Circular and their personal circumstances.

RISKS RELATING TO CINDA HK’S OVERALL BUSINESS

Cinda HK is subject to risks related to fluctuations in the macroeconomic and market conditions.

Cinda HK’s business is inherently subject to general macroeconomic conditions and policies and market
fluctuations, including financing cost and the volatility of interest rates, inflation, availability of
short-term and long-term financing sources, upward and downward trends in the industrial and financial
sectors, monetary and fiscal policies, restriction on capital outflows, foreign exchange policies and
currency fluctuations, taxation policies and other macroeconomic policies, as well as laws and regulations
affecting the financial industries.

Unfavourable financial or economic environments, including the continued global financial uncertainties,
have had and may continue to have an adverse impact on investors’ confidence and global financial
markets. The United States and China have been involved in disputes over trade barriers that have
escalated into a trade war between the two countries. Both countries have implemented tariffs on certain
imported products from the other, casting uncertainty over tariffs and barrier to entry for products on both
sides. The two governments have entered into an initial phase one agreement to resolve the disputes on
15 January 2020 (the “Phase One Agreement”). However, there are uncertainties as to when and whether
phase two negotiations will begin and whether the two governments will fulfil their respective obligations
under the Phase One Agreement. The trade war between the United States and China has resulted in
volatility in the financial markets around the world. Concerns over inflation, energy costs, geopolitical
issues, the availability and cost of credit, unemployment rate, consumer confidence, declining asset
values, capital market volatility and liquidity issues have resulted in adverse market conditions. In the
United Kingdom, a remain-or-leave referendum on its membership within the European Union was held
in June 2016, the result of which favoured the exit of the United Kingdom from the European Union
(“Brexit”). On 31 January 2020, the United Kingdom officially exited the European Union following a
UK-EU Withdrawal Agreement signed in October 2019. The United Kingdom and the European Union will
have a transition period until 31 December 2020 to negotiate, among others, trade agreements in details.
To minimise the risks for firms and businesses the UK Government continues preparations (including the
UK Government publishing further draft secondary legislation under powers provided in the European
Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (as amended by the European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020))
to ensure that there is a functioning statute book at the end of the transition period. Given the lack of
precedent and uncertainty of the negotiation, the effect of Brexit remains uncertain, and Brexit has and
may continue to create negative economic impact and increase volatility in the global market. The
on-going COVID-19 outbreak around the globe has resulted in increased travel restrictions and extended
delay or suspension of some business activities in China and globally. Please refer to “Risk Factors —
Risks Relating to Cinda HK’s Overall Business — Cinda HK is subject to risks relating to natural
disasters, epidemics, acts of war or terrorism or other factors beyond its control”.

15



Although the structural transformation and development of the PRC, HK and global economy provide
opportunities for Cinda HK’s businesses, adverse financial or economic conditions could adversely affect
its businesses, in particular:

• the value of Cinda HK’s asset portfolio, including stocks, bonds and private equity investment, is
closely correlated to monetary policies and credit supply, the performance of capital markets and the
market price of commodities. Adverse economic and market conditions could negatively affect the
value and returns on Cinda HK’s financial assets and investments, which could reduce the value of
its trading and investment positions, affect its profitability, limit its liquidity and reduce its
opportunities to realize gains and exit from its investments;

• downturn in macroeconomic conditions and adverse market conditions in the PRC and globally may
result in decline in trading volume and investment and financing activities, which could adversely
affect the commission and fee income from Cinda HK’s investment and financing business;

• unfavourable economic and market conditions may increase the risk of default in the margin loans
Cinda HK provide to its customers; and

• adverse economic conditions could affect Cinda HK’s ability to effectively deploy capital as well as
its ability to raise new funds and attract new investments.

If the adverse financial and economic conditions continue, Cinda HK’s business, financial position and
results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Cinda HK’s business operation is subject to market risk.

Cinda HK’s investment business consists of investments in financial products such as equity and
fixed-income securities. Cinda HK’s equity and fixed-income securities business is exposed to risk arising
from the fluctuation in the PRC, Hong Kong and global capital markets. The downturn of equity and
fixed-income securities markets may result in a decrease of the unrealized gain of investment assets,
unrealized or realized losses or impairment and a decrease in gains realized upon the disposal of such
assets, any of which may have a material adverse effect on Cinda HK’s business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects. For example, for the six months ended 30 June 2020, Cinda HK has
experienced a decrease in terms of net profits as a result of, inter alia, the reduction of fair values of its
financial assets See the section entitled “Summary — Recent Development” in this Offering Circular.
Should factors such as fluctuation in the capital markets, downturn of equity and fixed-income securities
markets, market risk and credit risk exposure continue, Cinda HK’s income and profit may fluctuate or
decrease and Cinda HK’s business may experience a decline in profitability or suffer losses. There is no
assurance that Cinda HK will achieve, sustain or return to past levels of profitability in the future.

Certain portion of Cinda HK’s assets, such as part of its financial investments, including financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, are valued at their fair value. As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018, Cinda HK had financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to HK$56,267 million
and HK$55,548 million respectively. The fair value estimates of listed equities are based on quoted market
prices while the private equities are based on judgments which involve the assessment of various factors
and unobservable inputs in valuation models. The deteriorating market conditions may cause significant
decrease in fair values of those financial assets which will have a material adverse impact on Cinda HK’s
results of operations.

Cinda HK’s business operation is subject to credit risk.

Cinda HK’s financial services are also subject to different credit risks, primarily from its banking business.
Cinda HK’s banking business is exposed to credit risk arising primarily from default by its borrowers or
guarantors and is also subject to risks related to off-balance sheet credit related commitments. Cinda HK
had outstanding loans of HK$58,037 million and unused banking facility of HK$6,648 million as at 31
December 2019. If there is any default by customers and guarantors of credit related commitments in
respect of off-balance sheet businesses such as bank acceptance letter of credit and letters of guarantee,
Cinda HK may need to assume the risk of losses arising from insufficient repayments by customers, which
in turn may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Cinda HK is also exposed to credit risk with respect to its investments in proprietary trading activities and
securities businesses, which are recorded as available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity
financial assets. These financial assets may also be subject to price fluctuations as a result of changes in
the financial market’s assessment of the issuer’s creditworthiness, delinquency and default rates and other
factors. In addition, Cinda HK may not have sufficient access to resources and trading counterparties to
effectively implement its trading and investment risk mitigation strategies and techniques. If Cinda HK’s
credit exposure becomes overly concentrated in terms of limited asset portfolios, asset types, or number
of third parties, or if it fails to effectively manage its credit exposure through its risk management policies
and procedures, the volatility of any negative impact of credit exposures could be magnified, and as a
result, Cinda HK may experience significant financial losses that could materially and adversely affect
Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK’s business operation is subject to liquidity risk.

Cinda HK’s business is capital intensive and requires a significant amount of cash. As such, sufficient
liquidity is crucial to its business operations. Currently, most of the funding requirement for Cinda HK’s
banking business are met through banking customers and interbank deposits. However, there are many
factors affecting the growth of deposits for Cinda HK’s banking business, some of which are beyond its
control, such as economic and political conditions, the availability of alternative investment choices
(including but not limited to securities issued by governmental or corporate entities, unit trusts and mutual
funds, investment-linked assurance schemes and structured investment products), change of government
monetary policies, and retail customers’ changing perceptions toward savings. There can be no assurance
that Cinda HK’s banking business will be able to grow its customer deposits at a pace sufficient to support
its expanding business. Any decline in Cinda HK’s liquidity level may impair the confidence of its
customers or counterparties, which may result in loss of business and customers.

As part of its measures to maintain the liquidity of, and confidence in, the Hong Kong financial markets,
the Hong Kong government introduced a Deposit Protection Scheme in 2006 to provide a level of
protection to depositors with deposits held with authorized institutions in Hong Kong. An enhanced
Deposit Protection Scheme with an increased protection limit of HK$500,000 from HK$100,000 and
expanded coverage including deposits pledged as security for banking services, came into effect on 1
January 2011 under the Deposit Protection Scheme (Amendment) Ordinance 2010. However, there can be
no assurance that the level of customer deposits, and therefore of Cinda HK’s liquidity, will not be
adversely affected by the withdrawal of, or any changes to, the Deposit Protection Scheme in the future.

The Monetary Authority acts as the lender of last resort to all authorized institutions in Hong Kong to
provide liquidity support in the banking system generally as well as to specific institutions. Although the
Hong Kong government has in the past taken measures on a case-by-case basis to maintain or restore
public confidence in individual banks with an isolated liquidity crisis, there can be no assurance that the
Monetary Authority will provide such assistance in the future or that it would elect to provide such
assistance in the future to Cinda HK in the event of a liquidity crisis.

If Cinda HK fails to maintain its expected growth rate in deposits or if a substantial portion of its
depositors withdraw their demand deposits or do not roll over their time deposits upon maturity, the
liquidity position, business, financial condition and results of operations of Cinda HK may be materially
and adversely affected and Cinda HK may need to seek more expensive sources of funding to meet its
funding requirements.

Cinda HK’s business operation is subject to operational risk.

Cinda HK’s business operations depend, to a large extent, on the proper operation of business, accounting
and other data processing systems, and the proper handling of documents relating to the Group’s business,
finance and operation, by its staff. Cinda HK may also be subject to disruptions of its operating systems,
arising from events that are wholly or partially beyond its control (including, for example, computer
viruses or electrical or telecommunication outages). If its staff or electronic systems make any mistake in
operating data processing systems or handling documents, Cinda HK may suffer from business disruption,
financial loss, intervention by regulatory authorities and reputational loss.
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Especially, Cinda HK’s banking business depends a high volume of transactions upon automated systems
to record and process those transactions. That may further increase the risk of technical system flaws or
employee tampering or manipulation of those systems that will result in losses that may be difficult to
detect. In addition to internal factors that may affect operations, the rapid growth and expansion of the
banking business in recent years as compared to other banks may have also resulted in increasing
complexity in its internal and external control systems and risk management measures, which may add to
its operational risks.

Although Cinda HK provides regular training on the management of operational risk to its staff and
maintains a system of controls designed to reduce operational risks to a reasonably low level, it has
suffered losses from operational risks and there can be no assurance that it will not suffer material losses
from operational risks in the future. If any operational errors occur, Cinda HK may not be able to identify
or rectify these operational errors and solve the problems caused thereby in a timely manner, or at all. Such
problems may include failure to carry out the operation of key business, wrong execution or delay,
impairing Cinda HK’s ability to monitor and manage data or non-compliance with regulatory
requirements. If Cinda HK cannot solve these problems in a timely manner, its business, financial
condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Cinda HK’s risk management and internal control policies, procedures as well as the tools available to
it, may not be adequate or effective in identifying or managing risks to which it is subject.

The complexity of Cinda HK’s operations and products exposes it to various risks, including market risk,
credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk, compliance risk, legal risk and other risks. Cinda HK has
established risk management and internal control systems and procedures to manage potential risks
associated with the financial services and products it offers and has been dedicated to continuously
improving these systems and procedures. See the section entitled “Description of the Guarantor —
Internal Control and Risk Management” in this Offering Circular. However, the design and
implementation of such systems, including internal control environment, risk identification and
evaluation, effectiveness of risk control and information communication, are restricted by the information,
tools, models and technologies available, and Cinda HK’s systems may not be adequate or effective in
identifying or mitigating its risk exposure in all market environments or protecting it against all types of
risks. The risk management and internal control systems require constant monitoring, maintenance and
continual improvements. Cinda HK’s efforts to maintain these systems may be ineffective or inadequate.

The effectiveness of Cinda HK’s risk management and internal control systems and procedures may also
be adversely affected by misjudgement, clerical mishandling and errors, reporting errors or limited
experience or resources in making accurate, complete, up-to-date or proper evaluations. Many of Cinda
HK’s methods for managing risk exposure are based upon observed historical market behaviour or data.
Future risk exposure can be significantly greater than what these methods have historically estimated.
Moreover, the information and empirical data that Cinda HK relies on may quickly become obsolete as a
result of market and regulatory developments, and its historical data may not be able to adequately reflect
risks that may emerge from time to time in the future.

In addition, financial institutions typically use various financial instruments to manage risks associated
with their businesses. The current state of the financial markets and laws and regulations in the PRC and
Hong Kong restrict the types of financial instruments China Cinda and Cinda HK may use to mitigate or
hedge different risks. Although Cinda HK are not directly regulated by the PRC authorities, it has
established a prudent risk management system that is in line with the risk management policies of China
Cinda. Therefore, the risk management tools available to Cinda HK are limited, which in turn limits its
risk management capability and effectiveness. As a result, Cinda HK may be unable to take timely and
appropriate measures to manage its risks due to the ineffectiveness of risk management methods and
techniques adopted by it.

There is no assurance that the risk management and internal control systems of Cinda HK are adequate
and effective. Failure to address any internal control matters and other deficiencies in a timely and
effective manner may result in investigations, disciplinary actions or even prosecution being taken against
it or its employees, or disruption to its risk management system, any of which may have a material adverse
effect on Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Cinda HK faces intense competition and may not compete effectively.

Cinda HK primarily operates in the PRC and Hong Kong, where the financial services industry is highly
competitive. Cinda HK mainly competes with non-banking financial institutions and alternative
investment companies in the relevant markets. Cinda HK competes with its competitors in terms of brand
recognition, marketing and sales capabilities, service quality, financial strength, product and services
portfolio, and pricing. There is no assurance that Cinda HK is able to acquire investments and assets at
suitable prices, or at all, under the intensified competition. When providing asset management services,
Cinda HK monitors the product prices offered by its competitors in each respective area and adjusts its
commission fees and fee structure to increase its competitiveness. With the intensifying market
competition, competitors may reduce their prices to improve their market share, which may compel Cinda
HK to further reduce its fees to remain competitive.

Some of its competitors may have certain competitive advantages over Cinda HK, including greater
financial resources, stronger brand recognition, a broader range of products and services, more extensive
operating experience, higher market share and a more extensive network. In addition, some of Cinda HK’s
competitors may have more extensive knowledge, business relationships and/or a longer operational track
record in the relevant geographic markets, which enable them to have a better access to potential clients
and capital resources than Cinda HK does.

There is no assurance that Cinda HK can compete effectively against its current and future competitors,
or that competitive forces in the market will not alter the industry landscape such that Cinda HK’s business
objectives would become impractical or impossible. If Cinda HK cannot compete effectively, its business,
financial condition and results of operations will be materially and adversely affected.

Cinda HK is highly dependent upon the services of key management personnel.

The success of Cinda HK’s business, to a large extent, depends on its ability to attract and retain key
personnel who possess in-depth knowledge and understanding of, and extensive working experience in, the
financial industry. These key personnel include, among others, senior management, experienced
investment managers, banking and finance professionals, product development personnel, professional
staff in the distressed debt assets industry, research analysts, marketing and sales staff, legal professionals,
risk management personnel, IT specialists and other operational personnel. Therefore, Cinda HK devotes
considerable resources to recruiting and retaining these personnel. However, the market for quality
professionals is highly competitive, and Cinda HK faces increasing competition in recruiting and retaining
these individuals as other asset management companies and financial institutions are vying for the same
pool of talent. Cinda HK’s business and financial condition could suffer if it is unable to retain its
management team, including Cinda HK’s senior management and operating management, and other
high-quality personnel, including Cinda HK’s management in the business, banking, finance, investment
and IT departments, or cannot replace them upon their departure in a timely manner. In the face of the
intense competition for talent, Cinda HK may need to offer better compensation and other benefits to
recruit and retain qualified professionals and additional costs may be incurred.

Some of Cinda HK’s key employees are subject to non-compete arrangements. However, Cinda HK cannot
ensure that such arrangements can be fully and legally enforced. If any of its senior management or other
key personnel joins or establishes a competing business, Cinda HK may lose some of its customers, which
may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK is subject to risks of inadequacies in or failures of its IT systems.

Cinda HK’s business operations depend heavily on its business, accounting and other data processing
systems. The failure of normal operation or even inability in operation of any of such systems will expose
it to financial losses, business disruption, intervention of regulatory authorities or reputational damage.

The proper functioning of Cinda HK’s business processing, accounting, financial controls, risk
management, customer service and other business depends on its IT systems and communication networks
with third-party service providers. If the fundamental system which supports Cinda HK’s business suffers
from malfunction or disruption, including system problems or communication disruption of its systems or
the systems of any third parties it engaged, it may have a material adverse effect on Cinda HK’s ongoing
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business. These failures could be caused by, among other things, hardware failure, software programme
errors, computer virus attacks, network failure, conversion errors due to system upgrading or system
relocation, failure to implement new IT initiatives, human errors, natural disasters, war, terrorist attacks,
blackouts and unanticipated problems of facilities, many of which are beyond Cinda HK’s control.
Although Cinda HK backs up business data regularly and established same-city disaster recovery backup,
any prolonged disruption to or malfunction in the operation of its IT systems could limit its ability to
monitor and manage data, control financial and operation conditions, monitor and manage its risk
exposures, keep accurate records, provide high-quality customer service and develop and sell profitable
products and services. Recovery from such disasters may be unable to mitigate Cinda HK’s losses incurred
during such malfunction and disruptions. In addition, insurances or other precaution measures may only
partly, if at all, indemnify its losses.

In addition, Cinda HK provides online financial services such as securities and futures brokerage services
to customers. Disruption to or instability of its online financial services platform or mobile service
platform could impair its ability to serve customers and execute trades on their behalf and on its own
account, which could materially and adversely affect its results of operations and reputation.

Cinda HK updates its IT systems and introduce new IT systems from time to time. However, delays,
system failures or other accidents may occur during such system upgrades or introduction of new systems.
In addition, the upgraded or new IT systems may not achieve the anticipated processing capacity and
availability and may not meet the needs of its business growth in the future. Cinda HK’s failure to address
these problems promptly, including any delay in the implementation of any upgraded or new information
systems, could result in its inability to perform, or delays in performing, critical business operational
functions, the loss of key business data, or failure to comply with regulatory requirements, which could
have a material adverse effect on Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK had net cash outflows from operating activities in the year ended 31 December 2019. It may
continue to experience cash outflows from operating activities and, as a result, it may need to obtain
additional funding from other sources in the future.

Cinda HK had net cash outflows from operating activities of HK$16,108 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, and it may have net cash outflow from operating activities in the future. Cinda HK had
cash outflows from operating activities primarily due to cash paid to acquire financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and other financial investments, increase in loans and advances made to customers,
and decrease in deposits from banks and financial institutions. Net cash outflows used in Cinda HK’s
operating activities may harm its ability to expand operations and make additional capital expenditures.
Cinda HK may need to obtain external financing to satisfy its financial needs and repay debts. In case
Cinda HK is unable to repay the debts and interests as scheduled, its creditors may accelerate repayment
of the relevant debts. Cinda HK may not be able to achieve or sustain positive cash flows from operating
activities, and even if it achieves positive operating cash flows, such cash inflows may not be sufficient
to satisfy its anticipated capital expenditures and other cash needs.

Cinda HK have financed its operations and other funding requirements primarily with borrowings from
banks and shareholders and proceeds from issuing bonds. As at 31 December 2019, Cinda HK had
HK$57,547 million in cash and cash equivalents. Cinda HK may need to raise additional funding for its
continuing operations. There is no assurance that additional funds will be available on acceptable terms,
or at all. And a shortage of cash may materially and adversely affect Cinda HK’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK may fail to manage challenges arising during its growth.

Cinda HK’s efforts to integrate various business operations and coordinate among its branches and
subsidiaries may not be effective or timely. In addition, there is no assurance that such growth will
continue in the future. The expansion of Cinda HK’s business activities poses various challenges,
including but not limited to:

• meeting the higher requirements for capital and cost controls to satisfy relevant capital regulatory
requirements, such as the minimum capital adequacy ratio, as well as other capital needs;

• strengthening Cinda HK’s risk management capabilities and IT systems to effectively manage risks
associated with various businesses and services;
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• managing Cinda HK’s AUMs, distressed debt assets and other financial assets;

• recruiting, training and retaining management, investment and finance professionals, technical
personnel and sales staff with sufficient experience and knowledge;

• developing new distribution channels for Cinda HK’s products and services; and

• maintaining and developing Cinda HK’s brand and reputation.

Cinda HK’s investments, acquisitions and business initiatives may expose it to various potential risks,
including risks associated with the integration of new business lines, operations and personnel, the
diversion of resources from its existing businesses and technologies, potential loss of, or harm to,
relationships with employees and customers, as well as other unforeseen or hidden liabilities. If Cinda HK
is not able to manage future growth successfully, its business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects could be materially and adversely affected.

Expansion of Cinda HK’s offerings of products and services may expose it to challenges and risks.

Cinda HK has recently been expanding its financial services, including securities and futures, fund
management, and banking, and will continue to, as permitted by the regulatory authorities, expand its
offerings of products and services. These new businesses may have different operational parameters and
risk profiles as compared to its more established existing businesses, and Cinda HK may not have
sufficient operating experience to effectively manage these new businesses and the corresponding risks.

These new businesses may expose Cinda HK to challenges and risks, including but not limited to:

• insufficient experience, expertise and skills in offering new products and services and dealing with
new counterparties and customers;

• stricter regulation and increased credit risks, market risks and operational risks;

• failure to achieve investment returns from Cinda HK’s new businesses;

• failure to hire sufficient qualified personnel to support the offering of new products and services;

• lack of market and customer acceptance of Cinda HK’s new products and services;

• failure to make accurate analysis or judgment on market conditions of Cinda HK’s new business;

• failure to obtain sufficient financing from internal and external sources to support Cinda HK’s
business expansion; and

• failure to enhance Cinda HK’s risk management capabilities and IT systems in a timely manner to
support new businesses and a broader range of products and services.

If Cinda HK is unable to achieve the expected results with respect to the offering of new products and
services, its business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be adversely affected.

Cinda HK is subject to extensive regulatory requirements and the non-compliance with the applicable
regulatory requirements may result in penalties.

Cinda HK is subject to various regulations primarily by the PRC and Hong Kong regulatory authorities
and it may be subject to regulatory proceedings from time to time.

Cinda HK’s financial services are subject to the supervision of various authorities, including the SFC in
Hong Kong and the CBIRC, the CSRC and the PBOC in the PRC. Cinda HK’s banking business carried
out by NCB is subject to supervision by the HKMA in Hong Kong and the CBIRC and the PBOC in the
PRC. Cinda HK’s distressed asset management business is subject to the supervision of the MOF and the
CBIRC. These regulatory authorities impose requirements on Cinda HK’s businesses in various aspects,
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including capital adequacy, capital deposits, financial leverage ratios and deposit requirements, capital
usage, qualification of shareholders and key personnel, types of products and services offered, investment
portfolio, as well as the number and locations of branches. Compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations, to a certain extent, may restrict Cinda HK’s business activities and require it to incur increased
expenses, restate or write down the value of its assets or liabilities, and devote considerable time and
resources to such compliance.

Cinda HK is subject to periodic and non-periodic inspections and examinations by the HKSE, the SFC,
the CBIRC, the CSRC, the PBOC and other governmental authorities, including tax, industry and
commerce administration, audit and social security authorities in respect of Cinda HK’s compliance with
the laws and regulations of jurisdictions where it operates.

Cinda HK may not always be able to meet all applicable regulatory requirements or comply with all
applicable regulations or guidelines, and it cannot ensure that the results of the regular and special
inspections by the MOF or other regulatory authorities will not have any adverse effect on it. Any
non-compliance will result in sanctions, fines, penalties or other disciplinary actions, including, among
other things, a downgrade of Cinda HK’s regulatory rating and limitations or prohibitions on Cinda HK’s
future business activities, which may materially and adversely affect its reputation, business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK’s acquisitions may not be successful.

In addition to organic growth, Cinda HK may also seek opportunities to expand through acquisition of
products or services complementing its existing business operations. It may be unable to identify suitable
acquisition opportunities, negotiate acceptable terms or successfully acquire identified targets. The
investigation of an acquisition or investment plan and the negotiation, drafting and execution of relevant
terms, disclosure documents and other instruments will usually require substantial time and attention from
its management and may incur substantial expenses for services provided by accountants, attorneys and
other advisors. In addition, even if an agreement is reached relating to a specific acquisition or investment
target, Cinda HK may end the investment or acquisition due to many factors beyond its control. If such
acquisition or investment plan is not implemented, the costs incurred up to that point for the proposed
transaction may not be recoverable. Furthermore, Cinda HK may not have sufficient capital resources to
complete proposed acquisitions in the future. The process of integrating an acquired business may involve
unforeseen costs and delays or other operational, technical and financial difficulties that may require a
disproportionate amount of management attention and financial and other resources. The failure to realize
the expected synergies, successfully incorporate the acquired businesses and assets into Cinda HK’s
existing operations or minimize any operational difficulties could have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK may not be able to achieve the anticipated intra-group synergies through its implementation
of group management and control of its branches and subsidiaries.

Cinda HK conducts its principal businesses primarily through its subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong.
Certain of Cinda HK’s subsidiaries also have other shareholders holding significant portions of equity
interests in such subsidiaries and have a certain degree of management autonomy. For its significant
subsidiary, NCB, although Cinda HK wholly owns it in an economic degree, NCB still has management
autonomy. There is no assurance that strategies and policies of Cinda HK will be implemented effectively
and consistently in each subsidiary and branch.

In addition, due to limitations in Cinda HK’s information systems and other factors, it may not always be
able to effectively detect or prevent operational or management issues at its subsidiaries and branches on
a timely basis, and information available to and received by its management may not be accurate, timely
or sufficient to manage risks and plan for and respond to market and other changes in its operating
environment. If Cinda HK is unable to effectively manage and supervise its subsidiaries and branches or
implement its strategies and policies consistently throughout its Group, its business, financial condition,
results of operations, prospects and reputation could be materially and adversely affected.
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Cinda HK has formulated certain strategies to achieve and enhance collaboration among various business
lines and intra-group cooperation between its branches and subsidiaries to further enhance synergies.
However, these strategies are still under development. There can be no assurances that Cinda HK will be
able to fully develop or implement these strategies or that it will realize the anticipated benefits of these
strategies. Implementation of these strategies could also be affected by a number of factors beyond its
control, including operating difficulties, increased operating costs, regulatory developments, deterioration
in general or local economic conditions or increased competition. In particular, the applicable PRC
regulatory framework allows the regulatory authorities to oversee and inspect the cooperation within
Cinda Group, and licenses may be required for certain activities. If the cooperation within Cinda Group
is deemed a violation of any regulations in the PRC or other jurisdictions, Cinda HK’s intra-group
cooperation and collaboration may be adversely affected, and Cinda HK may be subject to relevant legal
liabilities or administrative penalties, and Cinda HK’s reputation may be harmed, all of which would have
a material adverse effect on Cinda HK’s business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Cinda HK may not be able to detect money laundering, terrorism-funding, economic sanctioned and
other illegal or improper activities in its business operations completely or on a timely basis.

Cinda HK is required to comply with applicable anti-money laundering laws, anti-terrorism laws,
economic sanctions programmes and other regulations in the PRC and overseas. The PRC Anti-money
Laundering Law (中華人民共和國反洗錢法) and the relevant anti-money laundering laws and regulations
in Hong Kong require financial institutions to establish sound internal control policies and procedures with
respect to anti-money laundering monitoring and reporting activities. The United States, the United
Kingdom, the European Union, the United Nations Security Council and other applicable jurisdictions also
administer a range of anti-terrorism and economic sanctions programs, including broad embargoes against
certain countries, such as Iran, Sudan and Syria, as well as targeted sanctions against terrorists,
international narcotics traffickers and individuals engaged in activities related to the proliferation of
weapons of mass destruction.

Cinda HK’s existing policies and procedures for the detection and prevention of money laundering
activities, terrorism-funding activities and economic sanctioned activities through its business platform
have only been adopted in recent years and may not eliminate instances in which it may have been used
by other parties to engage in money laundering or other illegal or improper activities. In the event that
Cinda HK fails to fully comply with applicable laws and regulations, the relevant government agencies
may freeze its assets or impose fines or other penalties. In addition, under the economic sanctions
administered by the United States, penalties can potentially be imposed on non-U.S. persons under U.S.
secondary sanctions for engaging in activities with sanctioned individuals, countries, regimes, and
organisations, including loss of access to clearing U.S. dollar payments through a U.S. correspondent
bank. There is no assurance that there will be no failures in detecting and preventing money laundering,
terrorism funding, economic sanctioned or other illegal or improper activities which may materially and
adversely affect Cinda HK’s reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations and its
ability to meet its obligations under the Notes.

Cinda HK may not be able to detect and prevent fraud or other misconduct committed by its employees,
representatives, agents, customers or other third parties completely or in a timely manner.

Cinda HK may encounter fraud or other misconduct committed by its employees, representatives, agents,
customers or other third parties, which could result in violations of laws and regulations by it and expose
it to regulatory sanctions or penalties. Even if such fraud or misconduct does not result in any legal
liabilities on Cinda HK’s part, it could cause serious reputational or financial harm to it.

Cinda HK’s internal control procedures are designed to monitor its operations and ensure overall
compliance. However, Cinda HK’s internal control procedures may be unable to identify all incidents of
non-compliance or suspicious transactions in a timely manner or at all. Furthermore, it is not always
possible to detect and prevent fraud and other misconduct. The precautions Cinda HK takes to detect and
prevent such activities may not be fully effective. There is no assurance that fraud or other misconduct will
not occur in the future. Any failure to detect and prevent fraud and other misconduct in a timely manner
may have a material and adverse effect on Cinda HK’s reputation, business, financial condition and results
of operations.
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Cinda HK may not be able to properly identify and deal with conflicts of interest.

As Cinda HK expands the scope of its businesses and client base, it becomes increasingly important to be
able to address potential conflicts of interest, including situations where two or more interests within
Cinda HK’s businesses legitimately exist but are in competition or conflict. Cinda HK may encounter
conflicts of interest where (i) Cinda HK’s services to a particular client or its own investments are in
conflict, or are perceived to conflict, with the interests of another client; (ii) any of the non-public
information Cinda HK obtains through business channels is disclosed to other business departments within
it; and (iii) Cinda HK may be a counterparty of an entity to which it also provides financial services or
with which it has other business relationships. Cinda HK’s failure to prevent the imprudent use of
information or manage conflicts of interest could harm its reputation and affect client confidence. In
addition, potential or perceived conflicts of interest may also give rise to litigation or regulatory actions.
Any of the foregoing situations could materially and adversely affect Cinda HK’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK may face lawsuits and arbitration, and it may not successfully defend itself in such legal
proceedings.

Lawsuits and arbitration claim against Cinda HK may arise in the ordinary course of business. Litigation
is inherently unpredictable, and excessive verdicts may occur. Where Cinda HK assesses that there is a
probable risk of loss, it will make provisions for the loss based on the relevant policies. Cinda HK will
also make provisions with respect to pending legal proceedings and other disputes against it. See the
section entitled “Description of the Guarantor — Legal and Regulatory Proceedings” in this Offering
Circular. However, there is no assurance that the judgments in any of the litigations in which Cinda HK
are involved or will involve would be favourable to it or that Cinda HK’s provisions made for the
litigations are adequate to cover all the losses arising from legal proceedings or other disputes. In addition,
if Cinda HK’s assessment of the risk changes, its views on provisions will also be changed.

Cinda HK could in the future incur judgments or enter into settlements of claims. If it is unsuccessful in
defending any legal proceeding, or unsuccessful in settling any legal proceeding on commercially
reasonable terms, it may be liable to pay damages or face penalties or sanctions. The disruption of Cinda
HK’s business due to judgment, arbitration and legal proceedings against it or adverse adjudications in
proceedings against Cinda HK’s directors, senior management or key employees would have a material
adverse effect on its reputation, business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Cinda HK’s overseas expansion may be subject to risks associated with relevant businesses.

Cinda HK may continue to expand its overseas business and explore opportunities in other overseas
markets in the future. In expanding its business internationally, Cinda HK has entered and intend to
continue to enter into markets in which it has limited or no operating experience. Therefore, Cinda HK
may not be able to attract enough new clients due to its limited presence and brand recognition in such
overseas markets and may fail to effectively compete in these markets. In addition, such expansion may
increasingly subject it to risks inherent in conducting business internationally, including but not limited
to:

• failure to obtain and renew local government approvals, permits, licenses or documents in a timely
manner or at all;

• the possibility of cost overruns and other operating difficulties;

• insufficient management resources, difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified personnel, as
well as potential increase in labour costs;

• difficulties in complying with local legal and regulatory requirements, including labour, industrial
and tax regulations;

• lower than expected demand and lack of acceptance by local customers of, or compatibility issues
with, Cinda HK’s products;

• high sales and marketing costs;
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• difficulty in implementing internal control and risk management policies in overseas operations;

• lack of understanding of the local cultural, commercial and operating environment, as well as the
financial, management or legal systems in the relevant jurisdictions;

• political, regulatory or macroeconomic environment and fluctuations in foreign exchange rates; and

• restriction on capital outflow imposed by the government.

If Cinda HK is unable to manage the risks resulting from its expansion outside the PRC and Hong Kong,
its reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely
affected.

Cinda HK is subject to risks relating to natural disasters, epidemics, acts of war or terrorism or other
factors beyond its control.

Natural disasters, epidemics, acts of war or terrorism or other factors beyond Cinda HK’s control may
adversely affect the economy, infrastructure and livelihood of the people in the regions Cinda HK conducts
its business. These regions may be under the threat of flood, earthquake, sandstorm, snowstorm, fire or
drought, power shortages or failures, potential wars or terrorist attacks or are susceptible to epidemics,
such as SARS, avian influenza, H5N1 influenza, H1N1 influenza or H7N9 influenza, or COVID-19.
Serious natural disasters may result in a tremendous loss of lives and injury and destruction of assets and
disrupt Cinda HK’s business and operations. Acts of war or terrorism may also injure Cinda HK’s
employees, cause loss of lives, disrupt Cinda HK’s business network and destroy Cinda HK’s markets.
Severe communicable disease outbreaks could result in a widespread health crisis that could materially
and adversely affect economic systems and financial markets. There can be no guarantee that any future
occurrence of natural disasters, outbreak of epidemics, or the measures taken by the government of Hong
Kong, the PRC or other countries in response to a future outbreak of any epidemics, will not seriously
interrupt Cinda HK’s operations or those of its customers, which may have a material and adverse effect
on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

In particular, the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic has resulted in increased travel restrictions and
extended delay or suspension of some business activities in the PRC and globally, which may result in
adverse impact on Cinda HK’s businesses. There is no assurance that the outbreak will not lead to
decreased demand for services that Cinda HK provides; nor is there assurance that the outbreak’s adverse
impact on the PRC economy or that NCB’s customers in the PRC will not adversely affect the level of
non-performance loans. The outbreak may also adversely affect the abilities of Cinda HK and NCB to keep
normal operations and provide uninterrupted services to its customers. The COVID-19 epidemic may
further create negative economic impact and increase volatility in the PRC and the global market and
continue to cause increasing concerns over the prospects of the financial market in PRC and globally. Any
of the foregoing may have a material and adverse effect on Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Certain facts, forecasts and statistical materials contained in this Offering Circular with respect to the
PRC, Hong Kong and their economies and financial industries are derived from various official or
third-party sources and may not be accurate, reliable, complete or up-to-date.

Cinda HK has derived certain facts, forecasts and other statistical materials in this Offering Circular,
relating to the PRC and Hong Kong, the PRC economy and the industry in which Cinda HK operates,
including Cinda HK’s market share information, from information provided by the PRC, Hong Kong and
other government authorities, industry associations, independent research institutes or other third-party
sources which are generally believed to be reliable. While Cinda HK has taken reasonable care in the
reproduction of the information, it has not been prepared or independently verified by it, the Arrangers and
Dealers or any of its or their respective affiliates or advisors. Therefore, there is no assurance as to the
accuracy and reliability of such facts, forecasts and materials, which may not be consistent with other
information compiled inside or outside the PRC and Hong Kong and may not be complete or up-to-date.
Such facts, forecasts and statistics include those set out in the sections headed “Risk Factors” and
“Description of the Guarantor”. Because of possibly flawed or ineffective collection methods or
discrepancies between published information and market practice and other problems, the statistical
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materials herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistical materials produced for other
economies, and investors should not place undue reliance on them. Furthermore, there is no assurance that
they are stated or compiled on the same basis, or with the same degree of accuracy, as similar statistics
presented elsewhere. In all cases, investors should not unduly rely on such facts, forecasts or statistical
materials.

RISKS RELATING TO CINDA HK’S BANKING BUSINESS

Cinda HK’s banking business is subject to concentration risk.

The Banking Ordinance generally prohibits any bank incorporated in Hong Kong from maintaining a
financial exposure to any single person or group of connected persons in excess of 25 per cent. of its
capital base. In recent years, Cinda HK’s subsidiary NCB, which engages primarily in banking business,
has an exposure to its 10 largest borrowers (including groups of individuals and companies, excluding
exposure to Cinda HK) consistently amounted to a substantial majority of its capital base, even though it
has not had exposure to any single person or group of connected persons in excess of 25 per cent. of its
capital base. In addition, NCB also faces the risks of geography concentration, as substantially all of its
operations are in the PRC and Hong Kong. Such concentration exposes NCB, in turn Cinda HK, to
concentration risk and its business may therefore be significantly impacted by any adverse event affecting
the banking industry in the PRC or Hong Kong, or even globally in general, and adverse event affecting
its largest customers, which may in turn have a material adverse effect on the NCB’s, in turn Cinda HK’s
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK’s banking business is subject to interest rate risks.

As with most banks, for Cinda HK’s banking business, net interest income is a significant factor in
determining its overall financial performance. Interest rates in Hong Kong have remained relatively low
and have been falling steadily in recent years, however, there can be no assurance that interest rates will
not be raised or that increases in interest rates will not be frequent. As some of Cinda HK’s assets and
liabilities are repriced at different times, it is vulnerable to fluctuations in market interest rates. As a result,
volatility in interest rates could have a material and adverse effect on Cinda HK’s business, financial
condition, liquidity and results of operations.

Changes in market interest rates affect the interest received on Cinda HK’s banking business’s
interest-earning assets and the interest paid on the its interest-bearing liabilities. An increase in interest
rates could lead to a decline in the value of securities in its portfolio. A sustained increase in interest rates
could also raise the funding costs without a proportionate increase, or any increase at all, in loan demand.
Rising interest rates would therefore require Cinda HK to re-balance its assets and liabilities in order to
minimize the risk of potential mismatches and maintain its profitability. In addition, high interest rate
levels may adversely affect the economy in Hong Kong and the financial condition and repayment ability
of its corporate and retail borrowers which in turn may lead to a deterioration in Cinda HK’s credit
portfolio.

The differences in timing and level of changes in interest rates can result in an increase in interest expense
relative to its interest income, which may lead to a reduction in its net interest income. Interest rates in
Hong Kong are sensitive to factors over which Cinda HK has no control, including, among others:

• interest rates in the United States;

• liquidity of the domestic inter-bank market and the international capital markets;

• domestic and international economic and political conditions; and

• competition for loan demand.

In addition, Cinda HK’s banking business is subject to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches in the
pricing and duration of its assets and liabilities. A significant part of Cinda HK’s funding requirements is
met through short-term or floating rate funding sources, primarily in the form of deposits, including
customer deposits and inter-bank deposits, which tend to be at floating rates and are regularly repriced.
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In contrast, some of Cinda HK’s assets either receive a fixed rate of interest or if they receive a floating
rate of interest, they may not be repriced as frequently as the its deposits. Cinda HK closely monitors the
risks associated with changes in interest rates that may arise from maturity gaps, basis risks among
different interest rate benchmarks, yield curve movements, interest rate repricing risks and risks from
embedded options (if any), and mitigates such risks mainly through rebalancing the repricing structure of
assets and liabilities and the use of interest rate derivatives as an auxiliary strategy. However, in a volatile
interest rate environment, there can be no assurance that Cinda HK’s net interest margin will not be
impacted, and its net interest income reduced.

The allowance for impairment losses on loans of Cinda HK’s banking business may not be sufficient
for covering the actual losses on its loan portfolio which may be incurred in the future.

The allowance for impairment losses is determined according to the assessments and forecasts on various
factors which may affect the quality of the loan portfolio. Such factors include, but are not limited to, a
borrower’s financial condition, solvency and willingness to repay, the realizable value of the collateral, the
ability of the borrower’s guarantor to perform the contract, as well as China’s economic condition, policies
for the industry, interest rates, according standards, laws and regulatory environment. Many of these
factors are beyond Cinda HK’s control, and the judgment and expectations on the aforesaid factors may
not be consistent with the real conditions emerging in the future. Any change of the aforementioned factors
may make Cinda HK’s allowance for such impairment losses on loans insufficient to cover the actual
losses, and as a result, may require Cinda HK to increase its allowance for such impairment losses. Hence,
Cinda HK’s profits may decrease, and its business, financial condition and results of operations may also
be materially and adversely affected.

Cinda HK’s banking business is subject to various capital requirements.

Cinda HK’s banking subsidiary NCB is subject to the risk of having insufficient capital resources to meet
the minimum regulatory capital requirements in both Hong Kong and PRC. Currently, under Basel III
requirements, capital requirements which have been revised are inherently more sensitive to market
movements than under previous Basel capital regimes. Any failure of NCB to maintain its minimum
regulatory capital ratios could result in administrative actions or sanctions, which in turn may have a
material adverse impact on Cinda HK’s results of operations. A shortage of available capital might restrict
its opportunities for expansion.

Further, the Monetary Authority or other authorities (the “Relevant Authority”) having oversight of Cinda
HK at the relevant time may implement the package of reforms in a manner that is different from that
which is currently envisaged or may impose additional capital requirements on authorized institutions. For
example, the Financial Institutions (Resolution) (Loss-absorbing Capacity Requirements-Banking Sector)
Rules requires that there must be sufficient financial resources to absorb losses and to recapitalize a failing
financial institution. The regulatory capital requirements, liquidity restrictions or ratios applied to Cinda
HK may increase in the future, if Cinda HK or its subsidiaries fail to meet any regulatory capital
requirements, regulatory authorities may impose penalties on it or limit the operation of business, which
could, in tum, have a material adverse effect on Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Cinda HK’s banking business is subject to risks relating to changes in the regulatory environment in
Hong Kong.

Cinda HK’s banking business, through its banking subsidiary NCB, is directly affected by changes in Hong
Kong regulatory policies, laws and regulations. Under the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155) of the laws of
Hong Kong (the “Banking Ordinance”), the Monetary Authority regulates the business activities and
operations of commercial banks and has the ability to influence banking and financial markets generally.
Potential investors should be aware that regulatory requirements in Hong Kong may differ from those that
prevail in other countries. Since Cinda HK operates in the highly regulated banking and securities
industries in Hong Kong, potential investors should also be aware that the regulatory authorities have been
consistently imposing higher standards and developing new guidelines and regulatory requirements such
as the Basel III capital adequacy standards which have been adopted in Hong Kong since January 2013.
These standards require banks to disclose key pieces of information on capital, risk exposures, risk
assessment processes and hence capital adequacy. The aim of these standards is to encourage banks to
demonstrate to the market participants that their risk management systems are robust and that all relevant
risks have been identified and controlled.

27



The Banking (Liquidity) Rules (Cap. 155Q) of Hong Kong have been enacted into local regulations in
October 2014 and these rules have commenced operation since 1 January 2015. NCB has fully complied
with the Basel III liquidity standards in accordance with the legislation. NCB’s liquidity position and
required disclosures have been discussed in the 2019 annual report of NCB and/or the Banking Disclosure
Statement of NCB for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Banking Ordinance also provides that the amount of the facilities which a Hong Kong incorporated
authorized institution may make available on an unsecured basis to its controllers, its directors, their
relatives or certain of its employees and persons associated with any of them shall be subject to the
restrictions set out therein. The Banking (Exposure Limits) Rules (Cap. 155S) of Hong Kong also provides
that (i) authorised institutions may not provide a financial facility against the security of their own shares,
capital-in-nature instrument or non-capital LAC debt instruments (or, except with the approval of the
Monetary Authority, that of their respective holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries of such
holding companies); and (ii) authorised institutions may not, except with the written consent of the
Monetary Authority, provide to any one of their employees any unsecured facility of an amount in excess
of that employee’s salary for one year.

Certain products and services provided by Cinda HK are regulated by other regulators including the
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) in Hong Kong. Cinda HK carefully manages legal and
compliance risks, including in relation to the sale of financial products and anti-money laundering
regulations. Since 2007, the regulators in Hong Kong have introduced recommendations which are
intended to provide tighter control and more transparency in the Hong Kong banking sector, in particular,
in relation to the marketing and sale of investment products.

In May 2010, the Monetary Authority and the SFC each launched new investor protection measures. The
Monetary Authority measures apply to the sale of non-listed derivative products to retail customers.
Authorized institutions are required to offer a pre-investment cooling-off period to certain groups of
customers, such as elderly customers and first-time buyers with a high concentration (over 20 per cent. of
the customer’s assets). The SFC measures apply to the sale of unlisted structured investment products with
a tenor of more than a year, issuers of unlisted structured investment products are required to provide a
five-day ‘cooling-off’ period to investors. As such, in December 2010, Cinda HK implemented the
pre-investment cooling-off period. Recently, in 2018, the Monetary Authority and the SFC each launched
new requirements applicable to Online and Offline Distribution of Non-SFO-Regulated Structured
Investment Products and Structured Products, and Cinda HK had then reviewed the classification of
complex products and enhanced the suitability, disclosure and warning statement requirements etc. on both
online and offline platforms timely and accordingly. Cinda HK continues to review its internal procedures
and controls on risk exposures and implement new measures governing the sale process for financial
products. Other recent measures that Cinda HK implemented include, for example, the implementation in
September 2011 of investor characterization measures, which were required to be implemented as part of
the “Know Your Client” process, which seek from clients information in relation to each client’s
knowledge of derivative products. On 3 April 2017, the Monetary Authority sent a letter to the financial
institutions in Hong Kong regarding the Pillar 3 disclosure requirements published by the Basel
Committee on 29 March 2017 and drew the financial institutions’ attention to the requirements; and in
August 2018, Cinda HK had also implemented the enhanced measures (Audio-recording and explanatory
requirement) in selling annuity insurance products.

In addition, according to the recent communication with the Monetary Authority, the capital calculation
methodology will change from internal rating-based (“IRB”) model approach to standardized approach to
measure credit risks and change from internal model (“IMM”) approach to standardized approach to
measure market risks. Such change of capital calculation methodology may affect the comparability
between the relevant capital adequacy ratios for the year ending 2019 and the following years and may
have other uncertain impacts on the asset adequacy calculation of Cinda HK.

Cinda HK has taken steps to implement the recommendations by relevant regulators and to comply with
any new or modified regulations. Increased regulation and the requirement for more stringent investor
protections have increased its operational and compliance expenses. Any changes in regulation,
governmental policies, income tax laws or rules and accounting principles, as well as international
conventions and standards relating to commercial banking operations in Hong Kong, could increase the
costs and burden on Cinda HK and may affect Cinda HK’s operations. There can be no assurance that the
relevant regulatory authorities will not implement further regulations and that such change will not
materially increase Cinda HK’s operational and compliance cost or adversely affect its business or
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operations. There can also be no assurance that breaches of legislation or regulations by Cinda HK will
not occur and, to the extent that such a breach does occur, that significant liability or penalties will not
be incurred. If any of the situation happens, Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Cinda HK’s banking business is subject to risks relating to changes in the regulatory environment in
the PRC banking and insurance industry.

Cinda HK’s banking business, through its PRC banking subsidiary NCB (China), is directly affected by
changes in the PRC’s banking and insurance regulatory policies, laws and regulations. The regulatory
system and the laws and regulations governing the banking and insurance sectors are subject to future
changes. Some of the changes in rules and regulations may result in additional costs or restrictions on NCB
(China)’s operations and business expansion in the PRC and there can be no assurance that such changes
will not materially and adversely affect Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

For example, regarding the banking business, according to the requirements of the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission (“CBIRC”), NCB (China) is required to maintain a minimum core Tier
1 capital adequacy of 5 per cent., a minimum Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio of 6 per cent., a minimum
capital adequacy ratio of 8 per cent, a minimum capital conservation buffer of 2.5 per cent. and a
maximum countercyclical buffer of 2.5 per cent. If NCB (China) fails to meet the capital regulatory
requirements, the CBIRC may take regulatory measures, depending on the category of commercial bank
which NCB (China) belongs to, including requiring NCB (China) to control the growth of risk weighted
assets, restricting or prohibiting the expansion of branches, conducting new businesses and limiting
distributions of dividends. These measures could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects of NCB (China).

As some of the banking laws, rules, regulations or policies are relatively new, there is uncertainty
regarding their interpretation and application. If NCB (China) fails to comply with any of these laws, rules,
regulations or policies, it may result in enforcement actions, which may include fines to be imposed on
NCB (China), restrictions on its business activities, or in extreme cases, suspension or revocation of its
business licenses, which would materially and adversely affect NCB (China) ‘s operations, reputation,
business and financial position.

NCB (China) operates in a highly regulated industry. The principal regulators of the PRC banking industry
are the CBIRC, the PBOC and the State Administration of Foreign Exchange (“SAFE”). The CBIRC
requires all commercial banks in China to maintain certain financial ratios, including but not limited to
liquidity coverage ratio, liquidity ratio, net stable funding ratio and Capital Adequacy Ratio (“CAR”).

In accordance with the Commercial Banking Law of the PRC (中華人民共和國商業銀行法) amended on
29 August 2015 and effective on 1 October 2015, the previous requirement that all commercial banks in
China should maintain a loan-to-deposit ratio of not more than 75 per cent. has been removed. However,
the CBIRC uses other indicators, such as liquidity coverage ratio, liquidity ratio, and net stable funding
ratio to monitor the liquidity status of commercial banks. If NCB (China) failed to fulfil this mandatory
requirement, it may result in restrictions on its business expansion imposed by the CBIRC, such as
suspension of new business application and establishment of new branch or sub-branch. As at 31
December 2019, NCB (China) was in compliance with this mandatory requirement.

The principal regulator of the PRC insurance industry is CBIRC. According to the Notice of the General
Office of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission on Promulgation of the Administrative
Measures on Insurance Agency Business of Commercial Banks (中國銀保監會辦公廳關於印發《商業銀行
代理保險業務管理辦法》的通知) issued on 23 August 2019 and effective on 1 October 2019, insurance
agency business of a commercial bank shall mean the business activities that a commercial bank is
entrusted by an insurance company to sell insurance products and provide the relevant services as the
insurance company’s agent within the scope authorized by the insurance company, and collects
commissions from the insurance company pursuant to the law. Commercial banks operating insurance
agency business shall satisfy the criteria stipulated by the CBIRC, and obtain an Insurance Part-time
Agency Business Permit. Commercial bank outlets shall operate insurance agency business as authorized
by the legal person entity.

There is no assurance that Cinda HK can always satisfy applicable laws and regulatory requirements. If
Cinda HK does not meet any such requirements, Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of
operations may be materially and adversely affected.
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RISKS RELATING TO CINDA HK’S NON-BANKING BUSINESS

Cinda HK may be unable to obtain sufficient funds on commercially acceptable terms to support its
investment business operations.

A substantial amount of funds is required to support the growth of Cinda HK’s asset portfolio and future
expansion of its business operations. Cinda HK has been obtaining financing primarily through (i) cash
generated from operations, (ii) borrowings from banks and shareholders, and (iii) proceeds from the
issuance of bonds. As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the balance of Cinda HK’s borrowings was
HK$54,527 million and HK$58,037 million respectively. For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019,
Cinda HK’s interest expenses on such borrowings were HK$2,489 million and HK$2,396 million,
respectively. As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the balance of Cinda HK’s bonds issued were HK$98,774
million and HK$104,590 million, respectively. For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, Cinda
HK’s interest expenses on bonds issued were HK$4,035 million and HK$4,439 million, respectively.
Cinda HK may need additional funding for its further acquisition of distressed debt and other investments.
If there are changes in international and/or domestic macroeconomic conditions and policies, or if Cinda
HK fails to maintain its existing and future loan arrangements with commercial banks, Cinda HK may not
be able to continue to obtain adequate funding on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. If sufficient
financing is not available to meet its needs, or cannot be obtained on commercially acceptable terms, or
at all, Cinda HK may not be able to fund operations, investments and business expansion, introduce new
business or compete effectively.

Furthermore, Cinda HK’s subsidiaries or branches may need financial support from it to meet their
liquidity requirements during the ordinary course of their businesses. Some of Cinda HK’s subsidiaries
may need additional capital injections from it to meet applicable regulatory requirements. Cinda HK may
not be able to provide sufficient funds to its subsidiaries or branches in a timely manner, or at all, which
could materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Cinda HK’s investment business is subject to its investment decisions.

Cinda HK’s investment business generally involves distressed assets related investment business, liquidity
management investment and other investment. Making an accurate investment decision requires it to (i)
carefully identify the quality of the relevant target, (ii) the estimated costs associated with the investment
and (iii) prevailing market conditions and intensity of competition, all of which involve significant
judgments and estimates. However, Cinda HK may make unsound investment decisions due to fraudulent,
concealed, inaccurate or misleading statements from any third party, which could lead it to mistakenly
estimate the value of the investment and affect Cinda HK’s ability to make profit on such investments. In
addition, Cinda HK’s understanding of and judgment on the market and industry condition may be
inaccurate and result in inappropriate investment decisions.

Cinda HK’s distressed assets related investment business is subject to various risks.

Cinda HK is doing distressed assets related investment business as part of its investment business, which
is directly affected by various risks:

• Cinda HK may not be able to maintain the growth of its distressed asset portfolio. The distressed
assets that Cinda HK acquires from financial institutions and non-financial enterprises primarily
comprises of NPLs sold by banks, distressed assets sold by non-bank financial institutions and
accounts receivable sold by non-financial enterprises. The supply of distressed assets is affected by
a number of factors. This includes changes in macroeconomic conditions, asset quality and the
business conditions of financial institutions and nonfinancial enterprises. Changes in the NPLs
balance of commercial banks in the PRC and Hong Kong, the overall volume of accounts receivable
of enterprises, macroeconomic conditions, the government’s control and industry policies and market
liquidity fluctuation could significantly impact the supply of distressed assets. Therefore, the supply
of distressed assets in the PRC financial market may be limited or may change over a certain period
of time. The amount of distressed assets Cinda HK is able to acquire depends on a number of factors
beyond its control, such as the policies of the PRC central government or local governments, the
willingness of banks and enterprises to sell their distressed assets and Cinda HK’s competition with
other asset management companies (“AMCs”). Should Cinda HK fail to acquire distressed assets at
acceptable prices or at all, or if further changes in government policies with regard to distressed asset
management prevent Cinda HK from growing its distressed asset portfolio, Cinda HK might have
difficulties in maintaining a portfolio of quality distressed assets in the long run and its competitive
position, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected;
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• Cinda HK may not recover the value of its distressed assets as expected due to changes in market
conditions and its ability to dispose of its distressed assets is subject to the limited methods of
disposal available in the PRC. Cinda HK generally records the distressed assets at fair value and
records profits when the amount of the proceeds it receives from the disposal of the distressed assets
exceeds the recorded fair value or purchasing costs of such assets. Recoverability of the distressed
assets depends on various factors, many of which are affected by market conditions, such as the
economic conditions in the PRC and the world, the existing market conditions and changes in the
relevant PRC laws and regulations. Therefore, the actual recovered value of the distressed assets
could be significantly lower than expected and Cinda HK may incur losses in relation to such
distressed assets. The occurrence of the above-mentioned factors may reduce the quality of Cinda
HK’s distressed assets portfolio or prevent Cinda HK from recovering the fair value or purchasing
costs of the relevant distressed assets. In addition, Cinda HK has to occasionally recover the value
of some of its distressed assets through litigation or arbitration. There is no assurance however that
Cinda HK can achieve a desirable outcome in relation to its litigation or arbitration. Cinda HK makes
provisions in connection with its distressed assets as required by relevant laws and regulations and
relevant accounting policies. If Cinda HK’s application of its evaluation system or debt collection
is insufficient, its provision for impairment loss may be insufficient to cover actual losses and Cinda
HK may need to make extra provisions for such impairment loss. This may materially and adversely
impact Cinda HK’s business performance. The methods that Cinda HK currently adopts to realize the
value of its distressed assets include debt-to-equity swaps, debt restructuring and amendment of debt
repayment terms, asset sales and asset restructuring, recovery through debt recovery professionals,
and through litigation. Given that the distressed management industry in the PRC is expected to
further evolve, certain innovative financing and disposal financing and disposal methods to hedge
against the loss arising from, and to preserve the value in, distressed assets may no longer be
available to Cinda HK. In addition, Cinda HK’s distressed asset management is subject to the
existing rules, regulations and policies, which may change from time to time depending on the
development of the distressed asset management industry. Any asset disposal method that is newly
introduced into the market will require further development and improvement. There will also be
legal uncertainties with respect to such new method prior to the promulgation of rules and
regulations governing such new method. Although Cinda HK’s management believes that its methods
and manners of disposal are in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, the relevant
regulatory authorities may adopt a different view that, which could restrict or prevent Cinda HK from
using specific methods of distressed asset disposal and be subject to fines and other penalties in
relation to Cinda HK’s existing disposal practices; and

• Any deterioration in the value of collateral granted in connection with distressed assets held by
Cinda HK will affect the amount which it is able to recover in the event of enforcement of such
collateral. A portion of Cinda HK’s distressed assets are secured by collateral or guarantees. The
collaterals securing Cinda HK’s distressed assets primarily include properties and other assets
located in the PRC. The value of the collateral securing Cinda HK’s debt assets may significantly
fluctuate or decline due to factors beyond Cinda HK’s control such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the PRC economy. For example, a downturn in the real estate market in the PRC may result
in a decline in the value of the real properties used to secure Cinda HK’s debt assets, to a level
significantly below the outstanding balance of principal and interests of such debt assets. Any
decline in the value of such collateral may reduce the amounts that Cinda HK can recover from such
collateral and increase its impairment losses. Some of the guarantees relating to Cinda HK’s debt
assets are provided by the relevant obligor’s affiliates. Such debt assets are generally not secured by
collateral or security interests. Significant deterioration in the financial condition of any of Cinda
HKs could significantly decrease the amounts that Cinda HK may recover from such guarantees.
Moreover, Cinda HK is subject to the risk that courts or other judicial or governmental authorities
may declare a collateral to be invalid or otherwise decline or fail to grant judgment in favour of
enforcing such collateral. Cinda HK is accordingly exposed to the risk that it may not be able to
recover part or all of the guaranteed amounts for its debt assets. Moreover, Cinda HK obtains assets
in satisfaction of debt when acquiring or disposing distressed assets and it does not intend to hold
these assets in satisfaction of debt for the long term. Certain land and buildings in satisfaction of debt
that Cinda HK currently holds have defects because the land use rights or the building ownership
have not been obtained by the previous owners or transferred to Cinda HK. As a result, Cinda HK
may not be able to exercise its rights over such assets in satisfaction of debt, which may affect its
ability to dispose of such assets in satisfaction of debt and to generate income.
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Cinda HK’s financing business is subject to various risks.

An increase in interest rates, or the perception that such an increase may occur, could adversely affect
Cinda HK’s ability to finance at favourable interest rates. In addition, changes in interest rates or in the
relationships between short-term and long-term interest rates or between different interest rate indices
(e.g. spread risk) could lead to a mismatch between interest income and interest expense. If the interest
expenses incurred in Cinda HK’s financing business grows without a match of the increase of interest
income from other businesses, Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of operations will be
materially and adversely affected.

The lack of financing sources will directly affect Cinda HK’s capability to do financing business. If there
are changes in international and/or domestic macroeconomic conditions and policies, or if Cinda HK fails
to maintain existing financing agreements with major parties, or if sufficient financing is not available to
meet its business needs, or cannot be obtained on commercially acceptable terms, or at all, Cinda HK may
not be able to manage the liquidity portfolio for China Cinda. China Cinda, in turn Cinda HK’s business,
financial condition and results of operations will be materially and adversely affected.

RISKS RELATING TO THE PRC AND HONG KONG

Cinda HK is subject to risks relating to the PRC’s economic, political and social conditions, government
policies, as well as the global economy.

The majority of Cinda HK’s businesses, assets, operations and revenues with respect of its non-banking
business are located in or derived from its operations in the PRC and Hong Kong, and as a result, Cinda
HK’s business, financial condition and results of operations are subject, to a significant degree, to the
economic, political, social and regulatory environment in the PRC.

The economy of the PRC differs from the economies of most developed countries in many respects,
including, among others, the extent of government involvement, level of development, growth rate, and
control of foreign exchange and allocation of resources. The PRC economy has been undergoing a
transition from a planned economy to a market-oriented economy. The PRC government has in recent
years implemented measures emphasising the utilisation of market forces for economic reform, the
reduction of state ownership of productive assets and the establishment of sound corporate governance in
business enterprises. However, a substantial portion of productive assets in the PRC is still owned by the
PRC government. In addition, the PRC government continues to play a significant role in regulating
industry development by imposing industrial policies. The PRC government still retains significant control
over the PRC’s economic growth through the allocation of resources, controlling payment of foreign
currency-denominated liabilities, setting monetary policy and providing preferential treatment to
particular industries or enterprises.

Cinda HK’s performance has been and will continue to be affected by China’s economy, which in turn is
influenced by the global economy. The global economic slowdown and the turmoil in the global financial
markets that began in the second half of 2008, the continued weakness in the United States economy and
the sovereign debt crisis in Europe have collectively added downward pressure to China’s economic
growth.

Any of the above factors may materially and adversely affect Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and
results of operations. Cinda HK is unable to accurately predict the precise nature of all the risks and
uncertainties associated with the current economic, political, social and regulatory conditions, and many
of these risks and uncertainties are beyond its control.

The financial industry in the PRC is highly regulated, and Cinda HK is subject to risks relating to
changes in regulations or other governmental policies, including their interpretation and application.

The financial industry in the PRC is highly regulated. China Cinda and some of its subsidiaries are subject
to regulations on various perspectives, including, capital adequacy ratio, business licences, the scope of
operations, the scope of investments, as well as the specific regulatory requirements for each financial
sector, such as banking, insurance, securities and financial leasing, in which they operate. Thus, as a
member of Cinda Group, Cinda HK’s business and operations are also affected by changes in policies,
laws, rules and regulations of the PRC relating to the financial industry, such as those affecting the extent
to which Cinda HK can engage in specific businesses, as well as changes in other governmental policies.
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In addition, pursuant to applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC, Cinda HK and its
subsidiaries are required to obtain or renew approvals, permits and licences with respect to Cinda HK’s
relevant operations from the government. In order to obtain such qualifications, Cinda HK is required to
fulfil requirements of regulatory authorities in various aspects. In case Cinda HK fails to fulfil such
regulatory requirements continuously, its qualifications of operation may be revoked by regulatory
authorities, or it may be denied renewing its qualification upon its expiration, or it may fail to obtain the
relevant approvals for any new businesses as planned. There is no assurance that Cinda HK can obtain or
renew all necessary approvals, permits and licences on a timely basis. Failure to obtain the relevant
approvals could subject it to sanctions, fines, penalties, revocation of licence or other punitive actions,
including suspension of Cinda HK’s business operations or restriction or prohibition on certain business
activities, which may result in failure to commence new businesses as scheduled or falling behind Cinda
HK’s competitors in such sectors.

As the PRC financial industry is undergoing significant changes, relevant laws and regulations may change
from time to time based on the developments of the financial markets. Most of the emerging businesses
require further development and improvement, and there are uncertainties regarding the enforcement of
existing policies and regulations in relation to these new businesses. There is no assurance that Cinda HK
will be able to adapt to all such changes on a timely basis. Any changes in regulatory requirements may
have a material and adverse effect on Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
In addition, there may be uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of new policies, laws,
regulations or accounting standards. Failure to comply with the applicable policies, laws, rules,
regulations or accounting standards may result in fines and restrictions on Cinda HK’s business operations,
which could also have a material and adverse impact on its business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Cinda HK is subject to the risks from an economic downturn in Hong Kong.

Around one third of Cinda HK’s revenues arises from its business operation in Hong Kong. Cinda HK’s
performance and the quality and growth of its assets are necessarily dependent on the overall economy in
Hong Kong. As a result, any downturn in the Hong Kong economy may materially and adversely affect
Cinda HK’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

On 1 July 1997, sovereignty over Hong Kong was transferred from the United Kingdom to the PRC, and
Hong Kong became a Special Administrative Region of the PRC. As provided in the Sino-British Joint
Declaration on the Question of Hong Kong and the Basic Law, which is Hong Kong’s constitution, Hong
Kong has a high degree of autonomy except in foreign and defence affairs. Under the Basic Law, Hong
Kong has its own legislative, legal and judicial systems and full economic autonomy for 50 years.
Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that such policies will not be significantly altered, especially in
the wake of the proposal of the Fugitive Offenders and Mutual Legal Assistance in Criminal Matters
Legislation (Amendment) Bill in June 2019. Future economic, political and social developments in the
PRC could have significant effects on Hong Kong, which may materially and adversely affect the Group’s
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Civil unrest, protests, demonstrations or rioting causing mass disruption to businesses and transportation
since early 2019 may also affect Cinda HK’s operations. There is no assurance that any unforeseeable
interruptions to the business and operations can be mitigated or avoided. Moreover, prolonged civil unrest
and an uncertain political environment, including any declaration by the Chief Executive of Hong Kong
of a state of emergency pursuant to the Emergency Regulations Ordinance (Cap. 241) of the laws of Hong
Kong which confers on the Chief Executive power to make any regulations whatsoever which he/she may
consider desirable in the public interest in an occasion of emergency or public danger, may impact the
Hong Kong economy and result in an economic slowdown. Civil unrest and instability may also dampen
market confidence and sentiments. Civil unrest is outside the control of Cinda HK. Any demonstrations,
protests or riots causing disruption to the city, the authorities’ reaction to any such protests or riots if they
recur, the Chief Executive’s decision to make any declaration of a state of emergency and the instability
of the political and economic conditions in the region, could adversely impact Cinda HK’s business,
financial condition and results of operations and the price of the Notes traded in the secondary market.
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Cinda HK is subject to risks relating to the Hong Kong property market.

Cinda HK has higher exposures to property-related usage as compared to other industries. As at 31
December 2018 and 2019, advances to customers for property-related usage in Hong Kong accounted for
13.9 per cent. and 68 per cent., respectively of Cinda HK’s total advances to customers.

The Hong Kong property market is highly cyclical and property prices in general have historically been
cyclical volatile. After a period of significant increases in property prices as a result of increased demand
spurred by access to funding with lower interest rates and reduced supply, at the end of 2010, the Hong
Kong government and the Monetary Authority introduced property cooling measures such as a special
stamp duty and reduced loan-to-value borrowings. Market consolidation in Hong Kong was experienced
in the residential property market since these measures were introduced in 2010. On 26 October 2012, the
financial secretary of the Hong Kong Government announced that the Stamp Duty Ordinance (Cap. 117)
of the laws of Hong Kong (“Stamp Duty Ordinance”) would be amended to adjust the rates and to extend
the holding period in respect of the Special Stamp Duty (“SSD”) imposed by the Stamp Duty
(Amendment) Ordinance in 2011. Under the adjusted regime, any residential property acquired on or after
27 October 2012, either by an individual or a company (regardless of where it is incorporated), and resold
within 36 months, will be subject to the new rates of SSD upon the enactment of the relevant legislation.
The financial secretary also announced on 26 October 2012 that a Buyer’s Stamp Duty (“BSD”) would be
introduced with effect from 27 October 2012 on residential properties acquired by any person (including
a company incorporated) except a Hong Kong permanent resident. BSD is to be charged at a flat rate of
15 per cent. on all residential properties, on top of the existing stamp duty and the SSD, if applicable. On
22 February 2013, the financial secretary announced that the Hong Kong Government would further
amend the Stamp Duty Ordinance to adjust the ad valorem stamp duty (“AVD”) rates and to advance the
charging of AVD on non-residential property transactions from the conveyance on sale to the agreement
for sale. On 4 November 2016, the Hong Kong government announced further cooling measures in the
form of an increase to stamp duty payable on property transactions to 15 per cent., effective from 5
November 2016 and applying to all residential property acquisitions by individuals or companies with the
exception of first-time home buyers who are Hong Kong permanent residents. The new 15 per cent. rate
replaces the maximum 8.5 per cent. double AVD on non-first-time home purchases by Hong Kong
permanent residents that had been in place since February 2013. As the introduction of these measures are
subject to policy changes reflecting domestic political or economic circumstances, there is no assurance
that the Hong Kong government will not introduce further measures in the future that may have a
significant impact on the Hong Kong property market, which may in turn affect have a negative impact
on Cinda HK’s asset quality or an adverse effect on its business.

The trend of property prices in the Hong Kong property market depends on various factors which are
beyond Cinda HK’s control, including when the Hong Kong government will relax its cooling measures,
the Hong Kong dollar interest rate movements (largely dependent on the timing and pace of United States
interest rate hikes), capital outflow pressures in relation to global competitive monetary easing and
currency depreciation, growth prospects of the Hong Kong economy, economic, Renminbi and property
market developments in the PRC and changes in the property demand/supply balance in the Hong Kong
market. Any substantial decreases in property values could materially and adversely affect Cinda HK’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. In order to control the concentration risk in this
segment, Cinda HK has taken various measures, including setting portfolio limits. However, there can be
no assurance that the downturn in property market in Hong Kong or the PRC will not have a negative
impact on Cinda HK’s asset quality or an adverse effect on Cinda HK’s business.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law, Cinda HK or the Issuer may be classified as a “resident
enterprise” of the PRC. Such classification could result in unfavourable tax consequences to Cinda HK,
the Issuer and non-PRC Noteholders.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (“EIT Law”), an enterprise established outside of China with a “de
facto management body” within China is deemed a “resident enterprise,” meaning that it can be treated
as a PRC enterprise for enterprise income tax purposes, although dividends paid from one resident
enterprise to another may qualify as “tax-exempt income”. The implementing rules of the EIT Law define
“de facto management” as “substantial and overall management and control over the production and
operations, personnel, accounting, and properties” of the enterprise. The Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation on Issues about the Determination of Chinese-Controlled Enterprises
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Registered Abroad as Resident Enterprises on the Basis of their Body of Actual Management issued by the
State Administration of Taxation on 22 April 2009 (“Circular 82”) and amended on 29 December 2017
provides that a foreign enterprise controlled by a PRC company or a PRC company group will be treated
as a “resident enterprise” with a “de facto management body” located within China if all of the following
requirements are satisfied at the same time: (i) the senior management and core management departments
in charge of daily operations are located mainly within China; (ii) financial and human resources decisions
are subject to determination or approval by persons or bodies in China; (iii) major assets, accounting
books, company seals and minutes and files of board and shareholders’ meetings are located or kept within
China; and (iv) at least half of the enterprise’s directors with voting rights or senior management reside
within China. Circular 82 also provides that the determination of the “de facto management body” shall
be governed by the principle of substance over formality. The Administration of Taxation of Chinese-
Controlled Enterprises Registered Abroad as Resident Enterprises (for Trial Implementation) issued by the
State Administration of Taxation on 27 July, 2011 (“Circular 45”) and respectively amended on 1 June
2015, 1 October 2016 and 15 June 2018, further prescribes the rules concerning the recognition,
administration and taxation of a foreign enterprise “controlled by a PRC enterprise or PRC enterprise
group.” Circular 45 provides that the tax authority may determine that the foreign enterprise is a resident
enterprise after an investigation.

Cinda HK and the Issuer believe that they are currently not PRC resident enterprises. However, since (i)
Cinda HK and the Issuer are directly or indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a joint stock limited
company incorporated in the PRC; (ii) substantially all of Cinda HK’s and the Issuer’s directors and senior
management were nominated by China Cinda; and (iii) such directors and senior management are required
to report to China Cinda from time to time, there is no assurance that Cinda HK and the Issuer will not
be deemed “resident enterprises” under the EIT Law and, therefore, be subject to enterprise income tax
at a rate of 25% on their global income in the future. Provided that Cinda HK and the Issuer are each not
considered to be a PRC resident enterprise for EIT Law purposes, the payment of interest on the Notes and
payments under the Notes and the Guarantee to the non-PRC resident holders of the Notes will not be
subject to PRC withholding tax. However, if the Issuer and/or Cinda HK are considered to be PRC resident
enterprises, interest payments and/or payments under the Guarantee and gains on disposition of Notes may
be subject to PRC tax as described below.

Under the EIT Law and the implementation regulations thereunder, PRC withholding tax at a rate of 10%
is applicable to PRC-source income derived by non-resident enterprises from a PRC resident enterprise.
The EIT Law’s implementation regulations further set forth that interest income is viewed as PRC-source
income if the enterprise or the establishment that pays or bears the interest is situated in China. If the
Issuer or Cinda HK is deemed a PRC resident enterprise for tax purposes, interest and/or payments under
the Notes or the Guarantee to non-PRC resident Noteholders may be regarded as PRC-sourced and
therefore be subject to PRC withholding tax at a rate of 10% for enterprise Noteholders and 20% for
individual Noteholders. Any gains realised on the transfer of the Notes by such investors may also be
subject to PRC income tax at a rate of 10% for non-PRC resident enterprise Noteholders or 20% for
non-PRC resident individual Noteholders, if such gains are regarded as PRC-sourced. These rates may be
reduced by an applicable tax treaty.

Moreover, the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation jointly issued the Circular of
Full Implementation of Business Tax to VAT Reform (Cai Shui [2016] No. 36) (關於全面推開營業稅改徵
增值稅試點的通知) (財稅[2016]36號) (the “Circular 36”) on 23 March 2016 and respectively amended on
1 July 2017 and 1 April 2019, which provides that all business tax payers are included into the pilot
programme to pay VAT from 1 May 2016. VAT is applicable where the entities or individuals provide
services within the PRC, including the provision of loans. If the Issuer is deemed to be a PRC Resident
Enterprise under the EIT Law, it is unclear whether the Notes may be treated as loans under the new VAT
regime, in which case gains from the sale of Notes may be subject to VAT. However, VAT is unlikely to
apply to any transfer of Notes between entities or individuals located outside of the PRC and therefore
unlikely to be applicable to gains realised upon such transfers of Notes. As Circular 36 and laws and
regulations pertaining to VAT are relatively new, the interpretation and enforcement of such laws and
regulations involve uncertainties.
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If any of the Issuer or Cinda HK is required under the EIT Law to withhold PRC tax on interest paid to
non-PRC resident holders, it would be required, subject to certain exceptions, to pay such additional
amounts as would result in receipt by a holder of a Note of such amounts as would have been received
by such holder had no such withholding been required. The requirement to pay additional amounts will
increase the cost of servicing interest payments on the Notes and could have a material adverse effect on
its ability to pay interest on, and repay the principal amount of, the Notes.

Cinda HK is subject to the risks relating to fluctuations in the value of Renminbi.

While Cinda HK’s financial statement recording currency is Hong Kong dollars, a portion of its revenue
and expenses are denominated in Renminbi. As a result, fluctuations in exchange rates, particularly
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars or U.S. dollars, could affect Cinda HK’s profitability and may result
in exchange losses of Renminbi-denominated assets and liabilities.

The volatility in exchange rate of Renminbi against U.S. dollars and other currencies is affected by, among
other factors, changes in the PRC and international political and economic conditions and the fiscal and
currency policies of the PRC government. From 1994 to 20 July 2005, the official exchange rate for the
conversion of Renminbi to U.S. dollars was generally stable. On 21 July 2005, the PRC government
adopted a more flexible managed floating exchange rate system to allow the Renminbi exchange rate to
fluctuate within a regulated range that is based on market supply and demand with reference to a basket
of currencies. Renminbi appreciated more than 20% against U.S. dollars over the following three years.
From July 2008 to June 2010, Renminbi traded within a narrow range against U.S. dollars. On 19 June
2010, the PBOC announced that the PRC government would reform the Renminbi exchange rate regime
and increase the flexibility of the exchange rate. The floating band was expanded to 1.0% on 16 April 2012
and further to 2.0% on 17 March 2014. These changes in currency policy resulted in significant
appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar. In August 2015, the Renminbi experienced a
substantial devaluation as a result of adjustments made by the PBOC to the Renminbi to U.S. dollar
exchange rate. In the fourth quarter of 2016, the Renminbi further depreciated in the backdrop of a surging
U.S. dollar and persistent capital outflows of China. From the second quarter of 2018, the Renminbi
experienced another round of depreciation due to the trade war between China and United States. On 5
August 2019, PBOC set the Renminbi’s daily reference rate above 7 per U.S. dollar for the first time in
over a decade amidst an uncertain trade and global economic climate. The currency devaluation of the
Renminbi was intended to bring it more in line with the market by taking market signals into account, as
well as boosting the competitiveness of the PRC’s exports. The PRC government may make further
adjustments to the exchange rate system in the future. There is no assurance that the Renminbi will not
experience significant appreciation or depreciation against the Hong Kong dollar or U.S. dollar in the
future. Any significant increase in the value of the Hong Kong dollar against foreign currencies could
reduce the value of Cinda HK’s foreign currency-denominated revenue and assets.

RISKS RELATING TO THE NOTES AND THE GUARANTEES

Risks Relating to the Notes

The Financial Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance may adversely affect the Notes.

On 7 July 2017, the Financial Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance (Cap. 628) of Hong Kong (the “FIRO”)
came into operation. The FIRO provides for, among other things, the establishment of a resolution regime
for authorised institutions and other within scope financial institutions in Hong Kong which may be
designated by the relevant resolution authorities, which include NCB (a “FIRO Group Entity”). The
resolution regime seeks to provide the relevant resolution authorities with administrative powers to bring
about timely and orderly resolution in order to stabilise and secure continuity for a failing authorised
institution or within scope financial institution in Hong Kong. In particular, in the context of a resolution
of any FIRO Group Entity, the relevant resolution authority will have the ability to resolve other entities
within the Group as if it were a within scope financial institution for the purposes of FIRO and take certain
actions and make certain directions in relation to it. Any such actions could potentially affect contractual
and property rights relating to NCB and/or Cinda HK. In addition, the relevant resolution authority is
provided with powers to affect contractual and property rights as well as payments (including in respect
of any priority of payment) that creditors would receive in resolution. These may include, but are not
limited to, powers to cancel, write off, modify, convert or replace all or a part of the Notes or the principal
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amount of, or interest on, the Notes, and powers to amend or alter the contractual provisions of the Notes,
all of which may adversely affect the value of the Notes, and the holders thereof may suffer a loss of some
or all of their investment as a result.

Holders of Notes (whether senior or subordinated) may become subject to and bound by the FIRO. The
implementation of FIRO remains untested and certain detail relating to FIRO will be set out through
secondary legislation and supporting rules. Therefore, Cinda HK is unable to assess the full impact of
FIRO on the financial system generally, Cinda HK’s counterparties, Cinda HK, NCB, any of its
consolidated subsidiaries or other entities, Cinda HK’s operations and/or its financial position.

The Notes and the Guarantee are unsecured obligations.

The Notes and the Guarantee are unsecured obligations of the Issuer and the Guarantor, respectively. The
repayment of the Notes and payment under the Guarantee may be adversely affected if:

• the Issuer or Guarantor enters into bankruptcy, liquidation, reorganisation or other winding-up
proceedings;

• there is a default in payment under the Issuer’s or Guarantor’s future secured indebtedness or other
unsecured indebtedness; or

• there is an acceleration of any of the Issuer’s or Guarantor’s indebtedness.

If any of these events were to occur, the Issuer’s or Guarantor’s assets may not be sufficient to pay
amounts due on the Notes.

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors.

Each potential investor in any Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

(i) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the relevant Notes, the
merits and risks of investing in the relevant Notes and the information contained or incorporated by
reference in this Offering Circular or any applicable supplement;

(ii) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the relevant Notes and the impact such investment
will have on its overall investment portfolio;

(iii) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
relevant Notes, including where principal or interest is payable in one or more currencies, or where
the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor’s currency;

(iv) understand thoroughly the terms of the relevant Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of any
relevant indices and financial markets; and

(v) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.

The Notes are complex financial instruments and such instruments may be purchased as a way to reduce
risk or enhance yield with an understood, measured, appropriate addition of risk to their overall portfolios.
A potential investor should not invest in the Notes which are complex financial instruments unless it has
the expertise (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) to evaluate how the Notes will perform
under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of such Notes and the impact this investment
will have on the potential investor’s overall investment portfolio. A potential investor should ensure that
he has sufficient knowledge and experience (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) to make
his own legal, tax, accounting and financial evaluation of the merits and risks of investing in the Notes
and that he considers the suitability of the Notes as an investment in light of his own circumstances and
financial condition.
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The obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee are structurally subordinated to the liabilities and
obligations of its subsidiaries.

The Guarantor’s ability to perform their obligations under the Guarantee is effectively dependent on the
cash flow of its subsidiaries. Any claim by the Trustee against the Guarantor in relation to the Guarantee
will be effectively subordinated to all existing and future obligations of the Guarantor’s subsidiaries
(which have not provided the Guarantee), and all claims by creditors of such subsidiaries will have priority
to the assets of such entities over the claims of the Trustee under the Guarantee.

Investors shall pay attention to any modification and waivers.

The terms and conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to consider
matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all
Noteholders including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Noteholders
who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

The terms and conditions of the Notes may be amended, modified, or varied in relation to any Series of
Notes by the terms of the relevant Pricing Supplement in relation to such Series.

The terms and conditions of the Notes also provide that the Trustee may (but shall not be obliged to) agree,
without the consent of Noteholders, to (i) any modification that is of a forma, minor or technical nature
or is made to correct a manifest error or is to comply with any mandatory provision of applicable law, and
(ii) any other modification (except as mentioned in the Trust Deed), and any waiver or authorisation of
any breach or proposed breach, that is not materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders.

Investors shall be aware of the effect of change of law.

The Trust Deed governing the Notes is based on English law in effect as at the date of issue of the relevant
Notes. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to English
law or administrative practice after the date of issue of the relevant Notes.

Limited liquidity of the Notes may affect the market price of the Notes.

The Notes will not be registered under the Securities Act or the securities or blue sky laws of any state
of the United States. The Notes are being offered and sold either to non-U.S. persons in offshore
transactions within the meaning of and in compliance with Regulation S under the Securities Act or
pursuant to another exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Consequently, the
Notes are subject to restrictions on transfer and resale.

The Notes are a new issue of securities with no established trading market. Application has been made to
list the Notes on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. However, if for any reason the Notes are not listed, the
liquidity of the Notes may be negatively impacted.

A liquid or active trading market for the Notes may not develop. If an active trading market for the Notes
does not develop or does develop and is not maintained, the market price of the Notes may be adversely
affected. If the Notes are traded, they may trade at a discount from their initial issue price, depending on
prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, China Cinda’s performance and other factors.
See “Subscription and Sale”.

In addition, the Notes may initially be sold to a small number of investors. A limited number of investors
may purchase a significant portion of the Notes offered. The existence of any such significant holder(s)
of the Notes may reduce the liquidity of the Notes in the secondary trading market. Accordingly, the
Guarantor cannot predict whether an active trading market for the Notes will develop or be sustained, in
which case investors may not be able to resell their Notes at their fair market value or at all. If such a
market were to develop, the Notes could trade at prices that may be higher or lower than the initial issue
price depending on many factors, including prevailing interest rates, China Cinda’s operations and the
market for similar securities.
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The Guarantor will require a significant amount of cash to meet its obligations under its indebtedness and
to sustain its operations, which the Guarantor may not be able to generate or raise.

The Guarantor’s ability to make scheduled payments on the Notes and the Guarantor’s ability to make
payments on its indebtedness and its contractual obligations and to fund its ongoing operations will depend
on its future performance and its ability to generate cash, which to a certain extent is subject to general
economic, financial, competitive, legislative, legal, regulatory and other factors, as well as other factors
discussed in this “Risk Factors” section, many of which are beyond the Guarantor’s control. If China
Cinda’s future cash flows from operations and other capital resources are insufficient to pay its debt
obligations, its contractual obligations, or to fund its other liquidity needs, the Guarantor may be forced
to sell assets or attempt to restructure or refinance its existing indebtedness. No assurance can be given
that the Guarantor would be able to accomplish any of these measures on a timely basis or on satisfactory
terms or at all.

China Cinda, the Guarantor and the Issuer are ultimately state owned entities, but none of the PRC
governmental bodies is an obligor under the Notes or the Guarantee. The payment obligations under the
Notes or the Guarantee remain the sole obligations of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor (as the case may be),
and any such ownership or control by the PRC government does not necessarily correlate to, or provide
any assurance as to, the financial condition of the Issuer or the Guarantor. Under no circumstances shall
any of the PRC governmental bodies have any obligation arising out of or in connection with the Notes
or the Guarantee in lieu of the Issuer or the Guarantor.

If the Issuer or the Guarantor is unable to comply with the restrictions and covenants in their respective
debt agreements, or the Notes, there could be a default under the terms of these agreements, or the Notes,
which could cause repayment of the relevant debt to be accelerated.

The Group has a large number of subsidiaries, whether onshore or offshore, which operate and provide a
wide-range of financial services. The Group from time to time and during its ordinary course of business
enter into financing agreements or investment arrangements with financial institutions and relevant
parties. There is no assurance that non-compliance or dispute will not occur under such agreements or
arrangement, or if they occur, that they will be properly rectified.

For example, Timespeed Investment Limited (“Timespeed”), a subsidiary of CCAM, entered into a
consortium as part of an acquisition in Hong Kong, and Timespeed as one of the borrowers, entered into
a facility agreement of HK$3 billion (the “Facility Agreement”) on 9 September 2016 with a bank as the
lender for the purpose of project financing. Certain non-compliances, which did not stem directly from
Timespeed or CCAM, occurred by members of the consortium. As a result, in May 2019, by appointment
of a receiver, the bank took possession of some of the collaterals charged by the consortium for the Facility
Agreement, which include shares of Timespeed held by CCAM. As confirmed by the Guarantor, CCAM
has worked closely with the lender to resolve the dispute and the consortium has fully repaid all
outstanding facilities under the Facility Agreement before 31 December 2019. CCAM has been informed
by the lender that there is no further repayment obligations from the part of Timespeed or CCAM but
further time and procedure is needed to discharge the receivership and the encumbrances. Furthermore, the
receiver appointed by the bank has not disposed of the shares of Timespeed held by CCAM. The Guarantor
confirms this incident does not have any material adverse impact on the Group’s financial position,
business and prospects, as well as the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantor to discharge their respective
payment obligations under the Notes.

If the Issuer or the Guarantor is unable to comply with the restrictions and covenants in the Notes, or is
unable to comply with its current or future debt obligations and other agreements, there could be a default
under the terms of these agreements. In the event of a default under these agreements which are not
rectifiable, or rectifiable but not rectified, unless the Guarantor or the relevant subsidiaries, as the case
may be, are able to obtain timely waivers or otherwise remedy such breaches, the creditors of the debt
could terminate their commitments to lend to the Issuer or the Guarantor, accelerate repayment of the debt,
declare all amounts borrowed due and payable or terminate the agreements, as the case may be.
Furthermore, some of the Group’s debt agreements, and the Notes, contain (or may in the future contain)
cross-acceleration or cross-default provisions. As a result, any default by the Issuer or the Guarantor, or
any other member of the Group, under one debt agreement may cause the acceleration of repayment of
debt or result in a default under its other debt agreements. If any of these events occur, there can be no
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assurance that the assets and cash flows of the Guarantor or its subsidiaries would be sufficient to repay
in full all of their respective debts as they become due, or that the Guarantor or its subsidiaries would be
able to find alternative financing. Even if the Guarantor and its subsidiaries could obtain alternative
financing, there can be no assurance that such financing would be on terms that are favourable or
acceptable to the Guarantor or, as the case may be, its subsidiaries.

The Guarantor may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to finance an offer to repurchase the
Notes upon the occurrence of certain events constituting a change of control as required by the Trust Deed
governing the Notes.

Upon the occurrence of certain events constituting a “Change of Control Triggering Event,” as such term
is defined in the Trust Deed governing the Notes, the Issuer is required to make an offer to repurchase all
outstanding Notes at a purchase price in cash equal to 101 per cent. of the principal amount of the Notes.
If a Change of Control Triggering Event were to occur, no assurance can be given that the Issuer would
have sufficient funds available at such time to pay the purchase price of the outstanding Notes. A Change
of Control Triggering Event may result in an event of default under, or acceleration of, other indebtedness.
The repurchase of the Notes pursuant to such an offer could cause a default under such indebtedness, even
if the Change of Control Triggering Event itself does not.

The Change of Control provision contained in the Trust Deed governing the Notes may not necessarily
afford Noteholders protection in the event of certain important corporate events, including a
reorganisation, restructuring, merger, recapitalisation, sale of all or substantially all assets or other similar
transaction that may adversely affect Noteholders, because such corporate events may not involve a shift
in voting power or beneficial ownership or, even if they do, may not constitute a “Change of Control”.
Except as described under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes — Repurchase Upon a Change of Control
Triggering Event”, the Trust Deed governing the Notes does not contain provisions that require the
Guarantor to offer to repurchase or redeem the Notes in the event of a reorganisation, restructuring,
merger, recapitalisation, sale of all or substantially all assets or similar transaction.

The liquidity and price of the Notes may be volatile.

The price and trading volume of the Notes may be highly volatile. Factors such as variations in the
revenues, earnings and cash flows of the Guarantor and proposals of new investments, strategic alliances
and/or acquisitions, interest rates and fluctuations in prices for comparable companies could cause the
price of the Notes to change. Any such developments may result in large and sudden changes in the volume
and price at which the Notes will trade. There can be no assurance that these developments will not occur
in the future.

There might be difficulties in effecting service of legal process and enforcing judgments against the
Guarantor and its management.

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the transaction documents are governed by English law and
the Issuer and the Guarantor have submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Hong Kong courts.
Although the Guarantor is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong, a substantial portion of
its assets and some of its subsidiaries are located in the PRC. In addition, most of the Guarantor’s
directors, supervisors and senior management reside within the PRC, and the assets of its directors,
supervisors and senior management may be located within the PRC.

Moreover, it is understood that the enforcement of foreign judgments in the PRC is still subject to
uncertainties. In addition, the mechanisms for enforcement of rights under the corporate governance
framework to which the Guarantor is subject are also relatively undeveloped and untested. The PRC has
not entered into treaties or arrangements providing for the recognition and enforcement of judgments made
by the courts in most other jurisdictions. Therefore, it may not be possible for investors to effect service
of process upon the Guarantor or its management in the PRC.

40



On 14 July 2006, Hong Kong and the PRC entered into the Arrangement on Reciprocal Recognition and
Enforcement of Judgments in Civil and Commercial Matters by the Courts of the Mainland and of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Pursuant to Choice of Court Agreements Between Parties
Concerned (關於內地與香港特別行政區法院相互認可和執行當事人協議管轄的民商事案件判決的安排)
(the “2006 Arrangement”), pursuant to which a party with a final court judgment rendered by a Hong
Kong court requiring payment of money in a civil and commercial case pursuant to a choice of court
agreement in writing may apply for recognition and enforcement of the judgment in the PRC. Similarly,
a party with a final judgment rendered by a PRC court requiring payment of money in a civil and
commercial case pursuant to a choice of court agreement in writing may apply for recognition and
enforcement of such judgment in Hong Kong. A choice of court agreement in writing is defined as any
agreement in writing entered into between parties after the effective date of the 2006 Arrangement in
which a Hong Kong court or a PRC court is expressly designated as the court having sole jurisdiction for
the dispute. Therefore, it is not possible to enforce a judgment rendered by a Hong Kong court in the PRC
if the parties in dispute have not agreed to enter into a choice of court agreement in writing. Although the
2006 Arrangement became effective on 1 August 2008, the outcome and effectiveness of any action
brought under the 2006 Arrangement may still be uncertain.

On 18 January 2019, the Supreme People’s Court of the People’s Republic of China and the Department
of Justice under the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region signed the Arrangement
on Reciprocal Recognition and Enforcement of Judgments in Civil and Commercial Matters by the Courts
of the Mainland and of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (《關於內地與香港特別行政區法
院相互認可和執行民商事案件判決的安排》) (the “2019 Arrangement”). The 2019 Arrangement
stipulates the scope and particulars of judgments, the procedures and ways of the application for
recognition or enforcement, the review of the jurisdiction of the court that issued the original judgment,
the circumstances where the recognition and enforcement of a judgment shall be refused, and the
approaches towards remedies, among others. The 2019 Arrangement shall apply to any judgment made on
or after its effective date by the courts of both sides. The 2006 Arrangement shall be terminated on the
same day when the 2019 Arrangement comes into effect. If a “written choice of court agreement” has been
signed by parties according to the 2006 Arrangement prior to the effective date of the 2019 Arrangement,
the 2006 Arrangement shall still apply. Although the 2019 Arrangement has been signed, its effective date
has yet to be announced. Therefore, there are still uncertainties about the outcomes and effectiveness of
enforcement or recognition of judgments under the 2019 Arrangement.

Unlike other bonds issued in the international capital markets where holders of such bonds would typically
not be required to submit to an exclusive jurisdiction, the Noteholders will be deemed to have submitted
to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Hong Kong courts. Thus, the Noteholders’ ability to initiate a claim
outside Hong Kong will be limited.

In addition, recognition and enforcement of a Hong Kong court judgment could be refused if the PRC
courts consider that the enforcement of such judgment is contrary to the social and public interest of the
PRC. While it is expected that the PRC courts will recognise and enforce a judgment given by a Hong
Kong court and governed by English law, there can be no assurance that the PRC courts will do so for all
such judgments as there is no established practice in this area.

Additional procedures may be required to be taken to bring English law governed matters or disputes to
the Hong Kong courts. There is also no assurance that the PRC courts will recognise and enforce
judgments of the Hong Kong courts in respect of English law governed matters or disputes.

The Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Talons, the Trust Deed, Agency Agreement and the
Guarantee are governed by English law, whereas parties to these documents are submitting to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong courts. In order to hear English law governed matters or disputes, Hong
Kong courts may require certain additional procedures to be taken. Under the 2006 Arrangement,
judgments of Hong Kong courts are likely to be recognised and enforced by the PRC courts where the
contracting parties to the transactions pertaining to such judgments have agreed to submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of Hong Kong courts. However, recognition and enforcement of a Hong Kong court judgment
could be refused if the PRC courts consider that the enforcement of such judgment is contrary to the social
and public interest of the PRC. While it is expected that the PRC courts will recognise and enforce a
judgment given by Hong Kong courts governed by English law, there can be no assurance that the PRC
courts will do so for all such judgments, as there is no established practice in this area. Compared to other
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similar debt securities issuances in the international capital markets where the relevant holders of the debt
securities would not typically be required to submit to an exclusive jurisdiction, the Noteholders will be
deemed to have submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Hong Kong courts, and thus the Noteholders’
ability to initiate a claim outside Hong Kong will be limited.

Developments in other markets may adversely affect the market price of the Notes.

The market price of the Notes may be adversely affected by declines in the international financial markets
and world economic conditions. The market for the Notes is, to varying degrees, influenced by economic
and market conditions in other markets, especially those in Asia. Although economic conditions are
different in each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can affect the securities
markets and the securities of issuers in other countries, including China. Since the sub-prime mortgage
crisis in 2008, the international financial markets have experienced significant volatility. If similar
developments occur in the international financial markets in the future, the market price of the Notes could
be adversely affected.

The Issuer will follow the applicable corporate disclosure standards for debt securities listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, which standards may be different from those applicable to companies in certain
other countries.

The Issuer has been and will continue to be subject to reporting obligations in respect of the Notes to be
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The disclosure standards imposed by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange may be different than those imposed by securities exchanges in other countries or regions. As
a result, the level of information that is available may not correspond to what holders of Notes are
accustomed to.

The ratings of the Programme may be downgraded or withdrawn.

The Programme has been assigned a rating of “A-” by S&P and a rating of “A” by Fitch. In addition, the
Guarantor has been assigned a rating of “A3” by Moody’s, a rating of “A-” by S&P and a rating of “A”
by Fitch. The ratings represent the opinions of the rating agencies and their assessment of the ability of
the Issuer and the Guarantor to perform their respective obligations under the Notes and the Guarantee and
credit risks in determining the likelihood that payments will be made when due under the Notes. A rating
is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Notes and may be subject to suspension, reduction or
withdrawn at any time. A reduction or withdrawal of the ratings may adversely affect the market price of
the Notes and the Issuer’s or Guarantor’s ability to access the debt capital markets.

The insolvency laws of British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong and other local insolvency laws may differ
from those of another jurisdiction with which the holders of the Notes are familiar.

As the Issuer and the Guarantor are incorporated under the laws of British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong,
respectively, any insolvency proceeding relating to the Issuer or the Guarantor would likely involve British
Virgin Islands or Hong Kong insolvency laws, the procedural and substantive provisions of which may
differ from comparable provisions of the local insolvency laws of jurisdictions with which the holders of
the Notes are familiar.

The Trustee may request holders of the Notes to provide an indemnity and/or security and/or prefunding
to its satisfaction.

In certain circumstances, the Trustee may, at its sole discretion, request holders of the Notes to provide
an indemnity and/or security and/or prefunding to its satisfaction before it takes steps and/or actions
and/or institutes proceedings on behalf of holders of the Notes. The Trustee shall not be obliged to take
any such steps and/or actions and/or institute any such proceedings if not indemnified and/or secured
and/or prefunded to its satisfaction. Negotiating and agreeing to an indemnity and/or security and/or
prefunding can be a lengthy process and may impact on when such steps and/or actions can be taken and/or
such proceedings can be instituted. The Trustee may not be able to take steps and/or actions and/or
institute proceedings, notwithstanding the provision of an indemnity and/or security and/or prefunding to
it, in breach of the terms of the Trust Deed and in circumstances where there is uncertainty or dispute as
to the applicable laws or regulations and, to the extent permitted by the agreements and the applicable laws
and regulations, it will be for the holders of the Notes to take such steps and/or actions and/or institute
such proceedings directly.
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The Notes may be redeemed by the Issuer before maturity at a redemption price equal to 100 per cent. of
the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest in the event that any of the Issuer or the Guarantor
is treated as a “resident enterprise” of the PRC and hence need to pay Additional Amounts.

As discussed above under “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to the PRC and Hong Kong — Under the
Enterprise Income Tax Law, Cinda HK or the Issuer may be classified as a ‘resident enterprise’ of the
PRC. Such classification could result in unfavourable tax consequences to Cinda HK, the Issuer and
non-PRC Noteholders.”, the Issuer and the Guarantor may be required under the EIT Law to withhold PRC
taxes on interest paid to non-resident Noteholders. Subject to certain exceptions set forth in “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes — Redemption — Redemption for Taxation Reasons,” in the event that any of the
Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, is required to pay Additional Amounts (as defined in “Terms
and Conditions of the Notes”) with respect to any PRC withholding taxes as a result of (1) any change in,
or amendment to, the laws (or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder) of a Relevant Taxing
Jurisdiction (as defined in the “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”), or (2) any change in the, or
announcement of any, official interpretation or official application of such laws, regulations or rulings,
which results in the Issuer or the Guarantor being treated as a PRC resident enterprise, the Issuer may
redeem the Notes, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100 per cent. of the principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest (including any Additional Amounts). In addition, the Issuer may
redeem the Notes if as a result of certain changes or amendments to laws & regulations and rulings or
change in or announcement of their official application, payment to the Issuer, by the Guarantor or any
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Guarantor to enable the Issuer to pay interest or additional amounts is
subject to withholding or deduction of taxes. If the Issuer is unable to redeem the Notes, the requirement
to pay Additional Amounts will increase the cost of servicing interest payments on the Notes and could
have a material adverse effect on the ability to pay interest on, and repay the principal amount of, the
Notes, as well as the profitability and cash flow of the Issuer or the Guarantor.

Considerations related to a particular issue of Notes.

A wide range of Notes may be issued under the Programme. A number of these Notes may have features
which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below is a description of certain such
features:

(a) Notes subject to optional redemption by the Issuer

An optional redemption feature is likely to limit the market value of Notes. During any period when
the Issuer may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes will generally not rise
substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This may also be true prior to any
redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest
rate on the Notes. At those times, an investor would generally not be able to reinvest the redemption
proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may
only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment
risk in light of other investments available at that time.

(b) Index Linked Notes and Dual Currency Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes with principal or interest determined by reference to an index or formula,
to changes in the prices of securities or commodities, to movements in currency exchange rates or
other factors (each a “Relevant Factor”). In addition, the Issuer may issue Notes with principal or
interest payable in one or more currencies which may be different from the currency in which the
Notes are denominated. Potential investors should be aware that:

(i) the market price of such Notes may be volatile;

(ii) they may receive no interest;

(iii) the payment of principal or interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than
expected;
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(iv) the amount of principal payable at redemption may be less than the nominal amount of such
Notes or even zero;

(v) a Relevant Factor may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes
in interest rates, currencies or other indices;

(vi) if a Relevant Factor is applied to Notes in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or
contains some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the Relevant Factor on principal
or interest payable will likely be magnified; and

(vii) the timing of changes in a Relevant Factor may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the
average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the
Relevant Factor, the greater the effect on yield.

(c) Partly-paid Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Failure to
pay any subsequent instalment could result in an investor losing all of its investment.

(d) Variable rate Notes with a multiplier or other leverage factor

Notes with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include
multipliers or other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or other
similar related features, their market values may be even more volatile than those for securities that
do not include those features.

(e) Inverse Floating Rate Notes

Inverse Floating Rate Notes have an interest rate equal to a fixed rate minus a rate based upon a
reference rate such as LIBOR. The market values of such Notes are typically more volatile than
market values of other conventional floating rate debt securities based on the same reference rate
(and with otherwise comparable terms). Inverse Floating Rate Notes are more volatile because an
increase in the reference rate not only decreases the interest rate of the Notes, but may also reflect
an increase in prevailing interest rates, which further adversely affects the market value of these
Notes.

(f) Fixed/Floating Rate Notes

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may bear interest at a rate that the Issuer may elect to convert from a fixed
rate to a floating rate, or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. The Issuer’s ability to convert the interest
rate will affect the secondary market and the market value of such Notes since the Issuer may be
expected to convert the rate when it is likely to produce a lower overall cost of borrowing. If the
Issuer converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may
be less favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Notes tied to the same
reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on other
Notes. If the Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate, the fixed rate may be lower than then
prevailing rates on its Notes.

(g) Notes issued at a substantial discount or premium

The market values of securities issued at a substantial discount or premium to their nominal amount
tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for conventional
interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of the securities, the greater the
price volatility as compared to conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable maturities.

Risks relating to Notes which are linked to “benchmarks”

The London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”), the Euro Interbank Offered Rate (“EURIBOR”) and
other interest rate or other types of rates and indices which are deemed to be “benchmarks” are the subject
of ongoing national and international regulatory discussions and proposals for reform. Some of these
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reforms are already effective whilst others are still to be implemented. Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 (the
“EU Benchmark Regulation”) was published in the Official Journal of the European Union on 29 June
2016 and has applied from 1 January 2018 (with the exception of provisions specified in Article 59 (mainly
on critical benchmarks) that have applied since 30 June 2016). Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the UK Benchmark
Regulation) among other things, applies to the provision of benchmarks and the use of a benchmark in
the UK. Similarly, it prohibits the use in the UK by UK supervised entities of benchmarks of
administrators that are not authorised by the FCA or registered on the FCA register (or, if non-UK based,
not deemed equivalent or recognised or endorsed). The EU Benchmark Regulation and/or the UK
Benchmark Regulations, as applicable, could have a material impact on any Notes linked to LIBOR,
EURIBOR or another “benchmark” rate or index, in particular, if the methodology or other terms of the
“benchmark” are changed in order to comply with the terms of the EU Benchmark Regulation and/or the
UK Benchmark Regulation as applicable, and such changes could (amongst other things) have the effect
of reducing or increasing the rate or level, or affecting the volatility of the published rate or level, of the
benchmark. In addition, each of the EU Benchmark Regulation and the UK Benchmark Regulation
stipulates that each administrator of a “benchmark” regulated thereunder must be licensed by the
competent authority of the Member State where such administrator is located. There is a risk that
administrators of certain “benchmarks” will fail to obtain a necessary licence, preventing them from
continuing to provide such “benchmarks”. Other administrators may cease to administer certain
“benchmarks” because of the additional costs of compliance with the EU Benchmark Regulation, the UK
Benchmark Regulations and other applicable regulations, and the risks associated therewith. There is also
a risk that certain benchmarks may continue to be administered but may in time become obsolete. As an
example of such benchmark reforms, on 27 July 2017, the UK Financial Conduct Authority announced that
it will no longer persuade or compel banks to submit rates for the calculation of the LIBOR benchmark
after 2021 (the “FCA Announcement”). The FCA Announcement indicates that the continuation of
LIBOR on the current basis (or at all) cannot and will not be guaranteed after 2021 and that planning a
transition to alternative reference rates that are based firmly on transactions must begin. In November
2020, the administrator of LIBOR announced that it will carry out a public consultation on its intention
to cease the publication of the one-week and two-month USD LIBOR settings immediately following the
LIBOR publication on 31 December 2021, and the remaining USD LIBOR settings (the “Relevant LIBOR
Settings”) immediately following the LIBOR publication on 30 June 2023. As of the date of this Offering
Circular, no official result of such consultation has been published and there can be no assurance that the
administrator of LIBOR will extend the publication of the Relevant LIBOR Settings until 30 June 2023.

On 21 September 2017, the European Central Bank announced that it would be part of a new working
group tasked with the identification and adoption of a “risk free overnight rate” which can serve as a basis
for an alternative to current benchmarks used in a variety of financial instruments and contracts in the euro
area.

Following the implementation of any such potential reforms, the manner of administration of benchmarks
may change, with the result that they may perform differently than in the past, or the benchmark could be
eliminated entirely, or there could be other consequences that cannot be predicted. The elimination of the
LIBOR benchmark or any other benchmark, or changes in the manner of administration of any benchmark,
could result in adverse consequences to holders of any securities linked to such benchmark (including but
not limited to Floating Rate Notes whose interest rates are linked to LIBOR or any other such benchmark
that is subject to reform). Furthermore, even prior to the implementation of any changes, uncertainty as
to the nature of alternative reference rates and as to potential changes to such benchmark may adversely
affect such benchmark during the term of the relevant Notes, the return on the relevant Notes and the
trading market for securities based on the same benchmark.

The Terms and Conditions of Notes provide for certain fallback arrangements in the event that a published
benchmark, such as LIBOR and/or any page on which such benchmark may be published (or any other
successor service) becomes unavailable or a Benchmark Event (a defined in the Terms and Conditions)
otherwise occurs. Such fallback arrangements include the possibility that the Rate of Interest could be set
by reference to a Successor Rate or an Alternative Rate (both as defined in the Terms and Conditions), with
or without the application of an adjustment spread and may include amendments to the Terms and
Conditions of the Notes to ensure the proper operation of the successor or replacement benchmark, all as
determined by the Issuer (acting in good faith and in consultation with an Independent Adviser). If,
following the occurrence of a Benchmark Event, no Successor Rate or Alternative Rate is determined, the
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ultimate fallback for the purposes of calculation of the Rate of Interest for a particular Interest Period may
result in the Rate of Interest for the last preceding Interest Period being used. This may result in the
effective application of a fixed rate for Floating Rate Notes based on the rate which was last observed on
the Relevant Screen Page. Due to the uncertainty concerning the availability of Successor Rates and
Alternative Rates, the involvement of an Independent Adviser and the potential for further regulatory
developments there is a risk that the relevant fallback provisions may not operate as intended at the
relevant time.

Any such consequences could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any such Notes.
Moreover, any of the above matters or any other significant change to the setting or existence of any
relevant reference rate could affect the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations under the Floating Rate
Notes or could have a material adverse effect on the value or liquidity of, and the amount payable under,
the Floating Rate Notes. Investors should consider these matters when making their investment decision
with respect to the relevant Floating Rate Notes.

Risks Relating to Renminbi Denominated Notes

Notes denominated in Renminbi (the “Renminbi Notes”) may be issued under the Programme. Renminbi
Notes contain particular risks for potential investors.

Investment in the Renminbi Notes is subject to exchange rate risks.

The value of Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollar and other foreign currencies fluctuates from time to
time and is affected by changes in the PRC and international political and economic conditions as well as
many other factors. The Issuer will make all payments of interest and principal with respect to the
Renminbi Notes in Renminbi. As a result, the value of these Renminbi payments may vary with the
changes in the prevailing exchange rates in the marketplace. Since August 2015, the value of Renminbi
has significantly depreciated against the Hong Kong dollar. See “Exchange Rate.” If the value of Renminbi
further depreciates against the Hong Kong dollar or other foreign currencies, the value of the investment
made by a holder of the Renminbi Notes in Hong Kong dollars or any other foreign currency terms will
decline.

Investment in the Renminbi Notes is subject to interest rate risks.

The PRC government has gradually liberalised its regulation of interest rates in recent years. Further
liberalisation may increase interest rate volatility. The trading price of the Renminbi Notes will vary with
the fluctuations in the Renminbi interest rates. If holders of the Renminbi Notes propose to sell their
Renminbi Notes before their maturity, they may receive an offer lower than the amount they have invested.

Renminbi is not freely convertible; there are significant restrictions on the remittance of Renminbi into and
outside of the PRC which may adversely affect the liquidity of Renminbi Notes.

Renminbi is not freely convertible at present. The PRC Government continues to regulate conversion
between Renminbi and foreign currencies, including the Hong Kong dollar, despite significant reduction
in control by it in recent years over routine foreign exchange transactions under current account items.
Participating banks in Hong Kong and in other jurisdictions have been permitted to engage in the
settlement of current account trade transactions in Renminbi under certain pilot schemes. However,
remittance of Renminbi by foreign investors into the PRC for purposes known as capital account items,
such as capital contributions, is generally permitted only upon obtaining specific approvals from, or
completing specific registrations or filings with relevant authorities on a case-by-case basis and subject
to a strict monitoring system. Although the PRC Government is liberalising the control over cross-border
Renminbi remittances (especially given the goal to achieve full convertibility of capital accounts (if the
risk is under control) and promote convenient cross-border Renminbi flow in the China (Shanghai) Pilot
Free Trade Zone) and, from 1 October 2016, Renminbi has been added to the Special Drawing Rights
basket created by the International Monetary Fund, there is no assurance that the PRC Government will
continue to gradually liberalise control over cross border remittance of Renminbi in the future or that new
regulations in the PRC will not be promulgated in the future which have the effect of restricting or
eliminating the remittance of Renminbi into or outside the PRC. In the event that funds cannot be
repatriated outside the PRC in Renminbi, this may affect the overall availability of Renminbi outside the
PRC and the ability of the Issuer to source Renminbi to finance their obligations under Notes denominated
in Renminbi.
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There is only limited availability of Renminbi outside the PRC, which may affect the liquidity of the
Renminbi Notes and the Issuer’s ability to source Renminbi outside the PRC to service the Renminbi Notes.

As a result of the restrictions by the PRC Government on cross-border Renminbi fund flows, the
availability of Renminbi outside the PRC is limited.

As at 31 December 2019, the total amount of Renminbi deposits held by institutions authorised to engage
in Renminbi banking business in Hong Kong amounted to approximately RMB632.2 billion.

While the PBOC has established Renminbi clearing and settlement mechanisms for participating banks in
a number of financial centres and cities (each, an “Renminbi Clearing Bank”), including but not limited
to Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan, through settlement agreements on the clearing of Renminbi
business (the “Settlement Agreements”) with Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited in Hong Kong,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Singapore Branch in Singapore and Bank of China Limited,
Taipei Branch in Taiwan (each, a “Renminbi Clearing Bank”), the current size of Renminbi-denominated
financial assets outside the PRC is limited.

There are restrictions imposed by the PBOC on Renminbi business participating banks in respect of
cross-border Renminbi settlement, such as those relating to direct transactions with PRC enterprises.
Furthermore, Renminbi business participating banks do not have direct Renminbi liquidity support from
the PBOC. The Renminbi Clearing Bank only have access to onshore liquidity support from the PBOC for
the purpose of squaring open positions of participating banks for limited types of transactions and are not
obliged to square for participating banks any open positions resulting from other foreign exchange
transactions or conversion services. In such cases, the participating banks will need to source Renminbi
from outside the PRC to square such open positions.

Although it is expected that the offshore Renminbi market will continue to grow in depth and size, its
growth is subject to many constraints as a result of PRC laws and regulations on foreign exchange. There
is no assurance that new PRC regulations will not be promulgated or the Settlement Agreements will not
be terminated or amended in the future which will have the effect of restricting availability of Renminbi
outside the PRC. The limited availability of Renminbi outside the PRC may affect the liquidity of the
Renminbi Notes. To the extent the Issuer is required to source Renminbi outside the PRC to service the
Renminbi Notes, there is no assurance that the Issuer will be able to source such Renminbi on satisfactory
terms, if at all.

Payments in respect of Renminbi Notes will only be made to investors in the manner specified in such
Renminbi Notes.

All payments to investors in respect of Renminbi Notes will be made solely by (i) when Renminbi Notes
are represented by Global Notes or Global Certificates, transfer to a Renminbi bank account maintained
in Hong Kong in accordance with the prevailing rules and procedures, or (ii) when Renminbi Notes are
in definitive form, transfer to a Renminbi bank account maintained in Hong Kong in accordance with
prevailing rules and regulations. The Issuer cannot be required to make payment by any other means
(including in any other currency or in bank notes, by check or draft or by transfer to a bank account in
China).
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EXCHANGE RATE

PRC

The PBOC sets and publishes daily a base exchange rate with reference primarily to the supply and
demand of Renminbi against a basket of currencies in the markets during the prior day. The PBOC also
takes into account other factors such as the general conditions existing in the international foreign
exchange market. Since 1994, the exchange rate for the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies,
including Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars, has been set by the PBOC based on the previous day’s
inter-bank foreign exchange market rates and current exchange rates in the world financial markets. From
1994 to 20 July 2005, the official exchange rate for the conversion of Renminbi to U.S. dollars was
generally stable. On 21 July 2005, the PRC government changed its decade-old policy of pegging the value
of the Renminbi to that of the U.S. dollar to allow the value of the Renminbi to fluctuate within a narrow
and managed band based on market supply and demand and by reference to a basket of currencies. This
change in policy has resulted in a significant appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar.

The PRC government has made further adjustments to the exchange rate system. The PBOC authorised the
China Foreign Exchange Trading Centre, effective since 4 January 2006, to announce the central parity
exchange rate of certain foreign currencies against the Renminbi at 9:15 a.m. each business day. This rate
is set as the central parity for the trading against the Renminbi in the inter-bank foreign exchange spot
market and as the over-the-counter exchange rate for that business day. On 18 May 2007, the PBOC
enlarged, effective from 21 May 2007, the floating band for the trading prices in the interbank spot
exchange market of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar from 0.3 per cent. to 0.5 per cent. around the
central parity rate. This allows the Renminbi to fluctuate against the U.S. dollar by up to 0.5 per cent.
above or below the central parity rate published by the PBOC. On 19 June 2010, the PBOC announced that
in view of the recent economic situation and financial market developments in China and abroad, and as
the balance of payments situation in China, it has decided to proceed further with the reform of the
Renminbi exchange rate regime and to enhance the Renminbi exchange rate flexibility. According to the
announcement, the exchange rate floating bands will remain the same as previously announced but the
PBOC will place more emphasis on reflecting the market supply and demand with reference to a basket
of currencies. On 12 April 2012, the PBOC announced that effective from 16 April 2012, the floating band
for the trading prices in the inter-bank spot exchange market of Renminbi against the U.S. dollar would
be enlarged from 0.5 per cent. to 1.0 per cent. around the central parity rate, which allows the Renminbi
to fluctuate against the U.S. dollar by up to 1.0 per cent. above or below the central parity rate published
by the PBOC. The PRC government may in the future make further adjustments to the exchange rate
system.

Although the PRC governmental policies have been introduced in 1996 to relax restrictions on the
convertibility of the Renminbi into foreign currency for current account items, conversion of the Renminbi
into foreign currency for capital items, such as foreign direct investment, loans or security, still requires
the approval of the SAFE and other relevant authorities. On 11 August 2015, the PBOC adopted a more
market-oriented approach and announced that the midpoint for the value of the Renminbi against the U.S.
dollar would be quoted by the market makers with reference to the closing rate of the previous trading
session.

On 11 December 2015, the China Foreign Exchange Trade System, a sub-institutional organisation of the
PBOC, published the CFETS Renminbi exchange rate index for the first time which weighs the Renminbi
based on 13 currencies, to guide the market in order to measure the Renminbi exchange rate from a new
perspective. The PRC government may in the future make further adjustments to the exchange rate system.
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The following table sets forth for the periods indicated, certain information concerning the exchange rates
between the Renminbi and U.S. dollars. The exchange rates reflect the noon buying rates as set forth in
the H.10 statistical release of the Federal Reserve Board.

Exchange Rate

Period Period end Average(1) High Low

(RMB per U.S.$1.00)

2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.2301 6.2990 6.3879 6.2221
2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.0537 6.1412 6.2438 6.0537
2014 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.2046 6.1704 6.2591 6.0402
2015 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.4778 6.2869 6.4896 6.1870
2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.9430 6.6400 6.9580 6.4480
2017 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.5060 6.7350 6.9575 6.4773
2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.8755 6.6292 6.9737 6.2649
2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.9618 6.9014 7.1786 6.6822
2020

January. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.9161 6.9184 6.9749 6.8589
February . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.9906 6.9967 7.0286 6.9650
March. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.0808 7.0205 7.1099 6.9244
April. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.0622 7.0708 7.0989 7.0341
May. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.1348 7.1016 7.1681 7.0622
June. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.0651 7.0816 7.1263 7.0575
July. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.9744 7.0041 7.0703 6.9744
August. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.8474 6.9270 6.9799 6.8474
September.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.7896 6.8106 6.8474 6.7529
October. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.6919 6.7254 6.7898 6.6503
November. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.5760 6.6029 6.6899 6.5556
December . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6.5250 6.5393 6.5705 6.5208

Note:

(1) Calculated by averaging the rates on the last business day of each month during the relevant year, except for monthly
average rates, which were calculated by averaging the daily rates for such month or part thereof.
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SUMMARY OF PROVISION RELATING TO THE NOTES WHILE IN GLOBAL FORM

Terms used in this section that are not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given to them in “Terms
of Conditions of the Notes”.

INITIAL ISSUE OF NOTES

Global Notes and Global Certificates may be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche
to a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream (the “Common Depositary”) or a sub-custodian
for the CMU.

Upon the initial deposit of a Global Note or a Global Certificate with the Common Depositary or with a
sub-custodian for the CMU or registration of Registered Notes in the name of (i) any nominee for the
Common Depositary or for Euroclear and Clearstream or (ii) the Hong Kong Monetary Authority as
operator of the CMU and delivery of the relevant Global Note or Global Certificate to the Common
Depositary or the sub-custodian for the CMU (as the case may be), Euroclear or Clearstream or the CMU
(as the case may be) will credit each subscriber with a nominal amount of Notes equal to the nominal
amount thereof for which it has subscribed and paid.

Notes that are initially deposited with the Common Depositary may also be credited to the accounts of
subscribers with (if indicated in the relevant Pricing Supplement) other clearing systems through direct or
indirect accounts with Euroclear and Clearstream held by such other clearing systems. Conversely, Notes
that are initially deposited with any other clearing system may similarly be credited to the accounts of
subscribers with Euroclear, Clearstream or other clearing systems.

RELATIONSHIP OF ACCOUNTHOLDERS WITH CLEARING SYSTEMS

Each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear, Clearstream or any other clearing system (an
“Alternative Clearing System”) as the holder of a Note represented by a Global Note or a Global
Certificate must look solely to Euroclear, Clearstream or any such Alternative Clearing System (as the case
may be) for his share of each payment made by the Issuer to the bearer of such Global Note or the holder
of the underlying Registered Notes, as the case may be, and in relation to all other rights arising under the
Global Notes or Global Certificates, subject to and in accordance with the respective rules and procedures
of Euroclear, Clearstream or such Alternative Clearing System (as the case may be). Such persons shall
have no claim directly against the Issuer in respect of payments due on the Notes for so long as the Notes
are represented by such Global Note or Global Certificate and such obligations of the Issuer will be
discharged by payment to the bearer of such Global Note or the holder of the underlying Registered Notes,
as the case may be, in respect of each amount so paid.

If a Global Note or a Global Certificate is lodged with a sub-custodian for or registered with the CMU,
the person(s) for whose account(s) interests in such Global Note or Global Certificate are credited as being
held in the CMU in accordance with the CMU Rules as notified by the CMU to the CMU Lodging and
Paying Agent in a relevant CMU Instrument Position Report or any other relevant notification by the CMU
(which notification, in either case, shall be conclusive evidence of the records of the CMU save in the case
of manifest error) shall be the only person(s) entitled or in the case of Registered Notes, directed or
deemed by the CMU as entitled to receive payments in respect of Notes represented by such Global Note
or Global Certificate and the Issuer will be discharged by payment to, or to the order of, such person(s)
for whose account(s) interests in such Global Note or Global Certificate are credited as being held in the
CMU in respect of each amount so paid. Each of the persons shown in the records of the CMU as the
beneficial holder of a particular nominal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note or Global
Certificate must look solely to the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent (as agent of the Issuer) for his share
of each payment so made by the Issuer in respect of such Global Note or Global Certificate.
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EXCHANGE

Temporary Global Notes

Each Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable, free of charge to the holder, on or after its Exchange
Date:

(i) if the relevant Pricing Supplement indicates that such Global Note is issued in compliance with
TEFRA C or in a transaction to which TEFRA is not applicable (as to which, see “Subscription and
Sale — Selling Restrictions”), in whole, but not in part, for the Definitive Notes defined and
described below; and

(ii) otherwise, in whole or in part upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership in the form set
out in the Agency Agreement for interests in a Permanent Global Note or, if so provided in the
relevant Pricing Supplement, for Definitive Notes.

The CMU may require that any such exchange for a Permanent Global Note is made in whole and not in
part and in such event, no such exchange will be effected until all relevant account holders (as set out in
a CMU Instrument Position Report (as defined in the rules of the CMU) or any other relevant notification
supplied to the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent by the CMU) have so certified.

The holder of a Temporary Global Note will not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal
or other amount due on or after the Exchange Date unless, upon due certification as to non-U.S. beneficial
ownership in the form set out in the Agency Agreement, exchange of the Temporary Global Note for an
interest in a Permanent Global Note or for Definitive Notes is improperly withheld or refused. The
payments in respect of a Note issued under TEFRA D pursuant to Condition 6(e) of the Conditions may
not be collected without certificate as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership.

Further Issues

In respect of a Note issued under TEFRA D, for the purpose of dealing in Euroclear or Clearstream or the
CMU, any further issue of Notes by the Issuer pursuant to Condition 15 of the Conditions may not be
consolidated and form a single series with the outstanding securities of any series (including the Notes)
until the exchange of interests in a Temporary Global Note for interests in a Permanent Global Note upon
the relevant Certification.

Permanent Global Notes

Each Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable, free of charge to the holder, on or after its Exchange
Date in whole but not, except as provided under the paragraph below, in part for Definitive Notes if the
Permanent Global Note is held on behalf of Euroclear, Clearstream, the CMU or an Alternative Clearing
System and any such clearing system is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than
by reason of holidays, statutory or otherwise) or announces an intention permanently to cease business or
does in fact do so.

For so long as a Permanent Global Note is held on behalf of a clearing system and the rules of that clearing
system permit, such Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable in part if so provided, and in accordance
with, the Conditions relating to Partly Paid Notes.

In the event that a Global Note is exchanged for Definitive Notes, such Definitive Notes shall be issued
in Specified Denomination(s) only. A Noteholder who holds a principal amount of less than the minimum
Specified Denomination will not receive a Definitive Note in respect of such holding and would need to
purchase a principal amount of Notes such that it holds an amount equal to one or more Specified
Denominations.
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Global Certificates

The following will apply in respect of transfers of Notes represented by a Global Certificate on issue and
held in Euroclear, Clearstream, the CMU or an Alternative Clearing System. These provisions will not
prevent the trading of interests in the Notes within a clearing system whilst they are held on behalf of such
clearing system, but will limit the circumstances in which the Notes may be withdrawn from the relevant
clearing system. Transfer of the holding of Notes represented by any Global Certificate pursuant to
Condition 2(b) of the Conditions may only be made in part if the relevant clearing system is closed for
business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holidays, statutory or otherwise) or
announces an intention permanently to cease business or does in fact do so provided that, in the case of
the first transfer of part of a holding, the Registered Holder has given the Registrar not less than 30 days’
notice at its specified office of the Registered Holder’s intention to effect such transfer.

In the event that a Global Certificate is exchanged for a definitive Certificate, such definitive Certificate
shall be issued in Specified Denomination(s) only. A Noteholder who holds a principal amount of less than
the minimum Specified Denomination will not receive a definitive certificate in respect of such holding
and would need to purchase a principal amount of Notes such that it holds an amount equal to one or more
Specified Denominations.

Delivery of Notes

On or after any due date for exchange, the holder of a Global Note may surrender such Global Note or,
in the case of a partial exchange, present it for endorsement to or to the order of the Issuing and Paying
Agent (or, in the case of Notes lodged with the CMU, the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent).

In exchange for any Global Note, or the part thereof to be exchanged, the Issuer will (i) in the case of a
Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a Permanent Global Note, deliver, or procure the delivery of, a
Permanent Global Note in an aggregate nominal amount equal to that of the whole or that part of a
Temporary Global Note that is being exchanged or, in the case of a subsequent exchange, endorse, or
procure the endorsement of, a Permanent Global Note to reflect such exchange or (ii) in the case of a
Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes, deliver, or procure the delivery of, an equal aggregate
nominal amount of duly executed and authenticated Definitive Notes. Global Notes, Global Certificates
and Definitive Notes will be delivered outside the United States and its possessions.

In this Offering Circular, “Definitive Notes” means, in relation to any Global Note, the definitive Bearer
Notes for which such Global Note may be exchanged (if appropriate, having attached to them all Coupons
and Receipts in respect of interest or Instalment Amounts that have not already been paid on the Global
Note and a Talon). Definitive Notes will be security printed in accordance with any applicable legal and
stock exchange requirements in or substantially in the form set out in the Schedules to the Trust Deed. On
exchange in full of each Permanent Global Note, the Issuer will, if the holder so requests, procure that it
is cancelled and returned to the holder together with the relevant Definitive Notes.

Exchange Date

“Exchange Date” means, in relation to a Temporary Global Note, the day falling after the expiry of
40 days after its issue date and, in relation to a Permanent Global Note, a day falling not less than 60 days,
after that on which the notice requiring exchange is given and on which banks are open for business in
the city in which the specified office of the Issuing and Paying Agent (or the CMU Lodging and Paying
Agent) is located and in the city in which the relevant clearing system is located.
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Amendment to Conditions

The Temporary Global Notes, the Permanent Global Notes and the Global Certificates contain provisions
that apply to the Notes that they represent, some of which modify the effect of the Conditions set out in
this Offering Circular. The following is a summary of certain of those provisions:

Payments

No payment falling due after the Exchange Date will be made on any Global Note unless exchange for an
interest in a Permanent Global Note or for Definitive Notes is improperly withheld or refused. Payments
on any Temporary Global Note issued in compliance with TEFRA D before the Exchange Date will only
be made against presentation of certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership in the form set out in the
Agency Agreement. All payments in respect of Notes represented by a Global Note (except with respect
to a Global Note held through the CMU) will be made against presentation for endorsement and, if no
further payment falls to be made in respect of the Notes, surrender of that Global Note to or to the order
of the Issuing and Paying Agent as shall have been notified to the Noteholders for such purpose. A record
of each payment so made will be enfaced on each Global Note, which endorsement will be prima facie
evidence that such payment has been made in respect of the Notes. Conditions 7(f)(vi) and 8(c) of the
Conditions will apply to the Definitive Notes only. For the purpose of any payments made in respect of
a Global Note, the relevant place of presentation (if applicable) shall be disregarded in the definition of
“business day” set out in Condition 7(h) of the Conditions.

All payments in respect of Notes represented by a Global Certificate (other than a Global Certificate held
through the CMU) will be made to, or to the order of, the person whose name is entered on the Register
at the close of business on the record date which shall be the Clearing System Business Day immediately
prior to the date for payment, where “Clearing System Business Day” means Monday to Friday inclusive
except December 25 and January 1.

In respect of a Global Note or Global Certificate held through the CMU, any payments of principal,
interest (if any) or any other amounts shall be made to the person(s) for whose account(s) interests in the
relevant Global Note or Global Certificate are credited (as set out in a CMU Instrument Position Report
or any other relevant notification supplied to the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent by the CMU) and, save
in the case of final payment, no presentation of the relevant Global Note or Global Certificate shall be
required for such purpose.

Prescription

Claims against the Issuer and/or the Guarantor in respect of Notes that are represented by a Permanent
Global Note will become void unless it is presented for payment within a period of ten years (in the case
of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) from the appropriate Relevant Date (as defined in
Condition 9 of the Conditions).

Meetings

The holder of a Permanent Global Note or of the Notes represented by a Global Certificate shall (unless
such Permanent Global Note or Global Certificate represents only one Note) be treated as being two
persons for the purposes of any quorum requirements of a meeting of Noteholders and, at any such
meeting, the holder of a Permanent Global Note or of the Notes represented by a Global Certificate shall
be treated as having one vote in respect of each integral currency unit of the Specified Currency of the
Notes.

Cancellation

Cancellation of any Note represented by a Temporary or Permanent Global Note that is required to be
cancelled (other than upon its redemption) will be effected by reduction in the nominal amount of the
relevant Temporary or Permanent Global Note or its presentation to or to the order of the Issuing and
Paying Agent (or, in the case of Notes lodged with the CMU, the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent) for
endorsement in the relevant schedule of such Temporary or Permanent Global Note or, in the case of a
Global Certificate, by reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Certificates in the Register,
whereupon the principal amount thereof shall be reduced for all purposes by the amount so cancelled and
endorsed.
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Purchase

Notes represented by a Permanent Global Note or by a Global Certificate may only be purchased by the
Issuer, the Guarantor, the Company or any of their respective subsidiaries if they are purchased together
with the rights to receive all future payments of interest and Instalment Amounts (if any) thereon.

Issuer’s Option

Any option of early redemption of the Issuer provided for in the Conditions of any Notes while such Notes
are represented by a Permanent Global Note or by a Global Certificate shall be exercised by the Issuer
giving notice to the Noteholders within the time limits set out in and containing the information required
by the Conditions, except that the notice shall not be required to contain the serial numbers of Notes drawn
in the case of a partial exercise of an option and accordingly no drawing of Notes shall be required. In the
event that any option of the Issuer is exercised in respect of some but not all of the Notes of any Series,
the rights of accountholders with a clearing system in respect of the Notes will be governed by the standard
procedures of Euroclear, Clearstream, the CMU or any other clearing system (as the case may be).

Noteholders’ Options

Any option of the Noteholders provided for in the Conditions of any Notes while such Notes are
represented by a Permanent Global Note or by a Global Certificate may be exercised by the holder giving
notice to the Issuing and Paying Agent (or, in the case of Notes lodged with the CMU, the CMU Lodging
and Paying Agent) within the time limits set out in the Conditions substantially in the form of the notice
available from any Paying Agent, except that the notice shall not be required to contain the serial numbers
of the Notes in respect of which the option has been exercised, and stating the nominal amount of Notes
in respect of which the option is exercised and at the same time presenting the Permanent Global Note to
the Issuing and Paying Agent (or, in the case of Notes lodged with the CMU, the CMU Lodging and Paying
Agent) or to a Paying Agent acting on its behalf, for notation. Any option of the Noteholders provided for
in the Conditions of any Notes while such Notes are represented by a Global Certificate may be exercised
in respect of all or some of the Notes represented by the Global Certificate.

Notices

So long as any Notes are represented by a Global Note or a Global Certificate and such Global Note or
Global Certificate is held on behalf of (i) Euroclear and/or Clearstream or any other clearing system
(except as provided in (ii) below), notices to the holders of Notes of that Series may be given by delivery
of the relevant notice to that clearing system for communication by it to entitled accountholders in
substitution for publication as required by the Conditions or by delivery of the relevant notice to the holder
of the Global Note or (ii) the CMU, notices to the holders of Notes of that Series may be given by delivery
of the relevant notice to the persons shown in a CMU Instrument Position Report issued by the CMU on
the business day preceding the date of despatch of such notice as holding interests in the relevant Global
Note or the relevant Global Certificate, as the case may be.

Partly Paid Notes

The provisions relating to Partly Paid Notes are not set out in this Offering Circular, but will be contained
in the relevant Pricing Supplement and thereby in the Global Notes. While any instalments of the
subscription moneys due from the holder of Partly Paid Notes are overdue, no interest in a Global Note
representing such Notes may be exchanged for an interest in a Permanent Global Note or for Definitive
Notes (as the case may be). If any Noteholder fails to pay any instalment due on any Partly Paid Notes
within the time specified, the Issuer may forfeit such Notes and shall have no further obligation to their
holders in respect of them.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from each issue of the Notes will be used for working capital, investment, refinance of
existing indebtedness and/or other general corporate purpose in accordance with applicable laws. If, in
respect of any particular issue, there is a particular identified use of proceeds, this will be stated in the
applicable Pricing Supplement.

55



CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS

The following table sets forth the Group’s indebtedness, equity and total capitalization under HKFRS as
at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019

Actual

HK$ US$(2)

(in millions)

Indebtedness(1)

Borrowings from central bank . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27.69 3.55
Bank and other borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58,036.81 7,450.74
Bond issued . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 104,589.53 13,427.16
Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the company . . . . . . . . . 34,812.03 4,469.15
Non-controlling interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 821.53 105.47

Total equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44,948.45 5,770.46

Total capitalisation(3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 243,236.04 31,226.54

Notes:

(1) Since 31 December 2019,

(a) the Guarantor has provided guarantee to US$700 million 2.00 per cent. guaranteed senior notes due 2023 issued
on 18 March 2020 by the Issuer;

(b) the Guarantor has provided guarantee to US$500 million 2.50 per cent. guaranteed senior notes due 2025 issued
on 18 March 2020 by the Issuer;

(c) the Guarantor has provided guarantee to US$300 million 3.00 per cent. guaranteed senior notes due 2027 issued
on 18 March 2020 by the Issuer;

(d) the Guarantor has provided guarantee to US$500 million 3.125 per cent. guaranteed senior notes due 2030
issued on 18 March 2020 by the Issuer;

(e) the Guarantor has provided guarantee to RMB2,000 million bonds issued by a subsidiary of Well Kent
(Shenzhen); and

(f) NCB China has issued a series of certificate of deposit and bonds, including RMB3,000 million bonds issued
on 17 December 2020.

(2) Calculated at the exchange rate of US$1.00 = HK$7.7894 on 31 December 2019 as set forth in the H.10 statistical
release of the Federal Reserve Board.

(3) Total capitalization equals the sum of indebtedness and total equity.

Except as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been no material adverse change in the Group’s
capitalisation since 31 December 2019. See “Description of the Guarantor — Recent Developments”. The
Group may from time to time incur ordinary course bank borrowings to finance our operations during its
ordinary course of business.
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THE HISTORY AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE

CORPORATION STRUCTURE

The following chart sets forth the corporation structure of Cinda HK and the major operating subsidiaries.

Key business channels

Other shareholders

58.0% 14.0%

5.0%

23.0%

CCAM
Well Kent
(Shenzhen)

Cinda Leasing
(HK)

Sino-Rock Investment

Well Kent
(Macau)

Hongma Investment Cinda Financial Holding

Qianhai Well Kent

100.0%

Other subsidiaries

100.0%

100.0%(3)

100.0% 20.7%

Other subsidiaries

100.0% 100.0%

100.0%(2)

100.0% 100.0%

Minority investment business channels

MOF SSF China COSCO

China Cinda(1)

Cinda HK

NCB

Notes:

(1) China Cinda’s shareholding structure as at 30 June 2020; remaining shareholding structure as of 31 December 2020;

(2) Cinda HK directly holds 100% stakes in Well Kent (Shenzhen) through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Cinda (China)
Investment; and

(3) Cinda HK indirectly holds 100% stakes in Well Kent (Macau) through China Cinda (Macau) and Cinda HK Investment
Management Co., Ltd.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

OVERVIEW

The Issuer was incorporated as a BVI business company with limited liability on 26 November 2019 in
the British Virgin Islands under the BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 (as amended). Its registered office
is located at Maples Corporate Services (BVI) Limited, Kingston Chambers, P.O. Box 173, Road Town,
Tortola, British Virgin Islands and its registration number is 2026748. The Issuer is wholly owned by the
Guarantor.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

Under the Issuer’s memorandum and articles of association, the Issuer has full capacity to carry on or
undertake any business or activity, do any act or enter into any transaction that is not prohibited under any
law for the time being in force in the British Virgin Islands. However, so long as the Notes are outstanding,
the Issuer will limit its permitted activities as described under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”. The
Issuer’s primary purpose is to act as one of the Group’s financing subsidiaries to issue and hold the Notes.
The Issuer has no material business nor assets and does not have any employees. In the future, the Issuer
may, either itself or through direct and indirect subsidiaries and associated companies, issue further bonds
and engage in other business activities related to us and may incur substantial liabilities and indebtedness.

The Issuer has elected or will elect to be treated as a disregarded entity solely for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, effective on or before the issue date of the Notes.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors of the Issuer are Mr. Huang Qiang and Ms. Cao Yabing. The directors of the Issuer do not
hold any shares or options to acquire shares of the Issuer.

There are no potential conflicts of interest between any duties of any of the management of the Issuer or
the Guarantor to the Issuer or the Guarantor, respectively, and their private interests and/or other duties.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Issuer is authorized to issue up to a maximum of 50,000 shares of US$1.00 par value each of a single
class and series, 10,000 of which have been issued and is fully paid. No part of the equity securities of
the Issuer is listed or dealt in on any stock exchange and no listing or permission to deal in such securities
is being or is proposed to be sought.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Issuer has not engaged, since its incorporation, in any activities other than those incidental to its
incorporation, the authorisation, execution and issue of the Notes (and the issue of the notes under a
U.S.$2,000,000,000 medium term note programme established on 9 March 2020), and the documents and
matters referred to or contemplated in this Offering Circular to which the Issuer is or will be a party and
matters which are incidental or ancillary to the foregoing.

Other than those disclosed in this Offering Circular, as at the date of this Offering Circular, the Issuer has
no borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings (including loan capital issued or created but
unused), term loans, liabilities under acceptances or acceptance credits, mortgages, charges or guarantees
or other contingent liabilities.

There are no other outstanding loans or subscriptions, allotments or options in respect of the Issuer.

The financial year of the Issuer runs from 1 January to 31 December. There has been no material change
in the activities of the Issuer since its incorporation.

The Issuer has not prepared any financial statements since its incorporation.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE GUARANTOR

OVERVIEW

China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda HK” or the “Guarantor”), is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cinda, a leading asset management company (“AMC”) in China. Cinda HK is the sole
strategic offshore investing and financing platform of Cinda Group (China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. (中國信達資產管理股份有限公司) (“China Cinda” or the “Parent”) and its subsidiaries). With a
successful track record of more than 20 years, Cinda HK has swiftly achieved its strategic mission, linking
Cinda Group with offshore capital markets and paving the way for oversea expansion. Cinda HK is also
dedicated to maintaining and enhancing its position as Cinda Group’s overseas platform through
consolidating and leveraging the distinct expertise and competitive strengths of its subsidiaries and
affiliates, including NCB, CCAM and other financial institutions licensed for multiple lines of regulated
financial activities.

Cinda HK, based on its strong support and indispensable position within Cinda Group, has become one
of the most recognised offshore platform among the state-owned AMCs, proven by its credit rating of
“A3”, “A-” and “A” from Moody’s, S&P and Fitch, respectively, and is the first offshore platform to
receive the same issuer rating as its parent AMC from all three credit rating agencies. The strong support
received from China Cinda includes not only liquidity support and credit enhancement but also
management support as Cinda HK’s board directors and senior management are appointed by China Cinda
which marks strong linkages between Cinda HK and China Cinda. Furthermore, Cinda HK also benefits
from NCB’s robust standalone credit profile including adequate capitalisation, sound asset quality, solid
liquidity profile and stable profitability.

Cinda HK’s main businesses include banking and non-banking business, and its non-banking business is
composed of investment and financing segments. Most of Cinda HK’s revenue comes from its banking
business, which is conducted through NCB. Earnings from investment business (including distressed asset
related investment, liquidity management investment, and other investments) contribute to a large portion
of Cinda HK’s non-banking segment revenue. Distressed assets related investment business is the core of
Cinda HK’s investment business that lays a solid foundation for Cinda HK’s sustainable development.
Under regulatory guidance of “Returning to the Fundamentals of AMC’s Business (回歸主業)”, Cinda HK
actively pursues thematic distressed asset related investment opportunities. Serving as a bridge between
China Cinda and overseas distressed asset markets, Cinda HK proactively delivers cross-border solutions
to China Cinda and provides it with channels to identify potential investment targets and strategic partners.
Through assets acquisition, debt tenor structure adjustment, non-cash repayment, debt-to-equity swap(s)
and other restructuring approaches, Cinda HK revitalises the value of distressed assets and realises the
investment profits.

Cinda HK possesses a diversified client base in terms of geographical distribution of investment portfolio,
industry coverage and investment products. Cinda HK has expanded its global footprint from mainland
China, Hong Kong and other “Belt and Road Initiative” countries. As at 31 December 2019, the
investments in Hong Kong, mainland of China and other areas account for 36 per cent., 32 per cent. and
32 per cent., respectively of the total investments made by Cinda HK in its non-banking segment.

Leveraging on the strong support and unparalleled resources of China Cinda, Cinda HK will continue to
improve the quality of its service to strengthen its market position in Hong Kong and mainland China. It
strives to increase the synergic effect both among its own business units and with China Cinda and
continues to seek new development opportunities.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Financial Performance for the six months ended 30 June 2020

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, Cinda HK has experienced a decrease in terms of net profit by
more than 80 per cent. as compared to the same period in 2019, mainly due to reduction of net interest
income and reduction of the fair value of investments and the corresponding impairment made to certain
investments as a result of the volatile economy in Hong Kong and mainland China and the adverse impact
of COVID-19 on the economic conditions, the credit quality of Cinda HK’s investment and Cinda HK’s
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business operation. In particular, Cinda HK holds certain investments relating to the hotel industry, the
market value of which has been adversely affected by COVID-19. Cinda HK expects the reduction of the
fair value of investments and the corresponding impairment will continue to have an effect but to a lesser
extent on its financial results for the full year of 2020.

The aforesaid information is only based on a preliminary assessment on the unaudited consolidated
management accounts for the six months ended 30 June 2020, which have not been audited or reviewed
by Cinda HK’s auditor, and may be subject to amendments. None of the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents,
or any person who controls any of them, or any of their respective directors, affiliates, officers, advisers,
employees or agents makes any representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied of, or accepts
any responsibility or liability with respect to, the business, financial condition or results of operation of
Cinda HK.

As at 30 June 2020, NCB’s total consolidated assets, gross advances to customers and deposits from
customers were HK$472,165.53 million, HK$265,497.67 million and HK$342,331.51 million,
respectively. For the six months ended 30 June 2019 and 2020, NCB’s profit after tax was HK$2,102.36
million and HK$2,407.52 million, respectively. As at 30 June 2020, NCB’s total capital adequacy ratio was
approximately 20.00 per cent., and its loan to deposit ratio was approximately 77.56 per cent. For the six
months ended 30 June 2019 and 2020, the average value of NCB’s quarterly liquidity coverage ratio was
154.16 per cent. and 150.00 per cent., respectively; its annualised return on average assets was 0.84 per
cent. and 1.00 per cent., respectively; and its annualised return on average equity was 8.38 per cent. and
9.01 per cent., respectively.

As at 30 June 2020, NCB offered a broad range of banking and related financial services in Hong Kong
through a network of 43 branches strategically located to provide coverage for the core districts on Hong
Kong Island, Kowloon and the New Territories. In terms of NCB’s operations in mainland China, NCB had
in total 37 branches/sub-branches in the PRC as at 30 June 2020.

Impact of COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 and the resulting impact on financial market have had adverse impact on Cinda
HK’s financial performance. In the first half of 2020, both in China and globally, business activities were
delayed or largely suspended, which created high uncertainties and volatilities in the financial markets.
The market value of assets and trading of the stocks and bonds in the secondary market were adversely
affected. Various restrictions caused by the pandemic and the economic conditions posed challenges to
Cinda HK to sustain financial growth. As the COVID-19 situation has alleviated in mainland China, Cinda
HK has seen a recovery of its regular business activities since the second half of 2020. The secondary
market has also seen a recovery from its first quarter performance. Cinda HK does not expect material
effect on its operating cash flow. It is of the view that its overall financial and business positions remain
sustainable. However, due to the ongoing impact of COVID-19, Cinda HK expects the COVID-19
pandemic to have an adverse impact on its overall financial performance for the full year of 2020.

The aforesaid information is only based on a preliminary assessment on the unaudited consolidated
management accounts for the six months ended 30 June 2020, which have not been audited or reviewed
by Cinda HK’s auditor, and may be subject to amendments. None of the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents,
or any person who controls any of them, or any of their respective directors, affiliates, officers, advisers,
employees or agents makes any representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied of, or accepts
any responsibility or liability with respect to, the business, financial condition or results of operation of
Cinda HK.

In the face of the COVID-19 outbreak and complex macro-political and economic environment both
domestically in the PRC and internationally, Cinda HK will leverage its competitive strengths to actively
expand its rich and diversified financing channels, fully utilises its established close strategic and
cooperative partnerships, and further strengthen its relationships with the onshore and offshore major
financial institutions to keep its competitive position. Cinda HK will also actively facilitate the relief
measures rolled out by the PRC government and the Hong Kong government during the pandemic,
overcome difficulties and contain the pandemic. Cinda HK will continue to manage its business operations
during the pandemic, and closely monitor and reduce the impact of the pandemic on customers and its
investment.
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Acquisition of Zhongchang International Holdings Group Limited (“Zhongchang International”)

On 18 October 2019, CCAM acquired a 74.98% interest in Zhongchang International, a Bermuda
incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Zhongchang International is engaged in
property leasing and development, and provision of property management services. The acquisition was
made for the reason of an enforcement action taken by CCAM in connection with a HK$700 million loan
facility made by CCAM to the immediate holding company of Zhongchang International as the borrower.
Due to the continued occurrence of certain events of defaults of the borrower, CCAM, as the lender and
the security agent under the abovementioned facility, took enforcement action on 18 October 2019 in
accordance with the terms of a share mortgage over 843,585,747 shares in Zhongchang International,
representing approximately 74.98% of the total shares of Zhongchang International then issued. Since the
acquisition, HK$6,790,000 of revenue and HK$48,185,000 of loss after tax of the acquiree were included
in the Guarantor’s consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019. For more
information on the financial effects of the acquisition, please refer to note 49 of the consolidated financial
statements of the Guarantor as of and for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at 30 June 2020, CCAM held 86.13% interest in Zhongchang International.

HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

The following table set forth the key development milestones in the Guarantor’s history:

1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Well Kent International Investment Company Limited (華建國際投資有限公
司) (the predecessor of Cinda HK) was incorporated in Hong Kong and in
charge of managing the distressed assets in Hong Kong and Macau held by
China Construction Bank and the assets in Hong Kong held by China
Agribusiness Development Trust & Investment (Hong Kong Holdings)
Company, Limited (中國農村發展信託投資(香港集團)有限公司).

2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . The governing authority of Well Kent International Investment Company
Limited (華建國際投資有限公司) was transferred from China Construction
Bank (中國建設銀行股份有限公司) into China Cinda and the assets in custody
were injected in China Cinda as capital.

2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Well Kent International Investment Company Limited successfully disposed of
most of the distressed assets previously held through asset restructuring,
packaging, and re-investment, and it started gradually shifted its business
focus from distressed assets disposition to assets management and offshore
investing and financing.

2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Well Kent International Investment Company Limited reorganised, established
and acquired a number of enterprises and affiliates to further expand its
businesses and product offerings, including Silver Grant International
Industries Limited, Sino-Rock Investment, Cinda International Holdings
Limited (信達國際控股有限公司) (“Cinda International”), China Fortune
Financial Group Limited (中國富強金融集團有限公司), Well Kent (Shenzhen)
and Zhejiang Province Construction of Real Estate Development Company (浙
江省建設房地產開發公司), the predecessor of Zhejiang Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (浙江信達資產管理有限公司). The acquisition of Well
Kent (Shenzhen) and Well Kent (Shenzhen) acted as pivot points for
cross-border linkage and asset management business of the Company. The
establishment of Sino-Rock Investment and acquisition of Cinda International
became the starting point of the Company’s offshore private equity investment
and investment banking business.

2012 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Well Kent International Investment Company Limited successfully issued
RMB2 billion offshore bonds with the tenor of three years, being the first
financial assets management company to issue RMB offshore bonds (via its
offshore subsidiary).

2013 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . China Cinda was successfully listed on the main board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.
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2014 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Well Kent International Investment Company Limited changed its name into
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited.

2014 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cinda HK successfully issued U.S.$1.5 billion offshore bonds in accordance
with Regulation S under the Securities Act and 144A Rules. Cinda HK is the
first offshore strategic platform of asset management companies in the PRC to
issue the USD denominated bonds in accordance with 144A Rules.

2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Under the assistance from China Cinda, Cinda HK completed on the
acquisition of NCB which brings strong synergistic effect to the developing
prospects, profit potential and competitive strength to Cinda Group.

2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cinda HK established Hongma Investment in Shanghai Free Trade Zone.

2016 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cinda HK had actively expanded cross-border business around its core
business, aligned with the offshore capital market, and served the business
needs of distressed assets and targets in China, under prudent investment
strategies and risk appetite in line with regulations and regulatory guidance.
Cinda HK’s assets and earnings had witnessed a speedy and steady growth
during the period, and Cinda HK has become China Cinda’s only “strategic
offshore investment and financing platform, cross-border business execution
platform and asset management platform”.

2018 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cinda HK has been actively and gradually returning to its main business,
distressed assets management, leveraging the synergies realised through
comprehensive business operation in both domestic and offshore markets to
improve its cross-border interlink business offerings, support the real economy
in full force, and assist mitigating the domestic financial risks in accordance
with the regulatory guidance and Cinda Group’s guideline.

2019 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . In November 2017, China Cinda announced its proposed transfer of
403,960,200 shares in Cinda International, representing approximately 63% of
the voting right of Cinda International originally held by a wholly owned
subsidiary of Cinda HK, to Cinda Securities, another wholly owned subsidiary
of China Cinda. This internal restructuring was to streamline the equity
investment relationship within Cinda Group and to strengthen the synergy
effect of domestic and overseas securities businesses of Cinda Group with a
focus to developing its securities business. This internal restructuring was
completed in June 2019.

AWARDS

Cinda HK’s proven track record is also demonstrated by the numerous awards that it has received,
including, amongst others, the “Caring Company” granted by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
on 1 March 2019 and “2018/19 Good MPF Employer Award” from the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Cinda HK believes that the competitive strengths set out below differentiate it from other industry
participants and have enabled it to compete effectively and seize growth opportunities.

Cinda HK is a leading overseas platform among the large AMCs

Cinda HK is a leading business platform among oversea subsidiaries of the state-owned AMCs’ in terms
of total asset, equity, and profit contribution to their respective parent companies. Supported by China
Cinda and its other nation-wide branches and subsidiaries, Cinda HK realised effective synergies by
sharing core resources of Cinda Group. As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, Cinda HK had total assets of
approximately HK$596,838 million and HK$623,907 million, respectively. For the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019, Cinda HK’s total income was HK$20,450 million and HK$22,111 million,
respectively. For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, Cinda HK’s profit for the period was
HK$2,347 million and HK$1,734 million, respectively.

Cinda HK has strong support from China Cinda

China Cinda was established as a wholly state-owned non-bank financial institution with the goal of
effectively mitigating financial risk, maintaining financial stability and expediting the reform and
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development of state-owned banks and enterprises. It was the first AMC to acquire, manage and dispose
non-performing loans of state-owned banks.

Based on the strong support from the PRC government, China Cinda has grown into a leading AMC that
focuses on distressed asset management, financial investment and asset management and other financial
services. China Cinda covers a wide range of financial services and owns a full array of financial licences
through itself and its subsidiaries in the business segments of distressed asset management, life insurance,
financial leasing, trust, securities, funds, investment and asset management. China Cinda is assigned a
rating of “A3” by Moody’s, a rating of “A” by Fitch and a rating of “A-” by S&P. With great support from
China Cinda, Cinda HK has received the same credit rating as China Cinda from the all three credit rating
agencies, being the only offshore subsidiary with the same credit rating, from all three credit rating
agencies, as that of the parent company among the state-owned AMCs. As at 30 June 2020, China Cinda’s
total assets stood at RMB1,531,817.5 million and for the six months ended 30 June 2020, China Cinda has
achieved a total income of RMB45,819.9 million.

Cinda HK benefits from the strong support from China Cinda in the following ways:

• China Cinda has effective control and management over Cinda HK.

China Cinda provides strategic support to Cinda HK since its establishment in terms of corporate
governance, risk and internal control management, business and human resources as well as other
businesses functions, and provides advice to Cinda HK on corporate governance matters and assists
Cinda HK in establishing and improving the risk information management framework.

(a) Effective risk information reporting mechanism: Cinda HK’s risk management department
reports regularly to China Cinda’s risk management department with regards to information on
regular market risk, customer credit risk, liquidity risk and operation risk.

(b) Regular monitoring mechanism combined with periodic evaluation: Cinda HK submits a risk
self-assessment report to China Cinda risk management department on a quarterly basis. In
addition to the primary risk information evaluation, the evaluation indicators also include the
regulatory requirements of the industry, the status quo of the industry development and the
overall development strategy of Cinda Group.

(c) Field inspections, research, management conference mechanism: The risk management
committee and the chief risk officer in the board of directors of China Cinda conduct field
investigation and inspection on Cinda HK’s risk management from time to time. The director
in charge of risk controls will convene management conferences to notify Cinda HK of the
major risks that it may face and instruct Cinda HK on its specific risk management and control.

(d) Supervision on compliance with the industrial requirements: Cinda HK’s business is subject to
strict government and industry supervision as well as relevant regulatory requirements and
assessment indicators. Cinda HK complies with these regulatory requirements and guideline,
which is the cornerstone of Cinda HK’s risk management.

(e) Supervision on risk management on human resources: The chief risk management officer of
Cinda HK, who is directly appointed by China Cinda, reports to both the general manager
(president) of Cinda HK and the director of risk management department of China Cinda.

(f) Risk assessment criteria and risk management guidelines: Cinda HK’s risk assessment
information is reviewed by China Cinda’s risk management department and incorporated as
evaluation criteria into Cinda HK’s assessment system, which directly relates to final
performance appraisal and remuneration of Cinda HK’s management.
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(g) Supervision on investment decisions: Cinda HK has formulated and promulgated standardised
procedures in making investment decisions, which include project proposal application, project
proposal approval, due diligence, risk assessment, valuation, major projects pre-
communication, acquisition program formulation and project approval. For more information
on its investment risk management, please see “Description of the Guarantor — Internal
Control and Risk Management — Investment Risk Management.”

• China Cinda provides strong liquidity and financial support to Cinda HK.

(a) Capital injection from the Parent: China Cinda gave sufficient capital injection into Cinda HK.
In particular, the capital injection from China Cinda helped Cinda HK to complete the
acquisition of NCB.

(b) Promising liquidity planning: Cinda HK formulates and promulgates the promising liquidity
planning in accordance with the guidance of Cinda Group. China Cinda will provide liquidity
support when Cinda HK encounters any financial difficulties.

(c) Sufficient credit facility quota from the commercial banks and other financial institutions:
Cinda HK has a prestigious reputation and keeps good relationship with the commercial banks
and other financial institutions. Cinda HK is able to obtain the sufficient credit facility quota
to support its business expansion and development. Moreover, Cinda Group, as a whole, has the
one of the highest credit limits among the AMCs in the commercial banks and financial
institutions, which helps Cinda HK obtain loans and credit facilities in the ordinary course of
business.

• China Cinda has great synergies with NCB.

In May 2016, China Cinda, through Cinda Financial Holdings, a wholly owned subsidiary of Cinda
HK, acquired NCB. Upon completion of the acquisition, NCB became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Cinda HK and the financial results of NCB have been consolidated into the Cinda Group’s
consolidated financial statements since 30 May 2016. The acquisition has generated considerable
synergies for Cinda Group as a whole by developing NCB into an important platform for Cinda HK’s
integrated financial services. Cinda HK currently conducts banking business in Hong Kong and
mainland China through NCB and NCB’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Nanyang Commercial Bank
(China) Limited (the “NCB China”).

Cinda HK believes that the synergy with NCB can be shown in the following six aspects:

(a) Customer resources synergy: customers of China Cinda’s distressed assets business and NCB’s
banking business complement each other and form a whole-cycle coverage. NCB can leverage
on the brand recognition and clientele of China Cinda to achieve an upscale of its customer
base, increase customers’ loyalty and attract more high net worth customers.

(b) Product innovation synergy: the integration of China Cinda’s asset management business and
NCB’s banking business creates the synergy in the development of financial products with an
integrated solution satisfying customers’ needs.

(c) Business network synergy: As at 31 December 2019, China Cinda had 33 branches (including
Hefei Operation Support Centre) in 30 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities in the
PRC and eight subsidiaries as platforms for providing distressed asset management and
financial services in the PRC and Hong Kong, forming a nationwide business network in China.
China Cinda will assist NCB in expanding its onshore and offshore business network.

(d) Business sector synergy: the distressed asset management business of China Cinda is closely
related to the businesses of commercial banks in terms of the financing needs of customers,
investment and management of funds and collection of outstanding loans. With the support
from China Cinda’s wide range of licences for providing financial services and extraordinary
product development capabilities, NCB can further develop its intermediary businesses through
cross selling efforts with China Cinda and fully capturing the business potential in China
Cinda’s distressed asset management customers.
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(e) Risk management synergy: with strong support from China Cinda through sharing its
experience in risk identification, risk mitigation and risk management, NCB is expected to
enhance its distressed assets disposal mechanism and improve its own risk management
capabilities.

(f) Regulatory/supervisory resources synergy: NCB makes full use of the mass resources of China
Cinda, actively seeks support from regulatory authorities, and accurately understands the
regulatory changes.

Cinda HK is an indispensable investment and financing strategy platform.

In the foreseeable future, as Cinda Group’s sole strategic offshore platform of investing, financing and
debt issuance, the unique role of Cinda HK will not be substituted by Cinda Group’s other subsidiaries.
The strategic significance of Cinda HK will be further consolidated.

The Group believes that Cinda HK is a vital puzzle piece for China Cinda’s integration into global capital
markets, not only because Cinda HK is responsible for due diligence and transaction structuring for most
offshore investments made by China Cinda but also because Cinda HK actively explores promising
overseas investment opportunities and maintains stable business operation. Cinda HK plays an important
role in the overall situation of economic transformation by identifying more opportunities in the foreign
distressed assets management and keeps itself at an advantageous position even in the circumstance of the
structural change in the PRC. In particular, Cinda HK plays a crucial role in supporting the “Belt and Road
Initiative,” China enterprises “Go Global”, market integration plan of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area and other national initiatives. Cinda HK generates synergies within Cinda Group by
collaborating with China Cinda, branch offices, China Cinda’s other subsidiaries and affiliates within the
Group in cross-border investment, financing, M&A activities and other investment opportunities, serving
as a bridge between the domestic and overseas businesses of Cinda Group. The coordination of the Group’s
onshore and offshore funding plans through offshore capital further facilitates the Group’s onshore growth
and strategy execution.

The importance of Cinda HK within the Cinda Group can also be seen from its financial contributions. As
at 31 December 2018 and 2019, Cinda HK’s total assets account for 35.0 per cent. and 36.9 per cent.,
respectively of Cinda Group’s total assets. For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, Cinda HK’s
net profits for the periods account for 16.7 per cent. and 10.2 per cent., respectively of Cinda Group’s net
profits for the periods. Cinda HK ranks as the first offshore platform among the state-owned AMCs in
terms of economic contribution to the parent company.

Cinda HK is the key platform of the Parent to engage in offshore asset management business, conduct
overseas financing and provide offshore financial services. As an overseas investment platform of a
prestigious state-owned financial institution, Cinda HK benefits from its Parent’s broad customer base,
strong credit support and rich industry experience in the financial industry. The corporate synergy of Cinda
Group equips Cinda HK with advantages in project screening and business negotiation comparing with
financial institutions without strong shareholder support. Cinda HK primarily competes with investment
companies with similar shareholding background and international asset management companies in
product and service offerings, service quality, financial strength and brand recognition. In such a
competitive market, Cinda HK intends to stabilise its overseas assets, optimising its business structure and
implementing strategic initiatives to distinguish itself from its competitors. Cinda HK is dedicated to
strengthening its position as an overseas platform of its Parent through its equity interest and investment
in CCAM, NCB and other financial enterprises with multiple licenses for financing businesses.

Cinda HK has continuously expanded its financing channels, secured long-term and stable
sources of financing and actively explored the business model of a balanced investment portfolio.

Cinda HK has sought to optimise its investment portfolio so as to strike a better balance between risk and
return. In terms of the investment asset-class breakdown, as at 31 December 2019, the equity investment
and the fixed income investment held by Cinda HK accounts for 64 per cent. and 36 per cent. respectively
of the investment assets. In terms of geographical investment breakdown, as at 31 December 2019, the
investments in Hong Kong, mainland of China and other areas account for 36 per cent., 32 per cent. and
32 per cent., respectively of the total investments in its non-banking segment.
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Cinda HK has a robust and comprehensive risk management system and has continuously
strengthened its risk management culture.

With reference to China Cinda’s risk management policies, Cinda HK has established internal regulations
to provide risk management guidelines for its operations and staff. These include the “Measures for
Overall Risk Management” (全面風險管理辦法), the “Measures for Credit Risk Management” (信用風險
管理辦法), the “Measures for Market Risk Management” (市場風險管理辦法), the “Measures for
Liquidity Risk Management” (流動性風險管理辦法) and the “Measures for Operational Risk
Management” (操作風險管理辦法). Cinda HK has accumulated valuable experience as well as capabilities
to identify, measure and control various types of risks. Through effective risk management processes and
effective risk-protection measures, Cinda HK effectively identifies and mitigates risks.

• Market risk control and management: Cinda HK has comprehensive market risk control and
management mechanism and timely report mechanism for stock price and exchange rate fluctuation.
With the comprehensive market risk management mechanism, Cinda HK will make sure the market
risk exposure is contained at an acceptable and reasonable scale. Cinda HK has established a rigid
market risk control and management system, including limit control on quota, access, stop-loss,
profit locking and concentration.

• Credit risk control and management: Cinda HK timely supervises the operation situation of its
customers and leverages on the risk assessment and mitigation tools to control the credit risks.
Furthermore, Cinda HK classifies its fixed-income investments into five different levels and risks
hidden in its projects will be effectively assessed and monitored.

• Operation risk control and management: Cinda HK continuously strengthens its internal control
system and operation risk management system. It delivers the training to its employees in relation
to the compliance and legal awareness, monitors Cinda HK’s operation to prevent any significant
regulatory incompliance and material operation incidents from occurring. As at the date of this
Offering Circular, there was no significant event in relation to operational risks in Cinda HK.

• Liquidity risk control and management: Cinda HK implements effective liquidity risk management
mechanism by monitoring the maturity profile of its liabilities and ensuring the timely repayment and
full recovery of its funds investment. Cinda HK implements liquidity risk control with the focus on
strengthening budget management, expanding financial channels and improving the effectiveness of
its capital operation.

Cinda HK has an entrepreneurial and visionary management team.

The Guarantor’s senior management are experienced and entrepreneurial, with strategic vision and
excellent leadership. The Guarantor’s senior management successfully led the Guarantor in completing the
transformation from a pure-play distressed asset disposal company to a professional asset manager and
comprehensive financial services provider. The Guarantor’s senior management have, on average, more
than 20 years of management experience related to the financial industry. In particular, the Guarantor’s
senior management have taken important positions in PBOC, state-owned commercial banks and AMCs.
The Guarantor’s senior management have an in-depth and unique understanding of the macroeconomic
environment and financial system of China. The Guarantor’s senior management have also served in Cinda
Group for more than 20 years and has in-depth understanding of the operation and management of the
Guarantor.

STRATEGIES

Cinda HK focuses on distressed assets related investment business under the principle of “Returning to the
Fundamentals of AMC’s Business (回歸主業)” which lays a solid foundation for Cinda HK’s other
business. Cinda HK is also dedicated to further leverage its expertise to solidify its function as the “Three
Platforms”, the overseas investment platform, overseas financing platform of China Cinda and overseas
asset management platform of Cinda Group.
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Expand and strengthen business development with a focus on distressed asset management

Cinda HK continuously strengthens and remains its focus on distressed assets related investment business
by increasing both the scale and weight of its distressed asset portfolio. While maintaining its
differentiated and distinct focus on the distressed assets related investments, Cinda HK aims to selectively
expand its business footprint to emerging industries and further optimise the business structure.
Simultaneously, Cinda HK, through sound liquidity management investment in the secondary market, will
continue to satisfy the liquidity needs of itself.

Cinda HK will actively adjust the structure of its balance sheet while expanding the overall balance sheet
steadily, strengthen its distressed assets related business, and maintain profitability to facilitate Cinda
HK’s stable and sustainable development. By improving its own investment capabilities and leveraging its
extensive experiences and expertise in this industry, Cinda HK will attract more third-party capital and
create a new development mode with high-quality assets and investment management capabilities. Cinda
HK aims to reduce the investment return volatility, strives to improve the liquidity position and allocates
more resources to distressed asset management related business. Cinda HK will focus more on the main
business operation while diversifying the strategic layout and exploring its full spectrum of business.

Highlight the function of the “Three Platforms”

The “Three Platforms” strategy is an essential part of Cinda HK’s overall business strategy. As an
indispensable overseas investment and financing platform of Cinda Group, the unique role of Cinda HK
will not be substituted by Cinda Group’s other subsidiaries. Leveraging its function as the “Three
Platforms”, Cinda HK will emphasise on the overseas asset allocation and cross-border capital operations.
Cinda HK aims to implement a customer-focused strategy to satisfy the increasing demands from its
customers for cross-border financing services and further improve its customer services capabilities,
thereby optimising its revenue composition and enhancing its brand recognition overseas. Cinda HK will
continue to drive sustainable growth through business innovation and client-focus services, cross-border
business development and synergies between its domestic and overseas businesses.

BUSINESS OF CINDA HK

Cinda HK provides the clients with comprehensive financial products and services through the integrated
financial services platform and differentiated asset management platform. Cinda HK’s main business
segments include banking business and non-banking business. For the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, Cinda HK’s revenue was approximately HK$20,450 million and HK$22,111 million, respectively.
The following table sets forth a breakdown of Cinda HK’s revenue for the periods indicated:

For the year ended 31 December

2018 2019

(HK$ million) % (HK$ million) %

Revenue
Banking business . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,126.44 78.86 17,359.15 78.5
Non-banking business . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,323.97 21.14 4,752.20 21.5

Total revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,450.41 100.00 22,111.35 100.00

Banking Business

Cinda HK conducts banking business in Hong Kong and mainland China through NCB and its subsidiaries
(including NCB China), including 37 branches/sub-branches in the PRC and 43 branches in Hong Kong
as at 30 June 2020. NCB, as a leading commercial bank in Hong Kong with extensive branch network and
exceptional financial performance, is the only foreign bank controlled by the state-owned AMCs and the
only banking subsidiary that has a nationwide branch network in China controlled by the state-owned
AMCs. Through NCB, Cinda HK offers a comprehensive range of personal and commercial banking
services to retail and corporate customers.
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Supported by China Cinda and leveraging its multiple financial licenses covering a full suite of regulated
financial activities, Cinda HK provides flexible, customised and diversified financing products for the
clients through the financial services platform comprised of NCB and financial leasing companies. Cinda
HK has established a comprehensive financial service eco-system capable of meeting the needs of the
clients throughout the business lifecycle and the entire value chain. For more information on the banking
business, please see “Description of the Guarantor — Key Subsidiaries — NCB.”

Non-banking Business

Non-banking business of Cinda HK includes investment business and financing business. Cinda HK’s
investment business can be categorised as distressed assets related investment business, liquidity
management investment and other investment.

The investment business serves as an important platform for providing clients with a comprehensive array
of diversified asset management, investment and financing services, which enhances the overall
profitability of the distressed asset management business and improves the business and income structures
of Cinda HK. The financing business of Cinda HK primarily focuses on supporting financing needs of
overseas projects of China Cinda by raising funds in offshore capital markets.

Investment Business

Cinda HK and its subsidiaries serve as Cinda Group’s overseas business platform. It collaborates with
China Cinda, Cinda Group’s domestic branches and other subsidiaries and primarily invests in distressed
assets related targets, secondary market for liquidity management and other areas. Cinda HK primarily
invests in Hong Kong and mainland China.

For the investments business, Cinda HK has adopted a stringent risk management system to keep its
investment risks within a reasonable level. Cinda HK closely monitors its investment periods to minimise
the portfolio maturity mismatch and maintain a good liquidity position. Based on market conditions, Cinda
HK actively adjusts its investment strategies and assets allocation between defensive and conservative
approaches so as to maximise the risk-adjusted return.

Distressed Assets Related Investment Business

Distressed assets related investment business is the core of Cinda HK’s investment business and an
important source of its income. Cinda HK has established a robust and efficient operational system,
cultivated a diligent and professional execution team and developed sound risk management capacities and
risk-based pricing capacities. Leveraging the outstanding professional techniques, extensive experience in
capital operation and large client base accumulated over the years, Cinda HK is able to achieve the
appreciation of distressed assets.

Cinda HK effectively alleviates the short-term financial burden of target assets through asset acquisition,
debt maturity restructuring, non-cash repayment etc., to revitalise distressed assets and realise investment
return. Under the principle of “Returning to the Fundamentals of AMC’s Business (回歸主業)”, Cinda HK
actively pursues thematic distressed asset related investment opportunities.

Cinda HK, as a bridge connecting the domestic overseas distressed assets markets, provides Cinda Group
with the approach of cross-border solutions and the opportunities in terms of introducing the overseas
distressed assets projects and cooperative partners.

Cinda HK’s asset management business refers to the business in which Cinda HK’s subsidiaries act as
managers in the business model of adopting special purpose vehicles, such as private funds (mainly in the
form of limited partnerships and limited liability companies), and raising external funds for co-investment,
in order to earn management fees income and carried interest.

Liquidity Management Investments

To satisfy its liquidity needs, Cinda HK adopts a prudent investment approach to explore the liquid
investment portfolios in Hong Kong’s capital market and mainly invests in secondary market equities or
fixed income products with high liquidity.
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Other Investments

Cinda HK invests in the selected industries in domestic and overseas markets, such as “New Economy”
related industries and real estate, through various types of instruments for financial consideration. Cinda
HK has been rationalising the size of other investments as it shifts its focus back to its core business of
distressed asset management.

Cinda HK’s principal investments in funds are primarily made as seed capital in funds managed by Cinda
Group, in order to enact third-party funds and to support the development of Cinda HK’s asset
management business. Cinda HK is responsible for the management of these funds. As a result, Cinda
HK’s own capital investments in these funds may enhance the alignment of interests between the fund
manager and the investors. Furthermore, the confidence of investors involved in such funds under Cinda
HK’s management may also be increased through the joint investment. These will in turn attract
third-party investors to make further investments. Cinda HK invests in debt securities directly or through
investment funds and it invests in wealth management products from banks and securities companies, as
well as trust products.

Cinda HK invests in the field of loans, bonds, mezzanine capital, IPO, additional equity issuance and
allotment and private equity in order to provide financial support to high-quality entrepreneurships in each
development phase. Cinda HK engages in equity investments related to distressed assets, although with
different focuses. Relying on listed companies and capital market, Cinda HK mainly engages in the
restructuring or liquidation projects of distressed assets or distressed entities that involve cross-border
transaction, and the investment and financing projects involving cross-border industrial restructuring and
M&A coordinated with Cinda Group. Cinda HK took part in strategic investment and pre-IPO investment
in large state-owned company projects. For more information on its investment management business,
please see “Description of the Guarantor — Key Subsidiaries — CCAM.”

Financing Business

Cinda HK, as Cinda Group’s sole offshore strategic financing platform, undertakes the mission of
connecting China Cinda to offshore capital markets. The financing needs of China Cinda’s overseas
projects can be satisfied through capital raising by Cinda HK in offshore capital markets. By leveraging
its extensive experience in offshore capital markets, Cinda HK continues to assist China Cinda to meet its
foreign currency allocation needs through overseas bonds issuance and syndicated loans.

Cinda HK, as Cinda Group’s key overseas bonds issuance platform, issues midterm/long-term debts, high
quality assets and structured fixed income products to further stabilize and optimise the company’s capital
structure.

Key Subsidiaries

NCB

NCB commenced its business in 1949, and it is one of the oldest local banks in Hong Kong, with highly
recognised brand awareness, extensive branch network, stable and loyal customer base, expertise in
providing cross-border services and robust financial conditions. As at 31 December 2019, NCB’s total
consolidated assets, advances to customers and deposits from customers were HK$489,588.85 million,
HK$263,103.23 million and HK$345,887.78 million, respectively. For the selective financial information
on NCB’s as at 30 June 2020, please refer to “Description of the Guarantor — Recent Developments”.

As at 30 June 2020, NCB offered a broad range of banking and related financial services in Hong Kong
through a network of 43 branches strategically located to provide coverage for the core districts on Hong
Kong Island, Kowloon and the New Territories. In terms of NCB’s operations in mainland China, NCB
had, in total, 37 branches/sub-branches in the PRC as at 31 December 2019. NCB’s PRC businesses are
operated through NCB (China), which is a PRC-incorporated bank with its headquarters in Shanghai. NCB
(China)’s business network covers the Pearl River Delta, the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and the
Bohai Economic Rim, with branches/sub-branches in major cities in the PRC such as Shanghai, Beijing,
Dalian, Qingdao, Wuxi, Hefei, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Chengdu, Shenzhen and Guangzhou.
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In 2007, NCB established NCB (China) as a PRC-incorporated bank. NCB’s branches and their businesses
in the PRC were consolidated under NCB (China) for further expansion of NCB’s PRC presence. NCB
(China) provides comprehensive RMB and foreign currency banking services to its customers. Services
include deposit-taking, loans and advances, debit cards, credit cards, wealth management services,
personal banking, investment services, agency services for life and general insurance, remittance and
settlement, RMB cross-border trade settlement services and domestic and international trade finance
facilities. As at the date of this Offering Circular, NCB (China) has obtained the relevant licences for
operating in the PRC its cross-border Renminbi business, foreign exchange settlement business, credit
card business, derivatives business, insurance business, offshore wealth management business, investment
fund business, interbank lending business, gold trading business and currency swap business.

NCB became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cinda HK and China Cinda in 2016, which allowed Cinda HK
and China Cinda to achieve additional financial and operational stability through its integration with a
well-established commercial bank in Hong Kong, strengthen its leading advantage of the distressed asset
management business and create an integrated asset management and financial services brand name. It was
also an important step in NCB’s development and holds huge significance for the future development of
NCB as a core banking platform within Cinda Group.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, NCB’s total capital adequacy ratio was approximately 18.70 per cent.
and 21.73 per cent., respectively, compared with the statutory minimum requirement of total capital
adequacy ratio of 8.0 per cent., and its loan to deposit ratio was approximately 74.08 per cent. and 76.07
per cent., respectively. For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the average value of NCB’s
quarterly liquidity coverage ratio was 147.72 per cent. and 154.97 per cent., respectively. For the selective
financial information on NCB’s as at 30 June 2020, please refer to “Description of the Guarantor —
Recent Developments”.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, NCB’s profit after tax was HK$3,977.50 million and
HK$3,951.30 million, respectively. For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, NCB achieved a
return on average assets of approximately 0.76 per cent. and 0.73 per cent., respectively, and a return on
average equity of approximately 7.74 per cent. and 7.30 per cent., respectively. For the selective financial
information on NCB’s as at 30 June 2020, please refer to “Description of the Guarantor — Recent
Developments”.

CCAM

CCAM is Cinda HK’s principal investment platform. CCAM and its subsidiaries provide financial support
to mainland China, Hong Kong and oversea companies primarily through equity investments, debt
investments and mezzanine financing. Over the years, Cinda HK, through CCAM, has successfully
participated in various investment opportunities over the world, with a future focus on “Belt and Road
Initiative” countries.

CCAM invests in debt securities by means of providing loans to enterprises and/or subscribing debt
securities in public offerings and private placements. It generates profits from interest rate spreads and
increased value of collaterals and pledged shares received in repayment of debt.

CCAM also engages in equity investment and generates income from dividend payments and disposal of
its equity holdings. It primarily invests in high yield dividend stocks and undervalued stocks to ensure
high profitability. CCAM focuses on companies with the following characteristics: (i) companies with
favourable industry outlook; (ii) companies at growing or maturity stage that generate steady income;
(iii) companies with clear ownership structures, good corporate governance and quality management
teams; (iv) projects satisfying a target IRR, except for those that may provide it with additional investment
opportunities or opportunities to provide financial services or those that satisfy Cinda Group’s asset
allocation needs; and (v) investments with clear and favourable exit options.

Leveraging Cinda Group’s extensive experience in distressed asset management, CCAM also engages in
counter-cyclical investments. The integration and synergistic collaboration of distressed asset management
business and investment management business are well demonstrated by CCAM’s real estate financing
business. In a typical distressed asset management business, the acquirer of distressed assets receives
collaterals, and in this case, real estates in satisfaction of the debt. CCAM invests in real properties with
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defects. To enhance the value of defected real estate collaterals, it adopts various investment and financing
solutions such as follow-on investments and property development so as to maximise the disposal value
of such properties. Furthermore, CCAM invests in well-managed real estate projects in the form of equity
investment, mortgage financing and mezzanine financing.

In addition to traditional sectors such as real estate, CCAM has increasingly focused on investments in the
following industries: (i) Internet Plus, (ii) new energy and (iii) high-end manufacturing and consumption,
such as pharmaceutical companies and medical products.

SYNERGY

Achieving synergy across business platforms is one of the strategic priorities of Cinda HK and has become
an integral part of the culture embodied in Cinda Group’s “One Cinda” principle. Cinda HK has continued
to optimise its diversified business platforms and has sought to continuously enhance its enterprise value
through synergistic collaborations with the Parent and its other subsidiaries. Leveraging Cinda Group’s
advantages over asset management and multi-licensed platform, Cinda HK has developed extensive and
diversified project lines which enable Cinda HK to provide customers with a wider range of services than
those from traditional financial institutions. Cinda HK synchronises the strategic positioning of China
Cinda and its subsidiaries with Cinda Group’s overall strategy, and it has built the success of business
collaboration into its evaluation mechanisms.

Cinda Group’s centralised brand management contributes to the establishment of Cinda HK’s position as
a professional financial service provider and offers strong brand support for the development of the
existing and future business.

COMPETITION

Cinda HK primarily operates in Hong Kong and the PRC where the financial services market is highly
competitive. Cinda HK mainly competes with non-banking financial institutions and alternative
investment companies in the relevant markets. Cinda HK competes with its competitors in terms of brand
recognition, marketing and sales capabilities, service quality, financial strength, product and services
portfolio, and pricing. Please refer to “Risk Factors — Risks relating to Cinda HK’s overall business —
Cinda HK faces intense competition and its businesses could be materially and adversely affected if it is
unable to compete effectively.”

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, Cinda HK had 99 employees, of which 41 employees held a bachelor’s degree,
47 employees held a master’s degree and three employees held a doctorate degree or above. Cinda HK is
committed to recruiting, training and retaining skilled and experienced employees. Cinda HK intends to
achieve this by offering competitive remuneration packages as well as by focusing on the training and
career development of its employees.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Cinda HK is committed to establishing a comprehensive internal risk management system that is integral
to its business operations. Regarding risk management, Cinda HK has established and further strengthened
a robust corporate governance structure and internal control policies since the acquisition of NCB. Cinda
HK has built a prudent and comprehensive risk management system covering all business segments of
Cinda HK. It also has put in place a series of standardised policies to meet the risk management needs and
business development requirements of China Cinda which have allowed China Cinda to effectively
monitor and control the risks. Since the implementation of the internal control and risk management
regime, Cinda HK has achieved effective risk management, ensuring that Cinda HK’s business and its
operational activities comply with the applicable rules, regulations and standards in all material respects.
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Investment Risk Management

As an integral part of its investment strategy, Cinda HK has put in place standardised procedures in making
investment decisions, which encompass project proposal application, project proposal approval, due
diligence, risk assessment, valuation, major projects pre-communication, acquisition program formulation
and project approval. Upon the application of the proposed project, the project team will conduct
comprehensive due diligence and valuation. When making the investment and business decision, the chief
risk management officer is entitled to veto certain proposals made by the business decision committee of
Cinda HK. As a part of its post-investment management, Cinda HK collects the post-investment data,
analyses the risk factors and builds the information sharing system.

The supervision from China Cinda strengthens Cinda HK’s mindset of prudent investment. In terms of the
daily risk management, Cinda HK has established the risk management team which is directly governed
by China Cinda’s risk management department. The chief risk management officer, who is directly
designated by China Cinda and obliged to report to both Cinda HK and China Cinda. With regards to the
project decision risk management, the important projects should be approved by the relevant departments
in China Cinda.

Risk Prevention

The operations complexity exposes Cinda HK to various risks, including market risks, credit risks,
operational risks, liquidity risks and other risks. Cinda HK has established risk management and internal
control systems and procedures to manage potential risks associated with the financial services and
products it offers, and Cinda HK has been dedicated to continuously improving these systems and
procedures.

As a cornerstone and a core focus of the management and business operation, Cinda HK has developed
a comprehensive risk management system covering all business segments. The three guiding principles of
Cinda HK’s risk management are: (i) full participation: to establish a culture of risk management and
corresponding mechanisms encouraging the participation of all employees, under which all staff, including
management personnel shall participate in and be responsible for risk management in accordance with
their respective duties; (ii) comprehensiveness: to establish a risk management system covering all
business lines, internal organisations and the regions where Cinda HK conducts business, as well as the
identification, analysis and management of all types of risks it faces; (iii) full coverage: to reinforce risk
control throughout the different stages of business activities, including due diligence before the
commencement of the transaction, initial project design, decision-making process, investment
management and exit mechanism.

Cinda HK’s risk management framework consists of three levels of supervision and three lines of
organisational defence. The three levels are: (i) the risk management department and relevant functional
departments of China Cinda; (ii) the board of directors and senior management of Cinda HK; and (iii) the
risk management department of Cinda HK. The three lines of defence are: (i) the business operation
departments of Cinda HK; (ii) the risk management department of Cinda HK, which is independent from
business operation departments; and (iii) the officer in charge of internal audit of Cinda HK and the audit
supervision of China Cinda.

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of Cinda HK’s financial assets or financial
liabilities would fluctuate because of changes in the economic environment. Cinda HK’s activities expose
it primarily to market risks of changes in interest rate, foreign currency and other prices.
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Credit risk management

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from the failure of a debtor or counterparty to meet
its payment obligations when due. Cinda HK is exposed to credit risks primarily associated with its loan
receivables, receivables from immediate holding company and other related parties, debt and convertible
debt securities and the total return swap contracts entered into by Cinda HK. Cinda HK manages credit
risks by several methods, including:

• reviewing the recoverable amount of each individual debt on a regular basis;

• establishing reasonable investment portfolio and preventing client concentration; and

• obtaining financial information of counterparties to assess their credibility.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that Cinda HK will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. Measures taken by Cinda HK to manage liquidity risk include monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents to finance Cinda HK’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. Cinda HK monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants. Cinda HK manages liquidity risks by several methods, including:

• classifying the loans and setting up monitoring procedures to recover overdue loans;

• accelerating the capital turnover;

• unifying the liquidity management mechanism;

• strengthening budget management; and

• expanding financing channels.

Operational risk management

Operational risk refers to the risk of losses caused by imperfect or problematic internal procedures, staff
and IT systems, and external events, including legal risks. Cinda HK continuously improved its
information technology risks prevention mechanism, formulated information technology systems and
carried out risk analysis to further improve the refinement level of technology risk control and the
prevention and control level of network security risk. Cinda HK manages operational risks by several
methods, including:

• establishing an internal regulatory system covering the entire business process;

• formulating regulatory procedures for supervising employees’ performance;

• establishing clear accountability mechanisms for penalising the incompliance;

• providing compliance support for business operations and management activities;

• building up the information security and IT service management system;

• making data backup for information processing system; and

• formulating an internal reporting system for incompliance.
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LEGAL AND REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS

The Guarantor may be involved in legal and/or regulatory proceedings or disputes in the ordinary course
of business. As at 31 December 2019, the Guarantor was not aware of any legal or arbitration proceedings
against or affecting it, any of its subsidiaries or any of their assets, or any pending or threatened
proceedings, that, in the opinion of its management, would have a material adverse effect on its business,
financial condition, results of operations or prospects.
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REGULATION IN THE PRC AND HONG KONG

This section summarises the principal laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong which are relevant
to the business and operations of Cinda HK. As this is a summary, it does not contain a detailed analysis
of the PRC laws and regulations which are relevant to the business and operations of Cinda HK.

PRC REGULATIONS

The PRC Legal System

The PRC legal system is based on the Constitution of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC
Constitution”) and is made up of written laws, regulations, directives and local laws and laws resulting
from international treaties entered into by the PRC government. In general, court judgments do not
constitute binding precedents. However, they are used for the purposes of judicial reference and guidance.

The National People’s Congress of the PRC (the “NPC”) and the Standing Committee of the NPC are
empowered by the PRC Constitution to exercise the legislative power of the State. The NPC has the power
to amend the PRC Constitution, enact and amend basic laws governing State agencies and civil, criminal
and other matters. The Standing Committee of the NPC is empowered to enact and amend all laws except
for the laws that are required to be enacted and amended by the NPC.

The State Council is the highest organ of the State administration and has the power to enact
administrative rules and regulations. The ministries and commissions under the State Council are also
vested with the power to issue orders, directives and regulations within the jurisdiction of their respective
departments. All administrative rules, regulations, directives and orders promulgated by the State Council
and its ministries and commissions must be consistent with the PRC Constitution and the national laws
enacted by the NPC and the Standing Committee of the NPC. In the event that a conflict arises, the
Standing Committee of the NPC has the power to annul administrative rules, regulations, directives and
orders. The People’s Congresses or their standing committees of the comparatively larger cities may, in
light of the specific local conditions and actual needs, formulate local regulations, provided that they do
not contradict the PRC Constitution, the national laws, the administrative regulations and the local
regulations of their respective provinces or autonomous regions, and they shall submit the regulations to
the standing committees of the people’s congresses of the provinces or autonomous regions for approval
before implementation.

At the regional level, the provincial and municipal congresses and their respective standing committees
may enact local rules and regulations and the people’s governments may promulgate administrative rules
and directives applicable to their own administrative areas. These local rules and regulations must be
consistent with the PRC Constitution, the national laws and the administrative rules and regulations
promulgated by the State Council.

The State Council, provincial and municipal governments may also enact or issue rules, regulations or
directives in new areas of the law for experimental purposes or in order to enforce the law. After gaining
sufficient experience with experimental measures, the State Council may submit legislative proposals to
be considered by the NPC or the Standing Committee of the NPC for enactment at the national level.

The PRC Constitution vests the power to interpret laws in the Standing Committee of the NPC. The
Supreme People’s Court, in addition to its power to give general interpretation on the application of laws
in judicial proceedings, also has the power to interpret specific cases. The State Council and its ministries
and commissions are also vested with the power to interpret rules and regulations that they have
promulgated. At the regional level, the power to interpret regional rules and regulations is vested in the
regional legislative and administrative bodies which promulgated such laws.
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The PRC Judicial System

Under the PRC Constitution and the Law of Organisation of the People’s Courts, the judicial system is
made up of the Supreme People’s Court, the local courts, military courts and other special courts. The local
courts are comprised of the basic courts, the intermediate courts and the higher courts. The basic courts
are organised into civil, criminal, economic, administrative and other divisions. The intermediate courts
are organised into divisions similar to those of the basic courts, and are further organised into other special
divisions, such as the intellectual property division. The higher level courts supervise the judicial work of
the basic and intermediate courts. The people’s procuratorates also have the right to exercise legal
supervision over the civil proceedings of courts of the same level and lower levels. The Supreme People’s
Court is the highest judicial body in the PRC. It supervises the administration of justice by all other courts.

The courts employ a two-tier appellate system. A party may appeal against a judgment or order of a local
court to the court at the next higher level. Second judgments or orders given at the next higher level and
the first judgments or orders given by the Supreme People’s Court are final. If, however, the Supreme
People’s Court or a court at a higher level finds an error in a judgment which has been given by any court
at a lower level, or the president of a court finds an error in a judgment which has been given in the court
over which he presides, the case may then be retried in accordance with the judicial supervision
procedures.

The Civil Procedure Law of the PRC, which was adopted on 9 April 1991 and respectively amended on
28 October 2007, 31 August 2012 and 27 June 2017, sets forth the criteria for instituting a civil action,
the jurisdiction of the courts, the procedures to be followed for conducting a civil action and the
procedures for enforcement of a civil judgment or order. All parties to a civil action conducted within the
PRC must comply with the Civil Procedure Law. Generally, a civil case is initially heard by a local court
of the municipality or province in which the defendant resides. The parties to a contract may, by express
agreement, select a jurisdiction where civil actions may be brought, provided that the jurisdiction is either
the plaintiff’s or the defendant’s place of residence, the place of execution or implementation of the
contract or the place of the object of the contract. However, such selection cannot violate the stipulations
of grade jurisdiction and exclusive jurisdiction in any case.

A foreign individual or enterprise generally has the same litigation rights and obligations as a citizen or
legal person of the PRC. If a foreign country’s judicial system limits the litigation rights of PRC citizens
and enterprises, the PRC courts may apply the same limitations to the citizens and enterprises of that
foreign country within the PRC. If any party to a civil action refuses to comply with a judgment or order
made by a court or an award granted by an arbitration panel in the PRC, the aggrieved party may apply
to the competent court to request for enforcement of the judgment, order or award. The time limit imposed
on the right to apply for such enforcement is two years. If a person fails to satisfy a judgment made by
the court within the stipulated time, the court will, upon application by either party, mandatorily enforce
the judgment.

HONG KONG REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

Introduction

The SFO is the principal legislation regulating the securities and futures industry in Hong Kong and it is
administered by the SFC which is the statutory regulatory body that governs the securities and futures
markets and non-bank retail leveraged foreign exchange market in Hong Kong.

The banking sector in Hong Kong is regulated by and subject to the provisions of the Banking Ordinance
and to the powers and functions ascribed by the Banking Ordinance to the Monetary Authority. The
Banking Ordinance provides that only authorised institutions (that is, banks which have been granted a
banking licence (“licence”) by the Monetary Authority may carry on banking business (as defined in the
Banking Ordinance) in Hong Kong and contains controls and restrictions on such banks (“authorised
institutions”).
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Types of Regulated Activities

The SFO provides a single licensing regime under which a person needs only one licence to carry on the
different types of regulated activities as specified in Schedule 5 of the SFO. There are ten types of
regulated activities, namely:

Type 1: dealing in securities;

Type 2: dealing in futures contracts;

Type 3: leveraged foreign exchange trading;

Type 4: advising on securities;

Type 5: advising on futures contracts;

Type 6: advising on corporate finance;

Type 7: providing automated trading services;

Type 8: securities margin financing;

Type 9: asset management; and

Type 10: providing credit rating services.

Supervision of Authorised institutions in Hong Kong

The provisions of the Banking Ordinance are implemented by the Monetary Authority, the principal
function of which is to promote the general stability and effectiveness of the banking system, especially
in the area of supervising compliance with the provisions of the Banking Ordinance. The Monetary
Authority supervises authorised institutions through, inter alia, a regular information gathering process,
the main features of which are as follows:

(1) each authorised institution must submit a monthly return to the Monetary Authority setting out the
assets and liabilities of its operations in Hong Kong and a further comprehensive quarterly return
relating to its principal place of business in Hong Kong and all local branches, although the
Monetary Authority has the right to allow returns to be made at less frequent intervals;

(2) the Monetary Authority may order an authorised institution, any of its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiaries of its holding company to provide such further information (either
specifically or periodically) as it may reasonably require for the exercise of its functions under the
Banking Ordinance or as it may consider necessary to be submitted in the interests of the depositors
or potential depositors of the authorised institution concerned. Such information shall be submitted
within such period and in such manner as the Monetary Authority may require. The Monetary
Authority may in certain circumstances also require such information or any return submitted to it
to be accompanied by a certificate of the authorised institution’s auditors (approved by the Monetary
Authority for the purpose of preparing the report) confirming compliance with Banking Ordinance
and certain matters;

(3) authorised institutions may be required to provide information to the Monetary Authority regarding
companies in which they have an aggregate 20 per cent. or more direct or indirect shareholding or
with which they have common directors or managers (as defined in the Banking Ordinance), the
same controller, a common name or a concert party arrangement to promote the authorised
institution’s business;

(4) in addition, authorised institutions are obliged to report to the Monetary Authority immediately of
their likelihood of becoming unable to meet their obligations or of the commencement of material
civil proceedings applicable only to authorised institutions incorporated in Hong Kong;
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(5) the Monetary Authority may direct an authorised institution to appoint an auditor to report to the
Monetary Authority on the state of affairs and/or profit and loss of the authorised institution or the
adequacy of the systems of control of the authorised institution or other matters as the Monetary
Authority may reasonably require;

(6) the Monetary Authority may, at any time, with or without prior notice, examine the books, accounts
and transactions of any authorised institution, and in the case of an authorised institution
incorporated in Hong Kong, any local branch, overseas branch, overseas representative office or
subsidiary, whether local or overseas, of such institution; such inspections are carried out by the
Monetary Authority on a regular basis; and

(7) authorised institutions are required to give written notice to the Monetary Authority immediately of
any proposal to remove an auditor before the expiration of his term of office or replace an auditor
at the expiration of his term of office.

Exercise of Powers over Authorised institution

The Monetary Authority may, after consultation with the Financial Secretary, exercise certain powers over
the conduct of authorised institutions in any of the following circumstances:

(1) when an authorised institution informs the Monetary Authority that it is likely to become unable to
meet its obligations, that it is insolvent, or that it is about to suspend payment;

(2) when an authorised institution becomes unable to meet its obligations or suspends payment;

(3) if after an examination or investigation, the Monetary Authority is of the opinion that an authorised
institution:

(i) is carrying on its business in a manner detrimental to the interests of its depositors or potential
depositors or of its creditors or of holders or potential holders of multi-purpose cards issued by
it or the issue of which is facilitated by it;

(ii) is insolvent or is likely to become unable to meet its obligations or is about to suspend
payment;

(iii) has contravened or failed to comply with any of the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance; or

(iv) has contravened or failed to comply with any condition attached to its licence or certain
conditions in the Banking Ordinance; and

(4) where the Financial Secretary advises the Monetary Authority that he considers it in the public
interest to do so.

In any of the circumstances described above, the Monetary Authority, after consultation with the Financial
Secretary, may exercise any of the following powers:

(1) to require the authorised institution, by notice in writing served on it, forthwith to take any action
or to do any act or thing whatsoever in relation to its business and property as the Monetary Authority
may consider necessary;

(2) to direct the authorised institution to seek advice on the management of its affairs, business and
property from an adviser approved by the Monetary Authority;

(3) to assume control of and carry on the business of the authorised institution, or direct some other
person to assume control of and carry on the business of the authorised institution; or

(4) to report to the Chief Executive in Council in certain circumstances (in which case the Chief
Executive in Council may exercise a number of powers including directing the Financial Secretary
to present a petition to the Court of First Instance for the winding-up of the authorised institution).
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Revocation and Suspension of Banking Licence

The Monetary Authority also has powers to recommend the revocation or suspension of a licence. Both
powers are exercisable after consultation with the Financial Secretary and with a right of appeal of the
authorised institution concerned except in the event of temporary suspension in urgent cases. The grounds
for suspension or revocation include the following:

(1) the authorised institution no longer fulfils the criteria for authorisation and the requirements for
registration;

(2) the authorised institution is likely to be unable to meet its obligations or to suspend payment or
proposes to make, or has made, any arrangement with its creditors or is insolvent;

(3) the authorised institution has failed to provide material information required under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance or has provided false information;

(4) the authorised institution has breached a condition attached to its licence;

(5) a person has become or continues to be a controller or chief executive or director of the authorised
institution after the Monetary Authority has made an objection;

(6) the interests of the depositors require that the licence be revoked; or

(7) the authorised institution is engaging in practices likely to prejudice Hong Kong as an international
financial centre or in practices (specified in the Monetary Authority guidelines) which should not be
engaged in.

Revocation or suspension of a licence means that the authorised institution can no longer conduct banking
business (for the specified period in the case of a suspension).

Anti-money Laundering and Counter-terrorist Financing

Licensed corporations are required to comply with the applicable anti-money laundering and
counterterrorist financing laws and regulation in Hong Kong as well as the Guideline.

The Guideline provides practical guidance to assist licensed corporations and their senior management in
designing and implementing their own anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing policies,
procedures and controls in order to meet the relevant legal and regulatory requirements in Hong Kong.
Under the Guideline, licensed corporations should, among other things:

• assess the risks of any new products and services before they are introduced and ensure that
appropriate additional measures and controls are implemented to mitigate and manage the associated
money laundering and terrorist financing risks;

• identify the client and verify the client’s identity using reliable, independent source documents, data
or information, and take steps from time to time to ensure that the client information is up-to-date
and relevant;

• conduct on-going monitoring of activities of the clients to ensure that they are consistent with the
nature of business, the risk profile and source of funds, as well as identify transactions that are
complex, large or unusual, or patterns of transactions that have no apparent economic or lawful
purpose;

• maintain a database of names and particulars of terrorist suspects and designated parties which
consolidates the various lists that have been made known to it, as well as comprehensive on-going
screening of the client database; and

• conduct on-going monitoring for identification of suspicious transactions and ensure compliance
with their legal obligations of reporting funds or property known or suspected to be proceeds of
crime or terrorist property to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit, a unit jointly run by the Hong
Kong Police Force and the Hong Kong Customs & Excise Department to monitor and investigate
suspected money laundering.
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Financial Institutions Resolution Regime

On 7 July 2017, the Financial Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance (Cap. 628) of Hong Kong (the “FIRO”)
came into operation. The FIRO provides for, among other things, the establishment of a resolution regime
for authorised institutions and other financial institutions in Hong Kong. The resolution regime seeks to
provide the relevant resolution authorities with administrative powers to bring about timely and orderly
resolution in order to stabilise and secure continuity for a failing authorised institution in Hong Kong. In
particular, and subject to certain safeguards, the relevant resolution authority is provided with powers to
affect contractual and property rights as well as payments (including in respect of any priority of payment)
that creditors would receive in resolution. These may include, but are not limited to, powers to write off
or convert all or a part of the principal amount of, or distributions on, regulatory capital securities of
relevant financial institutions in Hong Kong. Certain details relating to FIRO will be set out through
secondary legislation and supporting rules.

On 17 January 2018, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority announced a public consultation on a set of
proposed rules to set out minimum loss-absorbing capacity (“LAC”) requirements for authorised
institutions under FIRO. The LAC requirements have been proposed in order to ensure that the resolution
regime can be used effectively and that authorised institutions have sufficient loss-absorbing capacity. On
14 December 2018, the Financial Institutions (Resolution) (Loss-absorbing Capacity Requirements —
Banking Sector) Rules (Cap. 628B) came into operation as subsidiary registration under the FIRO.

OECD’s Common Reporting Standard

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (the “OECD”) has developed a draft
common reporting standard (“CRS”) and model competent authority agreement to enable the multilateral,
automatic exchange of financial account information. The CRS does not include a potential withholding
element. Under the CRS financial institutions will be required to identify and report the tax residence
status of customers in 101 countries that have endorsed the plans, of which 54 (including EU Member
States) have committed to implement the CRS with first information exchanges expected in 2017. The
remaining 47 countries have committed to implement the CRS on a slower timetable with first information
exchanges for these countries expected in 2018.

The adoption of CRS in the PRC and Hong Kong will be effective from 1 January 2017. The PRC and
Hong Kong financial institutions may begin collecting tax residency information from their account
holders as early as 1 January 2017 and may report information on reportable account holders in 2018. The
increased due diligence of customer information and the reporting of information to the tax authorities will
increase operational and compliance costs for banks, including the Group. At this time, it is not possible
to quantify the full costs of complying with the new legislation as some aspects are still to be determined.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following is the text of the terms and conditions that, subject to completion and amendment and as
supplemented or varied in accordance with the provisions of the relevant Pricing Supplement, shall be
applicable to the Notes in definitive form (if any) issued in exchange for the Global Note(s) or Global
Certificate representing each Series. Either (i) the full text of these terms and conditions together with the
relevant provisions of the Pricing Supplement or (ii) these terms and conditions as so completed, amended,
supplemented or varied (and subject to simplification by the deletion of non-applicable provisions), shall
be endorsed on such Bearer Notes or on the Certificates relating to such Registered Notes. All capitalised
terms that are not defined in these Conditions will have the meanings given to them in the relevant Pricing
Supplement. Those definitions will be endorsed on the definitive Notes or Certificates, as the case may be.
References in the Conditions to Notes are to the Notes of one Series only, not to all Notes that may be
issued under the Programme.

This Note is issued by China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited (the Issuer) pursuant to the Trust Deed
(as defined below). The due payment of all sums expressed to be payable by the Issuer under the Notes
and the Trust Deed is guaranteed by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (the Guarantor) as
specified hereon.

The Notes are constituted by a trust deed (as amended, restated, replaced or supplemented as at the date
of issue of the Notes (the Issue Date), the Trust Deed) dated 7 January 2021 between the Issuer, the
Guarantor and China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (中國建設銀行(亞洲)股份有限公司)
(the Trustee, which expression shall, where the context so permits, include all persons for the time being
the trustee or trustees under the Trust Deed) as trustee for the Noteholders (as defined below). These terms
and conditions (the Conditions) include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the
Trust Deed, which includes the form of the Bearer Notes, Certificates, Receipts, Coupons and Talons
referred to below. An agency agreement (as amended, restated, replaced or supplemented as at the Issue
Date, the Agency Agreement) dated 7 January 2021 has been entered into in relation to the Notes between
the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee, China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (中國建設銀
行(亞洲)股份有限公司) as initial issuing and paying agent, China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited (中國建設銀行(亞洲)股份有限公司) as CMU lodging and paying agent for Notes to be held in the
Central Moneymarkets Unit Service operated by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the CMU) and the
other agents named in it. The issuing and paying agent, the CMU lodging and paying agent, the other
paying agents, the registrar, the transfer agents and the calculation agent(s) for the time being (if any) are
referred to below respectively as the Issuing and Paying Agent (which expression shall include any
additional or successor issuing and paying agent), the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent (which
expression shall include any additional or successor CMU lodging and paying agent), the Paying Agents
(which expression shall include the Issuing and Paying Agent and the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent and
any additional or successor thereof), the Registrar (which expression shall include any additional or
successor registrar), the Transfer Agents (which expression shall include the Transfer Agent and any
additional or successor thereof) and the Calculation Agent(s) (which expression shall include any
additional or successor calculation agent) (such Issuing and Paying Agent, CMU Lodging and Paying
Agent, Paying Agents, Registrars, Transfer Agents and Calculation Agent(s) being together referred to as
the Agents). For the purposes of these Conditions, all references to the Issuing and Paying Agent shall,
with respect to a Series of Notes to be held in the CMU, be deemed to be a reference to the CMU Lodging
and Paying Agent and all such references shall be construed accordingly.

Copies of the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement are available for inspection upon prior written request
and proof of holding to the satisfaction to the Trustee by Noteholders during usual business hours at the
principal office of the Trustee (presently at 20/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong) and at the specified office of the Issuing and Paying Agent. All capitalised terms that are not defined
in these Conditions have the same meanings given to them in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

The Noteholders, the holders of the interest coupons (the Coupons) relating to interest bearing Notes in
bearer form and, where applicable in the case of such Notes, talons for further Coupons (the Talons) (the
Coupon holders) and the holders of the receipts for the payment of instalments of principal (the Receipts)
relating to Notes in bearer form of which the principal is payable in instalments are entitled to the benefit
of, are bound by, and (i) are deemed to have notice of, all the provisions of the Trust Deed, and (ii) are
deemed to have notice of those provisions applicable to them of the Agency Agreement. The statements
in the Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Trust Deed and
the Agency Agreement.
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As used in these Conditions, Tranche means Notes which are identical in all respects, and Series means
a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Notes which are (i) expressed to be
consolidated and form a single series with such Tranche of Notes and (ii) identical in all respects
(including as to listing and admission to trading) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest
Commencement Dates and/or issue prices.

1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE

The Notes are issued in bearer form (Bearer Notes) or in registered form (Registered Notes) in each
case in the Specified Denomination(s) shown hereon. References to hereon is to the applicable
Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Note.

This Note is a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note, an Index Linked Interest
Note, an Instalment Note, a Dual Currency Note or a Partly Paid Note, a combination of any of the
foregoing or any other kind of Note, depending upon the Interest and Redemption/Payment Basis
shown hereon.

Bearer Notes are serially numbered and are issued with Coupons (and, where appropriate, a Talon)
attached, save in the case of Zero Coupon Notes in which case references to interest (other than in
relation to interest due after the Maturity Date), Coupons and Talons in these Conditions are not
applicable. Instalment Notes are issued with one or more Receipts attached.

Registered Notes are represented by registered certificates (Certificates) and, save as provided in
Condition 2(c), each Certificate shall represent the entire holding of Registered Notes by the same
holder.

Title to the Bearer Notes and the Receipts, Coupons and Talons shall pass by delivery. Title to the
Registered Notes shall pass by registration in the register that the Issuer shall procure to be kept by
the Registrar in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement (the Register). Except as
ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by law, the holder (as defined below) of
any Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon shall be deemed to be and may be treated as its absolute owner
for all purposes whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or an
interest in it, any writing on it (or on the Certificate representing it) or its theft or loss (or that of
the related Certificate) and no person shall be liable for so treating the holder.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear Bank
SA/NV (Euroclear) and/or Clearstream Banking S.A. (Clearstream) and/or a sub-custodian for the
CMU, each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream or the CMU) who is for the time being
shown in the records of Euroclear or Clearstream or the CMU as the holder of a particular nominal
amount of such Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or
Clearstream or the CMU as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any
person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be
treated by the Issuer, the Paying Agents, the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes) and the
Trustee as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect
to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the
bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Note or the registered holder of the relevant Registered Global
Note shall be treated by the Issuer, any Paying Agent, the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes)
and the Trustee as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject
to the terms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions Noteholder and holder of Notes and
related expressions shall be construed accordingly. Notwithstanding the above, if a Note (whether in
global or definitive form) is held through the CMU, any payment that is made in respect of such Note
shall be made at the direction of the bearer or the registered holder to the person(s) for whose
account(s) interests in such Note are credited as being held through the CMU in accordance with the
CMU rules at the relevant time as notified to the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent by the CMU in
a relevant CMU Instrument Position Report or any other relevant notification by the CMU (which
notification, in either case, shall be conclusive evidence of the records of the CMU as to the identity
of any accountholder and the principal amount of any Note credited to its account, save in the case
of manifest error) and such payments shall discharge the obligation of the Issuer in respect of that
payment under such Note.
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In determining whether a particular person is entitled to a particular nominal amount of Notes as
aforesaid, the Trustee and the Agents may rely on such evidence and/or information and/or
certification as it shall, in its absolute discretion, think fit and, if it does so rely, such evidence and/or
information and/or certification shall, in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding
on all concerned.

In these Conditions, (a) Noteholder means the bearer of any Bearer Note and the Receipts relating
to it or the person in whose name a Registered Note is registered, as the case may be; (b) holder (in
relation to a Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon) means the bearer of any Bearer Note, Receipt, Coupon
or Talon or the person in whose name a Registered Note is registered, as the case may be; (c)
Couponholder means the holder of any Coupon and (d) capitalised terms have the meanings given
to them hereon, the absence of any such meaning indicating that such term is not applicable to the
Notes.

2. NO EXCHANGE OF NOTES AND TRANSFERS OF REGISTERED NOTES

(a) No Exchange of Notes

Registered Notes may not be exchanged for Bearer Notes. Bearer Notes of one Specified
Denomination may not be exchanged for Bearer Notes of another Specified Denomination.
Bearer Notes may not be exchanged for Registered Notes.

(b) Transfer of Registered Notes

One or more Registered Notes may be transferred upon the surrender (at the specified office
of the Registrar or any Transfer Agent) of the Certificate representing such Registered Notes
to be transferred, together with the form of transfer endorsed on such Certificate (or another
form of transfer substantially in the same form and containing the same representations and
certifications (if any), unless otherwise agreed by the Issuer), duly completed and executed and
any other evidence as the Registrar or the relevant Transfer Agent may require to prove the title
of the transferor and the authority of the individuals that have executed the form of transfer.
In the case of a transfer of part only of a holding of Registered Notes represented by one
Certificate, a new Certificate shall be issued to the transferee in respect of the part transferred
and a further new Certificate in respect of the balance of the holding not transferred shall be
issued to the transferor. In the case of a transfer of Registered Notes to a person who is already
a holder of Registered Notes, a new Certificate representing the enlarged holding shall only be
issued against surrender of the Certificate representing the existing holding. All transfers of
Notes and entries on the Register will be made in accordance with the detailed regulations
concerning transfers of Notes (the “Regulations”), the initial form of which scheduled to the
Agency Agreement. The regulations may be changed (i) by the Issuer, with the prior written
approval of the Registrar and the Trustee, or (ii) by the Registrar, with the prior written
approval of the Trustee. A copy of the current regulations will be made available for inspection
(free of charge to the Holder and at the Issuer’s expense) by the Registrar to any Noteholder
at the specified office of the Registrar at all reasonable times during usual business hours upon
prior written request and satisfactory proof of holding.

(c) Exercise of Options or Partial Redemption in Respect of Registered Notes

In the case of an exercise of an Issuer’s or Noteholders’ option in respect of, or a partial
redemption of, a holding of Registered Notes represented by a single Certificate, a new
Certificate shall be issued to the holder to reflect the exercise of such option or in respect of
the balance of the holding not redeemed. In the case of a partial exercise of an option resulting
in Registered Notes of the same holding having different terms, separate Certificates shall be
issued in respect of those Notes of that holding that have the same terms. New Certificates shall
only be issued against surrender of the existing Certificates to the Registrar or any Transfer
Agent. In the case of a transfer of Registered Notes to a person who is already a holder of
Registered Notes, a new Certificate representing the enlarged holding shall only be issued
against surrender of the Certificate representing the existing holding.
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(d) Delivery of New Certificates

Each new Certificate to be issued pursuant to Conditions 2(b) or 2(c) shall be available for
delivery within five business days of receipt of a duly completed form of transfer or Put
Exercise Notice (as defined in Condition 6(f)) or the Exercise Notice (as defined in Condition
6(e)) and surrender of the Certificate for exchange. Delivery of the new Certificate(s) shall be
made at the specified office of the Transfer Agent or of the Registrar, as the case may be, to
whom delivery or surrender of such form of transfer, Put Exercise Notice, Exercise Notice or
Certificate shall have been made or, at the option of the holder making such delivery or
surrender as aforesaid and as specified in the relevant form of transfer, Put Exercise Notice, the
Exercise Notice or otherwise in writing, be mailed by uninsured post at the risk of the holder
entitled to the new Certificate to such address as may be so specified, unless such holder
requests otherwise and pays in advance to the relevant Transfer Agent or the Registrar, as the
case may be, the costs of such other method of delivery and/or such insurance as it may specify.
In this Condition 2(d), business day means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday or public
holiday, on which commercial banks are open for business in the place of the specified office
of the relevant Transfer Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be. No Agent will be liable for
the loss of any Certificate in the course of delivery.

(e) Transfers Free of Charge

Transfers of Notes and Certificates on registration, transfer, exercise of an option or partial
redemption shall be effected without charge by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Registrar or the
Transfer Agents, but upon (i) payment by the relevant Noteholders of any tax or other
governmental charges of whatsoever nature that may be levied or imposed in relation to them
(or the giving of such indemnity and/or security and/or prefunding as the Registrar or the
relevant Transfer Agent may require); (ii) the Registrar or the relevant Transfer Agent being
satisfied in its absolute discretion with the documents of title or identity of the person making
the application; and (iii) the relevant Agent being satisfied that the Regulations (as defined in
Condition 2(b) concerning transfer of Notes have been complied with.

(f) Closed Periods

No Noteholder may require the transfer of a Registered Note to be registered (i) during the
period of 15 days ending on (and including) the due date for redemption of, or payment of any
Instalment Amount in respect of, that Note, (ii) after the exercise of the put option in Condition
6(e), (iii) after the exercise of the put option in Condition 6(f), (iv) during the period of 15 days
prior to any date on which Notes are redeemed by the Issuer at its option, or (v) during the
period of seven Business Days ending on (and including) any Record Date.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the
rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear and Clearstream and the CMU, as the
case may be. References to Euroclear and/or Clearstream and/or the CMU shall, whenever the
context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing
system specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement or as may otherwise be approved by the
Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent and the Trustee.

3. GUARANTEE AND STATUS

(a) Guarantee

The Guarantor has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due and punctual payment
of all sums expressed to be payable by the Issuer under and in respect of the Trust Deed and
the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons. Its obligations in that respect (the Guarantee) are
contained in the Trust Deed. The Guarantee constitutes direct, unconditional, unsubordinated,
and (subject to Condition 4(a)) unsecured obligations of the Guarantor, and shall at all times
rank at least pari passu with all other present and future unconditional, unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations of the Guarantor, save for such obligations as may be preferred by
provisions of law that are both mandatory and of general application.
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(b) Status of Notes

The Notes and the Receipts and the Coupons relating to them constitute direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated, and (subject to Condition 4(a)) unsecured obligations of the Issuer, and shall
at all times rank pari passu and without any preference among themselves. The payment
obligations of the Issuer under such Notes and the Receipts and the Coupons relating to them
shall, save for such exceptions as may be provided by applicable law and subject to Condition
4(a), at all times rank at least equally with all other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer.

4. NEGATIVE PLEDGE AND OTHER COVENANTS

(a) Negative Pledge

The Guarantor and the Issuer will not, and will not permit any Principal Subsidiary to, create,
incur, assume or permit to exist any Lien upon any of its property or assets, now owned or
hereafter acquired, to secure any Relevant Indebtedness of the Guarantor or the Issuer or any
Principal Subsidiary thereof (or any guarantee or indemnity in respect thereof) issued or
entered into outside of the PRC without, in any such case, making effective provision whereby
the Notes and the Guarantee will be secured either at least equally and ratably with such
Relevant Indebtedness or by such other Lien as shall have been approved by an Extraordinary
Resolution (as defined in the Trust Deed), for so long as such Indebtedness will be so secured.

The foregoing restriction will not apply to:

(i) any Lien which is in existence on or prior to the date of the Trust Deed;

(ii) any Lien arising or already arisen automatically by operation of law, or for taxes,
assessments or governmental charges which is promptly discharged or disputed in good
faith by appropriate proceedings;

(iii) any Lien existing on any property or asset prior to the acquisition thereof by the Issuer,
the Guarantor, any Subsidiary of the Guarantor or arising after such acquisition pursuant
to contractual commitments entered into prior to and not in contemplation of such
acquisition;

(iv) any right of set-off or combination of accounts arising in favour of any bank or financial
institution as a result of the day-to-day operation of banking arrangements;

(v) any Lien either over any asset acquired after the date of the Trust Deed which is in
existence at the time of such acquisition or in respect of the obligations of any Person
which becomes the Guarantor’s Subsidiary after the date of the Trust Deed which is in
existence on the date on which it becomes the Guarantor’s Subsidiary, and in both cases,
any replacement thereof created in connection with the refinancing (together with
interest, fees and other charges attributable thereto) of the Indebtedness originally
secured (but the principal amount secured by any such Lien may not be increased);
provided that any such Lien was not incurred in anticipation of such acquisition or of such
company becoming the Guarantor’s Subsidiary;

(vi) any Lien created on any property or asset acquired, leased or developed (including
improved, constructed, altered or repaired) after the date of the Trust Deed; provided,
however, that (a)(i) any such Lien shall be confined to the property or asset acquired,
leased or developed (including improved, constructed, altered or repaired) and; (ii) to the
extent that such Lien shall secure any other property or asset, the principal amount of the
debt encumbered by such Lien shall not exceed the cost of the applicable acquisition,
development or improvement and (b) any such Lien shall be created concurrently with or
within two years following the acquisition, lease or development (including construction,
improvement, repair or alteration) of such property or asset;
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(vii) any Lien created (including any renewals or extension thereof) on any property or asset
with a book value not exceeding 20 per cent. of the Total Assets in the aggregate pursuant
to any securitisation, repackaging or like arrangement in accordance with normal market
practice; provided, however, that the amount of the Relevant Indebtedness secured by
such Lien shall be confined to the value of such property or asset secured;

(viii) any Lien pursuant to any order of attachment, execution, enforcement, distraint or similar
legal process arising in connection with court proceedings; provided, however, that such
process is effectively stayed, discharged or otherwise set aside within 30 days;

(ix) any Lien created or outstanding in favour of the Guarantor, the Issuer or a wholly-owned
Subsidiary thereof;

(x) any easement, right-of-way, zoning and similar restriction and other similar charge or
encumbrance not interfering with the ordinary course of business of the Guarantor or any
of its Subsidiaries;

(xi) any Lien in favour of any government or any subdivision thereof, securing the obligations
of the Guarantor or any of its Subsidiaries under any contract or payment owed to such
governmental entity pursuant to applicable laws, rules, regulations or statutes;

(xii) any Lien on any loan extended by a Finance Subsidiary to the Guarantor, the Issuer or any
of their Subsidiaries;

(xiii) any Lien securing reimbursement obligations with respect to letters of credit and similar
instruments;

(xiv) any renewal or extension of any of the Liens described in the foregoing clauses which is
limited to the original property or asset covered thereby; or

(xv) any Lien in respect of Indebtedness of the Guarantor or the Issuer with respect to which
the Guarantor or the Issuer has paid money or deposited money or securities with a fiscal
agent, trustee or depository to pay or discharge in full the obligations of the Guarantor
and the Issuer in respect thereof (other than the obligation that such money or securities
so paid or deposited, and the proceeds therefrom, be sufficient to pay or discharge such
obligations in full).

(b) Limitation on Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets

Neither the Guarantor nor the Issuer may consolidate with or merge into any other Person in
a transaction in which the Guarantor or the Issuer, as the case may be, is not the surviving
entity, or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any
Person unless:

(i) any Person formed by such consolidation or into which the Guarantor or the Issuer, as the
case may be, is merged or to whom the Guarantor or the Issuer, as the case may be, has
conveyed, transferred or leased its properties and assets substantially as an entirety is a
corporation validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organisation and such
Person expressly assumes by a supplemental trust deed to the Trust Deed all the
obligations of the Guarantor or the Issuer under the Trust Deed, the Notes or the
Guarantee, as the case may be;

(ii) immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no Event of Default, and no event
which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have
occurred and be continuing;
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(iii) any such Person not organised and validly existing under the laws of (or any such Person
resident for tax purposes in a jurisdiction other than) Hong Kong or any successor
jurisdiction (in the case of the Guarantor), or the British Virgin Islands or any successor
jurisdiction (in the case of the Issuer) shall expressly agree in a supplemental trust deed
that its jurisdiction of organisation or tax residence (or any political subdivision, territory
or possession thereof, any taxing authority therein or any area subject to its jurisdiction)
will be added to the list of Relevant Taxing Jurisdictions; and

if, as a result of the transaction, any property or asset of the Guarantor or any of its Subsidiaries
would become subject to a Lien that would not be permitted under Condition 4(a), the
Guarantor, the Issuer or such successor Person takes such steps as shall be necessary to secure
the Notes at least equally and ratably with the Indebtedness secured by such Lien or by such
other Lien as shall have been approved by an Extraordinary Resolution.

(c) Preservation of Corporate Existence

For so long as any Notes remain outstanding, the Issuer and the Guarantor shall do or cause
to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect their corporate
existence and that of each of their Subsidiaries and the corporate rights (charter and statutory)
and corporate licenses of the Issuer and each such Subsidiary, except where a failure to do so,
singly or in the aggregate, would not have a material adverse effect upon the financial
condition, prospects, results of operations or business of the Issuer, the Guarantor and their
Subsidiaries (if any) taken as a whole.

(d) Limitation on the Issuer’s Activities

For so long as the Notes are outstanding:

(i) the Issuer will conduct no business or any other activities other than (A) the offering, sale
or issuance of any debt securities (including the Notes and any further securities issued
in accordance with Condition 15), (B) entry into any other financial indebtedness, (C) the
lending of the proceeds thereof to the Guarantor or a company controlled by the
Guarantor, directly or indirectly, and located in a jurisdiction outside the PRC, (D) the
maintenance of the Issuer’s corporate existence, and (E) any other activities in connection
therewith;

(ii) the Issuer will not issue any Capital Stock other than the issuance of its ordinary shares
to the Guarantor;

(iii) neither the Guarantor nor the Issuer will commence or take any action to cause a
winding-up or liquidation of the Issuer; and

(iv) the Guarantor will maintain 100 per cent. equity ownership of the Issuer.

(e) Provision of Reports

So long as any of the Notes remain outstanding, the Issuer and the Guarantor will deliver to
the Trustee the following documents in the English language:

(i) a Compliance Certificate of each of the Issuer and the Guarantor (on which the Trustee
may rely as to such compliance) and copies of the Guarantor’s financial statements (on
a consolidated basis) in respect of such financial year (including a statement of income,
balance sheet and cash flow statement and any notes to the financial statements) audited
by a member firm of independent accountants as soon as they are available, but in any
event within 180 calendar days after the end of the fiscal year of the Guarantor (and, in
the case of a Compliance Certificate requested by the Trustee, within 15 business days of
any written request by the Trustee); and
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(ii) a Compliance Certificate of each of the Issuer and the Guarantor (on which the Trustee
may rely as to such compliance) and copies of the Guarantor’s unaudited financial
statements (on a consolidated basis) in respect of such semi-annual period (including a
statement of income, balance sheet and cash flow statement but without any notes to the
unaudited financial statements) prepared on a basis consistent with the audited financial
statements of the Guarantor, but in any event within 135 calendar days after the end of
the first semi-annual fiscal period of the Guarantor;

provided however, that if at any time the Capital Stock of the Guarantor is listed for trading
on a recognised stock exchange, the Guarantor will file with the Trustee, as soon as they are
available but in any event not more than 10 calendar days after any financial or other reports
of the Guarantor are filed with any recognised exchange on which the Guarantor’s Capital
Stock is at any time listed for trading, true and correct copies of any financial or other report
(in the English language) filed with such exchange in lieu of the reports identified in clauses
(i) and (ii) above.

The Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee as soon as possible, and in any event within 10 days after
the Issuer becomes aware of the occurrence thereof, written notice of the occurrence of any
event or condition which constitutes, or which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would
become, an Event of Default, setting forth the details thereof and the action the Issuer is taking
or propose to take with respect thereto (if any).

In these Conditions:

Capital Stock means any and all shares, interests (including joint venture interests),
participations or other equivalents (however designated) of capital stock of a corporation or
any and all equivalent ownership interests in a Person (other than a corporation).

Compliance Certificate means a certificate, substantially scheduled to the Trust Deed, of each
of the Issuer and the Guarantor signed by any one of their respective authorised signatories
certifying that, having made all reasonable enquiries, to the best of the knowledge, information
and belief of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, as at a date (the Certification
Date) not more than five days before the date of the certificate:

(A) no Event of Default (as defined in Condition 10) has occurred since the Certification Date
of the last such certificate or (if none) the date of the Trust Deed and, if such an event
had occurred, giving details of it; and

(B) each of the Issuer and the Guarantor, as the case may be, has complied with all its
obligations under the Trust Deed and the Notes;

Finance Subsidiary means any Person who is wholly-owned by the Guarantor and who does
not engage in any business activity except (1) the incurrence of Indebtedness to Persons other
than the Guarantor, the Issuer or any of their respective Subsidiaries, (2) the ownership of
shares of another Finance Subsidiary, (3) activity related to the establishment or maintenance
of that Person’s corporate existence, and (4) any other activity in connection with or incidental
to activities referred to in clauses (1), (2) or (3) (but for the avoidance of doubt does not include
the Issuer).

Indebtedness of any Person means, at any date, without duplication, (i) any outstanding
indebtedness for or in respect of money borrowed (including bonds, debentures, notes or other
similar instruments, whether or not listed) that is evidenced by any agreement or instrument,
excluding trade payables, (ii) all non-contingent obligations of such Person to reimburse any
bank or other Person in respect of amounts paid under a letter of credit or similar instrument,
and (iii) all Indebtedness of others guaranteed by such Person.

Lien means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, encumbrance, hypothecation, title retention,
security interest or security arrangement of any kind.

Person means any state-owned enterprise, individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture,
association, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated organisation, limited liability company,
government or any agency or political subdivision thereof or any other entity.
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PRC means the People’s Republic of China (for the purposes hereof not including Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region or Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC or Taiwan).

Relevant Indebtedness of any Person means (i) any present or future indebtedness that is in
the form of, or represented or evidenced by any bonds, notes, debentures, debenture stocks,
loan stock certificates or other securities, which are, or intended to be, quoted, listed or dealt
in or traded on any stock exchange or over-the-counter market or other securities market and
has a final maturity of one year or more from its date of incurrence or issuance; and (ii) all
Relevant Indebtedness of others guaranteed by such Person.

a Subsidiary means, as applied to any Person, any corporation or other entity of which a
majority of the outstanding Voting Shares is, at the time, directly or indirectly, owned by such
Person.

Total Assets means the consolidated total assets of the Guarantor and its subsidiaries calculated
by reference to the then latest financial statements of the Guarantor (which can be internal
financial statements).

Voting Shares means, with respect to any Person, the Capital Stock having the general voting
power under ordinary circumstances to vote on the election of the members of the board of
directors or other governing body of such Person (irrespective of whether or not at the time
stock of any other class or classes shall have or might have voting power by reason of the
happening of any contingency).

5. INTEREST AND OTHER CALCULATIONS

(a) Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount from and including the
Interest Commencement Date at the rate per annum (expressed as a percentage) equal to the
Rate of Interest, such interest being payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Date. The
amount of interest payable shall be determined in accordance with Condition 5(h).

(b) Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes

(i) Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note and Index Linked Interest Note bears interest on its outstanding
nominal amount from and including the Interest Commencement Date at the rate per
annum (expressed as a percentage) equal to the Rate of Interest, such interest being
payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Date. The amount of interest payable shall be
determined in accordance with Condition 5(h). Such Interest Payment Date(s) is/are
either shown hereon as Specified Interest Payment Dates or, if no Specified Interest
Payment Date(s) is/are shown hereon, Interest Payment Date shall mean each date which
falls the number of months or other period shown hereon as the Interest Period after the
preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after
the Interest Commencement Date.

(ii) Business Day Convention

If any date referred to in these Conditions that is specified to be subject to adjustment in
accordance with a Business Day Convention would otherwise fall on a day that is not a
Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified is (A) the Floating Rate
Business Day Convention, such date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Business
Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (x) such
date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (y) each
subsequent such date shall be the last Business Day of the month in which such date
would have fallen had it not been subject to adjustment, (B) the Following Business Day
Convention, such date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day, (C) the
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Modified Following Business Day Convention, such date shall be postponed to the next
day that is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in
which event such date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business
Day or (D) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such date shall be brought forward
to the immediately preceding Business Day.

(iii) Rate of Interest for Floating Rate Notes

The Rate of Interest in respect of Floating Rate Notes for each Interest Accrual Period
shall be determined in the manner specified hereon and the provisions below relating to
either ISDA Determination or Screen Rate Determination shall apply, depending upon
which is specified hereon.

(A) ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where ISDA Determination is specified hereon as the manner in which the Rate of
Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Accrual Period shall be
determined by the Calculation Agent as a rate equal to the relevant ISDA Rate. For the
purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), ISDA Rate for an Interest Accrual Period means a
rate equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Calculation Agent under
a Swap Transaction under the terms of an agreement incorporating the ISDA Definitions
and under which:

(x) the Floating Rate Option is as specified hereon;

(y) the Designated Maturity is a period specified hereon; and

(z) the relevant Reset Date is the first day of that Interest Accrual Period unless
otherwise specified hereon.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), Floating Rate, Calculation Agent, Floating
Rate Option, Designated Maturity, Reset Date and Swap Transaction have the
meanings given to those terms in the ISDA Definitions.

(B) Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

(x) Where Screen Rate Determination is specified hereon as the manner in which the
Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Accrual
Period will, subject as provided below, be either:

I. the offered quotation; or

II. the arithmetic mean of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate which appears or
appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at either 11.00 a.m.
(London time in the case of LIBOR or Brussels time in the case of EURIBOR or
Hong Kong time in the case of HIBOR) or 11.15 a.m. (Hong Kong time in the case
of CNH HIBOR) (or if, at or around that time it is notified that the fixing will be
published at 2.30 p.m. (Hong Kong time), then as of 2.30 p.m. (Hong Kong time)
on the Interest Determination Date in question as determined by the Calculation
Agent). If five or more of such offered quotations are available on the Relevant
Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one
only of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest
quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the Calculation
Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean of such offered
quotations.
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If the Reference Rate from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes is
specified hereon as being other than LIBOR or EURIBOR or HIBOR or CNH
HIBOR, the Rate of Interest in respect of such Notes will be determined as provided
hereon.

(y) if the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if sub-paragraph (x)(1) above
applies and no such offered quotation appears on the Relevant Screen Page or
if sub-paragraph (x)(2) above applies and fewer than three such offered
quotations appear on the Relevant Screen Page in each case as at the time
specified above, subject as provided below, the Calculation Agent shall
request, if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, the principal London office of each
of the Reference Banks or, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR, the principal
Euro-zone office of each of the Reference Banks or, if the Reference Rate is
HIBOR or CNH HIBOR, the principal Hong Kong office of each of the
Reference Banks, to provide in writing the Calculation Agent with its offered
quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate
if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, at approximately 11.00 a.m. (London time),
or if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR, at approximately 11.00 a.m. (Brussels
time) or, if the Reference Rate is HIBOR or CNH HIBOR, at approximately
11.00 a.m. (Hong Kong time) or, if the Reference Rate if CNH HIBOR, at
approximately 11.15 a.m. (Hong Kong time), on the Interest Determination
Date in question. If two or more of the Reference Banks provide the
Calculation Agent with such offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for such
Interest Accrual Period shall be the arithmetic mean of such offered quotations
as determined by the Calculation Agent; and

(z) if paragraph (y) above applies and the Calculation Agent determines that fewer
than two Reference Banks are providing offered quotations, subject as
provided below, the Rate of Interest shall be the arithmetic mean of the rates
per annum (expressed as a percentage) as provided in writing to the
Calculation Agent by the Reference Banks or any two or more of them, at
which such banks were offered, if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, at
approximately 11.00 a.m. (London time) or, if the Reference Rate is
EURIBOR, at approximately 11.00 a.m. (Brussels time) or, if the Reference
Rate is HIBOR, at approximately 11.00 a.m. (Hong Kong time) or, if the
Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR, at approximately 11.15 a.m. (Hong Kong
time), on the relevant Interest Determination Date, deposits in the Specified
Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used for the
Reference Rate by leading banks in, if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, the
London inter-bank market or, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR, the
Euro-zone inter-bank market, or, if the Reference Rate is HIBOR or CNH
HIBOR, the Hong Kong inter-bank market, as the case may be, or, if fewer
than two of the Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with such
offered rates, the offered rate for deposits in the Specified Currency for a
period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, or the
arithmetic mean of the offered rates for deposits in the Specified Currency for
a period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, at
which, if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, at approximately 11.00 a.m. (London
time) or, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR, at approximately 11.00 a.m.
(Brussels time), or, if the Reference Rate is HIBOR, at approximately 11.00
a.m. (Hong Kong time) or, if the Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR, at
approximately 11.15 a.m. (Hong Kong time), on the relevant Interest
Determination Date, any one or more banks (which bank or banks is or are in
the opinion of the Issuer suitable for such purpose) informs the Calculation
Agent (in writing) it is quoting to leading banks in, if the Reference Rate is
LIBOR, the London inter-bank market as at 11.00 a.m. (London time) or, if the
Reference Rate is EURIBOR, the Euro-zone inter-bank market as at 11.00
a.m. (Brussels time), or, if the Reference Rate is HIBOR, the Hong Kong
inter-bank market as at 11.00 a.m. (Hong Kong time) or, if the Reference Rate
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is CNH HIBOR, the Hong Kong inter-bank market as at 11.15 a.m. (Hong
Kong time), as the case may be, provided that, if the Rate of Interest cannot
be determined in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this paragraph,
the Rate of Interest shall be determined as at the last preceding Interest
Determination Date (though substituting, where a different Margin or
Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest is to be applied to the relevant Interest
Accrual Period from that which applied to the last preceding Interest Accrual
Period, the Margin or Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest relating to the
relevant Interest Accrual Period, in place of the Margin or Maximum or
Minimum Rate of Interest relating to that last preceding Interest Accrual
Period).

(C) Benchmark Event

If the Issuer or its designee determines that a Benchmark Event has occurred in relation
to an Original Reference Rate when any Rate of Interest (or any component part thereof)
as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement remains to be determined by reference to
such Original Reference Rate, then the Issuer shall use its reasonable endeavours to
appoint an Independent Adviser, as soon as reasonably practicable, to determine a
Successor Rate, failing which an Alternative Rate (in accordance with the Conditions and,
in either case, an Adjustment Spread if any, and any Benchmark Amendments in
accordance with the Conditions). In making such determination, an Independent Adviser
appointed pursuant to this Condition 5 shall act in good faith as an expert in accordance
with the Conditions. In the absence of bad faith or fraud, the Independent Adviser shall
have no liability whatsoever to the Issuer, the Trustee, the Paying Agent, the Noteholders
or the Couponholders for any determination made by it, pursuant to this Condition
5(b)(iii)(C).

If (1) the Issuer is unable to appoint an Independent Adviser; or (2) the Independent
Adviser appointed by it fails to determine a Successor Rate or, failing which, an
Alternative Rate in accordance with this Condition 5(b)(iii)(C) prior to the relevant
Interest Determination Date, the Rate of Interest applicable to the next succeeding
Interest Period shall equal to the Rate of Interest last determined in relation to the Notes
in respect of the immediately preceding Interest Period. If there has not been a first
Interest Payment Date, the Rate of Interest shall be the initial Rate of Interest. Where a
different Margin or Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest is to be applied to the relevant
Interest Period from that which applied to the last preceding Interest Period, the Margin
or Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest relating to the relevant Interest Period shall be
substituted in place of the Margin or Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest relating to
that last preceding Interest Period. For the avoidance of doubt, this paragraph shall apply
to the relevant next succeeding Interest Period only and any subsequent Interest Periods
are subject to the subsequent operation of, and to adjustment as provided in, the first
paragraph of this Condition 5(b)(iii)(C).

(i) Successor Rate or Alternative Rate: If the Independent Adviser determines that, (1)
there is a Successor Rate, then such Successor Rate and the applicable Adjustment
Spread subsequently be used in place of the Original Reference Rate to determine
the Rate of Interest (or the relevant component part thereof) for all future payments
of interest on the Notes (subject to the operation of this Condition 5(b)); or (2) there
is no Successor Rate but that there is an Alternative Rate, then such Alternative Rate
and the applicable Adjustment Spread shall subsequently be used in place of the
Original Reference Rate to determine the Rate of Interest (or the relevant
component part thereof) for all future payments of interest on the Notes (subject to
the operation of this Condition 5(b)).

(ii) Adjustment Spread: The Adjustment Spread (or the formula or methodology for
determining the Adjustment Spread), shall be applied to the Successor Rate or the
Alternative Rate (as the case may be). If the Independent Adviser is unable to
determine the quantum of, or a formula or methodology for determining, such
Adjustment Spread, then the Successor Rate or Alternative Rate (as applicable) will
apply without an Adjustment Spread.

92



(iii) Benchmark Amendments: If any Successor Rate or Alternative Rate and, in either
case, the applicable Adjustment Spread is determined in accordance with this
Condition 5(b)(iii)(C) and the Independent Adviser determines (1) that amendments
to these Conditions and/or the Trust Deed are necessary to ensure the proper
operation of such Successor Rate or Alternative Rate and/or (in either case) the
applicable Adjustment Spread (such amendments, the Benchmark Amendments)
and (2) the terms of the Benchmark Amendments, then the Issuer shall, subject to
giving notice thereof in accordance with Condition 5(b)(iii)(C)(iii), without any
requirement for the consent or approval of the Noteholders, vary these Conditions
and/or the Trust Deed to give effect to such Benchmark Amendments with effect
from the date specified in such notice.

At the request of the Issuer, but subject to receipt by the Trustee of an Officer’s
Certificate of the Issuer pursuant to Condition 5(b)(iii)(C)(iii), the Trustee shall (at
the expense of the Issuer), without any requirement for the consent or approval of
the Noteholders, be obliged to concur with the Issuer in effecting any Benchmark
Amendments (including, inter alia, by the execution of a deed supplemental to or
amending the Trust Deed), provided that the Trustee shall not be obliged so to
concur if in the opinion of the Trustee doing so would impose more onerous
obligations upon it or expose it to any additional duties, responsibilities or liabilities
or reduce or amend the protective provisions afforded to the Trustee in these
Conditions or the Trust Deed (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any
supplemental trust deed) in any way.

In connection with any such variation in accordance with this Condition, the Issuer
shall comply with the rules of any stock exchange on which the Notes are for the
time being listed or admitted to trading.

(iv) Notices, etc.: Any Successor Rate, Alternative Rate, Adjustment Spread and the
specific terms of any Benchmark Amendments determined under this Condition will
be notified promptly by the Issuer to the Trustee, the Calculation Agent, the Paying
Agent and, in accordance with Condition 16 (Notices), the Noteholders. Such notice
shall be irrevocable and shall specify the effective date of the Benchmark
Amendments, if any.

No later than notifying the Trustee, the Calculation Agent and the Paying Agent of
the same, the Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee an Officer’s Certificate:

(1) confirming (A) that a Benchmark Event has occurred, (B) the Successor Rate
or, as the case may be, the Alternative Rate and, (C) the applicable Adjustment
Spread and (D) the specific terms of any Benchmark Amendments (if any), in
each case as determined in accordance with the provisions of this Condition;
and

(2) certifying that the Benchmark Amendments (if any) are necessary to ensure
the proper operation of such Successor Rate or Alternative Rate and (in either
case) the applicable Adjustment Spread.

Each of the Trustee, the Calculation Agent and the Paying Agent shall be entitled
to conclusively rely on such certificate (without liability to any person) as sufficient
evidence thereof. The Successor Rate or Alternative Rate and the Adjustment
Spread and the Benchmark Amendments (if any) specified in such certificate will
(in the absence of manifest error or bad faith in the determination of the Successor
Rate or Alternative Rate and the Adjustment Spread (if any) and the Benchmark
Amendments (if any) and without prejudice to the Trustee’s or the Calculation
Agent’s or the Paying Agent’s ability to conclusively rely on such Officer’s
Certificate as aforesaid) be binding on the Issuer, the Trustee, the Calculation
Agent, the Paying Agent and the Noteholders.
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(v) Survival of Original Reference Rate: Without prejudice to the obligations of the
Issuer under Conditions 5(b)(iii)(C)(i), (ii) and (iii), the Original Reference Rate
and the fallback provisions provided for in Condition 5(b)(iii)(B) specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement will continue to apply unless and until a Benchmark
Event has occurred.

In these Conditions:

Adjustment Spread means either a spread (which may be positive, negative or zero), or
the formula or methodology for calculating a spread, in either case, which the
Independent Adviser, determines is required to be applied to the Successor Rate or the
Alternative Rate (as the case may be) to reduce or eliminate, to the extent reasonably
practicable in the circumstances, any economic prejudice or benefit (as the case may be)
to Noteholders as a result of the replacement of the Original Reference Rate with the
Successor Rate or the Alternative Rate (as the case may be) and is the spread, formula or
methodology which:

(i) in the case of a Successor Rate, is formally recommended in relation to the
replacement of the Original Reference Rate with the Successor Rate by any
Relevant Nominating Body; or (if no such recommendation has been made, or in the
case of an Alternative Rate);

(ii) the Independent Adviser determines, is customarily applied to the relevant
Successor Rate or the Alternative Rate (as the case may be) in international debt
capital markets transactions to produce an industry-accepted replacement rate for
the Original Reference Rate; or (if Independent Adviser determines that no such
spread is customarily applied);

(iii) the Independent Adviser determines is recognised or acknowledged as being the
industry standard for over-the-counter derivative transactions which reference the
Original Reference Rate, where such rate has been replaced by the Successor Rate
or the Alternative Rate (as the case may be);

(iv) the Independent Adviser, determines in good faith to be appropriate;

Alternative Rate means an alternative benchmark or screen rate which the Independent
Adviser, determines in accordance with Condition 5(b)(iii)(C)(i) is customary in market
usage in the international debt capital markets for the purposes of determining rates of
interest (or the relevant component part thereof) in the same Specified Currency as the
Notes.

Benchmark Event means:

(i) the Original Reference Rate ceasing to be published for a period of at least five
Business Days or ceasing to exist; or

(ii) a public statement by the administrator of the Original Reference Rate that it has
ceased or that it will cease publishing the Original Reference Rate permanently or
indefinitely (in circumstances where no successor administrator has been appointed
that will continue publication of the Original Reference Rate); or

(iii) a public statement by the supervisor of the administrator of the Original Reference
Rate, that the Original Reference Rate has been or will be permanently or
indefinitely discontinued; or

(iv) a public statement by the supervisor of the administrator of the Original Reference
Rate as a consequence of which the Original Reference Rate will be prohibited from
being used either generally, or in respect of the Notes; or

(v) a public statement by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of the
Benchmark announcing that the Benchmark is no longer representative;
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(vi) it has become unlawful for the Paying Agent, the Calculation Agent, the Issuer or
other party to calculate any payments due to be made to any Noteholder using the
Original Reference Rate;

provided that in the case of sub-paragraphs (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v), the Benchmark Event
shall occur on the date of the cessation of publication of the Original Reference Rate, the
discontinuation of the Original Reference Rate, or the prohibition of use of the Original
Reference Rate, as the case may be, and not the date of the relevant public statement.

Independent Adviser means an independent financial institution of international repute
or an independent financial adviser with appropriate expertise appointed by the Issuer at
its own expense;

Officer means the General Manager, the Chief Financial Officer, any Deputy General
Manager or any director of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be;

Officer’s Certificate means a certificate signed by an Officer;

Original Reference Rate means the originally-specified benchmark or screen rate (as
applicable) used to determine the Rate of Interest (or any component part thereof) on the
Notes;

Rate of Interest means the rate or rates of interest payable from time to time in respect
of the Notes specified in the Pricing Supplement or calculated or determined in
accordance with the Conditions and/or the provisions of the Pricing Supplement.

Relevant Nominating Body means, in respect of a benchmark or screen rate (as
applicable):

(i) the central bank for the currency to which the benchmark or screen rate (as
applicable) relates, or any central bank or other supervisory authority which is
responsible for supervising the administrator of the benchmark or screen rate (as
applicable); or

(ii) any working group or committee sponsored by, chaired or co-chaired by or
constituted at the request of (a) the central bank for the currency to which the
benchmark or screen rate (as applicable) relates, (b) any central bank or other
supervisory authority which is responsible for supervising the administrator of the
benchmark or screen rate (as applicable), (c) a group of the aforementioned central
banks or other supervisory authorities, or (d) the Financial Stability Board or any
part thereof; and

Successor Rate means a successor to or replacement of the Original Reference Rate
which is formally recommended by any Relevant Nominating Body.

(iv) Rate of Interest for Index Linked Interest Notes

The Rate of Interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes for each Interest Accrual
Period shall be determined in the manner specified hereon and interest will accrue by
reference to an Index or Formula as specified hereon.

(c) Zero Coupon Notes

Where a Note the Interest Basis of which is specified to be Zero Coupon is repayable prior to
the Maturity Date and is not paid when due, the amount due and payable prior to the Maturity
Date shall be the Early Redemption Amount of such Note. As from the Maturity Date, the Rate
of Interest for any overdue principal of such a Note shall be a rate per annum (expressed as a
percentage) equal to the Amortisation Yield (as described in Condition 6(b)(i)).
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(d) Dual Currency Notes

In the case of Dual Currency Notes, if the rate or amount of interest is to be determined by
reference to a Rate of Exchange or a method of calculating Rate of Exchange, the rate or
amount of interest payable shall be determined in the manner specified hereon.

(e) Partly Paid Notes

In the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes),
interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwise
as specified hereon.

(f) Accrual of Interest

Interest shall cease to accrue on each Note on the due date for redemption unless, upon due
presentation, payment is improperly withheld or refused, in which event interest shall continue
to accrue (both before and after judgment) at the Default Rate specified in the Pricing
Supplement, or, if none, Rate of Interest in the manner provided in this Condition 5 to the
Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8).

(g) Margin, Maximum/Minimum Rates of Interest, Instalment Amounts and Redemption
Amounts and Rounding

(i) If any Margin is specified hereon (either (x) generally, or (y) in relation to one or more
Interest Accrual Periods), an adjustment shall be made to all Rates of Interest, in the case
of (x), or the Rates of Interest for the specified Interest Accrual Periods, in the case of
(y), calculated in accordance with Condition 5(b) above by adding (if a positive number)
or subtracting the absolute value (if a negative number) of such Margin, subject always
to Condition 5(g)(ii) below.

(ii) If any Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest, Instalment Amount or Redemption
Amount is specified in the Pricing Supplement, then any Rate of Interest, Instalment
Amount or Redemption Amount shall be subject to such maximum or minimum, as the
case may be.

(iii) For the purposes of any calculations required pursuant to these Conditions (unless
otherwise specified), (x) all percentages resulting from such calculations shall be
rounded, if necessary, to the nearest one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point (with
halves being rounded up), (y) all figures shall be rounded to seven significant figures
(with halves being rounded up) and (z) all currency amounts that fall due and payable
shall be rounded to the nearest unit of such currency (with half a unit being rounded up),
save in the case of yen, which shall be rounded down to the nearest yen. For these
purposes, unit means the lowest amount of such currency that is available as legal tender
in the country or countries of such currency.

(h) Maximum or Minimum Rate of Interest

If any Maximum Rate of Interest or Minimum Rate of Interest is specified in the relevant
Pricing Supplement, then the Rate of Interest shall in no event be greater than the maximum
or be less than the minimum so specified. If the relevant Pricing Supplement does not specify
any Minimum Rate of Interest and the Rate of Interest as determined by the Calculation Agent
according to this Condition 5(b) is a negative value, the Rate of Interest shall be zero percent
per annum.
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(i) Calculations

The amount of interest payable per Calculation Amount in respect of any Note for any Interest
Accrual Period shall be equal to the product of the Rate of Interest, the Calculation Amount
specified hereon, and the Day Count Fraction for such Interest Accrual Period, unless an
Interest Amount (or a formula for its calculation) is applicable to such Interest Accrual Period,
in which case the amount of interest payable per Calculation Amount in respect of such Note
for such Interest Accrual Period shall equal such Interest Amount (or be calculated in
accordance with such formula). Where any Interest Period comprises two or more Interest
Accrual Periods, the amount of interest payable per Calculation Amount in respect of such
Interest Period shall be the sum of the Interest Amounts payable in respect of each of those
Interest Accrual Periods. In respect of any other period for which interest is required to be
calculated, the provisions above shall apply save that the Day Count Fraction shall be for the
period for which interest is required to be calculated.

So long as the Notes are represented by a Global Certificate which is held on behalf of
Euroclear, Clearstream, CMU or any other clearing system, the Interests in respect of the Notes
shall be calculated based on the aggregate principal amount of the Notes represented by the
Global Certificate.

(j) Determination and Publication of Rates of Interest, Interest Amounts, Final Redemption
Amounts, Early Redemption Amounts, Optional Redemption Amounts and Instalment
Amounts

The Calculation Agent shall, as soon as practicable on each Interest Determination Date, or
such other time on such date as the Calculation Agent may be required to calculate any rate or
amount, (subject to being provided the required quotations in writing by the Reference Banks)
make any determination or calculation, determine such rate and calculate the Interest Amounts
for the relevant Interest Accrual Period, calculate the Final Redemption Amount, Early
Redemption Amount, Optional Redemption Amount or Instalment Amount, obtain such
quotation or make such determination or calculation, as the case may be, and cause the Rate
of Interest and the Interest Amounts for each Interest Accrual Period and the relevant Interest
Payment Date and, if required to be calculated, the Final Redemption Amount, Early
Redemption Amount, Optional Redemption Amount or any Instalment Amount to be notified
(in writing) to the Trustee, the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Paying Agent, the Noteholders, any
other Calculation Agent appointed in respect of the Notes that is to make a further calculation
upon receipt of such information and, if the Notes are listed on a stock exchange and the rules
of such exchange or other relevant authority so require, such exchange or other relevant
authority as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than (i) the
commencement of the relevant Interest Period, if determined prior to such time, in the case of
notification to such exchange of a Rate of Interest and Interest Amount, or (ii) in all other cases,
the fourth Business Day after such determination. Where any Interest Payment Date or Interest
Period Date is subject to adjustment pursuant to Condition 5(b)(ii), the Interest Amounts and
the Interest Payment Date so published may subsequently be amended (without notice in the
event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. If the Notes become due and payable
under Condition 10, the accrued interest and the Rate of Interest payable in respect of the Notes
shall nevertheless continue to be calculated as previously in accordance with this Condition but
no publication of the Rate of Interest or the Interest Amount so calculated need be made. The
determination of any rate or amount, the obtaining of each quotation and the making of each
determination or calculation by the Calculation Agent(s) shall (in the absence of manifest error)
be final and binding upon all parties. None of the Trustee or the Paying Agent shall be
responsible for calculating or verifying the Early Redemption Amount.
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(k) Definitions

In these Conditions, unless the context otherwise requires, the following defined terms shall
have the meanings set out below:

Business Day means a day which is both:

(i) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are
open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency
deposits) in the location of the relevant paying agent; and

(ii) in the case of:

(i) a currency other than euro and Renminbi, a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday)
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the
principal financial centre for such currency; and/or

(ii) euro, a day on which the TARGET System is operating (a TARGET Business Day);
and/or

(iii) Renminbi, a day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday) on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets are generally open for business
and settlement of Renminbi payments in Hong Kong; and/or

(iv) a currency and/or one or more Business Centres specified hereon a day (other than
a Saturday or a Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets
settle payments in such currency in the Business Centre(s) or, if no currency is
indicated, generally in each of the Business Centres;

Day Count Fraction means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest on any Note
for any period of time (from and including the first day of such period to but excluding the last)
(whether or not constituting an Interest Period or an Interest Accrual Period, the Calculation
Period):

(i) if Actual/Actual or Actual/Actual — ISDA is specified hereon, the actual number of
days in the Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Calculation
Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the
Calculation Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days
in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

(ii) if Actual/365 (Fixed) is specified hereon, the actual number of days in the Calculation
Period divided by 365;

(iii) if Actual/365 (Sterling) is specified hereon, the actual number of days in the Calculation
Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date falling in a leap year,
366;

(iv) if Actual/360 is specified hereon, the actual number of days in the Calculation Period
divided by 360;

(v) if 30/360, 360/360 or Bond Basis is specified hereon, the number of days in the
Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

Day Count Fraction =
[360 x (Y2 – Y1)] + [30 x (M2 – M1)] + (D2 – D1)

360

where:

Y1 is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation Period
falls;
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Y2 is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day included in the Calculation Period falls;

M1 is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

M2 is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

D1 is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period, unless such
number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

D2 is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31 and D1 is greater than
29, in which case D2 will be 30;

(vi) if 30E/360 or Eurobond Basis is specified hereon, the number of days in the Calculation
Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

Day Count Fraction =
[360 x (Y2 – Y1) + [30 x (M2 – M1)] + (D2 – D1)

360

where:

Y1 is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation Period
falls;

Y2 is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day included in the Calculation Period falls;

M1 is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

M2 is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

D1 is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period, unless such
number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

D2 is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case D2

will be 30;

(vii) if 30E/360 (ISDA) is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the
Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

Day Count Fraction =
[360 x (Y2 – Y1)] + [30 x (M2 – M1)] + (D2 – D1)

360

where:

Y1 is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation Period
falls;

Y2 is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last
day included in the Calculation Period falls;

M1 is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;
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M2 is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following
the last day included in the Calculation Period falls;

D1 is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period, unless (i)
that day is the last day of February or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D1

will be 30; and

D2 is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February but not
the Maturity Date or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D2 will be 30;

(viii) if Actual/Actual-ICMA is specified hereon,

(i) if the Calculation Period is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during
which it falls, the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by the product
of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of
Determination Periods normally ending in any year; and

(ii) if the Calculation Period is longer than one Determination Period, the sum of:

(x) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the Determination
Period in which it begins divided by the product of (1) the number of days in
such Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination Periods
normally ending in any year; and

(y) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next
Determination Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination Periods normally
ending in any year,

where:

Determination Period means the period from and including a Determination Date in any
year to but excluding the next Determination Date;

Determination Date means the date(s) specified as such hereon or, if none is so
specified, the Interest Payment Date(s);

Euro-zone means the region comprised of member states of the European Union that
adopt the single currency in accordance with the Treaty establishing the European
Community, as amended;

Interest Accrual Period means the period beginning on (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date and ending on (but excluding) the first Interest Period Date and
each successive period beginning on (and including) an Interest Period Date and ending
on (but excluding) the next succeeding Interest Period Date;

Interest Amount means:

(i) in respect of an Interest Accrual Period, the amount of interest payable per
Calculation Amount for that Interest Accrual Period and which, in the case of Fixed
Rate Notes, and unless otherwise specified hereon, shall mean the Fixed Coupon
Amount or Broken Amount specified hereon as being payable on the Interest
Payment Date ending the Interest Period of which such Interest Accrual Period
forms part; and

(ii) in respect of any other period, the amount of interest payable per Calculation
Amount for that period;
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Interest Commencement Date means the Issue Date or such other date as may be
specified hereon, or determined in accordance with the provisions of, the Pricing
Supplement;

Interest Determination Date means, with respect to a Rate of Interest and Interest
Accrual Period, the date specified as such hereon or, if none is so specified, (i) the first
day of such Interest Accrual Period if the Specified Currency is Sterling or Hong Kong
dollar or Renminbi other than where the Specified Currency is Renminbi and the
Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR or (ii) the day falling two Business Days in London for
the Specified Currency prior to the first day of such Interest Accrual Period if the
Specified Currency is neither Sterling nor euro nor Hong Kong dollar nor Renminbi or
(iii) the day falling two TARGET Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest
Accrual Period if the Specified Currency is euro or (iv) the day falling two Business Days
in Hong Kong prior to the first day of such Interest Accrual Period if the Specified
Currency is Renminbi and the Reference Rate is CNH HIBOR;

Interest Payment Date means the date or dates specified as such in, or determined in
accordance with the provisions of, the Pricing Supplement;

Interest Period means the period beginning on (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date and ending on (but excluding) the first Interest Payment Date and
each successive period beginning on (and including) an Interest Payment Date and ending
on (but excluding) the next succeeding Interest Payment Date unless otherwise specified
in the Pricing Supplement;

Interest Period Date means each Interest Payment Date unless otherwise specified
hereon;

ISDA Definitions means the 2006 ISDA Definitions, as published by the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc., unless otherwise specified hereon;

Redemption Amount means the Final Redemption Amount, Early Redemption Amount
or Optional Redemption Amount, as the case may be, each as specified as such in, or
determined in accordance with the provisions of, the Pricing Supplement;

Redemption Date means the Optional Redemption Date specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement or such other date set for redemption of the Notes pursuant to
Condition 6;

Reference Banks means, (i) in the case of a determination of LIBOR, the principal
London office of four major banks in the London inter-bank market, (ii) in the case of a
determination of EURIBOR, the principal Euro-zone office of four major banks in the
Euro-zone inter-bank market, (iii) in the case of a determination of HIBOR, the principal
Hong Kong office of four major banks in the Hong Kong inter-bank market and, (iv) in
the case of a determination of CNH HIBOR, the principal Hong Kong office of four major
banks dealing in Renminbi in the Hong Kong inter-bank market, in each case selected by
the Issuer and notified in writing to the Calculation Agent or as specified hereon;

Reference Rate means the rate specified as such hereon;

Relevant Screen Page means such page, section, caption, column or other part of a
particular information service as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement (or any
successor or replacement page, section, caption, column or other part of a particular
information service);

Specified Currency means the currency specified as such hereon or, if none is specified,
the currency in which the Notes are denominated; and

TARGET System means the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (known as TARGET2) System which was launched on 19 November
2007 or any successor thereto.
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(l) Calculation Agent

The Issuer and the Guarantor shall procure that there shall at all times be one or more
Calculation Agents if provision is made for them hereon and for so long as the relevant Series
of Notes is outstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed). Where more than one Calculation Agent
is appointed in respect of the Notes, references in these Conditions to the Calculation Agent
shall be construed as each Calculation Agent performing its respective duties under the
Conditions. If the Calculation Agent is unable or unwilling to act as such or if the Calculation
Agent fails duly to establish the Rate of Interest for an Interest Accrual Period or to calculate
any Interest Amount, Instalment Amount, Final Redemption Amount, Early Redemption
Amount or Optional Redemption Amount, as the case may be, or to comply with any other
requirement, the Issuer and the Guarantor shall appoint a leading bank or financial institution
engaged in the interbank market (or, if appropriate, money, swap or over-the-counter index
options market) that is most closely connected with the calculation or determination to be made
by the Calculation Agent (acting through its principal London office or any other office
actively involved in such market) to act as such in its place. For so long as the relevant Series
of Notes is outstanding, the Calculation Agent may not resign its duties without a successor
having been appointed as aforesaid.

6. REDEMPTION, PURCHASE AND OPTIONS

(a) Redemption by Instalments and Final Redemption

(i) Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled as provided in this Condition 6,
each Note that provides for Instalment Dates and Instalment Amounts shall be partially
redeemed on each Instalment Date at the related Instalment Amount specified hereon. The
outstanding nominal amount of each such Note shall be reduced by the Instalment
Amount (or, if such Instalment Amount is calculated by reference to a proportion of the
nominal amount of such Note, such proportion) for all purposes with effect from the
related Instalment Date, unless payment of the Instalment Amount is improperly withheld
or refused, in which case, such amount shall remain outstanding until the Relevant Date
relating to such Instalment Amount.

(ii) Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled as provided below, each Note shall
be finally redeemed on the Maturity Date specified hereon at its Final Redemption
Amount (which, unless otherwise provided hereon, is its outstanding nominal amount) or,
in the case of a Note falling within Condition 6(a)(i) above, its final Instalment Amount.

(b) Early Redemption

(i) Zero Coupon Notes

(A) The Early Redemption Amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Note, the
Early Redemption Amount of which is not linked to an index and/or a formula, upon
redemption of such Note pursuant to Condition 6(c), Condition 6(d), Condition 6(e)
or Condition 6(f) or upon it becoming due and payable as provided in Condition 10
shall be the Amortised Face Amount (calculated as provided below) of such Note
unless otherwise specified hereon.

(B) Subject to the provisions of sub-paragraph (C) below of this Condition 6(a)(i), the
Amortised Face Amount of any such Note shall be the scheduled Final Redemption
Amount of such Note on the Maturity Date discounted at a rate per annum
(expressed as a percentage) equal to the Amortisation Yield (which, if none is shown
hereon, shall be such rate as would produce an Amortised Face Amount equal to the
issue price of the Notes if they were discounted back to their issue price on the Issue
Date, compounded annually).
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(C) If the Early Redemption Amount payable in respect of any such Note upon its
redemption pursuant to Condition 6(c), Condition 6(d), Condition 6(e) or Condition
6(f) or upon it becoming due and payable as provided in Condition 10 is not paid
when due, the Early Redemption Amount due and payable in respect of such Note
shall be the Amortised Face Amount of such Note as defined in sub-paragraph ((B)
above of this Condition 6(b)(i), except that such Condition shall have effect as
though the date on which the Note becomes due and payable were the Relevant
Date. The calculation of the Amortised Face Amount in accordance with this
sub-paragraph shall continue to be made (both before and after judgment) until the
Relevant Date, unless the Relevant Date falls on or after the Maturity Date, in which
case the amount due and payable shall be the scheduled Final Redemption Amount
of such Note on the Maturity Date together with any interest that may accrue in
accordance with Condition 5(c).

Where such calculation is to be made for a period of less than one year, it shall be made
on the basis of the Day Count Fraction shown hereon.

(ii) Other Notes

The Early Redemption Amount payable in respect of any Note (other than Notes
described in Condition 6(b)(i) above), upon redemption of such Note pursuant to
Condition 6(c), Condition 6(d), Condition 6(e) or Condition 6(f) or upon it becoming due
and payable as provided in Condition 10, shall be the Final Redemption Amount unless
otherwise specified hereon. Neither the Trustee nor any of the Agents will be responsible
for calculating or verifying the Early Redemption Amount of the Final Redemption
Amount.

(c) Redemption for Taxation Reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole, but not in part, on any Interest
Payment Date (if this Note is either a Floating Rate Note or an Index Linked Interest Note) or
at any time (if this Note is neither a Floating Rate Note nor an Index Linked Interest Note),
upon notice as described below, at their Early Redemption Amount (as described in Condition
6(b) above) (together with interest accrued (if any) to the date fixed for redemption and
Additional Amounts, if any, if, as a result of any change in or amendment to the laws of a
Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder, or any
change in, or announcement of any, official interpretation or official application of such laws,
regulations or rulings, which change or amendment or announcement (i) except as described in
(ii) immediately below, becomes effective on or after the issue date of the relevant Notes and
(ii) in the case of any successor to the Guarantor or the Issuer that is organised or tax resident
in a jurisdiction that is not a Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction as at the date on which the person
became a successor to the Issuer or the Guarantor, becomes effective on or after the date such
successor assumes the Guarantor’s or the Issuer’s obligations, as applicable, under the Notes,
the Guarantee and the Trust Deed,

(i) the Issuer is or would be required on the next succeeding due date for a payment with
respect to the Notes to pay Additional Amounts with respect to the Notes as described
under Condition 8; or

(ii) the Guarantor is or would be unable, for reasons outside its control, on the next
succeeding due date for a payment with respect to the Notes to procure payment by the
Issuer, and with respect to a payment due or to become due under the Guarantee, the
Guarantor is or would be required on the next succeeding due date for a payment with
respect to the Notes to pay Additional Amounts as described above under Condition 8; or

(iii) any payment to the Issuer by the Guarantor or any wholly-owned Subsidiary of the
Guarantor to enable the Issuer to make payment of interest or Additional Amounts, if any,
on the Notes is or would be when paid to the Issuer before the next succeeding due date
for a payment on the Notes subject to withholding or deduction for taxes imposed by a
Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction or any authority therein or thereof having power to tax,
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and such obligation cannot be avoided by the use of reasonable measures available to the
Guarantor or the Issuer, as the case may be.

Notice of redemption of the Notes as provided above shall be given not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (in accordance with Condition 16 (Notices))
to the holders (which notice shall be irrevocable) and to the Trustee and the Issuing and Paying
Agent. Notice having been given, the Notes of such series shall become due and payable on the
date fixed for redemption and will be paid at the redemption price, together with accrued
interest to the date fixed for redemption and any Additional Amounts, at the place or places of
payment and in the manner specified in the notice. From and after the date fixed for
redemption, if moneys for the redemption of such Notes shall have been made available as
provided in the Trust Deed for redemption on the date fixed for redemption, the Notes shall
cease to bear interest, and the only right of the holders of the Notes shall be to receive payment
of the redemption price and interest accrued (if any) to the date fixed for redemption.

Prior to the mailing of any notice of redemption of the Notes pursuant to this Condition 6(c),
the Issuer, the Guarantor or a surviving person, as the case may be, will deliver to the Trustee
at least 30 days but not more than 60 days before the date fixed for redemption an Officer’s
Certificate stating that a change or amendment or announcement referred to in the prior
paragraph has occurred, describing the facts relating thereto and stating that such requirement
cannot be avoided by the Issuer, the Guarantor or such surviving person, as the case may be,
taking reasonable measures available to it. The Trustee shall be entitled, without being liable
to any Noteholders or Couponholders or any other Person, to conclusively rely upon and accept
such Officer’s Certificate as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the condition precedent
set out in this Condition 6(c), in which event the same shall be conclusive and binding on the
Noteholders and Couponholders.

Upon the expiry of any such notice period as is referred to in this Condition 6(c), the Issuer
shall be bound to redeem the Notes in accordance with this Condition 6(c).

(d) Redemption at the Option of the Issuer

If Call Option is specified hereon, the Issuer may, on giving not less than 20 nor more than 30
days’ irrevocable notice to the Noteholders (or such other notice period as may be specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement, which notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the
Optional Redemption Date) redeem all or, if so provided, some of the Notes on any Optional
Redemption Date. Any such redemption of Notes shall be at their Optional Redemption Amount
specified hereon (which may be the Early Redemption Amount (as described in Condition 6(b)
above), together with interest (if any) accrued to but excluding the Optional Redemption Date).
Any such redemption or exercise must relate to Notes of a principal amount at least equal to
the Minimum Redemption Amount to be redeemed specified hereon and no greater than the
Maximum Redemption Amount to be redeemed specified hereon.

All Notes in respect of which any such notice is given shall be redeemed on the date specified
in such notice in accordance with this Condition 6(d).

Any notice of redemption given under this Condition 6(d) will override any notice of
redemption given (without previously, on the same date or subsequently) under Condition 6.

In the case of a partial redemption, the notice to Noteholders shall, in the case of Bearer Notes,
also contain the certificate numbers of the Bearer Notes, or in the case of Registered Notes,
specify the nominal amount of Registered Notes selected and the holder(s) of such Registered
Notes, to be redeemed, which shall have been selected as follows:

(i) if the Notes are listed on any national securities exchange, in compliance with the
requirements of the principal national securities exchange on which the Notes are listed
and/or if the Notes are held through any clearing system, in compliance with the
requirements of the clearing systems; or

(ii) if the Notes are not held through any clearing system, on a pro rata basis, by lot or by such
other method as the Trustee in its sole discretion shall deem to be fair and appropriate,
unless otherwise required by law.
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(e) Redemption at the Option of Noteholders

If Put Option is specified hereon, the Issuer shall, at the option of the holder of any such Note,
upon the holder of such Note giving not less than 15 nor more than 30 days’ notice to the Issuer
(or such other notice period as may be specified hereon), redeem such Note on the Optional
Redemption Date(s) at its Optional Redemption Amount specified hereon (which may be the
Early Redemption Amount (as described in Condition 6(b) above), together with interest (if
any) accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

To exercise such option, the holder must deposit (in the case of Bearer Notes) such Note
(together with all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and unexchanged Talons) with any Paying
Agent or (in the case of Registered Notes) the Certificate representing such Note(s) with the
Registrar or any Transfer Agent at its specified office, together with a duly completed option
exercise notice (an Exercise Notice) in the form obtainable from any Paying Agent, the
Registrar or any Transfer Agent (as applicable) within the notice period. No Note or Certificate
so deposited and option exercised may be withdrawn (except as provided in the Agency
Agreement) without the prior consent of the Issuer.

(f) Redemption upon a Change of Control Triggering Event

Unless previously redeemed under Condition 6, upon a Change of Control Triggering Event,
the Issuer will be required to make an offer to redeem all of the Notes at a price in cash equal
to 101 per cent. of the principal amount of the Notes redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid
interest (if any) on the principal amount of Notes being redeemed to but excluding the date of
redemption (a Change of Control Offer).

Within 30 days following any Change of Control Triggering Event, the Issuer will be required
to give written notice (a Put Exercise Notice) to holders in accordance with Condition 16
(Notices) and to the Trustee, describing the transaction or transactions that constitute the
Change of Control Triggering Event and offering to redeem all of the Notes on the date
specified in the notice, which date will be no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days from
the date such notice is given (the Change of Control Purchase Date). A Put Exercise Notice,
once delivered, shall be irrevocable.

The Issuer will not be required to make a Change of Control Offer upon a Change of Control
Triggering Event if a third party makes such an offer substantially in the manner, at the times
and in compliance with the requirements for a Change of Control Offer (and for at least the
same purchase price payable in cash) and such third party purchases all Notes properly
tendered and not withdrawn under its offer.

A holder will have no right to require the Issuer to redeem portions of Notes if it would result
in the issuance of new Notes, representing the portion not redeemed, in an amount of less than
the minimum Specified Denomination as set out in the Pricing Supplement.

The Issuer will comply, to the extent applicable, with the requirements of applicable securities
laws or regulations in connection with the redemption of Notes pursuant to this covenant.

The Trustee shall not be required to take any steps to ascertain whether a Change of Control
Triggering Event has occurred or may occur, and shall be entitled to assume that no such event
has occurred unless the Trustee has received written notice of the occurrence of such event. The
Trustee shall not be responsible for determining or verifying whether a Note is to be accepted
for purchase under a Change of Control Offer and will not be responsible to the holders for any
loss arising from any failure by it to do so. Neither the Trustee nor any Agent shall be under
any duty to determine, calculate or verify the amount payable under a Change of Control Offer
and will not be responsible to the holders for any loss arising from any failure by it to do so.
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In this Condition 6(f):

(i) Change of Control means the occurrence, at any time, of any of the following:

(A) China Cinda ceasing to own and control, directly or indirectly 100.0 per cent. of the
Voting Shares of the Guarantor; or

(B) the Guarantor ceasing to own and control directly 100.0 per cent. of the Voting
Shares of the Issuer; or

(C) the government of the PRC or Persons controlled by the government of the PRC
ceasing to Control China Cinda.

(ii) Change of Control Triggering Event means a Change of Control, provided, however,
that, in the event that the Notes are, on the Rating Date, rated Investment Grade by two
or more Rating Agencies, a Change of Control Triggering Event shall mean the
occurrence of both a Change of Control and a Rating Decline. No Change of Control
Triggering Event will be deemed to have occurred in connection with any particular
Change of Control unless and until such Change of Control has actually been
consummated.

(iii) China Cinda means China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (中國信達資產管理股份
有限公司).

(iv) Control means directly or indirectly (i) owning and controlling at least 50.1 per cent. of
the Voting Shares of China Cinda; or (ii) nominating or appointing a majority of the
members of China Cinda’s board of directors or other equivalent or successor governing
body; or (iii) possessing the ability or power to direct the management policies of China
Cinda.

(v) Investment Grade means a rating of “AAA”, “AA”, “A” or “BBB”, as modified by a “+”
or “-” indication, or an equivalent rating representing one of the four highest rating
categories, by S&P or any of its successors or assigns; a rating of “Aaa”, “Aa”, “A” or
“Baa”, as modified by a “1”, “2” or “3” indication, or an equivalent rating representing
one of the four highest rating categories, by Moody’s or any of its successors or assigns;
a rating of “BBB-” or better by Fitch or any of its successors or assigns; or the equivalent
ratings of any United States nationally recognised rating agency or agencies, as the case
may be, which shall have been designated by the Guarantor as having been substituted for
S&P, Moody’s, or Fitch or any combination thereof, as the case may be.

(vi) Rating Agencies means (i) Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and its successors (S&P); (ii) Moody’s Investors Service,
Inc., a subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation, and its successors (Moody’s); (iii) Fitch Inc.,
a subsidiary of Fimalac, S.A., and its successors (Fitch); and (iv) if one or more of S&P,
Moody’s or Fitch shall not make a rating of the Notes publicly available, any
internationally recognised securities rating agency or agencies, as the case may be,
selected by the Guarantor, which shall be substituted for S&P, Moody’s or Fitch or any
combination thereof, as the case may be.

(vii) Rating Date means, in connection with a Change of Control Triggering Event, that date
which is 90 calendar days prior to the earlier of (i) a Change of Control and (ii) a public
notice of the occurrence of a Change of Control or of the intention by any Person or
Persons to effect a Change of Control.
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(viii) Rating Decline means, in connection with a Change of Control Triggering Event, the
occurrence on, or within six months after, the date, or public notice of the occurrence of,
a Change of Control or the intention by any Person or Persons to effect a Change of
Control (which period shall be extended (by no more than an additional three months after
the consummation of the Change of Control) so long as the rating of the Notes is under
publicly announced consideration for possible downgrade by any of the Rating Agencies)
of any of the events listed below:

(A) in the event the Notes are (a) on the Rating Date (x) rated by three Ratings Agencies
and (y) rated Investment Grade by each such Rating Agency, and (b) cease to be
rated Investment Grade by at least two of such Rating Agencies; or

(B) in the event the Notes are (a) on the Rating Date (x) rated by two but not more
Ratings Agencies and (y) rated Investment Grade by each such Rating Agency, and
(b) cease to be rated Investment Grade by both such Rating Agencies.

(g) Partly Paid Notes

Partly Paid Notes will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or otherwise, in
accordance with the provisions of this Condition 6 and the provisions specified hereon.

(h) Purchases

Each of the Issuer, the Guarantor and their respective Subsidiaries may at any time purchase
Notes (provided that all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and unexchanged Talons relating
thereto are attached thereto or surrendered therewith) in the open market or otherwise at any
price. The Notes so purchased, while held by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any
such Subsidiary, shall not entitle the holder to vote at any meetings of the Noteholders and shall
not be deemed to be outstanding for the purposes of, among other things, calculating quorums
at meetings of the Noteholders or for the purposes of Conditions 10, 11(a) or 12 or when the
Trustee is determining prejudice or material prejudice to Noteholders.

(i) Cancellation

All Notes purchased by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any of their Subsidiaries
may be surrendered for cancellation, in the case of Bearer Notes, by surrendering each such
Note together with all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and all unexchanged Talons to the
Issuing and Paying Agent and, in the case of Registered Notes, by surrendering the Certificate
representing such Notes to the Registrar and, in each case, if so surrendered, shall, together
with all Notes redeemed by the Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be), be cancelled
forthwith (together with all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and unexchanged Talons attached
thereto or surrendered therewith). Any Notes so surrendered for cancellation may not be
reissued or resold and the obligations of the Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) in
respect of any such Notes shall be discharged.

7. PAYMENTS AND TALONS

So long as the Global Note or Global Certificate is held on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream, CMU
or any other clearing system, each payment in respect of the Global Note or Global Certificate will
be made to the person shown as the Noteholder in the Register at the close of business of the relevant
clearing system on the Clearing System Business Day before the due date for such payments, where
Clearing System Business Day means (in respect of Euroclear or Clearstream) a weekday (Monday
to Friday, inclusive) except 25 December and 1 January, and (in respect of CMU) a day on which
CMU is open for business.
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(a) Bearer Notes

Payments of principal and interest in respect of Bearer Notes shall, subject as mentioned below,
be made against presentation and surrender of the relevant Receipts (in the case of payments
of Instalment Amounts other than on the due date for redemption and provided that the Receipt
is presented for payment together with its relative Note), Notes (in the case of all other
payments of principal and, in the case of interest, as specified in Condition 7(f)(vi)) or Coupons
(in the case of interest, save as specified in Condition 7(f)(ii)), as the case may be:

(i) in the case of a currency other than Renminbi, at the specified office of any Paying Agent
outside the United States by wire transfer to an account denominated in such currency
with, a Bank; and

(ii) in the case of Renminbi, by wire transfer from the relevant Paying Agent’s office outside
the United States to a Renminbi account maintained by or on behalf of the Noteholder
with a Bank in Hong Kong.

In this Condition 7(a) and in Condition 7(c), Bank means a bank in the principal financial
centre for such currency or, in the case of euro, in a city in which banks have access to the
TARGET System.

(b) Payments in the United States

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any Bearer Notes are denominated in U.S. dollars, payments
in respect thereof may be made at the specified office of any Paying Agent in New York City
in the same manner as aforesaid if (i) the Issuer shall have appointed Paying Agents with
specified offices outside the United States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying
Agents would be able to make payment of the amounts on the Notes in the manner provided
above when due, (ii) payment in full of such amounts at all such offices is illegal or effectively
precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions on payment or receipt of such
amounts and (iii) such payment is then permitted by United States law, without involving, in
the opinion of the Issuer, any adverse tax consequence to the Issuer.

(c) Registered Notes

(i) Payments of principal (which for the purposes of this Condition 7(c) shall include final
Instalment Amounts but not other Instalment Amounts) in respect of Registered Notes
shall be made against presentation and surrender of the relevant Certificates at the
specified office of any of the Transfer Agents or of the Registrar and in the manner
provided in Condition 7(c)(ii).

(ii) Interest (which for the purpose of this Condition 7(c) shall include all Instalment
Amounts other than final Instalment Amounts) on Registered Notes shall be paid to the
person shown on the Register at the close of business on the fifteenth day before the due
date for payment thereof or in the case of Renminbi or otherwise specified, on the fifth
day before the due date for payment thereof (the Record Date). Payments of interest on
each Registered Note shall be made:

(A) in the case of a currency other than Renminbi, upon application by the holder to the
specified office of the Registrar or any Transfer Agent before the Record Date, such
payment of interest may be made by wire transfer to an account in the relevant
currency maintained by the payee with a Bank; and

(B) in the case of Renminbi, by transfer to the registered account of the Noteholder.

In this Condition 7(c), registered account means the Renminbi account maintained by or on
behalf of the Noteholder with a bank in Hong Kong, details of which appear on the Register
at the close of business on the fifth business day before the due date for payment.
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(d) Payments subject to Fiscal Laws

All payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations
and directives applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the
provisions of Condition 8 and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the Code)
or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, any regulations or
agreements thereunder, any official interpretations thereof, or (without prejudice to the
provisions of Condition 8) any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto
(together FATCA). No commission or expenses shall be charged to the Noteholders or
Couponholders in respect of such payments.

(e) Appointment of Agents

The Issuing and Paying Agent, the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent, the Paying Agents, the
Registrar, the Transfer Agents and the Calculation Agent initially appointed by the Issuer and
the Guarantor and their respective specified offices are listed below. The Issuing and Paying
Agent, the CMU Lodging and Paying Agent, the Paying Agents, the Registrar, the Transfer
Agents and the Calculation Agent act solely as agents of the Issuer and the Guarantor and do
not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or trust for or with any Noteholder or
Couponholder. The Issuer and the Guarantor reserve the right at any time with the prior written
approval of the Trustee (where required in accordance with the Agency Agreement) to vary or
terminate the appointment of the Issuing and Paying Agent, the CMU Lodging and Paying
Agent, any other Paying Agent, any Registrar, any Transfer Agent or the Calculation Agent(s)
and to appoint additional or other Paying Agents or Transfer Agents, provided that the Issuer
shall at all times maintain (i) an Issuing and Paying Agent, (ii) a Registrar in relation to
Registered Notes, (iv) a Transfer Agent in relation to Registered Notes, (v) a CMU Lodging and
Paying Agent in relation to Notes accepted for clearance through the CMU, (vi) one or more
Calculation Agent(s) where the Conditions so require, and (vii) such other agents as may be
required by any other stock exchange on which the Notes may be listed.

In addition, the Issuer and the Guarantor shall forthwith appoint a Paying Agent in New York
City in respect of any Bearer Notes denominated in U.S. dollars in the circumstances described
in Condition 7(b) above.

Notice of any such termination or appointment or any change of any specified office of an
Agent shall promptly be given by the Issuer to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition
16 (Notices).

(f) Unmatured Coupons and Receipts and unexchanged Talons

(i) Upon the due date for redemption of Bearer Notes which comprise Fixed Rate Notes
(other than Dual Currency Notes or Index linked Notes), such Notes should be
surrendered for payment together with all unmatured Coupons (if any) relating thereto,
failing which an amount equal to the face value of each missing unmatured Coupon (or,
in the case of payment not being made in full, that proportion of the amount of such
missing unmatured Coupon that the sum of principal so paid bears to the total principal
due) shall be deducted from the Final Redemption Amount, Early Redemption Amount or
Optional Redemption Amount, as the case may be, due for payment. Any amount so
deducted shall be paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of such missing
Coupon within a period of 10 years from the Relevant Date for the payment of such
principal (whether or not such Coupon has become void pursuant to Condition 9).

(ii) Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note comprising a Floating Rate Note,
Dual Currency Note or Index Linked Note, unmatured Coupons relating to such Note
(whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in respect of
them.

(iii) Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note, any unexchanged Talon relating to
such Note (whether or not attached) shall become void and no Coupon shall be delivered
in respect of such Talon.
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(iv) Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note that is redeemable in instalments,
all Receipts relating to such Note having an Instalment Date falling on or after such due
date (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in respect
of them.

(v) Where any Bearer Note that provides that the relative unmatured Coupons are to become
void upon the due date for redemption of those Notes is presented for redemption without
all unmatured Coupons, and where any Bearer Note is presented for redemption without
any unexchanged Talon relating to it, redemption shall be made only against the provision
of such indemnity as the Issuer may require.

(vi) If the due date for redemption of any Note is not a due date for payment of interest,
interest accrued from the preceding due date for payment of interest or the Interest
Commencement Date, as the case may be, shall only be payable against presentation (and
surrender if appropriate) of the relevant Bearer Note or Certificate representing it, as the
case may be. Interest accrued on a Note that only bears interest after its Maturity Date
shall be payable on redemption of such Note against presentation of the relevant Note or
Certificate representing it, as the case may be.

(g) Talons

On or after the Interest Payment Date for the final Coupon forming part of a Coupon sheet
issued in respect of any Bearer Note, the Talon forming part of such Coupon sheet may be
surrendered at the specified office of the Issuing and Paying Agent in exchange for a further
Coupon sheet (and if necessary another Talon for a further Coupon sheet) (but excluding any
Coupons that may have become void pursuant to Condition 9).

(h) Non-Business Days

If any date for payment in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a business day, the
holder shall not be entitled to payment until the next following business day nor to any interest
or other sum in respect of such postponed payment. In this Condition 7, business day means
a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are
generally open for business in the relevant place of presentation, in such jurisdictions as shall
be specified as Financial Centres hereon and:

(i) (in the case of a payment in a currency other than euro and Renminbi) where payment is
to be made by transfer to an account maintained with a bank in the relevant currency, on
which foreign exchange transactions may be carried on in the relevant currency in the
principal financial centre of the country of such currency; or

(ii) (in the case of a payment in euro) which is a TARGET Business Day; or

(iii) (in the case of a payment in Renminbi) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are
open for business and settlement of Renminbi payments in Hong Kong.

8. TAXATION

All payments of principal, premium (if any) and interest by or on behalf of the Issuer or the
Guarantor in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons or under the Guarantee shall be
made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or
future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature (Taxes) imposed,
levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or within the British Virgin Islands or Hong Kong or any
other jurisdiction (each, a Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction) in which the Guarantor or the Issuer, as
the case may be (or any successor to the Guarantor or the Issuer, as the case may be) is tax resident,
in each case including any political subdivision, territory or possession thereof, any authority therein
having power to tax or any area subject to its jurisdiction or any jurisdiction from or through which
any payment is made by the Guarantor or the Issuer, unless such Taxes are required by law to be
withheld or deducted.
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If the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor, is required to make such a deduction or
withholding, the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor shall pay such additional amounts
(Additional Amounts) as will result in receipt by the Noteholders and Couponholders of such
amounts as would have been received by them had no such withholding or deduction been required,
except that no Additional Amounts shall be payable in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon or in
respect of any payment pursuant to the Guarantee:

(a) to a holder (or to a third party on behalf of a holder) who is liable to such Taxes in respect of
such Note by reason of his having some connection with the Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction other
than the mere holding of the Note;

(b) which is surrendered (where required to be surrendered) more than 30 days after the Relevant
Date, except to the extent that the holder would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts
on surrender of such Note for payment on the last day of such period of 30 days;

(c) to a holder (or to a third party on behalf of a holder) who would have been able to avoid such
withholding or deduction by duly presenting the Notes (where presentation is required) to
another paying agent;

(d) to, or to a third party on behalf of, a holder who could lawfully avoid (but has not so avoided)
such deduction or withholding by complying or procuring that any third party complies with
any statutory requirements or by making or procuring that any third party makes a declaration
of non-residence or other similar claim for exemption to any tax authority in the place where
the Certificate, Receipt or Coupon representing the Note is presented for payment; or

(e) with respect to any estate, inheritance, gift, sale, transfer, personal property or similar tax,
assessment or other similar governmental charge; or

(f) with respect to any withholding or deduction that is imposed in connection with Sections
1471-1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the U.S. Treasury regulations or official
guidance thereunder (FATCA), any intergovernmental agreement between the United States
and any other jurisdiction implementing, or relating to, FATCA or any law, regulation or
guidance enacted or issued in any jurisdiction with respect thereto; or

(g) with respect to any Taxes payable otherwise than by deduction or withholding from payments
under or with respect to any Note or Guarantee; or

(h) with respect to any combination of taxes, duties, assessments or other governmental charges
referred to in the preceding items (i) through (vii) above.

As used in these Conditions, Relevant Date in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon means
whichever is the later of (i) the date on which such payment first becomes due; and (ii) if the full
amount payable has not been received by the Issuing and Paying Agent in accordance with the terms
of the Agency Agreement on or prior to such due date, the date on which, the full amount having been
so received, notice to that effect shall have been given to the holders of the Notes, Receipt or
Coupon. References in these Conditions to (i) principal shall be deemed to include any premium
payable in respect of the Notes, all Instalment Amounts, Final Redemption Amounts, Early
Redemption Amounts, Optional Redemption Amounts, Amortised Face Amounts and all other
amounts in the nature of principal payable pursuant to Condition 6 or any amendment or supplement
to it, (ii) interest shall be deemed to include all Interest Amounts and all other amounts payable
pursuant to Condition 5 or any amendment or supplement to it and (iii) principal and/or interest
shall be deemed to include any additional amounts that may be payable under this Condition 8 or any
undertaking given in addition to or in substitution for it under the Trust Deed.

If payments in respect of the Notes by the Issuer or the Guarantor (or any successor of the Issuer or
the Guarantor) become generally subject to taxation in any jurisdiction other than the British Virgin
Islands, Hong Kong or the PRC, references in these Conditions to Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction shall
be construed to include such other jurisdiction.
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Neither the Trustee nor any Agent shall be responsible for paying any tax, duty, charges, withholding
or other payment referred to in this Condition 8 or in connection with the Notes or for determining
whether such amounts are payable or the amount thereof, and none of them shall be responsible or
liable for any failure by the Issuer, any Noteholder or any other person to pay such tax, duty, charges,
withholding or other payment in any jurisdiction or to provide any notice or information that would
permit, enable or facilitate the payment of any principal, premium (if any), interest or other amount
under or in respect of the Notes without deduction or withholding for or on account of any tax, duty,
charge, withholding or other payment imposed by or in any jurisdiction.

9. PRESCRIPTION

Claims against the Issuer and/or the Guarantor for payment in respect of the Notes, Receipts and
Coupons (which, for this purpose, shall not include Talons) shall be prescribed and become void
unless made within 10 years (in the case of principal or premium) or five years (in the case of
interest) from the appropriate Relevant Date in respect of them.

10. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

If any of the following events (each an Event of Default) occurs and be continuing, the Trustee at
its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by holders of at least 25 per cent. in aggregate
nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution shall
(subject in each case to the Trustee first having been indemnified and/or secured and/or pre-funded
to its satisfaction), give written notice to the Issuer and the Guarantor declaring that the Notes are,
and they shall immediately become, due and payable at their Early Redemption Amount together (if
applicable) with accrued interest:

(a) failure to pay principal of, or premium on, if any, any Note after the date such amount is due
and payable, upon optional redemption, acceleration or otherwise, and such failure to pay
continues for a period of 14 days;

(b) failure to pay interest on any Note within 30 days after the due date for such payment;

(c) failure by the Issuer or Guarantor to comply with its obligations under the covenants described
under Condition 4(b);

(d) failure to perform any other covenant or agreement of the Guarantor or the Issuer in the Trust
Deed (other than those referred to paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) above and (h) below), and in each
case, such failure continues for 60 days after there has been given, by registered or certified
mail, to the Guarantor or the Issuer, as the case may be, by the Trustee or by the holders of at
least 25 per cent. in aggregate principal amount of the Notes of that series then outstanding
(with a copy to the Trustee) a written notice specifying such failure and requiring it to be
remedied and stating that such notice is a “Notice of Default” under the Trust Deed;

(e) the Guarantee shall cease to be in full force or effect or the Guarantor shall deny or disaffirm
its obligations under the Guarantee;

(f) (i) failure to pay upon final maturity (after giving effect to the expiration of any applicable
grace period therefor) the principal of any Indebtedness of the Guarantor, the Issuer or any
Principal Subsidiary, (ii) acceleration of the maturity of any Indebtedness of the Guarantor, the
Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary following a default by the Guarantor, the Issuer, or such
Principal Subsidiary, if such Indebtedness is not discharged, or such acceleration is not
annulled, within 10 calendar days after receipt by the Trustee of the written notice from the
Guarantor or the Issuer as provided in the Trust Deed, or (iii) failure to pay any amount payable
by the Guarantor, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary under any guarantee or indemnity in
respect of any Indebtedness of any other Person if such obligation is not discharged or
otherwise satisfied within 10 calendar days after receipt by the Trustee of written notice as
provided in the Trust Deed; provided, however, that no such event set forth in sub-clause (i),
(ii) or (iii) shall constitute an Event of Default unless the aggregate outstanding Indebtedness
to which all such events relate exceeds 0.5 per cent. of the Total Assets of the Guarantor (or
its equivalent in any other currency);
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(g) failure by the Guarantor, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary to pay one or more final
judgments from a court of competent jurisdiction in the PRC, the British Virgin Islands, Hong
Kong, or a member country of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development,
aggregating in excess of 0.5 per cent. of the Total Assets of the Guarantor (or its equivalent in
other currencies), which judgments are not paid, discharged or stayed for a period of 60 days,
during which a stay of enforcement, by reason of a pending appeal or otherwise, is not in effect;

(h) (x) a decree or order is entered (i) for relief in respect of the Guarantor, the Issuer or any
Principal Subsidiary in an involuntary case of winding-up or bankruptcy proceeding under
applicable law or (ii) adjudging the Guarantor, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary bankrupt
or insolvent, or (y) in connection with the bankruptcy or insolvency of the Guarantor, the Issuer
or any Principal Subsidiary a decree or order is entered seeking a reorganisation, a winding up,
an arrangement, an adjustment or a composition, with creditors, of or in respect of the
Guarantor, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary under applicable law, or (z) a decree or order
is entered appointing a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator (or other
similar official) of the Guarantor, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary or of all or
substantially all of their respective properties, or ordering the winding up or liquidation of any
of their affairs, and in each case, any such decree or order remains unstayed and in effect for
a period of 60 consecutive days; except in each case, for the purposes of and followed by a
reconstruction, restructuring and rehabilitation, amalgamation, reorganisation, disposal, merger
or consolidation of a Principal Subsidiary whereby the assets or undertakings of such Principal
Subsidiary are vested in or otherwise transferred to the Guarantor, the Issuer or any Principal
Subsidiary, China Cinda or any of its other subsidiaries, or any third party on an arm’s length
basis;

(i) the Guarantor, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary institutes a voluntary case or proceeding
under applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganisation or similar law, or any other case or
proceedings to be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or the Guarantor, the Issuer or any
Principal Subsidiary files a petition or answer or consent seeking reorganisation or relief under
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar law, or consents to the filing of
any such petition or to the appointment of or taking possession by a custodian, receiver,
liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator (or other similar official) of any of the Guarantor, the
Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary or of all or substantially all of its respective property, or
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or takes corporate action in furtherance of any
such action; except in each case, for the purposes of and followed by a reconstruction,
amalgamation, reorganisation, disposal, merger or consolidation of a Principal Subsidiary
whereby the assets or undertakings of such Principal Subsidiary are vested in or otherwise
transferred to the Guarantor, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary, China Cinda or any of its
other subsidiaries, or any third party on an arm’s length basis;

(j) (x) a distress, attachment, execution, any other legal process is levied, enforced or sued out on
or against, or (y) any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other encumbrance, present or future,
becomes enforceable and any step is taken to enforce it (including the taking of possession or
the appointment of a receiver, manager or other similar person), in each case with respect to,
all or substantially all of the property, assets or revenues of the Issuer, the Guarantor or any of
the Principal Subsidiaries, as the case may be, and is not discharged or stayed within 60 days;

(k) any action, condition or thing (including the obtaining or effecting of any necessary consent,
approval, authorisation, exemption, filing, licence, order, recording or registration) at any time
required to be taken, fulfilled or done in order (i) to enable the Issuer and the Guarantor
lawfully to enter into, exercise their respective rights and perform and comply with their
respective obligations under the Notes and the Trust Deed, as applicable; (ii) to ensure that
those obligations are legally binding and enforceable and (iii) to make the Notes and the Trust
Deed, as applicable, admissible in evidence in the courts of Hong Kong, is not taken, fulfilled
or done; or

(l) it is or will become unlawful for any of the Issuer and the Guarantor to perform or comply with
any one or more of their respective obligations under any of the Notes and the Trust Deed, as
applicable.
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For the purposes of this Condition 10:

Listed Subsidiary means any Subsidiary of the Guarantor, the shares of which are at the relevant
time listed on any stock exchange, and any Subsidiary of such Listed Subsidiary.

Principal Subsidiary means at any time a Subsidiary of the Guarantor (other than any Listed
Subsidiary of the Guarantor and the Subsidiaries of such Listed Subsidiary):

(i) as to which one or more of the following conditions is/are satisfied:

(A) its net profit or (in the case of a Subsidiary of the Guarantor which has Subsidiaries)
consolidated net profit attributable to the Guarantor (in each case before taxation and
exceptional items) is at least 10 per cent. of the consolidated net profit of the Guarantor
(before taxation and exceptional items); or

(B) its net assets or (in the case of a Subsidiary of the Guarantor which has Subsidiaries)
consolidated net assets attributable to the Guarantor (in each case after deducting
minority interests in Subsidiaries) are at least 10 per cent. of the consolidated net assets
of the Guarantor (after deducting minority interests in Subsidiaries);

all as calculated by reference to the then latest audited financial statements (consolidated or,
as the case may be, unconsolidated) of the Subsidiary of the Guarantor and the then latest
consolidated financial statements of the Guarantor, provided that: (1) in the case of a
Subsidiary of the Guarantor acquired after the end of the financial period to which the then
latest relevant audited accounts relate, the reference to the then latest audited accounts for the
purposes of the calculation above shall, until audited accounts for the financial period in which
the acquisition is made are published, be deemed to be a reference to the accounts adjusted to
consolidate the latest audited accounts of the Subsidiary in the accounts; (2) if, in the case of
a Subsidiary of the Guarantor which itself has one or more Subsidiaries, no consolidated
accounts are prepared and audited, its consolidated net assets and consolidated net profits shall
be determined on the basis of pro forma consolidated accounts of the relevant Subsidiary and
its Subsidiaries prepared for this purpose and opined on by its auditors; or (3) if the accounts
of a Subsidiary of the Guarantor (not being a Subsidiary referred to in (1) above) are not
consolidated with those of the Guarantor then the determination of whether or not the
Subsidiary is a Principal Subsidiary shall, if the Guarantor requires, be based on a pro forma
consolidation of its accounts (consolidated, if appropriate) with the audited consolidated
accounts of the Guarantor and its Subsidiaries; or

(ii) to which is transferred all or substantially all of the assets of the Subsidiary of the Guarantor
which immediately prior to the transfer was a Principal Subsidiary, provided that, with effect
from such transfer, the Subsidiary which so transfers its assets and undertakings shall cease to
be a Principal Subsidiary (but without prejudice to paragraph (i) above).

A certificate of the auditors of the Guarantor as to whether or not a Subsidiary is a Principal
Subsidiary shall be conclusive and binding on all parties in the absence of manifest error.

11. MEETINGS OF NOTEHOLDERS, MODIFICATION, WAIVER AND SUBSTITUTION

(a) Meetings of Noteholders

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of Noteholders to consider matters
affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a
modification of any of these Conditions or any provisions of the Trust Deed or the Agency
Agreement. Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Trustee and
shall be convened by the Trustee if requested in writing to do so by Noteholders holding not
less than 10 per cent. in aggregate nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding
(subject to it being indemnified and/or secured and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction against all
costs and expenses). The quorum for any meeting convened to consider an Extraordinary
Resolution will be two or more persons holding or representing more than 50 per cent. in
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aggregate nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned
meeting two or more persons being or representing Noteholders whatever the nominal amount
of the Notes held or represented, unless the business of such meeting includes consideration of
proposals, inter alia, (i) to amend the dates of maturity or redemption of the Notes, any
Instalment Date or any date for payment of interest or Interest Amounts on the Notes, (ii) to
reduce or cancel the nominal amount of, or any Instalment Amount of, or any premium payable
on redemption of, the Notes, (iii) to reduce the rate or rates of interest in respect of the Notes
or to vary the method or basis of calculating the rate or rates or amount of interest or the basis
for calculating any Interest Amount in respect of the Notes, (iv) if a Minimum Rate of Interest
and/or a Maximum Rate of Interest, Instalment Amount or Redemption Amount is shown
hereon, to reduce any such Minimum Rate of Interest and/or Maximum Rate of Interest, (v) to
vary any method of, or basis for, calculating the Final Redemption Amount, the Early
Redemption Amount or the Optional Redemption Amount, including the method of calculating
the Amortised Face Amount, (vi) to vary the currency or currencies of payment or
denomination of the Notes, (vii) to modify the provisions concerning the quorum required at
any meeting of Noteholders or the majority required to pass an Extraordinary Resolution or
(viii) to modify or cancel the Guarantee (other than as contemplated in Condition 11(b)), in
which case the necessary quorum will be two or more persons holding or representing not less
than 66.67 per cent. or at any adjourned meeting not less than 25 per cent. in aggregate nominal
amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding. Any Extraordinary Resolution duly passed
shall be binding on Noteholders (whether or not they were present at the meeting at which such
resolution was passed) and on all Couponholders.

The Trust Deed provides that a resolution (A) in writing signed by or on behalf of the holders
of not less than 90 per cent. in aggregate nominal amount of the Notes for the time being
outstanding (the Written Resolution) or (B) passed by Electronic Consent as defined in the
Trust Deed) shall for all purposes be as valid and effective as an Extraordinary Resolution
passed at a meeting of Noteholders duly convened and held. Such a resolution in writing may
be contained in one document or several documents in the same form, each signed by or on
behalf of one or more Noteholders. A Written Resolution and/or Electronic Consent shall take
effect as an Extraordinary Resolution. A Written Resolution and/or Electronic Consent will be
binding on all Noteholders and holders of Coupons, Talons and Receipts, whether or not they
participated in such Written Resolution and/or Electronic Consent.

These Conditions may be amended, modified or varied in relation to any Series of Notes by the
terms of the relevant Pricing Supplement in relation to such Series.

(b) Modification of Agreements and Deeds

The Trustee may (but shall not be obliged to) agree, without the consent of the Noteholders or
Couponholders, to (i) any modification of any of these Conditions or any of the provisions of
the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement that is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is
made to correct a manifest error or is to comply with any mandatory provision of applicable
law, and (ii) any other modification (except as mentioned in the Trust Deed), and any waiver
or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach, of any of these Conditions or any of the
provisions of the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement that is in the opinion of the Trustee not
materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders. Any such modification, authorisation
or waiver shall be binding on the Noteholders and the Couponholders and unless the Trustee
otherwise agrees, any such modification, authorisation or waiver shall be notified by the Issuer
to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 16 (Notices) as soon as practicable thereafter.

(c) Entitlement of the Trustee

In connection with the exercise of its functions, rights, powers and discretions (including but
not limited to those referred to in this Condition 11) the Trustee shall have regard to the
interests of the Noteholders as a class and shall not have regard to the consequences of such
exercise for individual Noteholders or Couponholders, and the Trustee shall not be entitled to
require on behalf of any Noteholder, nor shall any Noteholder or Couponholder be entitled to
claim, from the Issuer or the Guarantor any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax
consequence of any such exercise upon individual Noteholders or Couponholders.
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(d) Substitution

The Trustee may, without the consent of the Noteholders, agree with the Issuer to the
substitution in place of the Issuer (or of any previous substitute under this Condition) as the
principal debtor under the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Trust Deed of another
company, being a Subsidiary of the Guarantor, subject to (i) the Notes being unconditionally
and irrevocably guaranteed by the Guarantor, (ii) the Trustee being satisfied that the interests
of the Noteholders will not be materially prejudiced by the substitution and (iii) certain other
conditions set out in the Trust Deed being complied with.

12. ENFORCEMENT

No holder shall have any right to institute any proceeding with respect to the Trust Deed or the Notes
or any remedy thereunder, unless the Trustee (i) has failed to act for a period of 60 days after
receiving written notice of a continuing Event of Default by such holder and a request to act by an
Extraordinary Resolution or so requested in writing by the holders of at least 25 per cent. in
aggregate principal amount of outstanding Notes; (ii) has been offered indemnity and/or secured
and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction and (iii) has not received from the holders of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes a written direction inconsistent with such
request; provided, however that such limitations do not apply to a suit instituted by a holder for
enforcement of payment of the principal of or interest on such Note on or after the due date therefor
(after giving effect to the grace period specified in Condition 10(b)).

13. INDEMNIFICATION OF THE TRUSTEE AND THE AGENTS

The Trust Deed contains provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee and for its relief from
responsibility including without limitation provisions relieving it from taking steps, actions or
proceedings to enforce payment or taking other actions unless first indemnified and/or secured
and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction, and to be paid or reimbursed for its fees, costs, expenses and
indemnity payments in priority to the claims of the Noteholders. The Trustee is entitled to enter into
business transactions with the Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any entity (directly or indirectly) related
to the Issuer or the Guarantor without accounting for any profit.

None of the Trustee or any of the Agents shall be responsible for the performance by the Issuer, the
Guarantor and any other person appointed by the Issuer in relation to the Notes of the duties and
obligations on their part expressed in respect of the same and, unless it has express written notice
from the Issuer or the Guarantor to the contrary, the Trustee and each Agent shall assume that the
same are being duly performed. None of the Trustee or any Agent shall be liable to any Noteholder
or any other person for any action taken by the Trustee or such Agent in accordance with the
instructions of the Noteholders. The Trustee shall be entitled to rely conclusively on any direction,
request or resolution of Noteholders given by holders of the requisite nominal amount of Notes
outstanding or passed at a meeting of Noteholders convened and held in accordance with the Trust
Deed. Whenever the Trustee is required or entitled by the terms of the Trust Deed or these Conditions
to exercise any discretion or power, take any action, make any decision or give any direction, the
Trustee is entitled, prior to its exercising any such discretion or power, taking any such action,
making any such decision, or giving any such direction, to seek directions from the Noteholders by
way of an Extraordinary Resolution, and the Trustee is not responsible for any loss or liability
incurred by any person as a result of any delay in it exercising such discretion or power, taking such
action, making such decision, or giving such direction where the Trustee is seeking such directions
or in the event that no such directions are received. Neither the Trustee nor any of the Agents shall
be under any obligation to monitor or ascertain whether any Relevant Event, Event of Default or
Potential Event of Default has occurred or monitor or supervise compliance with the provisions of
the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement or these Conditions.

Whenever the Trustee is required or entitled by the terms of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement
or these Conditions to exercise any discretion or power, take any action, make any decision or give
any direction or certification, the Trustee is entitled, prior to exercising any such discretion or power,
taking any such action, making any such decision or giving any such direction or certification, to
seek directions from the Noteholders by way of Extraordinary Resolution or clarification of any
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directions, and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss or liability incurred by the Issuer,
the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders or any other person as a result of any delay in it
exercising such discretion or power, taking such action, making such decision or giving such
direction or certification where the Trustee is seeking such directions or clarification of any
directions from the Noteholders or in the event that no direction or clarification is given to the
Trustee by the Noteholders.

The Trustee may rely without liability to Noteholders or Couponholders on any report, confirmation
or certificate or any advice or opinion of any legal advisers, accountants, financial advisors, financial
institution or any other expert, whether or not addressed to it and whether their liability in relation
thereto is limited (by its terms or by any engagement letter relating thereto entered into by the
Trustee or any other person or in any other manner) by reference to a monetary cap, methodology
or otherwise. The Trustee may accept and shall be entitled to rely on any such report, confirmation,
certificate, advice or opinion and, in such event, such report, confirmation, certificate, advice or
opinion shall be binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Noteholders.

Each Noteholder or Couponholder shall be solely responsible for making and continuing to make its
own independent appraisal and investigation into the financial condition, creditworthiness,
condition, affairs, status and nature of the Issuer, and the Trustee shall not at any time have any
responsibility for the same and each Noteholder or Couponholder shall not rely on the Trustee in
respect thereof.

14. REPLACEMENT OF NOTES, CERTIFICATES, RECEIPTS, COUPONS AND TALONS

If a Note, Certificate, Receipt, Coupon or Talon is lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it
may be replaced, subject to applicable laws, regulations and stock exchange or other relevant
authority regulations, at the specified office of the Issuing and Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer
Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons) and of the Registrar (in the case of Certificates) or such other
Paying Agent or Transfer Agent, as the case may be, as may from time to time be designated by the
Issuer for that purpose and notice of whose designation is given to Noteholders, in each case on
payment by the claimant of the fees and costs incurred in connection therewith and on such terms
as to evidence, security and indemnity (which may provide, inter alia, that if the allegedly lost,
stolen or destroyed Note, Certificate, Receipt, Coupon or Talon is subsequently presented for
payment or, as the case may be, for exchange for further Coupons, there shall be paid to the Issuer
on demand the amount payable by the Issuer in respect of such Notes, Certificates, Receipts,
Coupons or further Coupons) and otherwise as the Issuer or the relevant Agent may require.
Mutilated or defaced Notes, Certificates, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be surrendered before
replacements will be issued.

15. FURTHER ISSUES

The Issuer may from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders or Couponholders and in
accordance with the Trust Deed, create and issue further securities having the same terms and
conditions as the Notes in all respects (or in all respects except for the first payment of interest on
them) and so that such further issue shall be consolidated and form a single series with an
outstanding Series, provided that such supplemental documents are executed and further opinions are
obtained as the Trustee may require as further set out in the Trust Deed. References in these
Conditions to the Notes include (unless the context requires otherwise) any other securities issued
pursuant to this Condition 15 and forming a single series with the Notes.

16. NOTICES

Notices to the holders of Registered Notes shall be in writing in the English language and mailed to
them (or the first named of joint holders) by uninsured mail at their respective addresses in the
Register and deemed to have been given on the fourth Business Day after the date of mailing and,
so long as the Notes are listed on a stock exchange and the rules of that exchange so require,
published at the Issuer’s expense in a leading newspaper having general circulation in Asia (which
is expected to be the Wall Street Journal Asia). Notices to the holders of Bearer Notes shall be valid
if published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in Asia and, so long as the Notes are listed
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on a stock exchange and the rules of that exchange so require, published at the Issuer’s expense in
a daily newspaper with general circulation in Asia (which is expected to be The Wall Street Journal
Asia). If any such publication is not practicable, notice shall be validly given if published in another
leading daily English language newspaper with general circulation in Asia. Any such notice shall be
deemed to have been given on the date of such publication or, if published more than once or on
different dates, on the first date on which publication is made, as provided above.

Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together
(in the case of any Note in definitive form) with the relative Note or Notes, with the Issuing and
Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes). Whilst
any of the Notes are represented by a Global Note or Global Certificate, such notice may be given
by any holder of a Note to the Issuing and Paying Agent or the Registrar through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream and/or, in the case of Notes lodged with the CMU, by delivery by such holder of such
notice to the CMU Lodging Agent in Hong Kong, as the case may be, in such manner as the Issuing
and Paying Agent, the Registrar, the CMU Lodging Agent and Euroclear and/or Clearstream and/or
the CMU, as the case may be, may approve for this purpose.

Couponholders shall be deemed for all purposes to have notice of the contents of any notice given
to the holders of Bearer Notes in accordance with this Condition 16.

So long as any Global Note or Global Certificate is held in its entirely on behalf of Euroclear and
Clearstream or deposited with a subcustodian for and registered in the name of the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority as operator of the CMU, any notice to the Noteholders shall be validly given by
the delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and Clearstream or as the case may be, CMU, for
communication by the relevant clearing system to entitled accountholders in substitution for
notification as required by the Conditions and shall be deemed to have been given on the date of
delivery to such clearing system.

17. CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of the Notes under the Contracts
(Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

18. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

(a) Governing Law

The Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Talons, the Agency Agreement
and the Guarantee, and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with
them are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, the laws of England.

(b) Jurisdiction

The courts of Hong Kong are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes that may arise
out of or in connection with the Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons, the Guarantee, the Agency
Agreement and the Trust Deed. Accordingly, any legal action or proceedings arising out of or
in connection with any Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons, the Guarantee, the Agency
Agreement and the Trust Deed (Proceedings) shall be brought in the courts of Hong Kong.
Each of the parties irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of such courts and waives any
objection to Proceedings in such courts whether on the ground of venue or on the ground that
the Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum.
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(c) Agent for Service of Process

The Issuer has irrevocably appointed the Guarantor at its registered office, currently at 12/F,
AIA Central, 1 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong, to receive service of process in
any Proceedings in Hong Kong. Such service shall be deemed completed on delivery to such
agent (whether or not, it is forwarded to and received by the Issuer). If for any reason such
agent ceases to be able to act as such or no longer has an address in Hong Kong, the Issuer
irrevocably agrees to forthwith appoint a substitute process agent in Hong Kong and deliver to
the Trustee a copy of the agent’s acceptance of that appointment within 30 days of such
cessation. Nothing shall affect the right to serve process in any manner permitted by law.

(d) Waiver of Immunity

To the extent each of the Issuer or the Guarantor may acquire any immunity (sovereign or
otherwise) from any legal action, suit or proceeding, from the jurisdiction of any court or from
set-off or any legal process (whether service or notice, attachment in aid or otherwise) with
respect to itself or any of its property, it hereby unconditionally and irrevocably waives, to the
fullest extent permitted by law, and agrees not to plead or claim such immunity in respect of
its obligations under the terms and conditions of the Notes.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth information regarding Cinda HK’s board of directors:

Name Position

Liang Senlin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Chairman, Director
Shen Jiamu . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Director
Shen Hongpu . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Director
Feng Xing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Director
Yu Fan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Director
Huang Qiang . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Director

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Liang Senlin. Mr. Liang is the Chairman and Director of Cinda HK. He joined Cinda HK in 2019.
He worked as Manager of the Credit Department, Manager and Deputy Director of the Corporate Business
Department at Bank of China Shanxi Branch from 1990 to 2000. He then held numerous management
positions at China Orient Asset Management as Assistant General Manager at the Corporate Business
Department, Deputy General Manager and General Manager from 2001 to 2018. He also served at China
Cinda’s Board of Director Office and Headquarter Office as General Manager from 2018 to 2019. Mr.
Liang received his master’s degree of Technical Economics from Xi’an Jiaotong University School of
Management in 1990.

Mr. Shen Jiamu. Mr. Shen is the General Manager of the Group Management Department of China Cinda.
He once worked as Senior Staff of the Audit Office of the Chinese Ministry of Railways from July 1987
to August 1993, Manager at the Finance Department of Beijing Branch and Deputy General Manager of
the Sales Department at Shenzhen Branch of Cinda Trust from August 1993 to February 2000 and General
Manager of the Sales Department of China Galaxy Securities Shenzhen East Shangbao Road Branch from
February 2000 to May 2002. He then joined Cinda (China) Investment and served as the General Manager
of the Planning and Finance Department until January 2007. He later joined China Cinda and served as
the Assistant Director of the Capital Management Committee Office and Deputy General Manager of Trust
and Collaboration Department until January 2011. He then went back to Cinda Investment and served as
Deputy General Manager until January 2015. Mr. Shen graduated from Jiangxi School of finance and
Economic with a bachelor’s degree of Industrial Economy.

Mr. Shen Hongpu. Mr Shen is the Assistant General Manager of the General Plan Department and the
Capital Market Department of China Cinda since February 2016. He is also the Director of China Jingu
International Trust Co., Ltd. He joined China Cinda since 2005 and held numerous positions as Acting
Director at the Research and Development Department of the Financial Risk Research Centre from June
2008 to May 2009, Senior Deputy General Manager and Director of the Financial Risk Research Centre
from May 2009 to June 2012, Senior Management, Director of the First Group and Chief of the Strategic
Development Department from June 2012 to February 2016. Mr. Shen received his bachelor’s degree of
Economy from Beijing Normal University and doctor’s degree of Economy from Nankai University.

Mr. Feng Xing. Mr. Feng is the Assistant General Manager of the Fourth Strategic Client Department of
China Cinda since March 2017. He worked at China Construction Bank from July 1997 to August 1998.
Mr. Feng joined China Cinda in 1998 and held numerous positions in China Cinda Beijing Branch as head
of the Fourth Business Department from November 2011 to February 2013, head of the General
Department from February 2013 to April 2014, head of the General Manager’s Office from April 2014 to
September 2014. Mr. Feng then joined China Cinda headquarter, served as Chief at the Structural Finance
Group of the Investment and Finance Department, Chief of the Special Opportunity Investment
Department until August 2016, Chief of the Fourth Strategic Client Department from September 2016 to
March 2017. Mr. Feng graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree of Engineering and
Guanghua School of Management, Peking university with a degree of EMBA.
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Mr. Yu Fan. Mr. Yu is the Chairman of Cinda International and First State Cinda Fund Management Co.,
Ltd., and Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of Cinda Securities. Mr. Yu joined Cinda Securities in
September 2000 and held numerous positions as member of the Party Committee from September 2007 to
December 2011, Deputy Secretary of the Party Committee from August 2013, Secretary of Board of
Directors and Deputy General Manager from September 2007 to October 2010, Executive Deputy General
Manager from October 2010 to December 2011, Deputy Director of the Executive Committee from March
2017 to April 2019 and General Manager from September 2013 to September 2019. He also served as the
General Manager of the Investment and Finance Department of China Cinda from December 2011 to
August 2013. Mr. Yu graduated from Xiamen University with a bachelor’s degree of law.

Mr. Huang Qiang. Mr. Huang has been serving as Deputy General Manager of Cinda HK since June 2017.
He joined Cinda Group in March 2013 and had served as Assistant General Manager of Strategic
Development Department, Assistant General Manager and Deputy General Manager of Asset Management
Department. From June 2015 to June 2017, he served as Assistant General Manager at NCB China. Mr.
Huang graduated from the College of Business Administration of Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics with a master’s degree in 2003 and obtained a doctoral degree from the College of Corporate
Management of Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in 2009. He is qualified as a senior
accountant.

Senior Management

The senior management is responsible for the daily management of the Group’s business operation. The
following table sets forth information regarding Cinda HK’s senior management:

Name Position

Liang Senlin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Chairman
Huang Limei . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Deputy General Manager
Huang Qiang . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Deputy General Manager
Chen Zhiwei . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Deputy General Manager
Tang Lunfei . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Head of Risk & Compliance

Mr. Liang Senlin. Please see “Board of Directors and Senior Management — Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management — Directors — Mr. Liang Senlin”.

Ms. Huang Limei. Ms. Huang is a Deputy General Manager of Cinda HK since February 2018. She
worked at China Construction Bank Shenzhen Branch from June 1989 to August 1999. She joined China
Cinda in August 1999 and worked at the Shenzhen Branch until December 2017. Ms. Huang graduated
from Hunan University of Finance and Economics in 1989 with a bachelor’s degree in Financial Statistics
and obtained a master’s degree in National Economics from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
in 2000.

Mr. Huang Qiang. Please see “Board of Directors and Senior Management — Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management — Directors — Mr. Huang Qiang”.

Mr. Chen Zhiwei. Mr. Chen is the Assistant General Manager of Cinda HK. He joined Cinda HK in June
2010 and has served as Senior Manager and Head of Investment Department. Mr. Chen has more than 10
years’ experience in investment and financial research. He currently acts as a director of Modern Land
(China) Co., Limited. Mr. Chen graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in
economics and obtained a master’s degree from National University of Singapore.

Mr. Tang Lunfei. Mr. Tang is the Chief Risk & Compliance Officer of Cinda HK. He joined China Cinda
in 2003 and has served as Business Manager for its Chengdu Office from 2003 to 2005. He then worked
for the Financial Stability Department of People’s Bank of China from 2005 to 2006. After that he worked
for Cinda Securities as Senior Investment Manager and Business Director etc. from 2007 to 2012. From
2012 to 2019, he served in the Finance and Investment Department, Asset Management Department and
Business Evaluation Department of China Cinda.
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FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

[MiFID II product governance/Professional investors and ECPs only target market — Solely for the
purposes of [the/each] manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect
of the Notes has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties
and professional clients only, each as defined in [Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, MiFID II)] [MiFID
II]; and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Notes to eligible counterparties and professional clients are
appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a distributor) should
take into consideration the manufacturer[‘s/s’] target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to
MiFID II is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either
adopting or refining the manufacturer[‘s/s’] target market assessment) and determining appropriate
distribution channels.]

UK MIFIR product governance/Professional investors and ECPs only target market — Solely for the
purposes of [the/each] manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect
of the Notes has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties
and professional clients only, each as defined in Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic
law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (UK MiFIR); and (ii) all channels for
distribution of the Notes to eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. [Consider any
negative target market]. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a
distributor) should take into consideration the manufacturer[’s/s’] target market assessment; however, a
distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance Sourcebook (the
UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules) is responsible for undertaking its own target market assessment
in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer[’s/s’] target market assessment)
and determining appropriate distribution channels.

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS — The Notes are not intended to be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available
to any retail investor in the European Economic Area (EEA). For these purposes, a retail investor means
a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive
2014/65/EU (as amended, MiFID II); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the
Insurance Distribution Directive), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as
defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation
(EU) 2017/1129 (the Prospectus Directive). Consequently no key information document required by
Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or
otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering
or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful
under the PRIIPs Regulation.

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS — The Notes are not intended to be offered,
sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any
retail investor in the United Kingdom (UK). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is
one (or more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565
as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the
provisions of the FSMA and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA which were relied on
immediately before exit day to implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify
as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms
part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of
Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA. Consequently no key
information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by
virtue of the EUWA (the UK PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making
them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes
or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs
Regulation.
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[Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore
(the SFA) — [To insert notice if classification of the Notes is not “prescribed capital markets products”,
pursuant to Section 309B of the SFA or “Excluded Investment Products”].]1

Pricing Supplement dated [●]

China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Series]
[Title of Notes] (the Notes)

under the U.S.$2,000,000,000
Medium Term Note Programme

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein.

[Include the below wording in brackets if the Notes are to be listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.]

[This document is for distribution to professional investors (as defined in Chapter 37 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (Professional
Investors).

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has not reviewed the contents of this document, other
than to ensure that the prescribed form disclaimer and responsibility statements, and a statement
limiting distribution of this document to Professional Investors only have been reproduced in this
document. Listing of the Programme and the Notes on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
is not to be taken as an indication of the commercial merits or credit quality of the Programme, the
Notes or the Issuer, the Guarantor or quality of disclosure in this document. Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this document, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this document.

Notice to Hong Kong investors: The Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are intended for
purchase by Professional Investors only and have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on that basis. Accordingly, the Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are not appropriate
as an investment for retail investors in Hong Kong. Investors should carefully consider the risks involved.

This document, together with the Offering Circular, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Issuer and the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this document and confirms, having made
all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of its knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission
of which would make any statement herein misleading.]

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in
the Offering Circular dated 7 January 2021 [and the supplemental [Offering Circular] dated [●]]. This
Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and must be read in conjunction with such
Offering Circular [as so supplemented].

[The following alternative language applies if the first issue of a Series which is being increased was
issued under Offering Circular with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions of
the Notes (the Conditions) set forth in the Offering Circular dated 7 January 2021. This Pricing
Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and must be read in conjunction with the Offering
Circular dated 7 January 2021 [and the supplemental Offering Circular dated [●]], save in respect of the
Conditions which are extracted from the Offering Circular dated 7 January 2021 and are attached hereto.]

1 Relevant Dealer(s) to consider whether it/they have received the necessary product classification from the Issuer prior
to the launch of the offer, pursuant to Section 309B of the SFA. If there is a change as to product classification for
the relevant drawdown, from the upfront classification embedded in the programme documentation, then the legend
is to be completed and used (if no change as to product classification, then the legend may be deleted in its entirety).
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[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the numbering
should remain as set out below, even if “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual paragraphs or
sub-paragraphs. Italics denote directions for completing the Pricing Supplement.]

1. Issuer: China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited

2. (a) Status of the Notes: Senior

(b) Guarantee: Guaranteed by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company
Limited

3. [(a)] Series Number: [●]

[(b) Tranche]: [●]

4. Specified Currency or Currencies: [●]

5. Aggregate Nominal Amount: [●]

6. [(a)] Issue Price: [●] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus
accrued interest from [insert date] (in the case of
fungible issues only, if applicable)]

[(b)] Net Proceeds: [●] (Required only for listed issues)]

7. (a) Specified Denominations: [●]

(b) Calculation Amount: [●]

8. (a) Issue Date: [●]

(b) Interest Commencement Date: [Specify/Issue Date/Not Applicable]

9. Maturity Date: [specify date or (for Floating Rate Notes) Interest
Payment Date falling on or nearest to the relevant
month and year]2

10. (a) Interest Basis: [[●] per cent. Fixed Rate, [●] per cent. per annum]
[Floating Rate, [specify reference rate] +1-
[●] per cent.]
[Zero Coupon]
[Other (specify)]
(further particulars specified below)

(b) Default Rate: [[●] (specify)/None]

11. Redemption/Payment Basis: [Redemption at par]
[Partly Paid]
[Installment]
[Other (specify)]

12. Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment
Basis:

[Specify details of any provision for convertibility of
Notes into another interest or redemption/payment
basis]

13. Put/Call Options: [Investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]

14. NDRC Registration/Confirmation: [Insert registration certificate date]

2 Note that for Hong Kong dollar denominated Fixed Rate Notes where the Interest Payment Dates are subject to
modification it will be necessary to use the second option here.
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15. Listing: [[●] (specify)/None]

16. Place of Payment: [Specify]

17. Method of distribution: [Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

18. Private Bank Rebate/Commission [Applicable/Not Applicable]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

19. Fixed Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(a) Rate[(s)] of Interest: [●] per cent. per annum [payable
[annually/semi-annually/quarterly/monthly] in
arrears]

(b) Interest Payment Date(s): [●] in each year [adjusted in accordance with [specify
Business Day Convention and any applicable Business
Center(s) for the definition of “Business Day”]/not
adjusted]3

(c) Fixed Coupon Amount[(s)]: [●] per Calculation Amount4

(d) Broken Amount(s): [●] per Calculation Amount, payable on the Interest
Payment Date falling [in/on] [●]

(e) Day Count Fraction: [30/360/Actual/Actual (ICMA/ISDA)/other]

(f) [Determination Dates: [●] in each year (insert regular interest payment dates,
ignoring issue date or maturity date in the case of a
long or short first or last coupon. N.B. only relevant
where Day Count Fraction is Actual/Actual (ICMA))]

(g) Other terms relating to the method of
calculating interest for Fixed Rate
Notes:

[Not Applicable/give details]

20. Floating Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph.)

(a) Interest Period(s): [●]

(b) Specified Interest Payment Dates: [●]

(c) Interest Period Date: [●]

(Not applicable unless different from Interest Payment
Date.)

3 Note that for certain Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi denominated Fixed Rate Notes the Interest Payment Dates are
subject to modification and the following words should be added: “provided that if any Interest Payment Date falls
on a day which is not a Business Day, the Interest Payment Date will be the next succeeding Business Day unless it
would thereby fall in the next calendar month in which event the Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to
the immediately preceding Business Day. For these purposes, “Business Day” means a day on which commercial banks
and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign
exchange and currency deposits) in Hong Kong and [●].”

4 For Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi denominated Fixed Rate Notes where the Interest Payment Dates are subject to
modification the following wording is appropriate: “Each Fixed Coupon Amount shall be calculated by applying the
Rate of Interest to each Calculation Amount, multiplying such sum by the actual number of days in the Accrual Period
(as defined in Condition 6(a)(i)) divided by 365 and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest [HK$0.01 or RMB0.01,
HK$0.005 or RMB0.005] being rounded upwards.”

125



(d) Business Day Convention: [Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/other
(give details)]

(e) Business Center(s): [●]

(f) Manner in which the Rate(s) of
Interest is/are to be determined:

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA
Determination/other (give details)]

(g) Party responsible for calculating the
Rate(s) of Interest and Interest
Amount(s)):

[China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited/[●]]

(h) Screen Rate Determination:

• Reference Rate: [●]

• Interest Determination Date(s): [●]

• Relevant Screen Page: [●]

(i) ISDA Determination:

• Floating Rate Option: [●]

• Designated Maturity: [●]

• Reset Date: [●]

(j) Margin(s): [+/-][●] per cent. per annum

(k) Minimum Rate of Interest: [●] per cent. per annum

(l) Maximum Rate of Interest: [●] per cent. per annum

(m) Day Count Fraction: [●]

(n) Fall back provisions, rounding
provisions, denominator and any
other terms relating to the method of
calculating interest on Floating Rate
Notes, if different from those set out
in the Conditions:

[●]

21. Zero Coupon Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(a) Amortisation Yield: [●] per cent. per annum

(b) Any other formula/basis of
determining amount payable:

[●]

22. Index-Linked Interest Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(a) Index/Formula: [give or annex details]

(b) Party responsible for calculating the
Rate(s) of Interest and/or Interest
Amount(s) (if not the [Agent]):

[●]
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(c) Provisions for determining Rate of
Interest and/or Interest Amount
where calculation by reference to
Index and/or Formula is impossible
or impracticable or otherwise
disrupted:

[●]

(d) Interest Periods: [●]

(e) Specified Interest Payment Dates: [●]

(f) Business Day Convention: [Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/other
(give details)]

(g) Business Center(s): [●]

(h) Minimum Rate of Interest: [●] per cent. per annum

(i) Maximum Rate of Interest: [●] per cent. per annum

(j) Day Count Fraction: [●]

23. Dual Currency Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(a) Rate of Exchange/method of
calculating Rate of Exchange:

[give details]

(b) Party, if any, responsible for
calculating the Rate(s) of Interest and
Interest Amount(s) (if not the
[Agent]):

[●]

(c) Provisions applicable where
calculation by reference to Rate of
Exchange impossible or
impracticable:

[●]

(d) Person at whose option Specified
Currency(ies) is/are payable:

[●]

24. Default Rate [[●] per cent. per annum/Not Applicable]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

25. Call Option [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(a) Optional Redemption Date(s): [●]

(b) Optional Redemption Amount(s) of
each Note and specified
denomination method, if any, of
calculation of such amount(s):

[●] per Calculation Amount

(c) If redeemable in part:

(i) Minimum Redemption Amount: [●] per Calculation Amount

(ii) Maximum Redemption
Amount:

[●] per Calculation Amount

(d) Notice period: [●]
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26. Put Option [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete
the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(a) Optional Redemption Date(s): [●]

(b) Optional Redemption Amount(s) of
each Note and method, if any, of
calculation of such amount(s):

[●] per Calculation Amount

(c) Notice period: [●]

27. Final Redemption Amount of each Note [●] per Calculation Amount

28. Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amount(s) per
Calculation Amount payable on
redemption for taxation reasons or on event
of default and/or the method of calculating
the same (if required or if different from
that set out in the Conditions):

[●] per Calculation Amount

29. Other Redemption/Repurchase Events Condition 6(c) (Redemption for Taxation Reasons)
and Condition 6(f) (Repurchase for Change of Control
Triggering Event) are applicable [and [●] (give
details)]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

30. (a) Form of Notes: [Bearer Notes: [Temporary Global Note exchangeable
for a Permanent Global Note which is exchangeable
for Definitive Notes in the limited circumstances
specified in the Permanent Global Note]

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for Definitive
Notes on [●] days’ notice]

[Permanent Global Note exchangeable for Definitive
Notes in the limited circumstances specified in the
Permanent Global Note] (may not be used when the D
Rules apply)

(N.B. The exchange upon notice/at any time options
should not be expressed to be applicable if the
Specified Denomination of the Notes in paragraph 7
includes language substantially to the following effect:
“EUR100,000 and integral multiples of EUR1,000 in
excess thereof up to and including EUR199,000”. In
addition, the “limited circumstances specified in the
Permanent Global Note” option may have to be
amended to permit such Specified Denomination
construction. Furthermore, such Specified
Denomination construction is not permitted in relation
to any issue of Notes which is to be represented on
issue by a Temporary Global Note exchangeable for
Definitive Notes.)

[Registered Notes]

(b) Applicable TEFRA exemption: [C Rules/D Rules/Not Applicable (“Not Applicable”
may only be used in the case of Bearer Notes with a
maturity of one year or less (taking into account any
unilateral extension or rollover rights) or Registered
Notes)]
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31. Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be
attached to Definitive Bearer Notes (and
dates on which such Talons mature):

[Yes/No. If yes, give details]

32. Financial Center(s) or other special
provisions relating to Payment Dates:

[Note that this paragraph relates to the Payment Date
and Place of Payment, and not interest period end
dates, to which sub paragraphs [20(e) and 22(g)
relate]

33. Details relating to Partly Paid Notes:
amount of each payment comprising the
Issue Price and date on which each
payment is to be made and consequences
(if any) of failure to pay, including any
right of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and
interest due on late payment:

[Not Applicable/give details]

34. Details relating to Partly Paid Notes:
amount of each payment comprising the
Issue Price and date on which each
payment is to be made and consequences
(if any) of failure to pay, including any
right of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and
interest due on late payment:

[Not Applicable/give details]

35. Redenomination, Renominalisation and
Reconventioning:

[Not Applicable/The provisions [annexed to this
Pricing Supplement] apply]

36. Consolidation provisions: [Not Applicable/The provisions [In Condition [●]]

37. Use of Proceeds: [Not Applicable/give details]

38. Other terms or special conditions: [Not Applicable/give details]

DISTRIBUTION

39. (a) If syndicated, names of Managers: [Not Applicable/give names]

(b) Stabilising Manager (if any): [Not Applicable/give names]

40. If non-syndicated, name of Dealer: [Not Applicable/give names]

41. U.S. selling restrictions: Regulation S, Category 2

42. Additional selling restrictions: [Not Applicable/give details]

43. Interests of [Managers] [Dealers] involved
in the issue/offer:

[Give details.]

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

44. ISIN Code[/CMU Instrument Code]: [●]

45. Common Code: [●]

46. LEI Code of Issuer: 549300ZIBIB6Z9RSNU64

47. Any clearing system(s) other than
Euroclear Bank SA/NV and Clearstream
Banking S.A. and the relevant
identification number(s):

Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]

48. Delivery: Delivery [against/free of] payment

49. Additional Paying Agent(s) (if any): [●]

50. Additional Registrar (if any): [●]

129



[PURPOSE OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required for issue and admission to trading on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the Notes described herein pursuant to the U.S.$2,000,000,000
Medium Term Note Programme of the Issuer.]

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing
Supplement.

Signed on behalf of China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited

By:
Duly Authorised

Signed on behalf of China Cinda (HK) Holdings Limited Company

By:
Duly Authorised
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CLEARANCE AND SETTLEMENT

The information set out below is subject to any change in or reinterpretation of the rules, regulations and
procedures of Euroclear, Clearstream or CMU Service currently in effect. The information in this section
concerning the Clearing Systems has been obtained from sources that the Issuer believes to be reliable,
but none of the Issuer, the Dealers or the Arrangers takes any responsibility for the accuracy thereof.
Investors wishing to use the facilities of any of the Clearing Systems are advised to confirm the continued
applicability of the rules, regulations and procedures of the relevant Clearing System. Neither the Issuer
nor any other party to the Trust Deed will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records
relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests in the Notes held through the
facilities of any Clearing System or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to, or
payments made on account of, such beneficial ownership interests.

The relevant Pricing Supplement will specify the Clearing System(s) applicable for each Series.

THE CLEARING SYSTEMS

Euroclear and Clearstream

Euroclear and Clearstream each holds securities for participating organisations and facilitates the
clearance and settlement of securities transactions between their respective participants through electronic
book-entry changes in accounts of such participants. Euroclear and Clearstream provide to their respective
participants, among other things, services for safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of
internationally-traded securities and securities lending and borrowing. Euroclear and Clearstream
participants are financial institutions throughout the world, including underwriters, securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organisations. Indirect access to
Euroclear or Clearstream is also available to others, such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies
which clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Euroclear or Clearstream participant, either
directly or indirectly.

Distributions of principal with respect to book-entry interests in the Notes held through Euroclear or
Clearstream will be credited, to the extent received by the Issuing and Paying Agent, to the cash accounts
of Euroclear or Clearstream participants in accordance with the relevant system’s rules and procedures.

CMU

The CMU Service is a central depositary service provided by the Central Moneymarkets Unit of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (the “HKMA”) for the safe custody and electronic trading between the members
of this service (“CMU Members”) of capital markets instruments (“CMU Instruments”) which are
specified in the CMU Reference Manual as capable of being held within the CMU Service.

The CMU Service is only available to CMU Instruments issued by a CMU Member or by a person for
whom a CMU Member acts as agent for the purposes of lodging instruments issued by such persons.
Membership of the services is open to all members of the Hong Kong Capital Markets Association,
“authorized institutions” under the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
domestic and overseas financial institutions at the discretion of the HKMA.

Compared to clearing services provided by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, the standard custody
and clearing service provided by the CMU Service is limited. In particular (and unlike the European
clearing systems), the HKMA does not as part of this service provide any facilities for the dissemination
to the relevant CMU Members of payments (of interest or principal) under, or notices pursuant to the
notice provisions of, the CMU Instruments. Instead, the HKMA advises the lodging CMU Member (or a
designated paying agent) of the identities of the CMU Members to whose accounts payments in respect
of the relevant CMU Instruments are credited, whereupon the lodging CMU Member (or the designated
paying agent) will make the necessary payments of interest or principal or send notices directly to the
relevant CMU Members. Similarly, the HKMA will not obtain certificates of non-U.S. beneficial
ownership from CMU Members or provide any such certificates on behalf of CMU Members. The CMU
Lodging and Paying Agent will collect such certificates from the relevant CMU Members identified from
an instrument position report obtained by request from the HKMA for this purpose.
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An investor holding an interest in the Instruments through an account with either Euroclear or Clearstream
will hold that interest through the respective accounts which Euroclear and Clearstream each have with
the CMU Service.

BOOK-ENTRY OWNERSHIP

Bearer Notes

The Issuer may make applications to Euroclear and Clearstream for acceptance in their respective
book-entry systems in respect of any Series of Bearer Notes. The Issuer may also apply to have Bearer
Notes accepted through the CMU Service. In respect of Bearer Notes, a Temporary Global Note and/or a
Permanent Global Note will be deposited with a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream or a
sub-custodian for the CMU Service. Transfers of interests in a Temporary Global Note or a Permanent
Global Note will be made in accordance with the normal market debt securities operating procedures of
the Euroclear, Clearstream or as the case may be, the CMU Service.

Registered Notes

The Issuer may make applications to Euroclear and Clearstream for acceptance in their respective
book-entry systems in respect of the Notes to be represented by a Registered Global Security. Each
Registered Global Security will have an International Securities Identification Number (“ISIN”) and a
Common Code. Investors in Notes of such Series may hold their interests in a Registered Global Security
through Euroclear or Clearstream. Registered Global Notes may also be deposited with a sub-custodian for
the HKMA as operator of the CMU Service.

Each Registered Global Security will be subject to restrictions on transfer contained in a legend appearing
on the front of such Registered Global Security, as set out under “Subscription and Sale”.

All Registered Notes will initially be in the form of a Registered Global Security. Certificated securities
will be available, in the case of Notes initially represented by a Registered Global Security, in amounts
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

NDRC REGISTRATION

On 14 September 2015, the NDRC issued the Circular on Promoting the Administrative Reform of the
Filing and Registration System for the Issuance of Foreign Debts by Enterprises (Fa Gai Wai Zi [2015]
No. 2044) (《國家發展改革委關於推進企業發行外債備案登記制管理改革的通知》) (the “New NDRC
Circular”), which became effective on the same day. In order to encourage the use of low-cost capital in
the international capital markets in promoting investment and steady growth and to facilitate cross-border
financing, the New NDRC Circular abolishes the case-by-case quota review and approval system for the
issuance of foreign debts by PRC enterprises and sets forth the following measures to promote the
administrative reform of the issuance of foreign debts by PRC enterprises or overseas enterprises and
branches controlled by PRC enterprises:

• steadily promote the administrative reform of the filing and registration system for the issuance of
foreign debts by enterprises;

• increase the size of foreign debts issued by enterprises, and support the transformation and upgrading
of key sectors and industries;

• simplify the filing and registration of the issuance of foreign debts by enterprises; and

• strengthen the supervision during and after the process to prevent risks.

For the purposes of the New NDRC Circular, “foreign debts” means RMB-denominated or foreign
currency-denominated debt instruments with a maturity of one year or above which are issued offshore by
PRC enterprises and their controlled offshore enterprises or branches and for which the principal and
interest are repaid as agreed, including offshore bonds and long-term and medium-term international
commercial loans, etc. According to this definition, offshore bonds issued by both PRC enterprises and
their controlled offshore enterprises or branches shall be regulated by the New NDRC Circular.

132



Pursuant to the New NDRC Circular, an enterprise shall: (i) apply to the NDRC for the filing and
registration procedures prior to the issuance of the bonds; and (ii) shall report the information on the
issuance of the bonds to NDRC within 10 working days after the completion of each issuance. The
materials to be submitted by an enterprise shall include an application report and an issuance plan, setting
out details such as the currency, size, interest rate, term, use of proceeds and remittance details. The NDRC
shall decide whether to accept an application within 5 working days of receipt and shall issue a Certificate
for Filing and Registration of the Issuance of Foreign Debts by Enterprises within 7 working days of
accepting the application.

To issue foreign debts, an enterprise shall meet these basic conditions:

• have a good credit history with no default in its issued bonds or other debts;

• have sound corporate governance and risk prevention and control mechanisms for foreign debts; and

• have a good credit standing and relatively strong capability to repay its debts.

Pursuant to the New NDRC Circular, the NDRC shall control the overall size of foreign debts that can be
raised by PRC enterprises and their controlled overseas branches or enterprises. Based on trends in the
international capital markets, the needs of the PRC economic and social development and the capacity to
absorb foreign debts, the NDRC shall reasonably determine the overall size of foreign debts and guide the
funds towards key industries, key sectors, and key projects encouraged by the State, and effectively
support the development of the real economy. When the limit of the overall size of foreign debts has been
exceeded, the NDRC shall make a public announcement and shall no longer accept applications for filing
and registration.

According to the New NDRC Circular, the proceeds raised may be used onshore or offshore according to
the actual needs of the enterprises, but priority shall be given to supporting the investment in major
construction projects and key sectors, such as “Belt and Road Initiative”, the coordinated development of
Beijing, Tianjin, and Hebei province, the Yangtze River Economic Belt, international cooperation on
production capacity, and the manufacturing of equipment.

As the New NDRC Circular is newly published, certain detailed aspects of its interpretation and
application remain subject to further clarification. The Guarantor undertakes that it will comply with the
requirements of the New NDRC Circular in respect of any Notes that may be issued under the Programme.

133



SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

SUMMARY OF DEALER AGREEMENT

Subject to the terms and conditions contained in a dealer agreement dated 7 January 2021, and as further
amended and supplemented from time to time (the “Dealer Agreement”), between the Issuer, the
Guarantor, the Dealers and the Arrangers, the Notes may be offered on a continuous basis by the Issuer
to the Dealers. The Notes may be resold at prevailing market prices, or at prices related thereto, at the time
of such resale, as determined by the relevant Dealer(s). The Notes may also be sold by the Issuer through
the Dealers, acting as agents of the Issuer. The Notes will be issued on a syndicated or non-syndicated
basis.

The Issuer and the Guarantor will pay the relevant Dealer a commission as agreed between them in respect
of Notes subscribed by it. The Issuer and the Guarantor have agreed to reimburse the Arrangers for certain
of its expenses incurred in connection with the establishment of the Programme and the Dealers for certain
of their activities in connection with the Programme.

The Dealer Agreement provides that the obligations of the Dealers to purchase the Notes are subject to
certain conditions, including, among others, the receipt by the Dealers of documentation related to the
issuance and settlement of the Notes, officer’s certificates and legal opinions.

The Dealer Agreement entitles the Dealers to terminate any agreement that they make to subscribe Notes
in certain circumstances prior to payment for such Notes being made to the Issuer and the Guarantor.

The Issuer and the Guarantor have agreed, jointly and severally, to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
each of the relevant Dealer(s), each of their respective subsidiaries and affiliates and certain other persons
against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to payments the
relevant Dealer(s) may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

Each Series or Tranche of Notes is a new issue of securities with no established trading market. Any one
or more of the Dealers may make a market in the Notes but are not obliged to do so and may discontinue
any market-marking, if commenced, at any time without notice. No assurance can be given as to the
liquidity of the trading markets for the Notes.

If a jurisdiction requires that the offering be made by a licensed broker or dealer and any of the Dealers
or their affiliates is a licensed broker or dealer in that Jurisdiction, the offering shall be deemed to be made
by the relevant Dealer or its affiliate on behalf of the Issuer in such jurisdiction.

STABILISATION

In connection with the issue of Notes in any Series or Tranche under the Programme, the Dealer or Dealers
(if any) named as the Stabilisation Manager(s) (or any person(s) acting for it (the “Stabilisation
Manager(s)”) in the applicable Pricing Supplement may, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and
directives, over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Notes
in such a Series at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail, but in so doing, the Stabilisation
Manager or any person acting on behalf of the Stabilisation Manager shall act as principal and not as agent
of the Issuer or the Guarantor. However, there is no assurance that the Stabilisation Manager (or persons
acting on behalf of a Stabilisation Manager) will undertake stabilisation action. Any loss or profit
sustained as a consequence of any such overallotment or stabilisation shall be for the account of the
Dealers.

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS

The Dealers and the Arrangers and certain of their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions
engaged in various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking,
financial advisory, investment management, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage
activities (“Banking Services or Transactions”). The Dealers and the Arrangers and their respective
affiliates may have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various Banking
Services and/or Transactions with the Issuer and the Guarantor for which they have received, or will
receive, fees and expenses.
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In connection with the offering of the Notes, the Dealers and the Arrangers and/or their respective
affiliates, or affiliates of the Issuer or the Guarantor, may act as investors and place orders, receive
allocations and trade the Notes for their own account and such orders, allocations or trade of the Notes
may be material. Such entities may hold or sell such Notes or purchase further Notes for their own account
in the secondary market or deal in any other securities of the Issuer or the Guarantor, and therefore, they
may offer or sell the Notes or other securities otherwise than in connection with the offering of the Notes.
Accordingly, references herein to the offering of the Notes should be read as including any offering of the
Notes to the Dealers and the Arrangers and/or their respective affiliates, or affiliates of the Issuer or the
Guarantor as investors for their own account. Such entities are not expected to disclose such transactions
or the extent of any such investment, otherwise than in accordance with any applicable legal or regulatory
requirements. If such transactions occur, the trading price and liquidity of the Notes may be impacted.

Furthermore, it is possible that a significant portion of the Notes may be initially allocated to, and
subsequently held by, a limited number of investors. If this is the case, the trading price and liquidity of
trading in the Notes may be constrained. The Issuer, the Guarantor and the Dealers and the Arrangers are
under no obligation to disclose the extent of the distribution of the Notes amongst individual investors,
otherwise than in accordance with any applicable legal or regulatory requirements.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the Dealers and the Arrangers and their
respective affiliates make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities
(or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account
and for the accounts of their customers, and may at any time hold long and short positions in such
securities and instruments. Such investment and securities activities may involve securities and
instruments of the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Parent, any other member of the Cinda Group or their
respective affiliates, including the Notes and could adversely affect the trading price and liquidity of the
Notes. The Dealers and the Arrangers and their affiliates may make investment recommendations and/or
publish or express independent research views (positive or negative) in respect of the Notes or other
financial instruments of the Issuer or the Guarantor and may recommend to their clients that they acquire
long and/or short positions in the Notes or other financial instruments of the Issuer or the Guarantor.

SELLING RESTRICTIONS

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the laws of any jurisdiction, nor has any other
action been taken, nor will any action be taken, by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealers or any other
person that would permit a public offering of the Notes or the possession, circulation or distribution of this
Offering Circular or any supplement hereto or thereto, or any other offering material relating to the Issuer,
the Guarantor or the Notes, in any country or jurisdiction where action for any such purpose may be
required. The offer and sale of Notes, and the delivery of this Offering Circular, are restricted by law in
certain jurisdictions and Notes may not be offered or sold, and this Offering Circular may not be
distributed, in any jurisdiction under circumstances where such offer, sale or distribution would be
prohibited or restricted by law.

Without limiting the foregoing, prospective purchasers of Notes should be aware of the following
restrictions:

United States

The Notes and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may
not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, except
in certain transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Terms used in this
paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S.

Bearer Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within
the United States or its possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions permitted
by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code and regulations thereunder.
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Each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree
that, except as permitted by the Dealer Agreement, it will not offer, sell or, in the case of Bearer Notes,
deliver Notes (i) as part of their distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise until 40 days after the completion
of the distribution of an identifiable tranche of which such Notes are a part, as determined and certified
to China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited by such Dealer (or, in the case of an identifiable
tranche of Notes sold to or through more than one Dealer, by each of such Dealers with respect to Notes
of an identifiable tranche purchased by or through it, in which case the Issuing and Paying Agent shall
notify such Dealer when all such Dealers have so certified), within the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons, and it will have sent to each Dealer to which it sells Notes during the
distribution compliance period a confirmation or other notice setting out the restrictions on offers and sales
of the Notes within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons. Terms used in
the preceding sentence have the meanings given to them by Regulation S.

The Notes are being offered and sold outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in reliance on
Regulation S.

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of any identifiable tranche of Notes, an
offer or sale of Notes within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering
of such tranche of Notes) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

This Offering Circular has been prepared by the Issuer for use in connection with the offer and sale of the
Notes outside the United States. The Issuer and the Dealers reserve the right to reject any offer to purchase
the Notes, in whole or in part, for any reason. This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to any
person in the United States. Distribution of this Offering Circular by any non-U.S. person outside the
United States to any U.S. person or to any other person within the United States is unauthorised and any
disclosure without the prior written consent of the Issuer of any of its contents to any such U.S. person
or other person within the United States, is prohibited.

Hong Kong

In relation to each Series of Notes to be issued by the Issuer under the Programme, each Dealer has
represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to
represent and agree, that:

(a) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell in Hong Kong, by means of any document, any
Notes, except for Notes which are a “structured product” as defined in the SFO, other than (i) to
“professional investors” as defined in the SFO and any rules made under the SFO; or (ii) in other
circumstances which do not result in the document being a “prospectus” as defined in the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong (the “Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance”) or which do not constitute an offer to
the public within the meaning of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance; and

(b) it has not issued or had in its possession for the purposes of issue, and will not issue or have in its
possession for the purposes of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, any advertisement,
invitation or document relating to the Notes, which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely
to be accessed or read by, the public of Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the securities
laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to Notes which are or are intended to be disposed of only
to persons outside Hong Kong or only to “professional investors” as defined in the SFO and any rules
made under the SFO.
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Japan

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of
Japan (Act No. 25 of 1948, as amended; the “FIEA”) and each Dealer has undertaken and each further
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to undertake that it will not offer or sell any Notes,
directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any Japanese Person or to others for re-offering
or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to any Japanese Person except under circumstances which will
result in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and guidelines promulgated by the relevant
Japanese governmental and regulatory authorities and in effect at the relevant time. For the purposes of
this paragraph, “Japanese Person” shall mean any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or
other entity organised under the laws of Japan.

PRC

Each Dealer has represented, warranted and agreed that the Notes are not being offered or sold and may
not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in the PRC (for such purposes, not including the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the Macau Special Administrative Region or Taiwan), except as
permitted by the securities laws of the PRC.

Singapore

Each Dealer has acknowledged, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required
to acknowledge, that this Offering Circular has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary
Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, each Dealer has represented, warranted and agreed, and each further
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent, warrant and agree, that it has not
offered or sold any Notes or caused the Notes to be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or
purchase and will not offer or sell any Notes or cause the Notes to be made the subject of an invitation
for subscription or purchase, and has not circulated or distributed, nor will it circulate or distribute, this
Offering Circular or any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for
subscription or purchase, of the Notes, whether directly or indirectly, to any person in Singapore other than
(i) to an institutional investor (as defined in Section 4A of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289)
of Singapore, as modified or amended from time to time (the “SFA”)) pursuant to Section 274 of the SFA,
(ii) to a relevant person (as defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA) pursuant to Section 275(1) of the SFA,
or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A) of the SFA, and in accordance with the conditions specified in
Section 275 of the SFA, or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other
applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the Notes are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which
is:

(a) corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole
business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or
more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or

(b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and
each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor,

securities or securities-based derivatives (each term as defined in Section 2(1) of the SFA) of that
corporation or the beneficiaries’ rights and interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be
transferred within six months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the Notes pursuant to an offer
made under Section 275 of the SFA except:

• to an institutional investor or to a relevant person or to any person arising from an offer referred to
in Section 275(1A) or Section 276(4)(i)(B) of the SFA; or
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• where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer; or

• where the transfer is by operation of law; or

• as specified in Section 276(7) of the SFA; or

• as specified in Regulation 37A of the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Securities and
Securities-based Derivatives Contracts) Regulations 2018.

Any reference to the SFA is a reference to the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore and
a reference to any term as defined in the SFA or any provision in the SFA is a reference to that term as
modified or amended from time to time including by such of its subsidiary legislation as may be applicable
at the relevant time.

Singapore SFA Product Classification: In connection with Section 309B of the Securities and Futures Act
(Chapter 289) of Singapore (the “SFA”) and the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products)
Regulations 2018 of Singapore (the “CMP Regulations 2018”), unless otherwise specified before an offer
of Notes, the Issuer has determined, and hereby notifies all relevant persons (as defined in Section 309A(1)
of the SFA), that the Notes are ‘prescribed capital markets products’ (as defined in the CMP Regulations
2018) and Excluded Investment Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of
Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products).

Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be
required to represent and agree, that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made available and will not offer,
sell or otherwise make available any Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by this
Offering Circular as completed by the Pricing Supplement in relation thereto to any retail investor in the
European Economic Area. For the purposes of this provision:

(a) the expression “retail investor” means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

(i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 14/65/EU (as amended,
“MiFID II”); or

(ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the “Insurance Distribution
Directive”), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point
(10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (the “Prospectus
Regulation”); and

(b) the expression “offer” includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide
to purchase or subscribe for the Notes.

United Kingdom

Prohibition of sales to UK Retail Investors

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be
required to represent and agree, that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made available and will not offer,
sell or otherwise make available any Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by this
Offering Circular as completed by the Pricing Supplement in relation thereto to any retail investor in the
United Kingdom. For the purposes of this provision:

(a) the expression retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

(i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms
part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (EUWA); or
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(ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA and any rules or regulations
made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not
qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No
600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; and

(b) the expression an offer includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient
information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide
to purchase or subscribe for the Notes.

Other regulatory restrictions

Each Dealer has represented, warranted and agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the
Programme will be required to represent, warrant and agree that:

(a) No deposit-taking: in relation to any Notes having a maturity of less than one year:

(i) it is a person whose ordinary activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing
of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of its business; and

(ii) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Notes other than to persons:

(A) whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of
investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses; or

(B) who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as
principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses,

where the issue of the Notes would otherwise constitute a contravention of Section 19 of the FSMA
by the Issuer.

(b) Financial promotion: it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only
communicate or cause to be communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment
activity (within the meaning of section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue
or sale of any Notes in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not, if it was not an
authorised person, apply to the Issuer.

(c) General compliance: it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA
with respect to anything done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the
United Kingdom.

Macau

Each Dealer has represented, warranted and agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the
Programme will be required to represent, warrant and agree that the Notes may not be promoted,
distributed, sold or delivered in the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China (Macau), or any document relating to the Notes be distributed or circulated in Macau, except under
the terms of and in compliance with the Macau Financial System Act and any other laws in Macau that
may apply to the offer and sale of the Notes in Macau. The Notes are not registered or otherwise authorised
for public offer under the Financial System Act of Macau, thus may not be offered or sold in Macau, unless
such offer is made by Macau licensed entities according to the Macau Financial System Act and upon their
communication to the Macau Monetary Authority, in observation of the guidelines and recommendations
issued by the Macau local regulatory authority from time to time.
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Taiwan

Each Dealer has represented and agreed that it has not offered or sold, and will not offer or sell, any Notes,
directly or indirectly, in Taiwan, to investors other than Professional Institutional Investors as defined
under Article 4 of the Financial Consumer Protection Act, unless otherwise permitted by the laws and
regulations of Taiwan.

British Virgin Islands

No invitation has been made or will be made, directly or indirectly, to any person in the British Virgin
Islands or to the public in the British Virgin Islands to purchase the Notes and the Notes are not being
offered or sold and may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in the British Virgin Islands, except
as otherwise permitted by the British Virgin Islands laws.

General

These selling restrictions may be modified by the agreement of each of the Issuer, the Guarantor and the
Dealer following a change in a relevant law, regulation or directive. Any such modification will be set out
in the relevant Pricing Supplement issued in respect of the issue of Notes to which it relates or in a
supplement to this Offering Circular.
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TAXATION

The following summary of certain BVI, PRC and Hong Kong tax consequences of the purchase, ownership
and disposition of Notes is based upon applicable laws, rules and regulations in effect as at the date of
this Offering Circular, all of which are subject to change (possibly with retroactive effect). This summary
does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all the tax considerations that may be relevant to
a decision to purchase, own or dispose of the Notes and does not purport to deal with consequences
applicable to all categories of investors, some of which may be subject to special rules. Neither these
statements nor any other statements in this Offering Circular are to be regarded as advice on the tax
position of any holder of the Notes or any person acquiring, selling or otherwise dealing in the Notes or
on any tax implications arising from the acquisition, sale or other dealings in respect of the Notes.

Persons considering the purchase of Notes should consult their own tax advisors concerning the tax
consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Notes.

British Virgin Islands

Income Tax

As at the date of this Offering Circular, the Issuer are exempt from all provisions of the Income Tax Act
of the British Virgin Islands, including with respect to all interest, premium (if any), and principal paid
by the Issuer to persons who are not persons resident in the British Virgin Islands. No income, capital gain,
estate, inheritance, succession or gift tax, rate, duty, levy or other charge is payable by persons who are
not persons resident in the British Virgin Islands with respect to any debt obligations or other securities
of the Issuer.

Withholding Tax

There are currently no withholding taxes or exchange control regulations in the British Virgin Islands
applicable to payments the Issuer may make under the transaction documents relating to the Notes or under
the Guarantee.

Hong Kong

Withholding Tax

No withholding tax is payable in Hong Kong in respect of payments of principal or interest on the Notes
or in respect of any capital gains arising from the sale of the Notes.

Profits Tax

Hong Kong profits tax is chargeable on every person carrying on a trade, profession or business in Hong
Kong in respect of profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong from such trade, profession or business
(excluding profits arising from the sale of capital assets).

Interest on the Notes may be deemed to be profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong from a trade,
profession or business carried on in Hong Kong in the following circumstances:

(i) interest on the Notes is derived from Hong Kong and is received by or accrues to a corporation
carrying on a trade, profession or business in Hong Kong;

(ii) interest on the Notes is derived from Hong Kong and is received by or accrues to a person, other than
a corporation, carrying on a trade, profession or business in Hong Kong and is in respect of the funds
of that trade, profession or business;
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(iii) interest on the Notes is received by or accrues to a financial institution (as defined in the Inland
Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112) of Hong Kong (the “IRO”)) and arises through or from the carrying
on by the financial institution of its business in Hong Kong; or

(iv) interest on the Notes is received by or accrues to a corporation, other than a financial institution, and
arises through or from the carrying on in Hong Kong by the corporation of its intra-group financing
business (within the meaning of section 16(3) of the IRO).

Sums received by or accrued to a financial institution by way of gains or profits arising through or from
the carrying on by the financial institution of its business in Hong Kong from the sale, disposal and
redemption of Notes will be subject to Hong Kong profits tax. Sums received by or accrued to a
corporation, other than a financial institution, by way of gains or profits arising through or from the
carrying on in Hong Kong by the corporation of its intra-group financing business (within the meaning of
section 16(3) of the IRO) from the sale, disposal or other redemption of Notes will be subject to Hong
Kong profits tax.

Sums derived from the sale, disposal or redemption of Notes will be subject to Hong Kong profits tax
where received by or accrued to a person, other than a financial institution, who carries on a trade,
profession or business in Hong Kong and the sum has a Hong Kong source unless otherwise exempted.
The source of such sums will generally be determined by having regard to the manner in which the Notes
are acquired and disposed of.

In certain circumstances, Hong Kong profits tax exemptions (such as concessionary tax rates) may be
available. Investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors to ascertain the applicability of any
exemptions to their individual position.

Stamp Duty

Stamp duty will not be payable on the issue of Bearer Notes provided that either:

(i) such Bearer Notes are denominated in a currency other than the currency of Hong Kong and are not
repayable in any circumstances in the currency of Hong Kong; or

(ii) such Bearer Notes constitute loan capital (as defined in the Stamp Duty Ordinance (Cap. 117) of
Hong Kong (the “SDO”).

If stamp duty is payable, it is payable by the Issuer on the issue of Bearer Notes at a rate of 3 per cent.
of the market value of the Bearer Notes at the time of issue. No stamp duty will be payable on any
subsequent transfer of Bearer Notes.

No stamp duty is payable on the issue of Registered Notes. Stamp duty may be payable on any transfer
of Registered Notes if the relevant transfer is required to be registered in Hong Kong. Stamp duty will,
however, not be payable on any transfer of Registered Notes provided that either:

(i) such Registered Notes are denominated in a currency other than the currency of Hong Kong and are
not repayable in any circumstances in the currency of Hong Kong; or

(ii) such Registered Notes constitute loan capital (as defined in the SDO).

If stamp duty is payable in respect of the transfer of Registered Notes it will be payable at the rate of 0.2
per cent. (of which 0.1 per cent. is payable by the seller and 0.1 per cent. is payable by the purchaser)
normally by reference to the consideration or its value, whichever is higher. In addition, stamp duty is
payable at the fixed rate of HK$5 on each instrument of transfer executed in relation to any transfer of
the Registered Notes if the relevant transfer is required to be registered in Hong Kong.
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PRC

The following summary describes the principal PRC tax consequences of ownership and disposition of the
Notes by beneficial owners who, or which, are not residents of mainland China for PRC tax purposes.
These beneficial owners are referred to as non-resident Noteholders in this “Taxation – PRC” section. In
considering whether to invest in the Notes, investors should consult their individual tax advisers with
regard to the application of PRC tax laws to their particular situations as well as any tax consequences
arising under the laws of any other tax jurisdiction. Reference is made to PRC taxes from the taxable year
beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law effective on 29 December 2018 and the PRC Individual
Income Tax Law effective on 1 January 2019, and their respective implementation regulations, an income
tax is imposed on payments of interest by way of withholding in respect of the Notes, made by the Issuer
or the Guarantor (if the Issuer or the Guarantor (as applicable) is regarded as a PRC enterprise under the
Enterprises Income Tax Law) to non-resident Noteholders, including non-resident enterprises and
non-resident individuals. The current rates of such income tax are 20 per cent. (for non-resident
individuals) and 10 per cent. (for non-resident enterprises) of the gross amount of the interest. If the
relevant PRC tax authorities decide, in accordance with applicable tax rules and regulations, that the “de
facto management bodies” of the Issuer or the Guarantor (as applicable) are within the territory of the
PRC, the Issuer or the Guarantor (as applicable) may be held to be a PRC tax resident enterprise for the
purpose of the Enterprise Income Tax Law and be subject to enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% in
respect of its income sourced from both within and outside PRC. If the Issuer or the Guarantor is regarded
as a PRC tax resident enterprise, such enterprise income tax shall be withheld by the Issuer or the
Guarantor (as applicable) that is acting as the obligatory withholder and it shall withhold the tax amount
from each payment due.

However, the tax so charged on interests paid on the Notes to non-resident Noteholders who or which are
residents of Hong Kong (including enterprise holders and individual holders) as defined under the
Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the
Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with Respect to Taxes on Income (內
地和香港特別行政區關於對所得避免雙重徵稅和防止偷漏稅的安排) which was promulgated on 21
August 2006 (the “Tax Arrangement”) for the purpose of the avoidance of double taxation will be 7 per
cent. of the gross amount of the interest pursuant to the Tax Arrangement and relevant interpretation of
the Tax Arrangement formulated by the State Administration of Taxation of China.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law and its implementation rules, any gains realised on the transfer of
the Notes by holders who are deemed under the Enterprise Income Tax Law as non-resident enterprises
may be subject to PRC enterprise income tax if such gains are regarded as income derived from sources
within the PRC. Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law, a “non-resident enterprise” means an enterprise
established under the laws of a jurisdiction other than the PRC and whose actual administrative
organisation is not in the PRC, which has established offices or premises in the PRC, or which has not
established any offices or premises in the PRC but has obtained income derived from sources within the
PRC. In addition, there is uncertainty as to whether gains realised on the transfer of the Notes by
individual holders who are not PRC citizens or residents will be subject to PRC individual income tax. If
such gains are subject to PRC income tax, the 10 per cent. enterprise income tax rate and 20 per cent.
individual income tax rate will apply respectively unless there is an applicable tax treaty or arrangement
that reduces or exempts such income tax. The taxable income will be the balance of the total income
obtained from the transfer of the Notes minus all costs and expenses that are permitted under PRC tax laws
to be deducted from the income. According to the Tax Arrangement, Noteholders who are Hong Kong
residents, including both enterprise holders and individual holders, may be exempted from PRC income
tax on capital gains derived from a sale or exchange of the Notes.

In addition, pursuant to Circular 36 which took effect on 1 May 2016 and respectively amended on 1 July
2017 and 1 April 2019, entities and individuals providing services within the PRC are subject to VAT. The
services are treated as being sold within the PRC where either the service provider or the service recipient
is located in the PRC. The services subject to VAT include the provision of financial services such as the
provision of loans. Circular 36 further clarifies that “loans” refer to the activity of lending capital for
another’s use and receiving interest income thereon. Based on the definition of “loans” under Circular 36,
the issuance of the Notes is likely to be treated as a “loan” provided by the Noteholders to the Issuer or
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the Guarantor, which thus shall be regarded as financial services for VAT purposes. In general, the income
derived from the provision of loans will not be subject to VAT in the PRC if none of the Issuer, the
Guarantor or the Noteholders is within the PRC. However, it is uncertain whether a foreign incorporated
company which is deemed to be a PRC resident enterprise would be regarded as being within the PRC.
In the event that the Issuer or the Guarantor is deemed to be a PRC resident enterprise and is deemed to
be within the PRC by the PRC tax authorities, the Noteholders may be deemed to be providing financial
services to the Issuer or the Guarantor within the PRC and consequently, the amount of interest on the
Notes payable by the Issuer or the Guarantor (as applicable) to any non-resident Noteholders may be
subject to withholding VAT at the rate of 6 per cent. plus related surcharges.

Where a holder of the Notes who is an entity or individual located outside of the PRC resells the Notes
to an entity or individual located outside of the PRC and derives any gain, since neither the service
provider nor the service recipient is located in the PRC, theoretically Circular 36 does not apply and
neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor has the obligation to withhold the VAT or the local levies. However,
there is uncertainty as to the applicability of VAT if either the seller or buyer of Notes is located inside
the PRC.

The interpretation and enforcement of Circular 36 and other applicable laws and regulations pertaining to
PRC VAT involve uncertainties, and the above statements may be subject to further change upon the
issuance of further clarification rules and/or different interpretation by the competent tax authority. There
is uncertainty as to the application of Circular 36.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law, the PRC Individual Income Tax Law and the VAT reform
detailed above, if the Issuer or the Guarantor is regarded as a PRC tax resident enterprise, it shall withhold
income tax (should such tax apply) from the payments of interest in respect of the Notes for any
non-resident Noteholder and the Issuer or the Guarantor shall withhold VAT (should such tax apply) from
the payments of interest in respect of the Notes for any Noteholder located outside of the PRC. However,
in the event that the Issuer or the Guarantor is required to make such a deduction or withholding (whether
by way of income tax, VAT or otherwise), the Issuer and the Guarantor have agreed to pay such additional
amounts as will result in receipt by the Noteholders of such amounts after such withholding or deduction
as would have been received by them had no such withholding or deduction been required, as further set
out in the “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”.

No PRC stamp duty will be imposed on non-resident Noteholders either upon issuance of the Notes or
upon a subsequent transfer of Notes to the extent that the register of holders of the Securities is maintained
outside the PRC and the issuance and the sale of the Notes is made outside of the PRC.

FATCA DISCLOSURE

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

Pursuant to certain provisions of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, commonly known as FATCA,
a foreign financial institution (as defined by FATCA) may be required to withhold on certain payments
it makes (foreign passthru payments) to persons that fail to meet certain certification, reporting or related
requirements. The issuer may be a foreign financial institution for these purposes. A number of
jurisdictions have entered into, or have agreed in substance to, intergovernmental agreements with the
United States to implement FATCA (IGAs), which modify the way in which FATCA applies in their
jurisdictions. Under the provisions of IGAs as currently in effect, a foreign financial institution in an IGA
jurisdiction would generally not be required to withhold under FATCA or an IGA from payments that it
makes. Certain aspects of the application of the FATCA provisions and IGAs to instruments such as Notes,
including whether withholding would ever be required pursuant to FATCA or an IGA with respect to
payments on instruments such as Notes, are uncertain and may be subject to change. Even if withholding
would be required pursuant to FATCA or an IGA with respect to payments on instruments such as Notes,
such withholding would not apply prior to the date that is two years after the date on which final
regulations defining foreign passthru payments are published in the U.S. Federal Register and Notes
characterised as debt (or which are not otherwise characterised as equity and have a fixed term) for U.S.
federal tax purposes that are issued on or prior to the date that is six months after the date on which final
regulations defining foreign passthru payments are published generally would be grandfathered for
purposes of FATCA withholding unless materially modified after such date (including by reason of a
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substitution of the issuer). However, if additional Notes (as described under “Terms and Conditions-
Further Issues”) that are not distinguishable from previously issued Notes are issued after the expiration
of the grandfathering period and are subject to withholding under FATCA, then withholding agents may
treat all Notes, including the Notes offered prior to the expiration of the grandfathering period, as subject
to withholding under FATCA. Holders should consult their own tax advisers regarding how these rules
may apply to their investment in Notes. In the event any withholding would be required pursuant to
FATCA or an IGA with respect to payments on the Notes, no person will be required to pay additional
amounts as a result of the withholding.

The proposed financial transactions tax (FTT)

On 14 February 2013, the European Commission published a proposal (the Commission’s Proposal) for
a Directive for a common FTT in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greece, Spain, France, Italy, Austria,
Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the participating Member States). However, Estonia has since stated
that it will not participate.

The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scope and could, if introduced, apply to certain dealings in
Notes (including secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances. The issuance and subscription
of Notes should, however, be exempt.

Under the Commission’s Proposal the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both within and
outside of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in Notes where
at least one party is a financial institution, and at least one party is established in a participating Member
State. A financial institution may be, or be deemed to be “established” in a participating Member State in
a broad range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a person established in a participating
Member State or (b) where the financial instrument which is subject to the dealings is issued in a
participating Member State.

However, the FTT proposal remains subject to negotiation between participating Member States. It may
therefore be altered prior to any implementation, the timing of which remains unclear. Additional EU
Member States may decide to participate.

Prospective holders of Notes are advised to seek their own professional advice in relation to the FTT.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

1. CONSENTS

The Issuer has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in connection with the
issue and performance of the Notes and the performance of the Trust Deed. The Issuer has obtained
all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in connection with the issue and performance
of the Notes and the Trust Deed. The Guarantor has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and
authorisations in connection with the giving and performance of the Guarantee and the Trust Deed.
The entering into of the Trust Deed governing the Notes and the issue of the Notes have been
authorised by resolutions of the board of directors of the Issuer dated 30 December 2020, and
resolutions of the board of directors of the Guarantor passed on 16 September 2020.

2. LITIGATION

Except as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there are no legal or arbitration proceedings against or
affecting the Guarantor, any of its subsidiaries or any of its assets, nor is the Group aware of any
pending or threatened proceedings, which are or might be material in the context of the issue of the
Notes and the Guarantee.

3. AUDITOR

The Guarantor’s consolidated financial information as at and for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019 is included in the accountants’ report set forth in this Offering Circular and has been
audited by Ernst & Young, its independent reporting accountants, as set forth in their report
contained herein. Prospective investors must exercise caution when using such data to evaluate the
Guarantor’s financial condition and results of operations. Such historical audited consolidated
financial information as at and for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 should not be taken
as an indication of the expected financial condition and results of operations of the Guarantor for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.

For the purpose of the offers and sales to non-U.S. persons outside the United States in offshore
transactions in reliance on Regulation S, Ernst & Young has acknowledged the inclusion in this
Offering Circular of all references to its name, its auditor’s report on the Guarantor’s consolidated
financial information as at and for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, in the form and
context in which they are respectively included in this Offering Circular.

4. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE

Copies of the following documents may be inspected during normal business hours (being 9:00 a.m.
to 3:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time)) upon prior written notice and with satisfactory proof of holding on
any weekday (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) at the specified office of the Trustee:

(i) audited consolidated financial statements of the Guarantor for the year ended 31 December
2018;

(ii) each Pricing Supplement (save that a Pricing Supplement relating to a Note which is neither
admitted to trading on a regulated market within the European Economic Area or in the United
Kingdom (the “UK”) nor offered in the European Economic Area or in the UK in circumstances
where a prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Directive will only be
available for inspection by a holder of such Note and such holder must produce evidence
satisfactory to the Issuer and the Issuing and Paying Agent as to its holding of Notes and
identity);

(iii) a copy of this Offering Circular together with any supplement to this Offering Circular;

(iv) the Trust Deed; and

(v) the Agency Agreement.
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So long as any of the Notes remain outstanding, the Issuer and the Guarantor have covenanted in the
Trust Deed to send to the Trustee, within the time limits stipulated therein, copies of:

(i) the Guarantor’s audited consolidated financial statements for each financial year of the
Guarantor; and

(ii) the Guarantor’s unaudited consolidated financial statements for each first semi-annual fiscal
period of the Guarantor.

5. CLEARING SYSTEM AND SETTLEMENT

The Notes may be accepted for clearance through Euroclear, Clearstream or other alternative
clearing system. The appropriate common code and the International Securities Identification
Number in relation to the Notes of each Series will be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.
The relevant Pricing Supplement shall specify any other clearing system as shall have accepted the
relevant Notes for clearance together with any further appropriate information.

6. LISTING OF THE NOTES

Application has been made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the listing of the Programme by
way of debt issues to Professional Investors only during the 12 month period from the date of this
Offering Circular. It is expected that dealings will, if permission is granted to deal in and for the
listing of such Notes, commence on or about the date of listing of the relevant Notes. The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the correctness of any statements made on opinions or
reports contained in this Offering Circular. Admission of the Notes to the official list of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange is not to be taken as an indication of the merits of the Notes or the Group.

7. NO MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE

Except as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been no material adverse change in the
financial or trading position or prospects of the Guarantor or the Group since 31 December 2019.
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PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

MiFID II product governance/Professional investors and ECPs only target market – Solely for the 

purposes of the manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes 

has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional 

clients only, each as defined in Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, MiFID II); and (ii) all channels for 

distribution of the Notes to eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person 

subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into consideration the 

manufacturer’s target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID II is responsible for 

undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the 

manufacturer’s target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels. 

UK MIFIR product governance / Professional investors and ECPs only target market – Solely for the 

purposes of the manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes 

has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional 

clients only, each as defined in Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the 

European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (UK MiFIR); and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Notes to 

eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or 

recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into consideration the manufacturer’s target market 

assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance 

Sourcebook (the UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules) is responsible for undertaking its own target market 

assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer’s target market assessment) 

and determining appropriate distribution channels. 

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are not intended to be offered, 

sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 

investor in the European Economic Area (EEA). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is 

one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, 

MiFID II); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the Insurance Distribution 

Directive), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 

4(1) of MiFID II. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as 

amended, the PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to 

retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making 

them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation. 

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are not intended to be offered, 

sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 

investor in the United Kingdom (UK). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or 

more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part 

of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA 

and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA which were relied on immediately before exit day to 

implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined 

in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the 

EUWA. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms 

part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the UK PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or 

otherwise making them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or 

selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under 

the UK PRIIPs Regulation. 

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore (the 

SFA) – In connection with Section 309B of the SFA and the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) 

Regulations 2018 (the CMP Regulations 2018), the Issuer has determined the classification of the Securities 

as prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the CMP Regulations 2018) and Excluded Investment 
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Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice 

FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products). 

Pricing Supplement dated 12 January 2021 

China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited 

Issue of U.S.$500,000,000 1.250% Guaranteed Notes due 2024 (the Notes) 

under the U.S.$2,000,000,000 Medium Term Note Programme 

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein. 

This document is for distribution to professional investors (as defined in Chapter 37 of the Rules Governing 

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (Professional Investors). 

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has not reviewed the contents of this document, other than 

to ensure that the prescribed form disclaimer and responsibility statements, and a statement limiting 

distribution of this document to Professional Investors only have been reproduced in this document. 

Listing of the Programme and the Notes on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is not to be 

taken as an indication of the commercial merits or credit quality of the Programme, the Notes or the 

Issuer, the Guarantor or quality of disclosure in this document. Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing 

Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this 

document, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability 

whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of 

this document.  

Notice to Hong Kong investors: The Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are intended for purchase 

by Professional Investors only and have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on that 

basis. Accordingly, the Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are not appropriate as an investment 

for retail investors in Hong Kong. Investors should carefully consider the risks involved. 

This document, together with the Offering Circular, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules 

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving 

information with regard to the Issuer and the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept full responsibility 

for the accuracy of the information contained in this document and confirms, having made all reasonable 

enquiries, that to the best of its knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would 

make any statement herein misleading. 

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the 

Offering Circular dated 7 January 2021. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and 

must be read in conjunction with such Offering Circular. 

1. Issuer: China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited 

2. (a) Status of the Notes: Senior 

(b) Guarantee: Guaranteed by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company 

Limited 

3. (a) Series Number:  

(b) Tranche: 

001 

001 

4. Specified Currency or Currencies: United States dollars 
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5. Aggregate Nominal Amount: U.S.$500,000,000 

6. (a) Issue Price: 99.619 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount  

(b) Gross Proceeds: U.S.$498,095,000 

7. (a) Specified Denominations: U.S.$200,000 and integral multiples of U.S.$1,000 in excess 

thereof  

(b) Calculation Amount: U.S.$1,000 

8. (a) Issue Date: 20 January 2021 

(b) Interest Commencement 

Date: 

Issue Date 

9. Maturity Date: 20 January 2024 

10. (a) Interest Basis: 1.250 per cent. Fixed Rate (further particulars specified 

below) 

(b) Default Rate: None 

11. Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par 

12. Change of Interest or 

Redemption/Payment Basis: 

Not Applicable 

13. Put/Call Options: Issuer Call (further particulars specified below) 

14. NDRC Registration/Confirmation: The registration certificate issued by the National 

Development and Reform Commission on 23 October 2020 

15. Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the expected 

effective listing date of the Notes is on or around 21 January 

2021) 

16. Place of Payment: New York City, Hong Kong 

17. Method of distribution: Syndicated 

18. Private Bank Rebate/Commission Not Applicable 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE 

19. Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable 

(a) Rate of Interest: 1.250 per cent. per annum payable semi-annually in arrears 

(b) Interest Payment Dates: 20 January and 20 July in each year, commencing on 20 July 

2021 

(c) Fixed Coupon Amount: U.S.$6.250 per Calculation Amount 

(d) Broken Amount(s): Not Applicable 
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(e) Day Count Fraction: 30/360 

(f) Determination Dates: Not Applicable 

(g) Other terms relating to the 

method of calculating 

interest for Fixed Rate 

Notes: 

Not Applicable 

20. Floating Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable 

21. Zero Coupon Note Provisions Not Applicable 

22. Index-Linked Interest Note 

Provisions 

Not Applicable 

23. Dual Currency Note Provisions Not Applicable 

24. Default Rate Not Applicable 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION 

25. Call Option Applicable 

(a) Optional Redemption 

Date(s): 

The Issuer may, at its option, at any time and from time to 

time redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, in accordance with 

Condition 6(d), as amended by the below  

(b) Optional Redemption 

Amount(s) of each Note 

and specified 

denomination method, if 

any, of calculation of such 

amount(s): 

If the Optional Redemption Date falls on or prior to three 

months prior to the Maturity Date, an amount equal to the 

greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the Note and 

(2) the sum of the then current values of the remaining 

scheduled payments of principal and interest discounted to the 

Optional Redemption Date on an annual basis based on the 

actual number of days elapsed divided by 360 at the Treasury 

Rate plus 25 basis points. 

If the Optional Redemption Date falls within the three months 

prior to the Maturity Date, an amount equal to 100% of the 

principal amount of the Note.  

For these purposes,  

“Comparable Treasury Issue” means the United States 

Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment 

Bank that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in 

accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new 

issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to 

the remaining term of the Notes to be redeemed. 

“Comparable Treasury Price” means, with respect to any 

redemption date, (1) the average of the Reference Treasury 

Dealer Quotations for such redemption date, after excluding 

the highest and lowest of such Reference Treasury Dealer 

Quotations, or (2) if the Guarantor obtains fewer than three 
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such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all 

quotations obtained. 

“Reference Treasury Dealer” means each of any three 

investment banks of recognized standing that is a primary 

U.S. government securities dealer in the United States, 

selected by the Issuer in good faith. 

“Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations” means, with 

respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any 

redemption date, the average, as determined by the Issuer, of 

the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue 

(expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal 

amount) quoted in writing to the Issuer by such Reference 

Treasury Dealer as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the 

third Business Day preceding such date of redemption. 

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any date of 

redemption, the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual 

equivalent yield to maturity computed as of the third Business 

Day immediately preceding such redemption date).  

(c) If redeemable in part:  

(i) Minimum 

Redemption 

Amount: 

U.S.$200,000 

(ii) Maximum 

Redemption 

Amount: 

Not Applicable 

(d) Notice period: Not less than 20 nor more than 30 days’ irrevocable notice to 

the Noteholders  

26. Put Option Not Applicable 

27. Final Redemption Amount of 

each Note 

U.S.$1,000 per Calculation Amount 

28. Early Redemption Amount  

Early Redemption Amount(s) per 

Calculation Amount payable on 

redemption for taxation reasons or 

on event of default and/or the 

method of calculating the same (if 

required or if different from that set 

out in the Conditions): 

U.S.$1,000 per Calculation Amount 

29. Other Redemption/Repurchase 

Events 

Condition 6(c) (Redemption for Taxation Reasons) and 

Condition 6(f) (Repurchase for Change of Control Triggering 

Event) are applicable 

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES 
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30. (a) Form of Notes: Registered Notes 

(b) Applicable TEFRA 

exemption: 

Not Applicable  

31. Talons for future Coupons or 

Receipts to be attached to 

Definitive Bearer Notes (and dates 

on which such Talons mature): 

No 

32. Financial Center(s) or other special 

provisions relating to Payment 

Dates: 

New York City, Hong Kong 

33. Details relating to Partly Paid 

Notes: amount of each payment 

comprising the Issue Price and date 

on which each payment is to be 

made and consequences (if any) of 

failure to pay, including any right 

of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes 

and interest due on late payment: 

Not Applicable 

34. Details relating to Partly Paid 

Notes: amount of each payment 

comprising the Issue Price and date 

on which each payment is to be 

made and consequences (if any) of 

failure to pay, including any right 

of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes 

and interest due on late payment: 

Not Applicable 

35. Redenomination, 

Renominalisation and 

Reconventioning: 

Not Applicable 

36. Consolidation provisions: Not Applicable 

37. Use of Proceeds: Refinance of existing indebtedness and/or other general 

corporate purposes in accordance with applicable laws and 

registration documents. 

38. Other terms or special conditions: Not Applicable 

DISTRIBUTION 

39. (a) If syndicated, names of 

Managers: 

Agricultural Bank of China Limited Hong Kong Branch 

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 

Bank of China Limited 

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited 

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch 

BNP Paribas 

BOCI Asia Limited  

Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited 

CCB International Capital Limited 

China CITIC Bank International Limited 



 
 

 

0114629-0000007 HKO1: 2001526615.10 7  

 

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited 

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch 

Cinda International Capital Limited 

CMB International Capital Limited 

DBS Bank Ltd. 

Haitong International Securities Company Limited 

Mizuho Securities Asia Limited 

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited 

Standard Chartered Bank 

China Galaxy International Securities (Hong Kong) Co., 

Ltd 

China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong 

Securities Limited 

China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited 

China Securities (International) Corporate Finance Company 

Limited 

CLSA Limited 

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited 

Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited 

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch 

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited 

Huarong International Securities Limited 

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc 

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd., Hong 

Kong Branch    

(b) Stabilising Manager (if 

any): 

Any of the Joint Lead Managers other than China CITIC Bank 

International Limited 

40. If non-syndicated, name of Dealer: Not Applicable 

41. U.S. selling restrictions: Regulation S, Category 2 

42. Additional selling restrictions: Not Applicable 

43. Interests of Joint Lead Managers  

involved in the issue/offer: 

Not Applicable  

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION 

44. ISIN Code: XS2281791082 

45. Common Code: 228179108 

46. LEI Code of Issuer: 549300ZIBIB6Z9RSNU64 

47. Any clearing system(s) other than 

Euroclear Bank SA/NV and 

Clearstream Banking S.A. and the 

relevant identification number(s): 

Not Applicable 

48. Delivery: Delivery against payment 

49. Additional Paying Agent(s) (if 

any): 

Not Applicable  
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50. Additional Registrar (if any): Not Applicable  
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 PURPOSE OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required for issue and admission to trading on The Stock 

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the Notes described herein pursuant to the U.S.$2,000,000,000 Medium 

Term Note Programme of the Issuer.
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PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

MiFID II product governance/Professional investors and ECPs only target market – Solely for the 

purposes of the manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes 

has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional 

clients only, each as defined in Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, MiFID II); and (ii) all channels for 

distribution of the Notes to eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person 

subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into consideration the 

manufacturer’s target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID II is responsible for 

undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the 

manufacturer’s target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels. 

UK MIFIR product governance / Professional investors and ECPs only target market – Solely for the 

purposes of the manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes 

has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional 

clients only, each as defined in Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the 

European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (UK MiFIR); and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Notes to 

eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or 

recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into consideration the manufacturer’s target market 

assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance 

Sourcebook (the UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules) is responsible for undertaking its own target market 

assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer’s target market assessment) 

and determining appropriate distribution channels. 

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are not intended to be offered, 

sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 

investor in the European Economic Area (EEA). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is 

one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, 

MiFID II); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the Insurance Distribution 

Directive), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 

4(1) of MiFID II. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as 

amended, the PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to 

retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making 

them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation. 

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are not intended to be offered, 

sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 

investor in the United Kingdom (UK). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or 

more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part 

of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA 

and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA which were relied on immediately before exit day to 

implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined 

in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the 

EUWA. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms 

part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the UK PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or 

otherwise making them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or 

selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under 

the UK PRIIPs Regulation. 

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore (the 

SFA) – In connection with Section 309B of the SFA and the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) 

Regulations 2018 (the CMP Regulations 2018), the Issuer has determined the classification of the Securities 

as prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the CMP Regulations 2018) and Excluded Investment 



 
 

 

0114629-0000007 HKO1: 2001526616.11 2  

 

Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice 

FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products). 

Pricing Supplement dated 12 January 2021 

China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited 

Issue of U.S.$300,000,000 1.875% Guaranteed Notes due 2026 (the Notes) 

under the U.S.$2,000,000,000 Medium Term Note Programme 

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein. 

This document is for distribution to professional investors (as defined in Chapter 37 of the Rules Governing 

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (Professional Investors). 

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has not reviewed the contents of this document, other than 

to ensure that the prescribed form disclaimer and responsibility statements, and a statement limiting 

distribution of this document to Professional Investors only have been reproduced in this document. 

Listing of the Programme and the Notes on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is not to be 

taken as an indication of the commercial merits or credit quality of the Programme, the Notes or the 

Issuer, the Guarantor or quality of disclosure in this document. Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing 

Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this 

document, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability 

whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of 

this document.  

Notice to Hong Kong investors: The Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are intended for purchase 

by Professional Investors only and have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on that 

basis. Accordingly, the Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are not appropriate as an investment 

for retail investors in Hong Kong. Investors should carefully consider the risks involved. 

This document, together with the Offering Circular, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules 

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving 

information with regard to the Issuer and the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept full responsibility 

for the accuracy of the information contained in this document and confirms, having made all reasonable 

enquiries, that to the best of its knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would 

make any statement herein misleading. 

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the 

Offering Circular dated 7 January 2021. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and 

must be read in conjunction with such Offering Circular. 

1. Issuer: China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited 

2. (a) Status of the Notes: Senior 

(b) Guarantee: Guaranteed by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company 

Limited 

3. (a) Series Number:  

(b) Tranche: 

002 

001 

4. Specified Currency or Currencies: United States dollars 
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5. Aggregate Nominal Amount: U.S.$300,000,000 

6. (a) Issue Price: 99.772 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount  

(b) Gross Proceeds: U.S.$299,316,000 

7. (a) Specified Denominations: U.S.$200,000 and integral multiples of U.S.$1,000 in excess 

thereof  

(b) Calculation Amount: U.S.$1,000 

8. (a) Issue Date: 20 January 2021 

(b) Interest Commencement 

Date: 

Issue Date 

9. Maturity Date: 20 January 2026 

10. (a) Interest Basis: 1.875 per cent. Fixed Rate (further particulars specified 

below) 

(b) Default Rate: None 

11. Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par 

12. Change of Interest or 

Redemption/Payment Basis: 

Not Applicable 

13. Put/Call Options: Issuer Call (further particulars specified below) 

14. NDRC Registration/Confirmation: The registration certificate issued by the National 

Development and Reform Commission on 23 October 2020 

15. Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the expected 

effective listing date of the Notes is on or around 21 January 

2021) 

16. Place of Payment: New York City, Hong Kong 

17. Method of distribution: Syndicated 

18. Private Bank Rebate/Commission Not Applicable 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE 

19. Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable 

(a) Rate of Interest: 1.875 per cent. per annum payable semi-annually in arrears 

(b) Interest Payment Dates: 20 January and 20 July in each year, commencing on 20 July 

2021 

(c) Fixed Coupon Amount: U.S.$9.375 per Calculation Amount 

(d) Broken Amount(s): Not Applicable 
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(e) Day Count Fraction: 30/360 

(f) Determination Dates: Not Applicable 

(g) Other terms relating to the 

method of calculating 

interest for Fixed Rate 

Notes: 

Not Applicable 

20. Floating Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable 

21. Zero Coupon Note Provisions Not Applicable 

22. Index-Linked Interest Note 

Provisions 

Not Applicable 

23. Dual Currency Note Provisions Not Applicable 

24. Default Rate Not Applicable 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION 

25. Call Option Applicable 

(a) Optional Redemption 

Date(s): 

The Issuer may, at its option, at any time and from time to 

time redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, in accordance with 

Condition 6(d), as amended by the below  

(b) Optional Redemption 

Amount(s) of each Note 

and specified 

denomination method, if 

any, of calculation of such 

amount(s): 

If the Optional Redemption Date falls on or prior to three 

months prior to the Maturity Date, an amount equal to the 

greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the Note and 

(2) the sum of the then current values of the remaining 

scheduled payments of principal and interest discounted to the 

Optional Redemption Date on an annual basis based on the 

actual number of days elapsed divided by 360 at the Treasury 

Rate plus 25 basis points. 

If the Optional Redemption Date falls within the three months 

prior to the Maturity Date, an amount equal to 100% of the 

principal amount of the Note.  

For these purposes,  

“Comparable Treasury Issue” means the United States 

Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment 

Bank that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in 

accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new 

issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to 

the remaining term of the Notes to be redeemed. 

“Comparable Treasury Price” means, with respect to any 

redemption date, (1) the average of the Reference Treasury 

Dealer Quotations for such redemption date, after excluding 

the highest and lowest of such Reference Treasury Dealer 

Quotations, or (2) if the Guarantor obtains fewer than three 
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such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all 

quotations obtained. 

“Reference Treasury Dealer” means each of any three 

investment banks of recognized standing that is a primary 

U.S. government securities dealer in the United States, 

selected by the Issuer in good faith. 

“Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations” means, with 

respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any 

redemption date, the average, as determined by the Issuer, of 

the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue 

(expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal 

amount) quoted in writing to the Issuer by such Reference 

Treasury Dealer as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the 

third Business Day preceding such date of redemption. 

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any date of 

redemption, the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual 

equivalent yield to maturity computed as of the third Business 

Day immediately preceding such redemption date).  

(c) If redeemable in part:  

(i) Minimum 

Redemption 

Amount: 

U.S.$200,000 

(ii) Maximum 

Redemption 

Amount: 

Not Applicable 

(d) Notice period: Not less than 20 nor more than 30 days’ irrevocable notice to 

the Noteholders  

26. Put Option Not Applicable 

27. Final Redemption Amount of 

each Note 

U.S.$1,000 per Calculation Amount 

28. Early Redemption Amount  

Early Redemption Amount(s) per 

Calculation Amount payable on 

redemption for taxation reasons or 

on event of default and/or the 

method of calculating the same (if 

required or if different from that set 

out in the Conditions): 

U.S.$1,000 per Calculation Amount 

29. Other Redemption/Repurchase 

Events 

Condition 6(c) (Redemption for Taxation Reasons) and 

Condition 6(f) (Repurchase for Change of Control Triggering 

Event) are applicable 

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES 
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30. (a) Form of Notes: Registered Notes 

(b) Applicable TEFRA 

exemption: 

Not Applicable  

31. Talons for future Coupons or 

Receipts to be attached to 

Definitive Bearer Notes (and dates 

on which such Talons mature): 

No 

32. Financial Center(s) or other special 

provisions relating to Payment 

Dates: 

New York City, Hong Kong 

33. Details relating to Partly Paid 

Notes: amount of each payment 

comprising the Issue Price and date 

on which each payment is to be 

made and consequences (if any) of 

failure to pay, including any right 

of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes 

and interest due on late payment: 

Not Applicable 

34. Details relating to Partly Paid 

Notes: amount of each payment 

comprising the Issue Price and date 

on which each payment is to be 

made and consequences (if any) of 

failure to pay, including any right 

of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes 

and interest due on late payment: 

Not Applicable 

35. Redenomination, 

Renominalisation and 

Reconventioning: 

Not Applicable 

36. Consolidation provisions: Not Applicable 

37. Use of Proceeds: Refinance of existing indebtedness and/or other general 

corporate purposes in accordance with applicable laws and 

registration documents 

38. Other terms or special conditions: Not Applicable 

DISTRIBUTION 

39. (a) If syndicated, names of 

Managers: 

Agricultural Bank of China Limited Hong Kong Branch 

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 

Bank of China Limited 

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited 

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch 

BNP Paribas 

BOCI Asia Limited  

Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited 

CCB International Capital Limited 

China CITIC Bank International Limited 
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China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited 

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch 

Cinda International Capital Limited 

CMB International Capital Limited 

DBS Bank Ltd. 

Haitong International Securities Company Limited 

Mizuho Securities Asia Limited 

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited 

Standard Chartered Bank 

China Galaxy International Securities (Hong Kong) Co., 

Ltd 

China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong 

Securities Limited 

China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited 

China Securities (International) Corporate Finance Company 

Limited 

CLSA Limited 

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited 

Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited 

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch 

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited 

Huarong International Securities Limited 

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc 

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd., Hong 

Kong Branch 

(b) Stabilising Manager (if 

any): 

Any of the Joint Lead Managers other than China CITIC Bank 

International Limited 

40. If non-syndicated, name of Dealer: Not Applicable 

41. U.S. selling restrictions: Regulation S, Category 2 

42. Additional selling restrictions: Not Applicable 

43. Interests of Joint Lead Managers  

involved in the issue/offer: 

Not Applicable 

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION 

44. ISIN Code: XS2281795075 

45. Common Code: 228179507 

46. LEI Code of Issuer: 549300ZIBIB6Z9RSNU64 

47. Any clearing system(s) other than 

Euroclear Bank SA/NV and 

Clearstream Banking S.A. and the 

relevant identification number(s): 

Not Applicable 

48. Delivery: Delivery against payment 

49. Additional Paying Agent(s) (if 

any): 

Not Applicable  
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50. Additional Registrar (if any): Not Applicable  
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 PURPOSE OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required for issue and admission to trading on The Stock 

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the Notes described herein pursuant to the U.S.$2,000,000,000 Medium 

Term Note Programme of the Issuer.
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PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

MiFID II product governance/Professional investors and ECPs only target market – Solely for the 

purposes of the manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes 

has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional 

clients only, each as defined in Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, MiFID II); and (ii) all channels for 

distribution of the Notes to eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person 

subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into consideration the 

manufacturer’s target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID II is responsible for 

undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the 

manufacturer’s target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels. 

UK MIFIR product governance / Professional investors and ECPs only target market – Solely for the 

purposes of the manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes 

has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional 

clients only, each as defined in Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the 

European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (UK MiFIR); and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Notes to 

eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or 

recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into consideration the manufacturer’s target market 

assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance 

Sourcebook (the UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules) is responsible for undertaking its own target market 

assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer’s target market assessment) 

and determining appropriate distribution channels. 

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are not intended to be offered, 

sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 

investor in the European Economic Area (EEA). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is 

one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, 

MiFID II); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the Insurance Distribution 

Directive), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 

4(1) of MiFID II. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as 

amended, the PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to 

retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making 

them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation. 

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are not intended to be offered, 

sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 

investor in the United Kingdom (UK). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or 

more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part 

of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA 

and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA which were relied on immediately before exit day to 

implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined 

in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the 

EUWA. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms 

part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the UK PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or 

otherwise making them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or 

selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under 

the UK PRIIPs Regulation. 

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore (the 

SFA) – In connection with Section 309B of the SFA and the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) 

Regulations 2018 (the CMP Regulations 2018), the Issuer has determined the classification of the Securities 

as prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the CMP Regulations 2018) and Excluded Investment 
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Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice 

FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products). 

Pricing Supplement dated 12 January 2021 

China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited 

Issue of U.S.$400,000,000 2.500% Guaranteed Notes due 2028 (the Notes) 

under the U.S.$2,000,000,000 Medium Term Note Programme 

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein. 

This document is for distribution to professional investors (as defined in Chapter 37 of the Rules Governing 

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (Professional Investors). 

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has not reviewed the contents of this document, other than 

to ensure that the prescribed form disclaimer and responsibility statements, and a statement limiting 

distribution of this document to Professional Investors only have been reproduced in this document. 

Listing of the Programme and the Notes on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is not to be 

taken as an indication of the commercial merits or credit quality of the Programme, the Notes or the 

Issuer, the Guarantor or quality of disclosure in this document. Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing 

Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this 

document, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability 

whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of 

this document.  

Notice to Hong Kong investors: The Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are intended for purchase 

by Professional Investors only and have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on that 

basis. Accordingly, the Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are not appropriate as an investment 

for retail investors in Hong Kong. Investors should carefully consider the risks involved. 

This document, together with the Offering Circular, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules 

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving 

information with regard to the Issuer and the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept full responsibility 

for the accuracy of the information contained in this document and confirms, having made all reasonable 

enquiries, that to the best of its knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would 

make any statement herein misleading. 

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the 

Offering Circular dated 7 January 2021. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and 

must be read in conjunction with such Offering Circular. 

1. Issuer: China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited 

2. (a) Status of the Notes: Senior 

(b) Guarantee: Guaranteed by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company 

Limited 

3. (a) Series Number:  

(b) Tranche: 

003 

001 

4. Specified Currency or Currencies: United States dollars 
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5. Aggregate Nominal Amount: U.S.$400,000,000 

6. (a) Issue Price: 98.644 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount  

(b) Gross Proceeds: U.S.$394,576,000 

7. (a) Specified Denominations: U.S.$200,000 and integral multiples of U.S.$1,000 in excess 

thereof  

(b) Calculation Amount: U.S.$1,000 

8. (a) Issue Date: 20 January 2021 

(b) Interest Commencement 

Date: 

Issue Date 

9. Maturity Date: 20 January 2028 

10. (a) Interest Basis: 2.500 per cent. Fixed Rate (further particulars specified 

below) 

(b) Default Rate: None 

11. Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par 

12. Change of Interest or 

Redemption/Payment Basis: 

Not Applicable 

13. Put/Call Options: Issuer Call (further particulars specified below) 

14. NDRC Registration/Confirmation: The registration certificate issued by the National 

Development and Reform Commission on 23 October 2020 

15. Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the expected 

effective listing date of the Notes is on or around 21 January 

2021) 

16. Place of Payment: New York City, Hong Kong 

17. Method of distribution: Syndicated 

18. Private Bank Rebate/Commission Not Applicable 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE 

19. Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable 

(a) Rate of Interest: 2.500 per cent. per annum payable semi-annually in arrears 

(b) Interest Payment Dates: 20 January and 20 July in each year, commencing on 20 July 

2021 

(c) Fixed Coupon Amount: U.S.$12.500 per Calculation Amount 

(d) Broken Amount(s): Not Applicable 
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(e) Day Count Fraction: 30/360 

(f) Determination Dates: Not Applicable 

(g) Other terms relating to the 

method of calculating 

interest for Fixed Rate 

Notes: 

Not Applicable 

20. Floating Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable 

21. Zero Coupon Note Provisions Not Applicable 

22. Index-Linked Interest Note 

Provisions 

Not Applicable 

23. Dual Currency Note Provisions Not Applicable 

24. Default Rate Not Applicable 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION 

25. Call Option Applicable 

(a) Optional Redemption 

Date(s): 

The Issuer may, at its option, at any time and from time to 

time redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, in accordance with 

Condition 6(d), as amended by the below  

(b) Optional Redemption 

Amount(s) of each Note 

and specified 

denomination method, if 

any, of calculation of such 

amount(s): 

If the Optional Redemption Date falls on or prior to three 

months prior to the Maturity Date, an amount equal to the 

greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the Note and 

(2) the sum of the then current values of the remaining 

scheduled payments of principal and interest discounted to the 

Optional Redemption Date on an annual basis based on the 

actual number of days elapsed divided by 360 at the Treasury 

Rate plus 25 basis points. 

If the Optional Redemption Date falls within the three months 

prior to the Maturity Date, an amount equal to 100% of the 

principal amount of the Note.  

For these purposes,  

“Comparable Treasury Issue” means the United States 

Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment 

Bank that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in 

accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new 

issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to 

the remaining term of the Notes to be redeemed. 

“Comparable Treasury Price” means, with respect to any 

redemption date, (1) the average of the Reference Treasury 

Dealer Quotations for such redemption date, after excluding 

the highest and lowest of such Reference Treasury Dealer 

Quotations, or (2) if the Guarantor obtains fewer than three 
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such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all 

quotations obtained. 

“Reference Treasury Dealer” means each of any three 

investment banks of recognized standing that is a primary 

U.S. government securities dealer in the United States, 

selected by the Issuer in good faith. 

“Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations” means, with 

respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any 

redemption date, the average, as determined by the Issuer, of 

the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue 

(expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal 

amount) quoted in writing to the Issuer by such Reference 

Treasury Dealer as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the 

third Business Day preceding such date of redemption. 

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any date of 

redemption, the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual 

equivalent yield to maturity computed as of the third Business 

Day immediately preceding such redemption date).  

(c) If redeemable in part:  

(i) Minimum 

Redemption 

Amount: 

U.S.$200,000 

(ii) Maximum 

Redemption 

Amount: 

Not Applicable 

(d) Notice period: Not less than 20 nor more than 30 days’ irrevocable notice to 

the Noteholders  

26. Put Option Not Applicable 

27. Final Redemption Amount of 

each Note 

U.S.$1,000 per Calculation Amount 

28. Early Redemption Amount  

Early Redemption Amount(s) per 

Calculation Amount payable on 

redemption for taxation reasons or 

on event of default and/or the 

method of calculating the same (if 

required or if different from that set 

out in the Conditions): 

U.S.$1,000 per Calculation Amount 

29. Other Redemption/Repurchase 

Events 

Condition 6(c) (Redemption for Taxation Reasons) and 

Condition 6(f) (Repurchase for Change of Control Triggering 

Event) are applicable 

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES 
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30. (a) Form of Notes: Registered Notes 

(b) Applicable TEFRA 

exemption: 

Not Applicable  

31. Talons for future Coupons or 

Receipts to be attached to 

Definitive Bearer Notes (and dates 

on which such Talons mature): 

No 

32. Financial Center(s) or other special 

provisions relating to Payment 

Dates: 

New York City, Hong Kong 

33. Details relating to Partly Paid 

Notes: amount of each payment 

comprising the Issue Price and date 

on which each payment is to be 

made and consequences (if any) of 

failure to pay, including any right 

of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes 

and interest due on late payment: 

Not Applicable 

34. Details relating to Partly Paid 

Notes: amount of each payment 

comprising the Issue Price and date 

on which each payment is to be 

made and consequences (if any) of 

failure to pay, including any right 

of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes 

and interest due on late payment: 

Not Applicable 

35. Redenomination, 

Renominalisation and 

Reconventioning: 

Not Applicable 

36. Consolidation provisions: Not Applicable 

37. Use of Proceeds: Refinance of existing indebtedness and/or other general 

corporate purposes in accordance with applicable laws and 

registration documents 

38. Other terms or special conditions: Not Applicable 

DISTRIBUTION 

39. (a) If syndicated, names of 

Managers: 

Agricultural Bank of China Limited Hong Kong Branch 

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 

Bank of China Limited 

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited 

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch 

BNP Paribas 

BOCI Asia Limited  

Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited 

CCB International Capital Limited 

China CITIC Bank International Limited 



 
 

 

0114629-0000007 HKO1: 2001526618.6 7  

 

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited 

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch 

Cinda International Capital Limited 

CMB International Capital Limited 

DBS Bank Ltd. 

Haitong International Securities Company Limited 

Mizuho Securities Asia Limited 

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited 

Standard Chartered Bank 

China Galaxy International Securities (Hong Kong) Co., 

Ltd 

China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong 

Securities Limited 

China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited 

China Securities (International) Corporate Finance Company 

Limited 

CLSA Limited 

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited 

Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited 

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch 

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited 

Huarong International Securities Limited 

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc 

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd., Hong 

Kong Branch   

(b) Stabilising Manager (if 

any): 

Any of the Joint Lead Managers other than China CITIC Bank 

International Limited 

40. If non-syndicated, name of Dealer: Not Applicable 

41. U.S. selling restrictions: Regulation S, Category 2 

42. Additional selling restrictions: Not Applicable 

43. Interests of Joint Lead Managers  

involved in the issue/offer: 

Not Applicable  

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION 

44. ISIN Code: XS2281797790 

45. Common Code: 228179779 

46. LEI Code of Issuer: 549300ZIBIB6Z9RSNU64  

47. Any clearing system(s) other than 

Euroclear Bank SA/NV and 

Clearstream Banking S.A. and the 

relevant identification number(s): 

Not Applicable 

48. Delivery: Delivery against payment 

49. Additional Paying Agent(s) (if 

any): 

Not Applicable  



 
 

 

0114629-0000007 HKO1: 2001526618.6 8  

 

50. Additional Registrar (if any): Not Applicable  
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 PURPOSE OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required for issue and admission to trading on The Stock 

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the Notes described herein pursuant to the U.S.$2,000,000,000 Medium 

Term Note Programme of the Issuer.
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PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

MiFID II product governance/Professional investors and ECPs only target market – Solely for the 

purposes of the manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes 

has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional 

clients only, each as defined in Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, MiFID II); and (ii) all channels for 

distribution of the Notes to eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person 

subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into consideration the 

manufacturer’s target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID II is responsible for 

undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the 

manufacturer’s target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels. 

UK MIFIR product governance / Professional investors and ECPs only target market – Solely for the 

purposes of the manufacturer’s product approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the Notes 

has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Notes is eligible counterparties and professional 

clients only, each as defined in Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the 

European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (UK MiFIR); and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Notes to 

eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate. Any person subsequently offering, selling or 

recommending the Notes (a distributor) should take into consideration the manufacturer’s target market 

assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance 

Sourcebook (the UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules) is responsible for undertaking its own target market 

assessment in respect of the Notes (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer’s target market assessment) 

and determining appropriate distribution channels. 

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are not intended to be offered, 

sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 

investor in the European Economic Area (EEA). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is 

one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, 

MiFID II); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the Insurance Distribution 

Directive), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 

4(1) of MiFID II. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as 

amended, the PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to 

retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making 

them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation. 

PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are not intended to be offered, 

sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail 

investor in the United Kingdom (UK). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or 

more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part 

of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the FSMA 

and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA which were relied on immediately before exit day to 

implement Directive (EU) 2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined 

in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the 

EUWA. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 as it forms 

part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the UK PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or 

otherwise making them available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or 

selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under 

the UK PRIIPs Regulation. 

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore (the 

SFA) – In connection with Section 309B of the SFA and the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) 

Regulations 2018 (the CMP Regulations 2018), the Issuer has determined the classification of the Securities 

as prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the CMP Regulations 2018) and Excluded Investment 
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Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice 

FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products). 

Pricing Supplement dated 12 January 2021 

China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited 

Issue of U.S.$800,000,000 3.000% Guaranteed Notes due 2031 (the Notes) 

under the U.S.$2,000,000,000 Medium Term Note Programme 

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein. 

This document is for distribution to professional investors (as defined in Chapter 37 of the Rules Governing 

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (Professional Investors). 

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has not reviewed the contents of this document, other than 

to ensure that the prescribed form disclaimer and responsibility statements, and a statement limiting 

distribution of this document to Professional Investors only have been reproduced in this document. 

Listing of the Programme and the Notes on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited is not to be 

taken as an indication of the commercial merits or credit quality of the Programme, the Notes or the 

Issuer, the Guarantor or quality of disclosure in this document. Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing 

Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this 

document, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability 

whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of 

this document.  

Notice to Hong Kong investors: The Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are intended for purchase 

by Professional Investors only and have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on that 

basis. Accordingly, the Issuer and the Guarantor confirm that the Notes are not appropriate as an investment 

for retail investors in Hong Kong. Investors should carefully consider the risks involved. 

This document, together with the Offering Circular, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules 

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving 

information with regard to the Issuer and the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept full responsibility 

for the accuracy of the information contained in this document and confirms, having made all reasonable 

enquiries, that to the best of its knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would 

make any statement herein misleading. 

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the 

Offering Circular dated 7 January 2021. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and 

must be read in conjunction with such Offering Circular. 

1. Issuer: China Cinda (2020) I Management Limited 

2. (a) Status of the Notes: Senior 

(b) Guarantee: Guaranteed by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company 

Limited 

3. (a) Series Number:  

(b) Tranche: 

004 

001 

4. Specified Currency or Currencies: United States dollars 
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5. Aggregate Nominal Amount: U.S.$800,000,000 

6. (a) Issue Price: 98.959 per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount  

(b) Gross Proceeds: U.S.$791,672,000 

7. (a) Specified Denominations: U.S.$200,000 and integral multiples of U.S.$1,000 in excess 

thereof  

(b) Calculation Amount: U.S.$1,000 

8. (a) Issue Date: 20 January 2021 

(b) Interest Commencement 

Date: 

Issue Date 

9. Maturity Date: 20 January 2031 

10. (a) Interest Basis: 3.000 per cent. Fixed Rate (further particulars specified 

below) 

(b) Default Rate: None 

11. Redemption/Payment Basis: Redemption at par 

12. Change of Interest or 

Redemption/Payment Basis: 

Not Applicable 

13. Put/Call Options: Issuer Call (further particulars specified below) 

14. NDRC Registration/Confirmation: The registration certificate issued by the National 

Development and Reform Commission on 23 October 2020 

15. Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the expected 

effective listing date of the Notes is on or around 21 January 

2021) 

16. Place of Payment: New York City, Hong Kong 

17. Method of distribution: Syndicated 

18. Private Bank Rebate/Commission Not Applicable 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE 

19. Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable 

(a) Rate of Interest: 3.000 per cent. per annum payable semi-annually in arrears 

(b) Interest Payment Dates: 20 January and 20 July in each year, commencing on 20 July 

2021 

(c) Fixed Coupon Amount: U.S.$15.000 per Calculation Amount 

(d) Broken Amount(s): Not Applicable 
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(e) Day Count Fraction: 30/360 

(f) Determination Dates: Not Applicable 

(g) Other terms relating to the 

method of calculating 

interest for Fixed Rate 

Notes: 

Not Applicable 

20. Floating Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable 

21. Zero Coupon Note Provisions Not Applicable 

22. Index-Linked Interest Note 

Provisions 

Not Applicable 

23. Dual Currency Note Provisions Not Applicable 

24. Default Rate Not Applicable 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION 

25. Call Option Applicable 

(a) Optional Redemption 

Date(s): 

The Issuer may, at its option, at any time and from time to 

time redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, in accordance with 

Condition 6(d), as amended by the below  

(b) Optional Redemption 

Amount(s) of each Note 

and specified 

denomination method, if 

any, of calculation of such 

amount(s): 

If the Optional Redemption Date falls on or prior to three 

months prior to the Maturity Date, an amount equal to the 

greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the Note and 

(2) the sum of the then current values of the remaining 

scheduled payments of principal and interest discounted to the 

Optional Redemption Date on an annual basis based on the 

actual number of days elapsed divided by 360 at the Treasury 

Rate plus 25 basis points. 

If the Optional Redemption Date falls within the three  

months prior to the Maturity Date, an amount equal to 100% 

of the principal amount of the Note.  

For these purposes,  

“Comparable Treasury Issue” means the United States 

Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment 

Bank that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in 

accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new 

issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to 

the remaining term of the Notes to be redeemed. 

“Comparable Treasury Price” means, with respect to any 

redemption date, (1) the average of the Reference Treasury 

Dealer Quotations for such redemption date, after excluding 

the highest and lowest of such Reference Treasury Dealer 

Quotations, or (2) if the Guarantor obtains fewer than three 
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such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all 

quotations obtained. 

“Reference Treasury Dealer” means each of any three 

investment banks of recognized standing that is a primary 

U.S. government securities dealer in the United States, 

selected by the Issuer in good faith. 

“Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations” means, with 

respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any 

redemption date, the average, as determined by the Issuer, of 

the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue 

(expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal 

amount) quoted in writing to the Issuer by such Reference 

Treasury Dealer as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the 

third Business Day preceding such date of redemption. 

“Treasury Rate” means, with respect to any date of 

redemption, the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual 

equivalent yield to maturity computed as of the third Business 

Day immediately preceding such redemption date).  

(c) If redeemable in part:  

(i) Minimum 

Redemption 

Amount: 

U.S.$200,000 

(ii) Maximum 

Redemption 

Amount: 

Not Applicable 

(d) Notice period: Not less than 20 nor more than 30 days’ irrevocable notice to 

the Noteholders  

26. Put Option Not Applicable 

27. Final Redemption Amount of 

each Note 

U.S.$1,000 per Calculation Amount 

28. Early Redemption Amount  

Early Redemption Amount(s) per 

Calculation Amount payable on 

redemption for taxation reasons or 

on event of default and/or the 

method of calculating the same (if 

required or if different from that set 

out in the Conditions): 

U.S.$1,000 per Calculation Amount 

29. Other Redemption/Repurchase 

Events 

Condition 6(c) (Redemption for Taxation Reasons) and 

Condition 6(f) (Repurchase for Change of Control Triggering 

Event) are applicable 

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES 
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30. (a) Form of Notes: Registered Notes 

(b) Applicable TEFRA 

exemption: 

Not Applicable  

31. Talons for future Coupons or 

Receipts to be attached to 

Definitive Bearer Notes (and dates 

on which such Talons mature): 

No 

32. Financial Center(s) or other special 

provisions relating to Payment 

Dates: 

New York City, Hong Kong 

33. Details relating to Partly Paid 

Notes: amount of each payment 

comprising the Issue Price and date 

on which each payment is to be 

made and consequences (if any) of 

failure to pay, including any right 

of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes 

and interest due on late payment: 

Not Applicable 

34. Details relating to Partly Paid 

Notes: amount of each payment 

comprising the Issue Price and date 

on which each payment is to be 

made and consequences (if any) of 

failure to pay, including any right 

of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes 

and interest due on late payment: 

Not Applicable 

35. Redenomination, 

Renominalisation and 

Reconventioning: 

Not Applicable 

36. Consolidation provisions: Not Applicable 

37. Use of Proceeds: Refinance of existing indebtedness and/or other general 

corporate purposes in accordance with applicable laws and 

registration documents 

38. Other terms or special conditions: Not Applicable 

DISTRIBUTION 

39. (a) If syndicated, names of 

Managers: 

Agricultural Bank of China Limited Hong Kong Branch 

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 

Bank of China Limited 

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited 

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch 

BNP Paribas 

BOCI Asia Limited  

Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited 

CCB International Capital Limited 

China CITIC Bank International Limited 
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China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited 

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch 

Cinda International Capital Limited 

CMB International Capital Limited 

DBS Bank Ltd. 

Haitong International Securities Company Limited 

Mizuho Securities Asia Limited 

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited 

Standard Chartered Bank 

China Galaxy International Securities (Hong Kong) Co., 

Ltd 

China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong 

Securities Limited 

China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited 

China Securities (International) Corporate Finance Company 

Limited 

CLSA Limited 

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited 

Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited 

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch 

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited 

Huarong International Securities Limited 

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited 

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc 

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd., Hong 

Kong Branch    

(b) Stabilising Manager (if 

any): 

Any of the Joint Lead Managers other than China CITIC Bank 

International Limited 

40. If non-syndicated, name of Dealer: Not Applicable 

41. U.S. selling restrictions: Regulation S, Category 2 

42. Additional selling restrictions: Not Applicable 

43. Interests of Joint Lead Managers  

involved in the issue/offer: 

Not Applicable 

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION 

44. ISIN Code: XS2281799572 

45. Common Code: 228179957 

46. LEI Code of Issuer: 549300ZIBIB6Z9RSNU64 

47. Any clearing system(s) other than 

Euroclear Bank SA/NV and 

Clearstream Banking S.A. and the 

relevant identification number(s): 

Not Applicable 

48. Delivery: Delivery against payment 

49. Additional Paying Agent(s) (if 

any): 

Not Applicable  
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50. Additional Registrar (if any): Not Applicable  
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 PURPOSE OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required for issue and admission to trading on The Stock 

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the Notes described herein pursuant to the U.S.$2,000,000,000 Medium 

Term Note Programme of the Issuer.








